

  


  


                        


                     AGENDA ITEM 8.5.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  International Baccalaureate (IB) Diploma Programme Overview 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
Background: 
Harbor High School is investigating the IB Programme for consideration as part of its academic 
program and offerings as an alternative to the College Board’s Advanced Placement (AP) 
courses. The primary reasons for considering IB are the benefits it offers students, teachers, 
and the school. 
 
Benefits for Students: 


○ Preparation for college -- curriculum emphasizes critical thinking, analysis, self-


reflection, and effective communication 


○ IB program encourages students to be well-rounded and achieve mastery in 


multiple disciplines and it includes a community service element 


○ IB subject tests and diploma program allows freedom, flexibility, and choice 


○ Students receive an increased GPA and college credit towards electives or major 


for IB courses and exams 


○ Cultural awareness and students are encouraged to be bilingual 


○ All have access to IB classes 


Benefits for Teachers: 


○ The skills-based IB format fits seamlessly with Common Core 


○ Great flexibility, choice, and depth of skills within subject matter 


○ Professional development workshops and connection to a global community of 


IB teachers 


○ Rich resources support content and assessment 


○ IB trained teachers can work in IB schools around the world 


Benefits for School: 


○ Builds a culture of learning, global awareness, and community service that 


matches with Harbor’s goals and values 


○ The IB program is cohesive -- departments work together toward common goals 


1 of 656







  


  


                        


                     AGENDA ITEM 8.5.1.1. 


○ The IB program attracts students from within the district and outside the district 


(ADA increase for district) 


○ The school becomes an IB World School and is a draw for international exchange 


students 


 
IB Details: 


● The IB Diploma Programme would affect all students at Harbor High with a focus on the 
grades where IB courses are offered--11th and 12th grade.  


● Number of students served would be 100%. Curriculum in IB would naturally affect 
courses at lower grade levels due to collaboration connecting like courses in the subject 
sequence.   


● The curriculum is made up of the Diploma Programme (DP) core and six subject groups.  
The three core elements are: 


● Theory of knowledge, in which students reflect on the nature of 
knowledge and on how we know what we claim to know. 


● The extended essay, which is an independent, self-directed piece of 
research, finishing with a 4,000-word paper. 


● Creativity, activity, service, in which students complete a project related 
to those three concepts. 


The six subject groups are: 


● Studies in language and literature 
● Language acquisition 
● Individuals and societies 
● Sciences 
● Mathematics 
● Arts 


 
● One goal of the diploma program is to “develop students who have excellent breadth 


and depth of knowledge – students who flourish physically, intellectually, emotionally 
and ethically.” 


● It is recommended that Harbor also implement the Middle Years Programme (MYP), 
which includes preparatory courses for the Diploma Programme in eight subject areas 


○ Language acquisition 
○ Language and literature 
○ Individuals and societies 
○ Sciences 
○ Mathematics 
○ Arts 
○ Physical and health education 
○ Design 


2 of 656



https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/theory-of-knowledge/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/extended-essay/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/creativity-activity-and-service/cas-projects/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/language-and-literature/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/language-and-literature/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/language-acquisition/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/language-acquisition/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/individuals-and-societies/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/individuals-and-societies/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/sciences/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/mathematics/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/mathematics/

https://www.ibo.org/programmes/diploma-programme/curriculum/the-arts/





  


  


                        


                     AGENDA ITEM 8.5.1.1. 


● The Middle Years Programme is for courses in the 9th and 10th grade years that are part 
of the continuum of learning for high school students. These courses are similar to 
current Honors courses offered in the way they are recognized by the UC system and 
are also given a grade average increase. 


● Harbor’s current curriculum is strong and diverse, including a full AVID program, 
Newcomer, and Therapeutic Special Education Program (SAIL) on our campus. While 
these programs operate independently, the IB Program is a cohesive academic program 
that would provide a focus with the product of the prestigious IB Diploma for some 
students and an IB Certificate for students who enroll in single courses. 


 
Exploration and staff involvement: 


● Jan 30, 2017:  Informational meeting with administrators, Harbor teacher, and 
representative teacher from Del Mar High School to discuss IB and how it fits with the 
AVID program. 


● March 17, 2017: Representative teacher from Del Mar High School came to Harbor to 
share with interested teachers her site’s reasons for moving to and experience 
becoming an IB school. 


● March 8, 2018: A team of teachers from math, science, English, social studies, world 
language, and art visited Sequoia High School in Redwood City to visit IB classes, talk to 
teachers and administrators. 


● March 13, April 10, and May 1, 2018:  SCIL explored and discussed the IB program and 
shared with departments and administrators feedback and questions regarding IB. 


● March 14, 2018: Staff meeting where overview of the main characteristics of IB schools 
and a staff debrief of Sequoia High School visit. 


● March 22, 2018: Four teachers from Del Mar High School in Campbell presented an 
overview of IB at their school and held a question/answer session with 20 Harbor 
teachers. 


● May 9, 2018: Staff meeting where all teachers learned about the IB program more in 
depth; there was a question and answer session. 


 
Program Evaluation: 


● There is a process to become an IB World School that includes application for candidacy 
and candidacy period, application for authorization, verification by IB World 
Organization, then authorized teaching. The program and elements are evaluated by the 
IB World Organization throughout the candidacy process and implementation period 
after authorization. 


● The IB World Schools Organization reviews IB schools to support and identify strengths 
and areas of improvement every few years. 


● The IB program will be evaluated by measures including California Dashboard Data, IB 
enrollment and test scores, number of students who earn IB Diplomas, number of AVID 
students who enroll in IB courses, student and parent surveys, and teacher surveys. 


 


3 of 656







  


  


                        


                     AGENDA ITEM 8.5.1.1. 


Fiscal Impact: 
● There are ongoing costs associated with IB, some of which are similar to the College 


Board fees currently paid for by the site discretionary funds and College and Career 
Grant funds. 


o Students must pay to register for exams (one-time fee) and for individual exams 
in IB courses.  


o Teachers must attend IB World Organization training for their subject area; this 
is the same as AP training 


● Application fee to be considered for IB Candidacy 
● Two to three year IB Candidacy fees  
● Annual IB school fee after Candidacy period 
● A 100% certificated IB Coordinator must be funded to implement and serve the DP 


program  
● Funding sources for Harbor High for the IB costs could include 


○ College and Career Grant money 
○ Title 1 professional development 
○ Title 1 
○ IB Grant funding offered through the IB World Organization 
○ Unrestricted funds (Unit funds) 
○ LCFF  
○ Lottery  


 
If Harbor became an IB Diploma program that draws students from out of the district, the 
following are estimates of ADA for additional students. 
 
25 additional students at $9,968 amounts to $249,200 
50 additional students at $9,968 amounts to $518,336 
 
For more information on IB, please go to www.ibo.org 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


● Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access 
post-secondary college and career opportunities. 


● Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


● Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between 
demographic groups within the SCCS student community. 


● Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on 
supporting effective teaching. 


  
 
 


4 of 656



http://www.ibo.org/





  


  


                        


                     AGENDA ITEM 8.5.1.1. 


Fiscal Impact: 
 
Option 1 Diploma Programme Only 


Title Possible Funding Sources Estimated Amounts 


1.0 IB Coordinator LCFF Base (Unrestricted) / Partial Title 
1 Funding (Restricted) 


$100,000.00 


Application Fee--Diploma 
Program 


College and Career Grant--one time 
(Restricted) 


$4,000.00 


Candidacy Fee College and Career Grant, IB Grant 
Funding, Title I or LCFF Base-2 times 
(Restricted / Unrestricted)  


$19,000.00 


Annual School Fee for Diploma 
Program 


Title 1--ongoing OR College and 
Career Grant, IB Grant, or LCFF Base 
(Restricted/ Unrestricted) 


$11,650.00 


Teacher Training Title 1 PD (Restricted) $1500.00/person 
(est. $15,000.00 2 
years; $8,000.00 
ongoing) 


Textbooks  Lottery / LCFF Base (Restricted / 
Unrestricted) 


$30,000.00 


Fee Waivers for student exams Title 1 OR College and Career Grand, 
OR IB Grant (Restricted) 


$30,000.00 


2018-2019 Startup costs (no student fees for exams or coordinator)  $68,000.00 


2019-2020 Candidacy Year costs; include .5 FTE $118,000.00 


 
2020- Forward Total estimate of ongoing costs 


 
$149,650.00 


Current Estimated Annual Cost of AP Program (textbooks, training, test 
fees) 


$50,000.00 


 
 


Option 2 Middle Years and Diploma Programme 


Title Possible Funding Sources Estimated Amounts 


1.0 IB Coordinator LCFF Base (Unrestricted) / Partial Title 
1 Funding (Restricted) 


$100,000.00 


Application Fee--DP and MYP College and Career Grant--one time 
(Restricted) 


$8,000.00 


Candidacy Fee College and Career Grant, IB Grant 
Funding, Title I or LCFF Base-2 times 
(Restricted / Unrestricted)  


$38,000.00 


Annual School Fee for Middle 
Years and Diploma Programme 


Title 1--ongoing OR College and 
Career Grant, IB Grant, or LCFF Base 
(Restricted/ Unrestricted) 


$20,695.00 


5 of 656







  


  


                        


                     AGENDA ITEM 8.5.1.1. 


Teacher Training Title 1 PD- (Restricted) $1500.00/person 
(est. $15,000.00 2 
years; $8,000.00 
ongoing) 


Textbooks  Lottery / LCFF Base (Restricted / 
Unrestricted) 


$30,000.00 


Fee Waivers for student exams Title 1 OR College and Career Grand, 
OR IB Grant--ongoing (Restricted) 


$30,000.00 


2018-2019 Startup costs (no student fees for exams or coordinator)  $91,000.00 


2019-2020 Candidacy Year costs; include .5 FTE Coordinator $118,000.00 


 
2020- Forward Total estimate of ongoing costs 


 
$164,695.00 


Current Estimated Annual Cost of AP Program (textbooks, training, test 
fees) 


$50,000.00 


 
Prepared by Tracey Runeare, Principal of Harbor High School 


6 of 656







Introduction to International 
Baccalaureate (IB)Program 


June 13, 2018 7 of 656







Why Invest in IB?


● It is a comprehensive, internationally 


recognized, and prestigious program with a 


tangible product: Diploma


● The curriculum was a model for Common 


Core State Standards


● Harbor would be the only SCCS high school 


and be a stand-out in mid to south county


○ IB programme is a draw to students and families


8 of 656







Who is the IB Global Community?


● Spans 144 countries, including 3,493 schools 


and over 1,065,000 students aged 3 to 19 


years. 


● Started in Europe in 1968 in response to the 


needs of geographically mobile students


● Average international exam pass rate is 78.16%


9 of 656







IB Learner Profile


10 of 656







Harbor High WASC Schoolwide 
Learning Outcomes


Communicate
● Collaborate in groups
● Use technology thoughtfully and effectively 
● Express ideas and understanding through writing, speaking, presenting and listening


Learn
● Set goals, plan and anticipate
● Access resources
● Persist through personal obstacles 
● Embrace academic challenges


Think
● Apply prior knowledge
● Solve complex problems
● Experiment and create
● Evaluate multiple perspectives and sources of information


Contribute
● Actively engage in and add to the school and larger community
● Welcome and include everyone
● Respect self and others


11 of 656







IB Certificate


● Complete one or more IB course and pass 


exam(s)


● Take IB course(s) in areas of strength and/or 


passion


● IB courses are primarily for 11-12th grade 


● Most IB classes receive a grade bump


○ Standard level and high level12 of 656







IB Diploma 
● Take one course from each of the 6 subject groups


● 6 Exam scores must total at least 24 (42 possible)


● Successfully complete Creativity/Action/Service (CAS), 
Extended Essay, and Theory of Knowledge (TOK) 
requirements


13 of 656







Diploma Subject Area groups


● Group 1 – Studies in Language and Literature 
(English)


● Group 2 – Language Acquisition (Spanish)
● Group 3 – Individuals and Societies (Social Studies)
● Group 4 – Sciences 
● Group 5 – Mathematics 
● Group 6 – The Arts 


14 of 656







Theory of Knowledge (TOK)


● TOK develops a 
coherent approach to 
learning that unifies the 
academic disciplines. 


● At Del Mar, is linked with 
AVID


15 of 656







Extended Essay
4000 words/essay mentor


The extended essay 


● Student driven --


Independent research 


● In-depth, centered on a 


question relating to one of the 


diploma program subjects


● Each student has a mentor 


from subject area
16 of 656







CAS (Creativity, Action, Service)
150 hours (50 hours each)


▪ Creativity encourages students to engage in the arts 
and creative thinking. 


▪ Action seeks to develop a healthy lifestyle through 
physical activity. 


▪ Service with the community offers a vehicle for new 
learning with academic value. 


17 of 656







IB Programme student benefits


● UC system gives 30 quarter units or 20 semester credits 
to diploma students with IB exam scores of 30 or higher


● International opportunities for secondary and post-
secondary education


● Based on IB score earned, many major colleges and 
universities grant college credits (eg. Sophomore 
standing, elective or academic credit)


● Based on IB score earned, possibly skip a lower division 
course requirement


18 of 656







Authorization & Review


19 of 656







Fastest Timeline for Harbor


● Apply October 1, 2018


● Candidacy begins March 2019


● Authorization application October 1, 2019


● Verification visit from IB April-June 2020


● Authorized August 2020


20 of 656







The IB supports school implementation 
and CCSS in several ways:


● Guidance related to how an IB education supports the goals 
of CCSS


● Mapping studies conducted on IB programmes
● Online curriculum tools
● Professional development
● Research studies
● Engagement with key experts
● Representation and consultation at multiple levels


21 of 656







This page has been left blank







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM: LCAP Process and Recommendations 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
We are currently in the second year of a three year cycle regarding our Local Control and Accountability Plan 
(LCAP). Engaging all stakeholders in the LCAP process and recommendations is an essential annual component 
of updating our district LCAP.  
 
Our stakeholder involvement process is part of our SCCS culture and has evolved. This year, in our efforts to 
continue to improve our stakeholder engagement process regarding our areas of student need (specifically as 
they relate to English Learners, Foster Youth, and students from Low Income households), we held a 
leadership retreat for Teacher Leaders, RtI Coordinators, Instructional Coaches, Site and District 
Administrators. At this retreat, we looked at subgroup data to help focus our efforts into 4 strategic focus 
areas. These strategic focus areas are: Academic Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School 
Connectedness. Stakeholders then discussed the data, looked at current practices and initiatives, and 
recommended one Tier 1 and one Tier 2 program/practice to focus on at each grade span in each of the 
strategic areas. Stakeholders were then asked to outline the cost to implement each of these 
programs/practices. A smaller committee then reviewed the recommendations and looked at the district LCAP 
and other budgets to determine needed budget revisions to support the implementation of these Tier 1 & Tier 
2 practices. Each of the Tier 1 and Tier 2 practices were shared with the Board during the April 18th MTSS 
presentation.  
 
In addition, as in years past, Santa Cruz City Schools gathered input from a variety of stakeholders to make 
updates to our 2017-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP). A series of meetings were held over eight 
months from September 2017 – May 2018. A survey was administered to parents, students and all staff for 
input to inform our LCAP. SCCS community groups (Superintendent’s Parent Leader Advisory Group, District 
English Language Advisory Council (DELAC), Migrant Parent Advisory Council (PAC), District Advisory 
Committee (DAC), Student Focus Groups and Board Community Meetings) provided input on the LCAP 
through regularly scheduled meetings. 
 
 The LCAP stakeholder meeting dates included: 
 
I. DAC Meetings    Nov 13, Nov 30, Dec 11, Dec 13, Jan 22, and Feb 12 
II. Parent Leadership Committee Oct 16, Nov 27, Feb 26 
III. DELAC/ PAC    Feb. 15 
IV. Parent and Student Surveys  Nov-Feb, 2017-18 
V.      Student Focus Group Meetings   Nov 27, Nov 30, Dec 4, Dec 12 
V.      Board Community Meetings        Sept 26, Nov 13, Jan 18, Feb, Mar 15 and April 17 
VI.          Board Updates and Approvals Sept 27, Oct 18, Nov 8, Feb 28, Mar 7, April 18, June 13, & June 20 


23 of 656







 
The DAC, DELAC and PAC were all presented with information regarding the funding process, current action 
steps written into the 2016-19 three-year LCAP, progress to date (including CAASPP data, local assessment 
data, graduation rates, English Learner redesignation rates, truancy, expulsions, and suspensions), and 
estimated funding for the 2018-19 school year. These parent groups discussed district data - local 
assessments, CDE Dashboard, input from parent, student and staff surveys.  They used this information to 
prioritize LCAP action steps and goals needing to be continued, removed, or revised.  Structured conversations 
allowed all stakeholders opportunity to review data and make recommendations.  To ensure access for our 
Spanish speaking community, we provided translated documents, bilingual surveys and interpretation in 
meetings.   
 
Trends in the LCAP recommendations from DAC, DELAC, PAC, Community Meetings, Parent Leadership 
Committee, Student Focused Group meetings, and parent, staff, and student surveys included the following: 
 
Supports already in place that should continue: 
 
*After school homework supports 
*Advancement via Individual Determination (AVID) program to support first generation college bound 
students particularly Low Income, ELs and Foster Youth  
*Instructional aides in classes and tutors 
*School activities (e.g., athletics, band, clubs, etc.) 
*Counseling social/emotional supports 
*Bilingual Community Coordinators  
*Elementary Student Learning Team Program 
*Elementary Walk to Read Program 
*Social Workers (focused on building student connectedness) 
*Career Technical Education (CTE) classes 
 
Desired Supports: 
 
*A focus on teachers building relationships with students 
*Professional Development for teachers (with an emphasis on: supporting English Language Learners in the 
classroom, supporting struggling learners in the classroom, and supporting teachers with how to incorporate 
and support diversity) 
*Additional homework support (e.g., longer library hours with tutoring support, daily teacher office hours, 
time to begin homework in class and get help if needed, study hall, etc.) 
*Bilingual counselors 
*Additional social/emotional & academic/career counseling services 
*Additional social workers 
*Positive Behavioral Interventions and Support (PBIS) Coordinator 
*More communication with parents 
*Parent Education workshops focused on early childhood literacy 
*Elementary Math Intervention(s) 
*Summer Enrichment Program 
*Build on work with foster youth collaborative to ensure wrap around services for foster youth 
 
 
 
 


24 of 656







Amendments to the 2017-18 LCFF supplemental budget based on the recommendations from all stakeholders 
were submitted and presented to the board on April 18th during the LCAP budget and staffing update. 
Tonight, staff will present both the completed LCAP and an LCAP Executive Summary that is the culmination of 
our development process this school year. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


● Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 


● Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive 
skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


● Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the 
SCCS student community. 


● Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 
● Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
● Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 


 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Elementary LCFF Supplemental Funds - $1,636,103 (Unrestricted) 
Secondary LCFF Supplemental Funds - $2,851,263 (Unrestricted) 
Total Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Supplemental Funds $4,487,366 (Unrestricted) 
 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.2. 


25 of 656







This page has been left blank







LOCAL CONTROL & 
ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN


June 13, 2018


27 of 656







LCAP  Cycle of Improvement 


Approve: 


updated LCAP


Implement: 


actions & 
services


Needs 
Assessment: 


progress  
toward goals


Resources: 


budget, staff, 
materials


Revise: 


goals & 
metrics


28 of 656







Stakeholder Engagement


• MTSS Retreat - Teacher Leaders, RtI Coordinators, Counselors, 
Instructional Coaches & Admin


• District Advisory Committee (DAC)
• Unions


• Parents


• Staff


• Student focus groups


• District English Learners Advisory Committee (DELAC)


• Migrant Parent Advisory Committee (PAC)


• Board Community Meetings


• Foster Education Collaborative (COE)


• Surveys: parents, students, and staff


29 of 656







State Priority Areas


• Conditions of Learning
• Basic (credentials, instructional materials, facilities)


• Implementation of State Standards (training, coaching) 


• Course Access (enrollment in broad course of study)


• Pupil Outcomes
• Pupil achievement on state tests: California Assessment of 


Student Performance and Progress, California English Language 
Development Test, Advanced Placement, and Early Assessment 
Program


• Other pupil outcomes on local assessments


• Engagement
• Parental Involvement (parent education, participation)


• Pupil Engagement (attendance, dropout, graduation)


• School Climate (suspension, expulsion, safety)
30 of 656







Purpose of LCFF Supplemental


Increase or improvement in services to the 
Unduplicated Pupil Count


•Foster Youth = 55 (.88%)


•English Learners = 787 (11.73%)


•Low-income = 2,459 (36.65%)


31 of 656







Supplemental Funds 2018-19


Elementary  =  $1,636,103


Secondary   = $2,851,263


Total     = $4,487,366


32 of 656







Elementary Programs & Services


•RtI Coordinators, Learning Assistants and 
Instructional Technicians to support RtI
program (parents, staff, leadership, and 
students)


•Behaviorist to support PBIS implementation 
(staff and leadership)


•Counselors (parents, students, staff and 
leadership)


33 of 656







Elementary Programs & Services 
Continued


• Instructional Coaches (parents, students, staff, and 
leadership)


• School Community Coordinators (parents, staff and 
leadership)


• Social Work / Counseling Interns (parents, staff, and 
leadership)


• Site Targeted Support Allocation at each school to 
be included in Single Plan for Student Achievement 
to address site specific needs for targeted students’ 
support.


34 of 656







Secondary Programs & Services


• Response to Intervention Coordinators (parents, staff and 
leadership)


• Reading Intervention Sections (parents, staff, and 
leadership)


• Math Intervention Sections (parents, staff, and leadership) 


• Social Workers (parents, staff, and leadership)


• Social Work / Counseling Interns (parents, staff, leadership)


• Counselors (parents, staff, and leadership)


• High School Homework Clubs (parents, students and staff)


35 of 656







Secondary  Programs & Services Cont. 


• Middle School After School Program Coordinators and 
Instructional Techs (parents, students and staff)


• Math Tutors (parents, students, staff, and leadership)


• Advancement Via Individual Determination Program 
(parents, students, staff and leadership)


• Newcomer Program - ELD support, Tutorial, Science, and 
Math (parents, students, staff and leadership)


• School Community Coordinators (parents, students, staff 
and leadership)


• NGSS Science Coach (parents, staff and leadership)


36 of 656







Secondary  Programs & Services Cont. 


• Advancement Via Individual Determination Program 
(parents, students, staff and leadership)


• Newcomer Program - ELD support, Tutorial, Science, and 
Math (parents, students, staff and leadership)


• School Community Coordinators (parents, students, staff 
and leadership)


• NGSS Science Coach (parents, staff and leadership)


37 of 656







This year’s major LCAP revisions:


All LCAP Actions are in support of our district’s 4 strategic focus areas, 
which were derived from state and local student data:


• Academic Literacy


• Mathematics


• English Learner Progress


• School Connectedness                                                                                                         


38 of 656







Key Plan Highlights


• Align actions and initiatives to District Goals & 4 
strategic focus areas using the Multi-Tier Systems of 
Support framework


• Refine our work in Response to Intervention


• Develop aligned data collection to better monitor 
impact of intervention programs


• Refine our elementary instructional coaching model


• Refine services to Newcomer students using LCFF, Title 
I and Title III resources


39 of 656







LCAP Federal Addendum 
The New Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan


• Template and guidance for Federal Addendum 
arrived late May


• Supplements the LCAP replacing the Local 
Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions for the 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)


• Addendum details plan for Title 1, Title 2, Title 3 and 
Title 4 federal dollars


• Addendum scheduled for Board Approval on June 
20th with the LCAP 


• Addendum does not require public hearing


40 of 656







Next Steps


•Public Hearing – June 13, 2018


•Board Adoption – June 20, 2018


•County Office of Education Approval


•Implementation – 2018-19 school year


41 of 656







This page has been left blank







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM:  Local Control Accountability Program (LCAP) Public Hearing 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 


BACKGROUND: 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and annual update provide details regarding 
Local Educational Agencies' (LEAs') actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and 
overall performance pursuant to Education Code sections 52060, 52066, 47605, 47605.5, and 
47606.5. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code section 52060, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and 
each school within the district, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils 
and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052 (English Learners, 
Foster Youth, Low-Income), including pupils with disabilities, for each of the state priorities 
and any locally identified priorities. 
 
A Public Hearing on the 2018-19 LCAP follows to allow public input prior to being submitted 
for adoption at the June 20th Board meeting. After Board adoption, the LCAP will be submitted 
to the County Office of Education for final approval. 
 
This work is in support of the following Goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 


 Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college 
and career opportunities. 


 Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


 Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between 
demographic groups within the SCCS student community. 


 Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


 Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
Elementary LCFF Supplemental Funds - $1,636,103 (Restricted) 
Secondary LCFF Supplemental Funds - $2,851,263 (Restricted) 
Total Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) Supplemental Funds $4,487,366 (Restricted)  
 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.3. 
43 of 656







This page has been left blank







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       1                              LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020


Overview 2018 - 2019
June, 2018


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS’


LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS
Engaging Students’ Hearts and Minds - Every Student, Every Day


45 of 656







Santa Cruz City Schools - Mission and Vision


We create and support a learning environment that challenges and enables students 
to achieve their highest potentials.


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       1                              LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020


Core Values
We believe...


... that public schools are the foundation of 


our democracy


... that every person has intrinsic worth


... in treating people with dignity and respect


... that high standards and expectations 


foster greater achievement


... that each of us shares responsibility for the 


welfare of our community


... that diversity is an asset in our community


... that honesty and integrity are essential in 


building relationships


... that schools must provide access and 
equity


... that people thrive in safe environments


Strategic Goals


• All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully 
access post-secondary college and career 
opportunities.


• SCCS will create positive, engaging school 
environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being 
of all students.


• We will eliminate the achievement gaps that 
currently exist between demographic groups 
within the SCCS student community.


• We will develop a highly collaborative, 
professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching.


• SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and 
efficient and effective management.


• SCCS will maintain strong communication and 
partnerships with its diverse community.


46 of 656







Definition of LCFF and LCAP
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF)
The LCFF represents a major shift in how California funds its schools. Established in 2013, the 
State of California’s Local Control Funding Formula focuses on EQUITY.  With LCFF, more dollars 
are allocated to school districts for students in need as defined by the State: English Learners (EL), 
Foster Youth (FY), and Low Income (LI) students. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       2                              LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020


43% of SCCS students fit 
into the category of Low 
Income, English Learner, 


or Foster Youth. 


Each student in need is 
counted only once. 


The State dollars that 
school districts use to fund 


additional programs, 
supports, and services for 
ELs, FY, and LI students 


are called LCFF 
Supplemental & 


Concentration Dollars 


LCFF State Funding Explanation


Base Dollars
$59,638,318


Every school district across the state receives the same level of funding per 
student based on enrollment.


Supplemental Dollars
$4,487,366


Based on student enrollment, every district receives more dollars for 3 key 
student groups: English Learners, Foster Youth, and Low Income Students. 
Each student in need is counted only once. 


Concentration Dollars
$0


Every district with more than 55% of student enrollment in one of the three 
key student groups will receive more dollars. Santa Cruz City Schools does 
not receive any Concentration Dollars. 


47 of 656







SCCS Fast Facts 2017 - 2018
6,720	Students	in	SCCS
(Transitional	Kindergarten	


through	12th	grade)


52%	White


38%	Latino


5%	Asian


3%	African	American


Student	Groups
37%	Low	Income


12%	English	Learners


.9%	Foster	Youth


13	Santa	Cruz	City	Schools
Bay	View	Elementary	•	Delaveaga	Elemenetary


Gault	Elementary	•	Westlake	Elementary


Alternative	Family	Education	•	Monarch	Elementary


Branciforte	Middle	School	•	Mission	Hill	Middle	School


The	Ark	Independent	Studies	•	Costanoa	High	School


Harbor	High	School	•	Santa	Cruz	High	School


Soquel	High	School


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       3                              LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020


The Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)
As part of LCFF, every district is required to create a Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP). The LCAP reports in detail how LCFF 
Supplemental funds (State) are used to improve student outcomes and increase or improve services for students with a focus on English 
Learners, Foster Youth, and Low Income Students. 


48 of 656







Six LCAP Goals
The summary of each goal includes action areas (strategies), budget information, and progress according to 
measurable outcomes.


GOAL #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 
opportunities.


Summary:
SCCS is committed to ensuring that every child is prepared for college and career at high school graduation.  We recognize the importance 


of a strong guidance program to ensure obstacles to student success are removed.  LCFF Supplemental dollars have allowed us to increase 


our elementary counselors from part time to full time and add a .2 counselor at Monarch Elementary School.  We have also increased 


counseling staff to support targeted students at our comprehensive  high school sites.  In addition, federal resources support an annual 


Latino Role Models Conference at Cabrillo College designed to support monolingual Spanish speaking families with information on college 


access and career readiness. 


In order to prioritize and align our efforts, we have used student data to identify four strategic focus areas: English Learner Progress, 


Academic Literacy, Mathematics, and School Connectedness.  By focusing our efforts in these areas, we will provide the academic support 


necessary to ensure all students are prepared for college and career.


To further support career preparation, all of our high schools have Career and Technical Education (CTE) pathway programs designed to 


support students in exploring courses in a variety of career sectors. Auto Mechanics, Computer Science, Bike Technology, Health Careers, 


Biotechnology, Video Production, Graphic Design, Sustainable Agriculture, Early Childhood Education, Welding, Green Building, and Mill 


Carpentry are just some of the CTE courses and career pathways offered to our students. All of these classes are taught by credentialed 


CTE teachers who have experience in their industry.  


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       4                              LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020
49 of 656







GOAL #1 BUDGET INFORMATION


Action AreasAction Areas
Total LCFF  
Supplemental 
Expenditure


Federally 
Funded 
Expenditure


Parcel Tax 
Funded 
Expenditure


LCFF Base


Elementary CounselorsElementary Counselors $221,874 $190,816


Secondary CounselorsSecondary Counselors $82,395 $1,129,329 $147,948


CTE ProgramCTE Program $1,275,901


Total $3,048,263 $304,269 $1,275,901 $1,129,329 $338,764


GOAL #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills 
and the social emotional well-being of all students.


Summary:
In our elementary schools, a TK-5 Positive Behavioral Interventions and Support Coach / Behaviorist helps our elementary schools 


implement tiered social emotional supports for struggling students.  The PBIS Coach / Behaviorist works in collaboration with PBIS aides 


who provide in-classroom support for students with the greatest needs.  


SCCS also partners with the Santa Cruz County Office of Education to provide a system of support for foster youth TK-12.  Supplemental 


dollars fund two full-time social workers who provide intensive interventions and supports to secondary students who have obstacles to 


school attendance and success.  In addition, social work interns provide social emotional interventions for students. Federal resources 


provide specific, targeted resources to meet the specific needs of our homeless students.  


New this year, our three comprehensive high schools and continuation high school will be implementing a new activities program designed 


to promote and collect data on school connectedness for our unduplicated count students. Our two middle schools will be adding 


additional counseling time aimed at addressing students’ connection to school. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       5                             LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020
50 of 656







GOAL #2 BUDGET INFORMATION:


Action AreasAction Areas
Total LCFF  
Supplemental 
Expenditure


Federally 
Funded 
Expenditure


Parcel Tax 
Funded 
Expenditure


LCFF Base


Positive Behavioral Interventions & Supports Classroom Aides Positive Behavioral Interventions & Supports Classroom Aides $65,000


Positive Behavioral Interventions & Supports Coach/Behavior 
Specialist
Positive Behavioral Interventions & Supports Coach/Behavior 
Specialist


$107,638


School Connectedness Activities Directors (.4 each at High School)School Connectedness Activities Directors (.4 each at High School) $128,897


Social Emotional Health Counselor (.2 at each middle school)Social Emotional Health Counselor (.2 at each middle school) $50,897


Foster Youth ServicesFoster Youth Services $10,000


Secondary Social WorkersSecondary Social Workers $216,640


Social Work Interns Social Work Interns $17,500


Homeless Student ServicesHomeless Student Services $11,653


Student Services Supplies Student Services Supplies $1,000


Student Services DirectorStudent Services Director $160,490


Student Services Staff MileageStudent Services Staff Mileage $2,000


Total $771,715 $611,225 $0 $0 $160,490


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       6                             LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020
51 of 656







GOAL #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS 


student community.


SUMMARY:


Most of our supplemental budget funds programs and services that support District and LCAP Goal #3 because this goal specifically 


targets the needs of our unduplicated count students (English Learners, Low Income Students, and Foster Youth).  Every school site has 


targeted student support allocations to meet the specific needs of their English Learners, Low Income Students and Foster Youth.  The Site 


Councils at each school, composed of parents, students and staff, oversee the Single Plans for Student Achievement that outline the 


services and supports for these targeted student support funds.


Our elementary Walk to Read program is staffed with coordinators and instructional technicians who ensure every student is receiving 


targeted reading instruction at his or her level.  Every student who is  below grade level receives Tier II (or Tier III) support during a 


designated time where all students move to a leveled group.


English Learners (ELs) are supported in many ways, depending on their need.  TK - 12 newcomer students are supported through both 


LCFF supplemental and federal resources.  Site specific supports for ELs include additional sections, tutoring, extra courses, and 


professional learning to enable teachers to meet the diverse needs of our ELs. 


Our secondary schools all have Advancement via Individual Determination Programs designed to support academic success for first 


generation college bound students.  Supplemental dollars provide tutors, college field trips and coordinator stipends for these programs.  


School sites also use site supplemental targeted support and federal allocations to support elective AVID courses.    


Our middle and high schools have Response to Intervention Coordinators to support tiers of academic intervention.  Sections of reading 


intervention and math intervention are also provided.  After school programs, bilingual tutoring, high school credit recovery and homework 


club are all tiers of academic support provided in our secondary schools. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       7                             LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020
52 of 656







Goal #3 BUDGET INFORMATION:


Action AreasAction Areas
Total LCFF  
Supplemental 
Expenditure


Federally 
Funded 
Expenditure


Parcel Tax 
Funded 
Expenditure


LCFF Base


Walk to Read Coordinators Elementary Comprehensive SchoolsWalk to Read Coordinators Elementary Comprehensive Schools $453,938


Walk to Read Instructional Technicians ElementaryWalk to Read Instructional Technicians Elementary $117,427 $63,518


Advancement Via Individual Determination Program SupportsAdvancement Via Individual Determination Program Supports $50,000 $28,000


Summer School - High School Credit RecoverySummer School - High School Credit Recovery $22,418


Secondary Response to Intervention CoordinatorsSecondary Response to Intervention Coordinators $571,180


Elementary Newcomer Program StaffingElementary Newcomer Program Staffing $122,491


Middle School Newcomer Program StaffingMiddle School Newcomer Program Staffing $45,580 $64,689


High School Newcomer Program StaffingHigh School Newcomer Program Staffing $109,055


Secondary Reading Intervention TeachersSecondary Reading Intervention Teachers $258,666


High School Math Intervention TeachersHigh School Math Intervention Teachers $286,107


High School After School Homework Support & Bilingual Math TutorsHigh School After School Homework Support & Bilingual Math Tutors $61,835


Middle School After School Program Coordinators and StaffMiddle School After School Program Coordinators and Staff $97,211 $90,000


High School Credit Recovery ProgramHigh School Credit Recovery Program $85,386


Targeted Support AllocationsTargeted Support Allocations $203,672


Total $2,731,173 $2,231,002 $410,171 $90,000 $0


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       8                             LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020
53 of 656







Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.


Summary:


Because teachers are the single most important factor in student success, providing coaching and support to teachers is an essential 
component of ensuring student achievement.  To that end, every school has an instructional leadership team with representatives from all 
elementary grade levels and all secondary departments who help to facilitate professional learning community work and professional 
development at each school site with their primary purpose being to ensure demographics do not determine outcomes in our district. We 
have also hired instructional coaches to support teachers in ensuring all students are successful in the rigorous common core curriculum.   
Further, federal resources support a dedicated English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher for middle school and Costanoa to provide 
coaching and implementation resources for integrated ELD. 


GOAL #4 BUDGET INFORMATION:


Action AreasAction Areas
Total LCFF  
Supplemental 
Expenditure


Federally 
Funded 
Expenditure


Parcel Tax 
Funded 
Expenditure


LCFF Base


Common Core State Standards Instructional Coach - 
Elementary (2)
Common Core State Standards Instructional Coach - 
Elementary (2)


$228,572 $40,336


Next Generation Science Standards CoachNext Generation Science Standards Coach $115,219


Middle School .4 Common Core Instructional CoachesMiddle School .4 Common Core Instructional Coaches $44,491


Santa Cruz Instructional Leaders StipendsSanta Cruz Instructional Leaders Stipends $120,700


Secondary ELIRTSecondary ELIRT $113,599


Director - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment, 
Secondary .2
Director - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment, 
Secondary .2


$32,625


Total $695,542 $508,982 $186,560 $0 $0


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       9                             LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020
54 of 656







Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management.


Summary:


Managing the supplemental budget and ensuring expenditures are aligned with LCAP goals and each school’s Single Plan for Student 


Achievement requires time and staff resources.  A portion of an administrative secretary position and a portion of the program coordinator 


in the central office serve in this role. 


GOAL #5 BUDGET INFORMATION:


Action AreasAction Areas
Total LCFF  
Supplemental 
Expenditure


Federally 
Funded 
Expenditure


Parcel Tax 
Funded 
Expenditure


LCFF Base


Administrative Secretary and a portion of a Program Coordinator to 
Monitor LCAP Budgets and Expenditures
Administrative Secretary and a portion of a Program Coordinator to 
Monitor LCAP Budgets and Expenditures


$57,034 $14,259


Total $71,293 $57,034 $0 $0 $14,259


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       10                             LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020
55 of 656







GOAL #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.


SUMMARY:
The District Advisory Committee reviews student and program outcome data and the input from surveys and various parent groups to 
inform the development of the LCAP.  Food, interpretation, document translation and babysitting for parent meetings are provided to 
ensure all parents can participate in DAC.  These services also support LCAP input meetings for the District English Language Advisory 
Council (DELAC), our migrant parent group and our joint site parent leader meetings.  


School Community Coordinators are hired to serve as a liaison between home and school for 9 of our 10 school sites, where we have 


significant numbers of unduplicated students and families. These employees provide translation and interpretation of materials, conduct 


family outreach, help coordinate events, make sure that our homeless student services are accessed by families and much more. 


GOAL #6 BUDGET INFORMATION:


Action AreasAction Areas
Total LCFF  
Supplemental 
Expenditure


Federally 
Funded 
Expenditure


Parcel Tax 
Funded 
Expenditure


LCFF Base


District Advisory Committee and Parent Engagement MeetingsDistrict Advisory Committee and Parent Engagement Meetings $3,767


School Community Coordinators at 9 of 10 sites with high unduplicated count School Community Coordinators at 9 of 10 sites with high unduplicated count $641,320


Total $645,087 $645,087


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS                                                       11                             LOCAL CONTROL ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 2017 - 2020
56 of 656







Page 1 of 174


LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 
 


            2018-19    


 


 
Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 


Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template 


Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  


Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 


Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 


LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template. 
 


 
LEA Name 


Santa Cruz City Schools            


Contact Name and Title 


Kris Munro            
Superintendent 


Email and Phone 


kmunro@sccs.net            
(831) 429-3410 ext 220 


 
 


2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 


Santa Cruz City Schools is committed to ensuring demographics do not determine student outcomes 
in our school district.  We work to create schools where the adults know the students well, where we 
can identify each student's needs for growth and support each student academically and personally.  
We want to engage the hearts and minds of every student, every day. 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools is a unique district in that we are two districts (elementary and secondary) 
governed by one board. We also have one LCAP and one Federal Addendum. However, because 
we are two districts, we do have two California Dashboards, two different funding models (our 
elementary district is a Basic Aid district while secondary is an Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 


57 of 656



https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/44698150000000/3/EquityReport





Page 2 of 174


district), and two different CAASPP reporting reports. Our district is also unique in that there are 
many other small elementary districts in Santa Cruz County that feed into our secondary district. 
 
We are fortunate to have tremendous support from our community.  Voters in our District have 
provided four parcel taxes and two school bonds to ensure our students have rich educational 
programs and updated, repaired facilities to support a twenty-first century education.  These parcel 
taxes provide all students with counseling services, library services, reduced class sizes, music, art, 
life lab, after school programs including athletics, career technical education and more. 
 
During the 2017-18 school year, 6,720 students in kindergarten through 12th grades attended 13 
schools in Santa Cruz City Schools District. Of those students, 55 (.88%) were Foster Youth (FY), 
787 (11.73%) were English Learners (EL), and 2,459 (36.65%) were Low Income (LI), 792 (12%) 
were Special Education (SpEd) students, and 804 (12%) were Reclassification Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP) students. While RFEP students are not specified as a targeted subgroup for LCAP 
funding purposes, we are allocating resources to supporting these students as well. 
 
Since 2010, Santa Cruz City Schools has had the same six strategic goals. After receiving the 
California Scale Up MTSS Statewide (SUMS) initiative grant, we have participated in statewide 
training on Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS). We have utilized the MTSS framework to help 
us examine our progress towards our district goals and identified four strategic areas of focus: 
Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School Connectedness. These focus areas 
were identified through examination of state and local assessments, attendance data, student 
mobility data, discipline data, drop out data, and A-G completion. We paid close attention to the 
results and needs of our English Learners, Low Income students, and foster youth, as well as other 
traditionally underserved student groups. 
 
Using our strategic four focus areas and our corresponding data analysis, we identified two tiers of 
support for each focus area within each grade span that will provide supports to our English 
Learners, Low Income students, and Foster Youth. As part of the MTSS process, we worked to 
ensure our LCAP resources are strategically aligned to these identified tiers of support, which are 
aligned to our four strategic focus areas. This year's LCAP reflects the implementation of these 
identified tiers of support which include evidence based practices to maximize student achievement. 
 
The six strategic District goals are: 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 
within the SCCS student community. 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 
teaching. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 
 


58 of 656







Page 3 of 174


         


 
 


LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 


Through analysis of our state and local data, input from administrators, teachers, counselors, 
Response to Intervention Coordinators, instructional coaches, classified staff, students, and 
parents, and research on effective practices, our LCAP was developed to include the following 
programs and services: 
 
Our primary focus is using Multi-Tiered Systems of Support and the Response to Intervention (RtI) 
frameworks to ensure the success of all students. RtI has been in place in our elementary and 
middle schools since the 2011 school year for both academics and social emotional supports, 
providing resources, professional development and coaching at the core, strategic and intensive 
levels. RtI expanded to our high schools in 2015.  Academically, students are assessed using 
multiple measures and are monitored for progress during the year to provide strategic support (e.g., 
before/after school extended learning, flexible intervention groupings within the school day, or 
tutoring) or more intensive interventions (e.g., replacement for core programs, credit recovery) as 
required. Social emotional and behavioral supports are also provided at every school site. 
 
Every grade span is implementing tiered academic and social emotional supports to remove 
obstacles to achievement.  In our elementary schools, these supports include the Walk to Read 
Program and math interventions, supported by RtI Coordinators, Instructional Technicians and 
Learning Assistants. In middle school, RtI Coordinators have had a concentrated focus on 
mathematics interventions and supports during the school day. For the 2018-19 school year, middle 
schools will also have one intensive math intervention at each school.  They have also supported 
English Language Arts interventions. Our high school RtI Coordinators are building tiers of support 
with a concentrated focus on mathematics in response to parent and student feedback. The high 
schools are also implementing reading intervention courses for students in need of literacy 
supports.  Summer and after school programs target filling academic gaps for students K-12.  
These programs focus on building math and English skills and provide opportunities for high school 
credit recovery.  We are using the Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) assessment system as a 
local assessment to monitor the academic growth of all students as well as measure the impact of 
intervention programs. 
 


59 of 656







Page 4 of 174


Instructional coaching is another core component of our LCAP.  Coaches support teachers with the 
implementation of the Common Core State Standards, NGSS and the new ELD framework.  This 
year we are restructuring our Instructional Coaching program. In elementary school, we are shifting 
coaching to be focused on high impact instructional strategies that span all content areas. We are 
specifically emphasizing instructional practices that support English Language Learners. In middle 
school, we are continuing to have a .2 coach at each site focused on supporting the implementation 
of the Common Core Literacy standards. In addition, our secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT) will provide focused Integrated ELD coaching for all middle school 
teachers and Costanoa High School teachers. In our comprehensive high schools, RtI Coordinators 
will support math teachers with implementing high impact instructional strategies, with a specific 
focus on student collaboration and academic talk. In addition, our science coach will be continuing 
to support the implementation of the Next Generation Science Standards (NGSS) and will be 
working with the district NGSS Leadership vertical team as we develop our district's NGSS 
implementation plan. 
 
Further, we are refining our services for our English Learners. Using both Supplemental dollars and 
Title I, we have implemented Newcomer programs at Gault Elementary, Branciforte Middle School, 
and Harbor High School. As a district, all grade spans have agreed to focus our instructional 
professional development on Integrated ELD, to support the academic growth and achievement of 
our English Learners. Our teacher leaders that are apart of their site's Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leaders (SCIL) team, will be participating in ongoing Integrated ELD training throughout the year to 
build their capacity to support their fellow teachers. In addition, all site and district administrators 
will participate in Integrated ELD trainings. In addition, each school (with the exception of Westlake) 
will have a School Community Coordinator supporting our newcomers and monolingual Spanish 
speaking families. 
 
This year we are also focusing on monitoring and increasing our students' connection to school and 
removing social and emotional obstacles to student success. All comprehensive elementary 
schools are implementing Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports (PBIS) supported by 
counselors, a full time Behaviorist/PBIS coach, and part-time PBIS aides. LCAP resources also 
support middle school counseling and after school programs staffed with coordinators and 
instructional technicians. In 2017-18, the middle schools will be working to implement PBIS to 
support positive classroom climates and to overtly teach behavioral expectations to support student 
success. At Mission Hill, a .2 increase in counseling services will better support school 
connectedness. At the secondary level, social workers and school counselors are supporting 
removing obstacles to attendance and school success. Social workers are providing Tier 3 supports 
to students and families, helping students to attend school and access their education. In addition, 
this year we are able to add .4 Activities Directors at each of the comprehensive High Schools, .1 at 
Costanoa High School, and .2 at Branciforte Middle School. The goals of the Activities Director are 
to increase school connectedness for all students, collect data to monitor student participation of all 
students by subgroups in all co-curricular program, and support the school’s efforts to ensure 
equitable participation and engagement of all students. 
 
We will continue to support Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) programs for our 
traditionally underserved students in middle and high school.  The AVID program supports students 
with the "hidden curriculum" of schools and with meeting the requirements to prepare for college 
and university admittance. 
 
 
 
 


60 of 656







Page 5 of 174


 
 
         
 


 


Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other 
information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that 
success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in 
services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 
 
Greatest Progress 
Strengths of Elementary Program: 
Elementary students continue to make academic progress with reading using the Walk-to-Read 
model. Results on student reading comprehension as measured by the Scholastic Reading 
Inventory (SRI) have increased steadily with each year. In addition, we studied our student 
subgroups, all of which made positive growth. Our Hispanic subgroup shows greater gains than all 
other subgroups analyzed. For example, at one school, the achievement gap between hispanic and 
white students was reduced by 48% (or nearly half) in a two-year period. 
 
We have implemented the Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) assessments for 3rd through 5th 
graders in Reading and Math. These assessments closely correlate with the end of year California 
annual Smarter Balanced Assessments (SBAC) in Reading and Math. What we have learned about 
student achievement based on the MAP assessments is that students are meeting or exceeding 
their growth goals in both Reading and Math. However, our district average MAP scores for grades 
3-5 in both Reading and Math, when translated to SBAC scores, on average we are scoring at the 
"Standard Nearly Met" range. 
 
In regards to the SCCS Elementary District CA Dashboard, we have many strengths. Some of these 
highlights include: 
• An extremely low suspension rate (Blue: Highest rating possible) 
• An increase in English Learner progress (Green: 2nd to highest rating possible) 
 
Strengths of the Secondary Program: 
In secondary, we are in year three of having RtI Coordinators at each of the comprehensive middle 
schools and high schools. With the exception of Harbor, all secondary RtI Coordinators began their 
focus on mathematics, as this was our content area of most need according to district and site 
CAASPP and grade data. 
 
Over the past three years RtI Coordinators have been researching, creating, implementing, and then 
refining Tier 2 Math Interventions. For more specifics on the middle school and high school math 
interventions, please see the Addendum. Now that we are in year three with RtI Coordinators, all 
three comprehensive high schools and both middle schools have made huge strides in aligning their 
Tier 2 interventions based on research and evidence of student success. 
 
Our two collective strengths of our secondary Tier 2 Math Interventions are that students in our Math 
Interventions are exhibiting great growth on the MAP growth tests; these are students who are in the 
most need of growth. We also, in general, are seeing students in Tier 2 Math Interventions with 
passing grades in their Tier 1 math class. 


61 of 656







Page 6 of 174


 
In addition, our middle schools have worked very hard to improve their students’ language arts 
achievement. They have implemented Tier 2 and Tier 3 interventions in reading to ensure that 
students have access and are successful in the core with instructional support. Based on our MAP 
Growth data we are projected to have 59% of our 6th-8th graders meeting or exceeding the 
standard on the 2018 end of school year CAASPP assessments. 
 
At the high school level, we have implemented MAP Growth testing in Math for students in our 
Integrated 1 and 2 courses and also have also created and implemented common district semester 
finals for these courses. This is the first year we've had common districtwide measures for growth in 
mathematics and we're using the data we've gathered as baseline data. Our MAP Growth data in 
Math indicates that our students are making good growth as a whole, and grew 4 RIT points in one 
semester, which is slightly more than the expected growth for this timeframe. RIT is the achievement 
scale that MAP uses, and in high school, most students growth 4 RIT points in one year, so growing 
4 RIT points in one semester is twice the growth expected. In addition, this year we implemented 
MAP Growth assessments in 9th grade English, which is the first time we have had a common 
district measure for English. 
 
Our graduation rates are also increasing: 90% of our students graduated from high school in 2015-
16, which is above the county/state averages. In addition, due to our Tier 1 Common Core math 
instruction and our Tier 2 Math Intervention called Math Plus, we continue to see increased success 
with our 9th grade students passing their freshmen level math class, which meets the Algebra 1 
graduation requirement: Integrated 1 College Preparatory Mathematics (CPM). In 2011-12 we had 
60% of 9th graders passing Algebra the first time, compared to 76% of 9th grade students in 2015-
16 passing Integrated 1 the first time, compared to last school year (2017-18) when we had 87% of 
our 9th grade students passing Integrated 1 for the first time with a C- or better. 
 
In regards to the SCCS Secondary District CA Dashboard, we have many strengths. Some of these 
highlights include: 
• An increase in English Learner progress (Blue: Highest rating possible) 
• An increase in our graduation rate (Green: Second to highest rating possible) 
• A High (Green) rating on the English Language Arts academic indicator (based on end of year CAASPP 


data) 
 
 
 
 


 
Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which 
overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not 
Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined 
need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What 
steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?  
 
Greatest Needs 
The California state dashboard highlights our areas of greatest need. An orange performance rating 
is a 2 on a 5 point scale with 5 being the highest, and a red performance rating is the lowest rating 
for the dashboard.  In our elementary district, our English Learners received an overall rating of "red" 
for English Language Arts and an overall rating of "orange" in mathematics.  Low Income students, 
Students with Disabilities and Hispanic students had overal performance ratings of "orange" in both 
English Language Arts and mathematics.  In our secondary district, our English Learners received 


62 of 656







Page 7 of 174


an overall performance rating of "red" in English Language Arts and mathematics on the California 
state dashboard. Students with Disabilities received and overall performance rating of "red" for both 
English Language Arts and mathematics.  Foster Youth in our secondary schools had a "red" rating 
for suspension rates.  Homeless students in the secondary district recieved "red" ratings for English 
Language Arts, mathematics and graduation rate.  The academic ratings are based on the CASSPP, 
our state academic assessments. 
 
The dashboard results for our Homeless students in the secondary district placed our district into 
"Differentiated Assistance" with the County Office of Education.  We have appreciated the technical 
support from the Santa Cruz County Office of Education's Educational Services Team.  In our initial 
meeting with county leadership, we discussed our need to focus on more than the Homeless student 
population as indicated by our data above.  The LCAP reflects our planning through our Multi-Tiered 
Systems of Support work and the guidance provided through the Differentiated Assistance process. 
 
In addition to the state measures, we looked closely at our local measures to inform our areas of 
greatest need.  In our elementary Response to Intervention Programs currently, 41%  of elementary 
students in grades 1 - 5 are being served in Walk to Read intervention groups. At the sites, the 
number of students in Walk to Read intervention groups ranges from 29% to 58%. The large number 
of students currently served in our Walk to Read Intervention strongly indicates the need for an 
aligned, effective Tier 1 core literacy program in reading and writing that effectively meets the needs 
of 80 - 85% of our students, including English learners. 
 
This year our district implemented a progress monitoring assessment in English Language Arts and 
Math grades 3-10 called Measures of Academic Progress (MAP). MAP predicts students ratings on 
the CAASPP, the end of year California standardized assessment.  The district average on these 
assessment for all students and our targeted sub group results on MAP indicate a need for strategic 
focus in these academic areas. Based on our MAP Reading data, MAP predicts that we will have 
51% of our elementary students grades 3-5 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 English 
Language Arts CAASPP assessment. 2% of our English Learners grades 3-5 are predicted to meet 
or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language Arts CAASPP. 21% of our Low Income 
students grades 3-5 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language 
Arts CAASPP. (Note: We have too few foster youth in our elementary school district to get a 
CAASPP prediction). 
 
Similarly, based on our MAP Math data, MAP predicts that we will have 32% of our elementary 
students grades 3-5 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 Math CAASPP assessment. 
5% of our English Learners grades 3-5 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 
Math CAASPP. 9% of our Low Income students grades 3-5 are predicted to meet or exceed the 
standard on the 2018 Math CAASPP. 
 
In our secondary district, based on our MAP Reading data, MAP predicts that we will have 59% of 
our secondary students grades 6-8 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 English 
Language Arts CAASPP assessment. 2% of our English Learners grades 6-8 are predicted to meet 
or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language Arts CAASPP. 34% of our Low Income 
students grades 6-8 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 English Language 
Arts CAASPP. (Note: We have too few foster youth in our secondary school district to get a 
CAASPP prediction). 
 
Similarly, based on our MAP Math data, MAP predicts that we will have 41% of our secondary 
students grades 6-8 meeting or exceeding the standard on the 2018 Mathematics CAASPP 
assessment. 2% of our English Learners grades 6-8 are predicted to meet or exceed the standard 


63 of 656







Page 8 of 174


on the 2018 Mathematics CAASPP. 18% of our Low Income students grades 6-8 are predicted to 
meet or exceed the standard on the 2018 Mathematics CAASPP. 
 
As a part of our Multi-Tiered Systems of Support retreat, 76 members of our Santa Cruz City 
Schools team, including teachers, counselors, RtI Coordinators, instructional coaches, and 
administrators)  evaluated state and local assessments, attendance data, student mobility data, 
discipline data, drop out data, and A-G completion.  As a result of this evaluation of data, we have 
identified four strategic focus areas to support student achievement. 
 
1) Literacy 
2) Mathematics 
3) English Learner Progress 
4) School Connectedness 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 
 
Performance Gaps 
There is a significant and pervasive achievement gap illustrated by student performance on the 
CAASPP.  The charts below illustrate that in both English Language Arts and Mathematics, English 
Learners, Low Income, Hispanic, African American and Students with Disabilities are achieving at 
levels significantly below our white students and our overall student average districtwide. 
 
Our Performance Gap is also seen when looking at the SCCS Elementary District California 
Dashboard. The gap exists in English Language Arts where our "All" student group is yellow, and 
our EL student group is red (two levels lower than the "All" student group). 
 
Our Performance Gap is also seen when looking at the SCCS Secondary District California 
Dashboard. The gap exists in our suspension rates in which our "All" student group is yellow, and 
our Foster Youth student group is red (two levels lower than the "All" student group). Our 
Performance Gap also exits in our Graduation Rate in which our "All" student group is green and our 
English Learner student group is orange (three levels lower than the "All" student group) and 
Homeless student group is red (four levels lower than the "All" student group). Additionally, our 
Performance Gap exists in English Language Arts and in Math. In English Language Arts, our "All" 
student group is is green and our Homeless, Low Income, and Hispanic student groups are all 
orange (three levels lower than the "All" student group), while our English Learners and Students 
with Disabilities student groups are red (four levels lower than the "All" student group). In Math, our 
"All" student group is is yellow and our Homeless, English Learners, and Students with Disabilities 
student groups are all red (two levels lower than the "All" student group). 
 
As a district, we are working to use the Multi-Tiered Systems of Support framework to address four 
identified areas of strategic focus: 
1)  Literacy 
2)  Mathematicws 
3)  English Learner Progress 


64 of 656







Page 9 of 174


4)  School Connectedness 
 
The following includes Tier 1 school-wide efforts and Tier 2 targeted supports planned for each 
strategic focus area in each grade span: 
 
LITERACY 
Elementary: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Identify and begin to implement an articulated K-5 Tier 1 literacy program, including adopted 
instructional materials and effective instructional practices, in order to give ELLs and ALL students 
full access to and engagement in the academic demands of the Common Core State Standards. 
Convene task force of teachers this spring and summer 
Provide professional development on current effective literacy practices 
Pilot materials under consideration 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Systematic approach to intervention developed based on adopted curriculum 
 
Middle School: 
See English Learners Focus Area below for Tier 1 and Tier 2 plans for Literacy 
 
High School: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Examine the impact of standards based grading practices, rubrics and assessment on student 
achievement. Investigate standards based grading practices. 
Follow up with training needs for teachers in making this shift, work with departments 
PLC work at each school site; time for district-wide standards alignment built into curriculum master 
plan 
Create common writing assessments to measure student progress 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Continue reading strategies courses at the high schools 
Explore potential reading / writing interventions in lieu of current READ 180 course 
SCHS will pilot a writing center and writing coach 
 
 
MATHEMATICS 
Elementary: 
Tier 1 Focus- Universal Math Training - Strong Core Differentiated Instruction with a focus on re-
engagement 
Continue to extend our collective Tier 1 practice in mathematics instruction to meet the needs of ALL 
students through the Eureka curriculum, language routines, and other research based tools, bringing 
in professional development whenever possible. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Support RtI Coordinators with exploring math interventions and systems for providing Tier 2 
supports 
 
Middle Schools: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Restructure Math Course 1 - 2 sequence 


65 of 656







Page 10 of 174


Provide paid time for middle school math teachers this summer to dive deeply into the power 
standards for College Preparatory Math Core Connections Course 1 & Course 2, and reorganize the 
Course 1 & Course 2 curriculum to allow for deeper instruction on key Course 2 concepts 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Use exploratories to integrate math skills and develop real world math curriculum 
Add Math Plus Intervention sections at each middle school. 
Provide paid time for teachers this summer to research and integrate real world, relevant math into 
exploratory math courses and after school math enrichment programs. 
 
High Schools: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Establish Priority Standards & Practices for CPM 
Provide paid time for math teachers  to develop priority standards in June in order to determine the 
district priority standards for Integrated Courses 1, 2, & 3, and refine the scope and sequence for 
each course to align to these priority standards. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Expand Math Plus Intervention 
Add Math Plus Intervention sections at each high school to support flexible intervention for students 
struggling in their primary math classes. 
 
 
ENGLISH LEARNER PROGRESS 
District-wide: There was clear consensus from all participants at the MTSS retreat that K-12 we 
need to focus on Integrated ELD so that our English Language Learners develop their academic 
language skills and receive access to the college prep curriculum 
 
Elementary: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Integrated ELD 
Instructional coaching to support student acquisition of academic language in all content areas. 
ELA task force will find a program to adopt that includes both designated and integrated ELD. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Refine the Language Review Team process to improve progress monitoring and interventions for 
students who are not making progress towards redesignation. 
 
Middle School: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Integrated ELD 
Summer GLAD training for teachers leading Integrated ELD instructional practices implementation at 
their sites.  4 PD/coaching sessions will follow the summer training during the 2018-19 school year 
focused on implementing specific academic English instructional strategies that support all students, 
with a specific focus on supporting ELs in content classes. 
English Learner Instructional Resource Teacher (ELIRT)  will continue to support middle schools 
and Costanoa with professional development and instructional coaching focused on implementing 
Integrated ELD instructional strategies into the classroom. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
EL Social Emotional Support Groups 


66 of 656







Page 11 of 174


 
High School: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Integrated ELD 
Summer GLAD training for training for teachers leading Integrated ELD instructional practices 
implementation at their sites.  4 PD/coaching sessions will follow the summer training during the 
2018-19 school year focused on implementing specific academic English instructional strategies that 
support all students, with a specific focus on supporting ELs in content classes. 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Academic and Social-Emotional Interventions/Supports for Ever ELs 
 
 
SCHOOL CONNECTEDNESS 
Elementary: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Support students with self regulation and remove obstacles to accessing academic instruction 
Hire a full time K-5 Positive Behavior Intervention Support (PBIS) coach/Behavior Specialist to 
support PBIS as well as support our teachers with students with challenging behaviors 
 
Tier 2 Focus - 
Have PBIS Coach / Behaviorist train part time PBIS Instructional Technicials to support students 
with behavior plans 
 
Middle School: 
Tier 1 Focus- Implement School-wide Social Emotional Learning 
Hire extra counseling support or activity director to support and monitor students' school 
connectedness - differentiated per site needs 
 
Tier 2 Focus- Social Emotional Tier 2 Interventions 
Hire additional MFT Interns to ensure they are available to all sites 
 
High School: 
Tier 1 Focus- 
Explore Homeroom/Advisory Teacher/Student Connection 
Hire activity directors to increase the number of students involved in activities and track the data of 
students groups engaged and connected to school in order to inform the programs and services 
provided to students 
 
Tier 2 Focus- 
Explore ways to add Additional Mental Health Counseling Support through grants or county 
partnerships 
Not enough funds available at this time to increase current staffing levels, which include one MFT 
intern at each site 
 
 
 
 
 


67 of 656







Page 12 of 174


 
 
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve 
services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth. 
 
Increased or Improved services 
This year our increased and/or improved services include: 
1) Refining our Instructional Coaching program focusing on supporting teachers to implement 
instructional strategies that support English Learners and struggling students. 
2) Providing mandatory Integrated ELD Professional Development to all site Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leader team members, Principals and Assistant Principals, and district office administrators. 
3) Adding sections for academic intervention, Tier 2 math and ELA support classes, and sections of 
a more comprehensive Tier 3 Math Support class at our comprehensive high schools and middle 
schools, with a strategic focus on support for 
unduplicated pupils. 
4) Adding a full time elementary Behaviorist/PBIS Coach to support the implementation of PBIS and 
increase student connectedness, with a strategic focus on support for unduplicated pupils. 
5) Adding Positive Behavior Instructional Technicians at our elementary schools to support school 
connectedness and remove obstacles for student learning, , with a strategic focus on support for 
unduplicated pupils. 


68 of 656







Page 13 of 174


6) Adding part time School Community Coordinators at Soquel High and Santa Cruz High and 
increasing the hours of the School Community Coordinators at the middle schools to ensure access 
and outreach for our families of unduplicated pupils. 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Budget Summary 
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics. 
 
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
Total General Fund Budget Expenditures For LCAP Year $78,856,304 


 


Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet The Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year 


$7,567,548.00 


 
The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget 
Expenditures. Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP 
year not included in the LCAP. 


The following revenues and expenditures are not accounted for in our LCAP: 
 
Salary and Benefits 
Routine Restricted Maintenance 
Building Fund 
Food Services 
Lease Revenue 
Parcel Taxes 
Bond 
         
 
 
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year $63,995,203 


 


69 of 656







Page 14 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 1 
All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.           


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #1        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
EAP Scores        


17-18 
Increase college readiness by 5% in ELA and Math        


Baseline 
2015-16 cohort 
 
ELA  22% College Ready 
Math 14% College Ready 
        
 


 2016-17 cohort 
 
ELA  27% College Ready - We met our goal on the EAP in ELA, by 
increasing 5%. 
Math 12% College Ready - We did not met our goal on the EAP in Math. We 
decreased 2%. 
 
 
 


70 of 656







Page 15 of 174


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
A-G rates        


17-18 
Target 5% increase for each student sub group        


Baseline 
2015-16 Graduates 
All Students                             54% 
Hispanic / Latino                     38% 
African American                     56% 
English Learners                      7% 
RFEP                                       56% 
Low Income                             39% 
Students with Disabilities        12% 
 
        
 


 A-G rates for 2016-17 Graduates 
 
All Students                            61% (increase of 7%) 
Hispanic / Latino                    44% (increase of 6%) 
African American                   43% (decrease of 7%) 
English Learners                    13% (increase of 6%) 
RFEP                                     45% (decrease of 11%) 
Low Income                            47% (increase of 8%) 
Students with Disabilities       17 % (increase of 5%) 
 
We met our goal of increasing by 5% or more in each of our subgroups 
except for our African American subgroup and RFEP subgroup. 
 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
Graduation Rate        


17-18 
Target  3% increase for each student sub group        


Baseline 
2015-16 cohort 
 
All Students                            92.5% 
Hispanic / Latino                    83.4% 
English Learners                   73.3% 
Low Income                           89.1% 
Students with Disabilities      83.7% 
 
 
        
 


 Graduation Rate---NOT YET AVAILABLE 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
All Students 
Hispanic/Latino 
English Learners 
Low Income 
Students with Disabilities 
 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
Dropout Rate        


17-18 
Reduce by 1% for each student sub group, reduce by 3% for ELs        


 Dropout Rate---NOT YET AVAILABLE 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
All Students 
Hispanic/Latino 
English Learners 
Low Income 


71 of 656







Page 16 of 174


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
2015-16 cohort 
 
All Students                              4.2% 
Hispanic / Latino                     6.4% 
English Learners                    15.2% 
Low Income                             6.3% 
Students with Disabilities      4.7% 
        
 


Students with Disabilities 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
AP and Honors Enrollment        


17-18 
Increase subgroup participation by 5%         


Baseline 
2016-17 cohort - duplicated count 
 
Groups                                Total              5% increase is:           New count 
needed to meet goal: 
 
All Students                         2,294                +115                                      
2409 
Hispanic / Latino                    597                  +30                                        
627 
Low Income                           575                  +29                                        
604 
Students with Disabilities       46                     +2                                          
48 
        
 


 AP and Honors Enrollment 
 
2017-18 cohort - duplicated count 
 
Groups                                Total                    Met Goal: 
 
All Students                         2,322                       N    (increase of 1%) 
Hispanic / Latino                   626                         Y    (increase of 5%) 
Low Income                           577                        N    (no increase or 
decrease) 
Students with Disabilities        51                         Y    (increase of 11%) 
 
We met our goal of increasing by 5% or more in our Hispanic / Latino 
subroup and Students with Disabilities subgroup 
 
 


Metric/Indicator 
College and Career Readiness Indicator - California Dashboard        


17-18 
Increase percent of students rated College and Career Ready by 5%        


Baseline 
34% of the class of 2015 were rated prepared on the new state dashboard 
College and Career Readiness Indicator        
 


 45.4% of the class of 2016 were rated prepared on the new state dashboard 
College and Career Readiness Indicator. 
 
We met and surpassed our desired goal of a 5% increase. We increased 
11.4% on the College and Career Readiness Indicator. 
 
 


 


72 of 656







Page 17 of 174


Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Counselors assist in ensuring 
access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities (LCFF 
Supplemental, LCFF Base, Title 1) 
 
Provide 4 year planning workshops 
for all 9th grade students 
 
Continue to implement Common 
Core Standards, following the 
Curriculum Master Plan 
 
Facilitate strategies for improving 
A-G completion rates including 
transcript audits supported by the 
Riverside Counseling Collaborative 
 
Refine our articulation efforts with 
our partner school districts – Live 
Oak, Soquel and the county’s four 
small districts 
 
Build common assessments and 
adopt MAP to monitor student 
progress on the standards 
 
Collaboratively determine math 
placement tools with partner 
districts 
 
 
 
 


 In elementary we employed 2.25 
FTE Total Counselors (.50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.25 Monarch). 
 
In secondary we employed .65 
FTE Total Counselors (.25 
Counselor @ MHMS & .20 @ 
SCHS & SQHS). 
 
Our high school counselors are 
working with our CTE Counselor to 
implement post-secondary college 
and career opportunities at each 
grade level. 
 
In addition, our high school 
counselors are providing 4 year 
planning workshops for all 9th 
grade students. 
 
We revised the Curriculum Master 
Plan to reflect our 4 strategic areas 
of focus: Literacy, Mathematics, 
English Learner Progress, and 
School Connectedness. We are 
implementing the Curriculum 
Master Plan, currently focusing on 
math instruction K-12. 
 
We continue to work with our 
partner districts for articulation 
purposes and have room for 


 2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.25 Monarch 1200 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP Supplemental 141,997  


 2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.20 Monarch 1200 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP Supplemental 160,728 


2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL  & 
.25 Monarch 1200 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP Base 141,997  


 2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL  
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Base 
140,916 


2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.25 Monarch 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 52,338  


 2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL & 
.20 Monarch 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 49,709 


2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL  & 
.25 Monarch 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Base 52,338  


 2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE 
Counselor @ BV, DL, GA, WL  
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Base 40,301 


.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
Supplemental 57,107  


 .70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
Supplemental 57,449 


.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 20,920  


 .70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 21,659 


MAP Assessment 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Base 
90,000  


 MAP Assessment 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES Base 
84,445 


73 of 656







Page 18 of 174


growth in working with Soquel 
Elementary School District. 
 
This was our first year 
implementing MAP Growth 
Reading and Mathematics 
Assessments in grades 3-10. 
These assessments were 
administered at least twice in each 
of these grade levels. We are 
working to support teachers in 
using the data to impact 
instruction. 
 
SCCS District RtI Coordinators 
worked to create district Math 
Placement policies that include 
multiple measures for placing 
students in mathematics. RtI 
Coordinators are working with our 
feeder districts to get feedback 
regarding these placement 
policies. 
 
 
 


Action 2 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Continue to work with the County 
Office to ensure a smooth 
transition of ROP staff to Santa 
Cruz City Schools 
 
Implement  new Computer Science 
pathways, support increased 
enrollment in pathway options 
 
 


 In our high schools, we employed 
the following Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) FTE: 3.585 FTE 
HHS, 1.515 FTE SCHS, 3.00 FTE 
SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa. 
 
The Secondary Director of 
Curriculum, Instruction, and 
Assessment is working with the 
County Office to ensure a smooth 
transition of ROP staff to SCCS. 


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (3.585 FTE HHS, 
1.515 FTE SCHS, 3.00 FTE 
SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa) 1100 
CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-
REG. Base 672,351  


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (3.00 FTE HHS, 1.33 
FTE SCHS, 2.80 FTE SQHS, .60 
FTE Costanoa) 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Base 598,925 


CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (3.585 FTE HHS, 
1.515 FTE SCHS, 3.00 FTE 
SQHS, .60 FTE Costanoa) 3000 


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (3.00 HHS, 1.33 FTE 
SCHS, 2.80 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 


74 of 656







Page 19 of 174


 
We implemented Computer 
Science Pathways at each of our 
comprehensive High Schools. 
 


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 
180,918  


Costanoa) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Base 173,701 


CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (.30 FTE HHS, .30 
FTE SCHS, .20 FTE SQHS, .20 
FTE Costanoa) 1200 CERT 
PUPIL SUPP Base 94,386  


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (.30 FTE HHS, .30 
FTE SCHS, .20 FTE SQHS, .20 
FTE Costanoa) 1200 CERT 
PUPIL SUPP Base 98,809 


CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (.30 FTE HHS, .30 
FTE SCHS, .20 FTE SQHS, .20 
FTE Costanoa) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Base 40,654  


 CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - 
Measure O  (.30 FTE HHS, .30 
FTE SCHS, .20 FTE SQHS, .20 
FTE Costanoa) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 
29,109 


For Computer Science Pathway 
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Other 369,105  


 For Computer Science Pathway 
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Other 358,681 


 


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students in the areas of academic and career goal setting. They provide classroom lessons 
as well as lead school wide initiatives. Some examples in this area are reviewing what college is, designing lessons for the S4C 
college commitment, interest inventories and career matches, career visits from parents, leading college week activities. In the social 
emotional realm, they support the implementation of Second Step for all students TK-5. Much of the work of the school counselor is in 
providing Tier 2 supports. The counselors are instrumental in the implementation of PBIS, behavior intervention plans, and the work of 
the PBIS IT. They have designed and created easy access to a host of social emotional and behavioral interventions which teachers 
can utilize in the classroom. 
 
Secondary School Counselors provide services in three areas: academic counseling, career counseling and social emotional support 
through a framework of Mult Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS). Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students through 
classroom lessons as well as school wide initiatives. The secondary Tier 1 counseling programs include 8th grade boot camp in which 
students learn about credits and classes, 9th grade Four Year Planning workshops, 10th grade career inventories and career units 
including understanding CTE pathways, college search, application support and financial aid workshops, and senior checklists as 
students ready for the next stage of life. 


75 of 656







Page 20 of 174


 
All of this support is being provided while counselors also respond to the day to day needs of their students. They coordinate 
scheduling, course selection, credit checks, and work with teachers to provide for the special circumstances and needs of students 
and their families. In addition, our high school counselors have been continuing to assist all students in accessing post-secondary 
college and career opportunities. This year we brought on board a Career and Technical Education Counselor that works with all four 
high schools and their counseling teams to implement a career and college readiness curriculum she developed for all students in 9th, 
10th, 11th, and 12th grade. Our high school counselors also continue to work with all 9th grade students and their parents in 
developing their 4 year planning. 
 
This year we also worked on revising and updating the Curriculum Master Plan to reflect our four strategic areas of focus: Literacy, 
Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School Connectedness. We are in the process of developing comprehensive plans for 
each of these focus areas at each grade span to focus our Tier 1 and Tier 2 efforts. Part of the focus of these plans is to continue the 
implementation of the Common Core State Standards (CCSS) by having a district instructional focus that supports implementation of 
the CCSS. 
 
This was our first year implementing MAP Growth Assessments district-wide in grades 3-10. While we had some bumps with 
technology and administering the assessments, overall we've made huge strides in implementing a common assessment districtwide 
that we are able to use as a Universal Screener and as a Progress Monitoring tool. Currently RtI Coordinators and Administrators are 
using MAP data. As we plan for the 2018-19 school year, one K-12 focus will be on PLC work and supporting teachers to use MAP 
data to inform instruction and student areas of need. 
 
SCCS District RtI Coordinators worked to create district Math Placement policies that include multiple measures for placing students in 
mathematics. RtI Coordinators are working with our feeder districts to get feedback regarding these placement policies. 
 
 
         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The elementary counseling program has been evaluated by monitoring the number of office discipline referrals (ODR). The ODR has 
dropped significantly since the incorporation of the full counseling program of PBIS, Second Step and school counselors. In 2008 
before we had school counselors we had 889 office discipline referrals district wide. Last year we had less than 150. When students 
are settled and ready to learn, academic achievement will follow. A recent study suggests each behavior referral to the office means a 
student is on average out of class for 45 minutes. Our data suggests we have reduced unproductive out of class time from 667 hours 
to 112 hours for our students. 
 
It is not easy to isolate the role of the school counselor when it comes to outcomes for students. Some of the criteria we use are the 
same as the evaluation of the entire school program such as drop out, transfer and graduation rates and college placement rates. 


76 of 656







Page 21 of 174


Counselors take seriously the charge they have to support students to graduation. They do measure their own success through the 
success of their students. Anecdotally, we know that counselors save lives. There is no greater measure of success than to have a 
student tell you, that your intervention kept them alive. 
 
This year was our initial year implementing MAP Growth Assessments in Mathematics and Reading, and we learned a lot from the 
administration of the assessments to reading the data reports. 
         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Our budget estimates were relatively close, and the only material difference noted for Goal 1 is that we had slightly less Career and 
Technical Education (CTE) FTE than anticipated. We are using this year's actuals to help us refine our estimates for next year.          
 


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
We are proud of the work we are doing to support our English Learners in meeting A-G requirements, and we saw an increase of 6% 
(from 7% to 13%). 
 
As we are still in the initial implementation phase of our Curriculum Master Plan, we are still developing criteria and metrics to use as 
indicators of our plan's effectiveness. Next year we plan to continue to revise and refine the Curriculum Master Plan by bringing 
together a committee of teacher leaders from each school throughout the first half of the school year to give input into the plan. Our 
finalized Curriculum Master Plan will be complete in February 2019. 
 
Regarding MAP, our universal screener and progress monitoring assessments in math and reading, we plan to continue to refine the 
process for administering assessments including bolstering specific school's internet capacity (Santa Cruz High and Mission Hill 
Middle). We also need to continue to train and support our teachers in how to read and interpret the data, ultimately using it as an 
indication of a student's progress and impacting instruction to meet students' areas of need. 
 
We are going to continue to refine our Math Placement policy and process for middle and high school students by working with our 
feeder schools and districts. 
 
These changes can be found in Goal 1 of the Goals, Actions, Expenditures, 2018-19 LCAP. 
         
 


 


77 of 656







Page 22 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 2 
SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social emotional 
well-being of all students.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #2        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Suspensions rates 
 
Expulsion rates 
 
Chronic Absenteeism 
        
17-18 
Reduce Suspensions by 3% 
Reduce Expulsions by 5% 
Reduce chronic absentee rate by 2% at each grade span 
        


 In 2017-18 as of May 17, 2018 (to be revised with end of year data) 
 
103 suspensions (in school and out of school)  Goal Met and Exceeded - 
Suspensions reduced by 54% 
13 expulsions - Goal Met and Exceeded - Expulsions reduced by 57% 
Elementary Chronic Absenteeism    13.70% - Goal Met 
Middle School Chronic Absenteeism 10.02% - Goal Met 
High School Chronic Absenteeism    14.82% - Goal Met 
 
 


78 of 656







Page 23 of 174


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
In 2016-17: 
224 suspensions (in-school and out of school) 
30 expulsions 
 
2016-17: 
Elementary Chronic Absenteeism    15.8% 
Middle School Chronic Absenteeism 12.9% 
High School Chronic Absenteeism    17.7% 
        
 


 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Counselors (See Goal #1) 
Youth Services Interns to provide 
social emotional counseling and 
supports 
Collaboration with County Office of 
Education on Foster Youth 
Services 
 
 
 


 All planned actions were carried 
out. We provided counselors, 
social work interns and 
collaborated with the County Office 
of Education for Foster Youth 
services as planned last spring.  


 SCCCS Youth Services (8K Elem 
& 16K Secondary) 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 24,000  


 SCCCS Youth Services (8K Elem 
& 16K Secondary) 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 24,000 


Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 10,000  


 Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 5800 OTHER SVCS & 
OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 10,000 


Secondary 5200 MILEAGE, 
TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental 1,000  


 Secondary 5200 MILEAGE, 
TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 
Supplemental 1,000 


500 E & 2,000 S 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 2,500  


 600 E & 1920 S 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 2,520 


Action 2 
         


Planned  
         


Actual  
         


Budgeted  
         


Estimated Actual  
79 of 656







Page 24 of 174


Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
Primary Intervention Program for 
each intervention and social 
emotional support 
 


 Primary Intervention Programs 
were provided at each elementary 
site as planned.  


 1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 53,986  


 1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 47,954 


1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 5,142  


 1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 4,070 


Action 3 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Social Workers to remove 
obstacles to school success 
 


 Two social workers have provided 
services to our secondary sites as 
planned.  


 2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
Supplemental 149,145  


 2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
Supplemental 150,403 


2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 53,227  


 2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 53,739 


Action 4 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Support Coach  
 


 We were unable to hire a .4 PBIS 
Coach.  In lieu of providing a 
coach, we hired additional 
behavioral support aides (PBIS 
ITs) through ABRITE and 
contracted for coaching services 
from ABRITE to support the aides.  


 .4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 24,595  


 ABRITE SERVICES 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
28,962 


.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 4,367  


 Paid Via Object 5800    


 


80 of 656







Page 25 of 174


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
As stated above, we provided counselors, social workers, primary intervention aides and foster youth services for our students.            
 


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Elementary Counseling 
Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students in the areas of academic and career goal-setting. They provide classroom lessons 
as well as lead school wide initiatives. Some examples in this area are reviewing what college is, designing lessons for the Santa Cruz 
County College Commitment (S4C), interest inventories and career matches, career visits from parents, and leading college week 
activities. In the social-emotional realm, they support the implementation of Second Step for all students TK-5. 
 
Much of the work of the school counselor is in providing Tier 2 supports. The counselors are instrumental in the implementation of 
Positive Behavioral Intervention and Supports (PBIS), behavior supports and the work of the PBIS Instructional Technicians. They 
have designed and created easy access to a host of social-emotional and behavioral interventions, which teachers can utilize in the 
classroom. They provide one-to-one counseling, small group counseling and skill development groups. Some examples of the groups 
they have developed are classroom skill development, friendship groups, anger management, groups for students whose parents are 
incarcerated, groups for children whose parents have recently divorced, grief groups, 5th grade girls group, 5th grade boys group, and 
others as needed. They provide consultation for staff and parents on the developmental issues of children. They also coordinate 
parent education efforts in the area of Positive Parenting Program (Triple P) and Positive Discipline.  They also work to connect 
families to community resources when there is a need that cannot be met at school. 
 
Secondary Counseling 
 
Secondary School Counselors provide services in three areas: academic counseling, career counseling and social-emotional support 
through a framework of Multi-Tiered Systems of Support (MTSS). Counselors provide Tier 1 curriculum to all students through 
classroom lessons as well as school wide initiatives. 
 
The counseling connection begins during the transition between fifth and sixth grade. The counselors have designed a series of 
lesson, school visits, parent night and teacher-led lessons to support this transition to middle school. Some examples are practice with 
opening a locker, learning how to read a schedule, following a map to find their way on a school visit, and viewing the locker room. 
They write letters to their 6th grade core teachers describing who they are, what their interests are and how they learn. 
Simultaneously, information is provided to parents on the developmental task and changes as their child moves from 5th to 6th grade 
ranging from hygiene to the new academic demands of six classes. 


81 of 656







Page 26 of 174


 
The secondary Tier 1 counseling programs continue with 8th grade boot camp in which students learn about credits, classes, 9th 
grade Four Year Planning workshops, 10th grade career inventories and career units including understanding CTE pathways, college 
search, application support and financial aid workshops, and senior checklists as students ready for the next stage of life.  All of this 
support is being provided while counselors also respond to the day-to-day needs of their students. They coordinate scheduling, course 
selection, credit checks, and work with teachers to provide for the special circumstances and needs of students and their families. In 
the social-emotional domain, counselors provide classroom lessons on bullying, harassment, and understanding feelings. In the Tier 
2, support counselors are responding on a daily basis to the needs of their students ranging from short term challenges of 
adolescence to longer term mental health needs including depression, anxiety, grief, and mental illness. 
 
During parent and community meetings, parents spoke out about the strength of our counseling programs at both the elementary and 
secondary levels and the supports they provide to students. Parents also asked for additional counseling. This request for additional 
counseling was also seen in our annual LCAP parent survey. 
 
PBIS Intructional Technicians 
Behavior support aides were provided in lieu of the PBIS coach.  The goal of the behavior support program is to provide in depth 
assistance to our general education students who are not able to access the curriculum due to serious behavior concerns. We provide 
one- to-one aides who are implementing a behavior support plan. The aides track behavior and provide incentives that the students 
have earned. The goals are to reduce the number of classroom disruptions, reduce the number of office discipline referrals, increase 
student time on learning, increase teacher time on teaching rather than disciplining, increase the time of the principal in instructional 
leadership rather than on discipline support. The goal is also to decrease the need for Special Education services due to behavior. 
The aides are eventually faded as the teachers learn to implement the support plan. The data shows a dramatic decrease in disruptive 
behavior and office discipline referrals. The data also shows a change in teacher interactions with the student from negative to positive 
interactions. 
 
Primary Intervention Program (PIP) Child Aide 
Targeted students are students with mild to moderate school adjustment concerns grades TK-5 in the comprehensive elementary 
schools.  At least 96 students will be served in the 2017-18 school year. In the past the student demographics have averaged 52% 
Hispanic, 41% white and 7% other. Foster and homeless youth are also a priority for this program. The Primary Intervention Program 
(PIP) is designed to provide support to students who are having some form of difficulty in adjusting to school. By connecting students 
to one caring adult, the research shows students will generalize this connection to other adults at school and learn that school is a 
caring, safe place to be. 
 
Foster Youth Services 
We contract with the SC County Office of Education to provide services for our foster youth. FosterEd is a program of SCCOE’s Foster 
Youth Services Coordination Program, and the mission is to increase the educational outcomes of foster youth. We do so by ensuring 
that each foster youth is supported by an education team, Education Champion, and education plan, based on identified strengths and 
areas of need.  All of our foster youth are assigned an adult to monitor their school progress. This Champion is especially important as 


82 of 656







Page 27 of 174


students move schools. The program has assisted our school teams in setting goals with students and increasing participation of the 
foster parents and team in school conferences. 
 
Social workers and Intern Program 
Targeted Students: Grades 7-12 
Number of students served: 226 to date. 
 
The social worker and intern program is designed to provide Tier 3 social and emotional supports as well as case management to 
students and their families. Nationwide it is reported: 
* 25 % of all teens are impacted by anxiety disorder. Median age of onset is age 11. 
* 8.3% of teens suffer major depression for more than one year. 
* 11% of middle schoolers and 30% of high school students report being sad for more than two weeks at a time. 
* Adverse Childhood Experiences Study score:  2/3 of all adults report experiencing adverse childhood experiences. 
* Approximately 5 % of our students are homeless. 
* Between 11-17% of our students miss 10% or more of the school year. 
Our goal is to reduce absenteeism, increase student achievement, increase student mental wellness. 
 
Social workers and interns are in place at each of our six secondary sites. With this presence, we are able to serve many students 
who were not being served in the past. The student needs cover a wide range: anxiety, depression, grief, domestic violence, dating 
violence, unsafe housing, no housing, long term trauma, suicidal ideation, self-harm, substance abuse, recent immigrants with trauma 
and fear, and acting-out behaviors. We have two skilled social workers, a skilled Marriage and Family Therapist providing training to 
four interns. The training program consists of individual and group supervision weekly. Simply knowing this resource is available can 
bring calm to a campus as they know there is help for our most needy students. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
We were not able to hire a part-time Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports Coach for our elementary schools.  In lieu of this, 
we provided PBIS Instructional Technicians through ABRITE to support general education students whose behaviors were impeding 
their access and others' access to academic success.  We also contracted with ABRITE to train and coach the PBIS ITs to meet the 
needs of the students they were serving.          
 


83 of 656







Page 28 of 174


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
We were unable to hire a .4 PBIS Coach.  In lieu of providing a coach, we hired additional behavioral support aides (PBIS ITs) through 
ABRITE and contracted for coaching services from ABRITE to support the aides. This was a short term support that replaced the 
immediate need for a .4 PBIS Coach. For the 2018-19 school year, we are planning to hire a full time elementary Behaviorist/PBIS 
Coach to fulfill the need we have in supporting students with challenging behaviors and supporting teachers in learning strategies and 
developing systems for supporting behaviorally challenging students.  Using Title I carryover, we we are currently enrolling our 
homeless elementary students in the Boys and Girls Club summer program.  In addition, we changed our bus route to have a pick up 
and drop off spot at the Rebele Family Shelter to support better attendance of homeless students.  Principals have also reached out 
and are working to coordinate with the shelter Director to provide more support for families.  We have dedicated Title I resources for 
Homeless students for supplies and materials.  The addition of School Community Coordinators at SHS and SCHS will further support 
unduplicated count students and homeless students at the high schools. We will continue to work with FosterEd to provide supports 
and services for our TK-12 foster youth. 
 
We are also adding .4 FTE Activities Directors to each of the 3 comprehensive high schools and .1 FTE Activities Director to our 
alternative high school Costanoa. The focus of Activities Directors will be specifically to monitor our EL, Low Income, and Foster Youth 
connectedness to school and work on providing opportunities, supports, and connections to these students to increase their feeling of 
school connectedness. Similarly, at the middle school level we are adding .2FTE counseling at each middle school to focus on 
providing opportunities, supports, and connections to these students to increase their feeling of school connectedness. 
 
These changes can be found in Goal 2 of the Goals, Actions, Expenditures section of 2018-19 LCAP. 
         
 


 


84 of 656







Page 29 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 3 
We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student community          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #3        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
SBAC/CAASPP met or exceeds standards in ELA and Math 
 
9th Grade Integrated Course 1 Pass Rate 
 
Ever ELs identified as ALTEL or LTEL (At risk of becoming a long term 
English Learner or a Long Term English Learner (LTEL). 
 
        


 2017-18 data will be used when we receive our official score reports in the fall 
of 2018. Data updates will appear here as soon as we have it. 
 


85 of 656







Page 30 of 174


Expected Actual 


17-18 
The percentage of students in targeted sub groups scoring met or exceeds 
standards on the SBAC/CAASPP will increase by 5% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try 
will increase by 3% from 79% to 81%. 
 
We will reduce the percent of Ever ELs identified as ATEL or LTEL. 
 
 
        


86 of 656







Page 31 of 174


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
SBAC/CAASPP Met standards: 
 
The percentage of EL, LI, and SWD students who scored Met or Exceeds 
Standard in ELA and Math in 5th, 8th and 11th grade are listed below: 
 
2016 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           64% 
ELs           40% 
LI               38% 
SWD         30% 
RFEP        50% 
 
5th Grade Math 
ALL           48% 
ELs            28% 
LI               18% 
SWD         26% 
RFEP       14% 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            65% 
ELs            41% 
LI               46% 
SWD         24% 
RFEP        47% 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           51% 
ELs           35% 
LI               32% 
SWD         20% 
RFEP        30% 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          46% 
ELs          41% 
LI              39% 
SWD        22% 
RFEP       46% 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         44% 
ELs          6% 
LI            24% 
SWD        8% 
RFEP       26% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try 
will increase by 3% from 76% to 79%. 
 
In 2017, 17% of our Ever ELs were identified as ALTEL or LTEL (At risk of 
becoming a long term English Learner or a Long Term English Learner 
(LTEL). 
 
 
SBAC/CAASPP Met standards: 
 
The percentage of EL, LI, and SWD students who scored Met or Exceeds 
Standard in ELA and Math in 5th, 8th and 11th grade are listed below: 
 
2017 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           60% 
ELs           11%  - Goal Not Met 
LI               38% - Goal Not Met 
SWD         29%  - Goal Not Met 
RFEP        57% - Goal Met 
 
5th Grade Math 
ALL           48% 
ELs           3%   - Goal Not Met 
LI               23% - Goal Met 
SWD         31% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP        46% - Goal Met 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            55% 
ELs            8% - Goal Not Met 
LI               30% - Goal Not Met 
SWD         24% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP        32% - Goal Not Met 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           42% 
ELs           5% - Goal Not Met 
LI               20% - Goal Not Met 
SWD         16% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP        21% - Goal Not Met 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          59% 
ELs          3% - Goal Not Met 
LI              41% - Goal Not Met 
SWD        17% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP       42% - Goal Not Met 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         34% 
ELs          2% - Goal Not Met 
LI            18% - Goal Not Met 
SWD        3% - Goal Not Met 
RFEP       24% - Goal Not Met 
 
The rate of 9th-graders passing Algebra 1 with a C- or better on the first try 
increased by 11% from 76% to 87%. Goal Met & Exceeded 
 
In 2017, 17% of our Ever ELs were identified as ALTEL or LTEL (At risk of 
becoming a long term English Learner or a Long Term English Learner 
(LTEL).  In 2018, this number was reduced to 13% of our Ever ELs.  Goal 
Met 
 
        
 


87 of 656







Page 32 of 174


 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


The overall implementation of the 
actions and services to achieve the 
articulated goals include: 
 
*Elementary English Learner 
Instructional Coach 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - 
Walk to Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning 
Assistants for Walk to Read and 
EL Support 
* EL Task Force Implementation 
and Progress Monitoring of EL 
Master Plan 
 
Elementary Site discretionary 
funds address various goals 
supporting targeted services and 
materials for unduplicated students 
as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 
 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
*Elementary English Learner 
Instructional Coach 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - 
Walk to Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning 
Assistants for Walk to Read and 
EL Support 
* EL Task Force Implementation 
and Progress Monitoring of EL 
Master Plan 
 
 
Elementary Site discretionary 
funds address various goals 
supporting targeted services and 
materials for unduplicated students 
as identified by individual sites and 
approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 339,012  


 4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 342,040 


4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 
108,183  


 4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 
103,726 


.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 55,777  


 .6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 57,047 


.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 14,035  


 .6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 14,220 


.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title I 35,726  


 3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title I 36,457 


.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I 10,475  


 3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I 9,087 


6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants 
& Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 2000 >CLASS 


 5.2125 FTE - Learning Assistants 
& Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 2000 >CLASS 


88 of 656







Page 33 of 174


PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 182,310  


PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 213,314 


6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants 
& Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 30,566  


 5.2125 FTE - Learning Assistants 
& Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 29,631 


Elementary Sites - Targeted 
Support Allocations 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 95,884  


 Elementary Sites - Targeted 
Support Allocations 4300 
MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 109,782 


Action 2 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Elementary Summer School 
Interventions 
 


 We held Elementary Summer 
School during the summer of 2017. 


 Elementary Summer School 
Principal 1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA Supplemental 
5,000  


 Elementary Summer School 
Principal 1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA Supplemental 
6,880 


Elementary Summer School 
Teachers 1130 TEACHER 
SALARIES - EWA Supplemental 
11,000  


 Elementary Summer School 
Teachers 1130 TEACHER 
SALARIES - EWA Supplemental 
12,474 


Elementary Summer School - 
Instr Aides & Clerical Support 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental 6,400  


 Elementary Summer School - 
Instr Aides & Clerical Support 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental 8,814 


All Elementary Benefits for 
Certificated & Classified 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 6,600  


 All Elementary Benefits for 
Certificated & Classified 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 5,577 


Elementary Summer School 
Supplies 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental 1,000  


 Elementary Summer School 
Supplies 
 


89 of 656







Page 34 of 174


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Supplemental 424 


Action 3 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for 
Attendance Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual 
Determination for first generation 
college bound and traditionally 
underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and 
Field Trips) 
 
 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for 
Attendance Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual 
Determination for first generation 
college bound and traditionally 
underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and 
Field Trips) 
 


 5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS - Secondary 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 421,720  


 5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS - Secondary 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 432,846 


5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 121,500  


 5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 129,493 


.20 FTE - Math Coach - 
Secondary 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 14,695  


 .20 FTE - Math Coach - 
Secondary 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 16,620 


Counseling & Attendance - SQHS 
- Secondary 1230 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP-EWA Supplemental 12,891  


 Counseling & Attendance - SQHS 
- Secondary 1230 CERT PUPIL 
SUPP-EWA Supplemental 
26,400 


Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, 
SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary 1130 TEACHER 
SALARIES - EWA Supplemental 
60,354  


 Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, 
SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary 
Also paid under 5800 object 
 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA Supplemental 60,354 


.20 FTE - Math Coach - Ark, 
Counseling & Attndance - 
SQHS, & Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, 


 .20 FTE - Math Coach - Ark, 
Counseling & Attndance - 
SQHS, & Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, 


90 of 656







Page 35 of 174


SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 16,974  


SCHS, SQHS, Costanoa - 
Secondary 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 19,665 


Avid - Stipends & EWA's 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Supplemental 2,156  


 Avid - Stipends & EWA's 1160 
TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND 
Supplemental 2,483 


Avid - Stipends & EWA's 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 383  


 Avid - Stipends & EWA's 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 558 


UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
40,000  


 UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
42,948 


AVID Field Trips for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
10,000  


 AVID Field Trips & Conference 
for BRMS, MHMS, /HRHS, 
SCHS, SQHS 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 2,850 


Action 4 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Read 180 & Reading Intervention 
Sections Middle and High School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing 
and Materials 
Middle School After School 
Intervention Staffing 
Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting 
targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified 
by individual sites and approved by 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
Read 180 & Reading Intervention 
Sections in Middle and High 
School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing 
and Materials 
Middle School After School 
Intervention Staffing 


 1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
122,058  


 1.20 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS,  SQHS 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Supplemental 
83,837 


2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, 
AVID & Music @ BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 149,445  


 2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, 
AVID & Music @ BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 163,282 


91 of 656







Page 36 of 174


both site councils and the 
Governing Board. 
 
 


Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting 
targeted services and materials for 
unduplicated students as identified 
by individual sites and approved by 
both site councils and the 
Governing Board. 
 


.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 54,660  


 .60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Supplemental 54,445 


1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, 
AVID & Music @ BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 93,820  


 1.20 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ 
BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, 
AVID & Music @ BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 85,453 


Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High 4200 BOOKS OTHER 
THAN TEXTBOOKS 
Supplemental 15,170  


 Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High / Also paid Fresno COE for 
exams in object 5800 4200 
BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS Supplemental 
15,170 


Site Discretionary @ Middle, 
High, Costanoa, Ark & AFE - 
Secondary 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental 
288,622  


 Site Discretionary @ Middle, 
High, Costanoa, Ark & AFE - 
Secondary 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Supplemental 
263,876 


.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - 
After School Coordinator @ 
BRMS & MHMS 2200 CLASS 
PUPIL SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 37,850  


 .90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - 
After School Coordinator @ 
BRMS & MHMS 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 35,034 


.9375 Total - Instructional Techs 
@ BRMS & MHMS 2000 
>CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES Supplemental 29,876  


 1.00 Total - .50 @ each site. 
Instructional Techs @ BRMS & 
MHMS 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 31,441 


92 of 656







Page 37 of 174


.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - 
After School Coordinator @ 
BRMS & MHMS.9375 
Total - Instructional Techs @ 
BRMS & MHMS 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 20,445  


 .90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - 
After School Coordinator @ 
BRMS & MHMS 
1.00 Total - .50 @ each site. 
Instructional Techs @ BRMS & 
MHMS 
 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 11,243 


Action 5 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Middle and High School Summer 
School Interventions 
Secondary English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
 
 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
Middle and High School Summer 
School Interventions 
Secondary English Learner 
Instructional Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
 


 Summer School Teachers for 
Middle & High Schools 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Supplemental 30,000  


 Summer School Teachers for 
Middle & High Schools () 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Supplemental 14,778 


Summer School Principals for 
Middle & High Schools 1330 
CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA 
Title I 13,000  


 Summer School Principals for 
Middle & High Schools (Includes 
from 0700 - $6,560) 1330 CERT 
SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA Title I 
14,320 


Summer School for Middle & High 
Schools - LA,  Instr Techs, 
Clerical Support & Custodial 
Services EWA's 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 16,500  


 Summer School for Middle & 
High Schools - LA,  Instr Techs, 
Clerical Support & Custodial 
Services EWA's  (Includes from 
Tilte I - $4,141) 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES 
Supplemental 14,579 


Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for 
Middle & High Schools 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
11,775  


 Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for 
Middle & High Schools (Includes 
Rs 0700 $5,078) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
9,806 


Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for 
Middle & High Schools 5800 


 Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for 
Middle & High Schools (Includes 


93 of 656







Page 38 of 174


OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
5,000  


from 0700 $528) 5800 OTHER 
SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 
Supplemental 5,508 


Summer School Teachers for 
Middle & High Schools 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Title I 4,225  


 Summer School Teachers for 
Middle & High Schools 1130 
TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Title I 14,751 


1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 1900 
OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title I 87,339  


 1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 1900 
OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title I 87,447 


1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
22,304  


 1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
18,252 


.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Title I 26,235  


 .40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. Title I 40,135 


.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I 5,456  


 .40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title I 10,093 


Action 6 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Newcomer Program Classes and 
Supports 
 


 We implemented all of the planned 
actions and services as outlined 
below: 
 
Newcomer Program Classes and 
Supports 
 


 .4375 FTE - Learning Assistant 
for Newcomer @ BRMS 2200 
CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES Title I 9,300  


 .4375 FTE - Learning Assistant 
for Newcomer @ BRMS - Vacant 
Position 2000 >CLASS 
PERSONNEL SALARIES Title I 0 


.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant 
for Newcomer @ BRMS 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
886  


 .4375 FTE - Learning Assistant 
for Newcomer @ BRMS - Vacant 
Position 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 0 


.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, 
Tutorial, Sea Science, Math ELD) 


 .80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, 
Tutorial, Sea Science, Math ELD) 


94 of 656







Page 39 of 174


@ HRHS 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Title I 62,211  


@ HRHS 1100 CERT 
TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 
Title I 62,661 


.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, 
Tutorial, Sea Science, Math ELD) 
@ HRHS 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 19,852  


 .80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, 
Tutorial, Sea Science, Math ELD) 
@ HRHS 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 20,293 


.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from 4201 & 4203 to 
= 1.00 FTE) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR Title I 
35,681  


 .50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from .50 4203 to = 
1.00 FTE) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR Title I 
45,545 


.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from 4201 & 4203 to 
= 1.00 FTE) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 9,305  


 .50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from .50 4203 to = 
1.00 FTE) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 23,790 


Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4201 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title III 40,894  


 .50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from .50 4203 to = 
1.00 FTE) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR Title III 
39,954 


Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4201 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title III 10,703  


 .50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault 
(Also funded from .50 4203 to = 
1.00 FTE) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title III 10,093 


Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4203 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Title III 4,009  


 No Funding Received for 2017/18 
School Year for Elementary - 
Changed funding 3010/4203 
(50/50 split)   0 


Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4203 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title III 1,050  


 No Funding Received for 2017/18 
School Year for Elementary - 
Changed funding 3010/4203 
(50/50 split)   0 


95 of 656







Page 40 of 174


 


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The following actions and services were provided to support eliminating the achievement gaps that currently exist between 
demographic groups within the SCCS student community: 
 
*Instructional Coaching in Mathematics and for English Learners (ELIRT) 
*Response to Intervention Coordinators supporting interventions in literacy and mathematics 
*Intervention courses -- READ 180, Math Plus 
*Bilingual Math Tutors at our High Schools 
*Summer School Intervention and credit recovery programs 
*Middle School After School Interventions 
*AVID program supports for all secondary schools 
*Newcomer sections and supports K-12 
         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The district has not achieved our goals of increasing achievement on the CAASPP.  Interventions have supported student growth 
towards meeting standards when reviewing our new local Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) asessment this year. 
 
In our high school math plus sections, students made almost twice the growth on the MAP math assessment from the fall to winter 
administration (see chart below). 
 
The goal of increasing 9th graders passing Integrated Course 1 was met and exceeded with an 11% increase, moving from 76% of 
students passing with a C- or better to 87%.  This represents significant growth over the last several years, as we have increased the 
percentage passing by 27% since 2012. 
 
Response to Intervention Purpose and Goals 
Santa Cruz City Schools has been using the Response to Intervention (RtI) framework over the past five years as a means to ensure 
that ALL students are making academic progress. In the RtI framework, there are 3 tiers (or levels) of support for students. Tier 1 is 
the universal tier, the academic support that all students receive in all classes. According the the RtI framework, 80% of students 
should be successful (i.e., meet grade level expectations) in a strong Tier 1 program. Tier 2 is a flexible support provided to students 
that need more than the Tier 1 program to be successful. These students make up approximately 15% of students. Lastly, Tier 3 is the 
highest level of support given to students. Students in Tier 3 interventions in elementary receive additional time and are in the smallest 


96 of 656







Page 41 of 174


groups. At secondary, this level of support is usually in the form of an additional class focused on providing intensive support in the 
area of need. The number of students in Tier 3 support should be only approximately 5% of the student population. 
 
In addition, as part of the RtI framework the following types of assessments and data are used and collected by our RtI Coordinators 
to ensure that all students are making growth: 
1) Universal Assessments (MAP Growth Reading & Mathematics) 
2) Progress Monitoring (MAP Growth Reading & Mathematics, grades, teacher-created assessments) 
 
Our purpose and goal in using the RtI framework is to use a data-based systematic process to provide the necessary supports at the 
right time to the right students to ensure ALL student are academically successful. RtI Coordinators work with teachers, administrators, 
and counselors to ensure that students who are not successful in their class(es) are provided with evidence-based targeted 
interventions in their areas of need. 
 
The content area focus of elementary and secondary RtI Coordinators has been different and are outlined below. 
 
Elementary RtI Program Background 
Our Elementary RtI coordinators and Walk to Read programs are in their sixth year. The RtI coordinators organize, oversee, and 
provide interventions for all elementary students who have been identified as reading below grade level. Using research-based tools 
such as SIPPS (Systematic Instruction in Phoneme awareness, Phonics and Sight words), Lexia, Doug Fischer’s ACT (Accessing 
Complex Text), MAP (Measure of Academic Progress), CPAA (Children’s Progress Academic Assessment), and authentic literature, 
RtI coordinators and grade level teams provide 40 minutes of differentiated small group reading instruction to 1st through 5th graders, 
four times a week. The Walk to Read program targets all students with leveled literacy instruction. 
 
Our Walk to Read program is a model of collaboration between general education and special education staff, with special education 
students learning side by side with other students at their instructional level. Special education students are in learning groups 
according to their present levels, not necessarily grouped with other special education students. 
 
Sites hold Student Learning Team meetings, or SLTs, two times a year to assess student progress and to determine the best 
placement for each student. Meeting by grade level, the SLT meetings include all teachers (classroom and resource teachers), Walk 
to Read instructional technicians, RtI coordinator, and site administrator. Any changes in placement, groupings, or instructor are made 
in this meeting. Sites also discuss curriculum and make changes and recommendations for small group as well as classroom 
instruction. This model allows site teams the flexibility to vary their strategies and interventions as they respond to student needs as 
identified by  student performance data. 
 
Strengths of the Elementary Program 
Results on student reading comprehension as measured by the Scholastic Reading Inventory have increased steadily with each year, 
as indicated in the chart below. Following the colors diagonally, it is possible to track the growth of each cohort: 
15-16 74.00% 66.67% 73.33% 73.00% 


97 of 656







Page 42 of 174


14-15 50.00% 61.75% 74.00% 79.25% 
13-14 67.00% 62.50% 77.00% 74.50% 
12-13 56.00% 56.52% 68.00% 72.00% 
*11-12 28.00% 28.00% 46.00% 47.00% 
*Data prior to Walk to Read implementation 
 
While all subgroups studied made positive growth, the Hispanic subgroup shows greater gains in the period analyzed. For example, at 
one school, the achievement gap between Hispanic and white students was reduced by 48% (or nearly half) in a two-year period. 
 
Secondary RtI Program Background: 
In secondary, we are in year three of having RtI Coordinators at each of the comprehensive middle schools and high schools. With the 
exception of Harbor, all secondary RtI Coordinators began their focus on mathematics, as this was our content area of most need 
according to district and site CAASPP and grade data. 
 
Over the past three years RtI Coordinators have been researching, creating, implementing, and then refining Tier 2 Math 
Interventions. Now that we are in year three with RtI Coordinators, all three comprehensive high schools and both middle schools 
have made huge strides in aligning their Tier 2 interventions based on research and evidence of student success. 
 
Strengths of the Secondary Program: 
Our two collective strengths of our secondary Tier 2 Math Interventions are that students in our Math Interventions are exhibiting great 
growth on the MAP growth tests; these are students who are in the most need of growth.  We also, in general, are seeing students in 
Tier 2 Math Interventions with passing grades in their Tier 1 math class. 
 
English Learner and Newcomer Programs 
In reviewing our services to English Learners and newcomers, we look at the number of students who have been in our schools and 
are not making adequate progress towards reclassification.  In 2017, 17% of our Ever ELs were identified as ALTEL or LTEL (At risk of 
becoming a long term English Learner or a Long Term English Learner (LTEL).  In 2018, this number was reduced to 13% of our Ever 
ELs.  This illustrates that the district is making progress in ensuring the progress of our English Learners. 
 
16-17     17-18 
< 3 years in US schools           27%       23% 
ALTEL + LTEL                         17%        13% 
Progressing ELs                      9%          10% 
Redesignated EL                     46%        54% 
 
 
 
         


98 of 656







Page 43 of 174


 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Our budget estimates were relatively close. We are using this year's actuals to help us refine our estimates for next year.          
 


 


99 of 656







Page 44 of 174


Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
To Goal 3 of the 2018-19 LCAP, we are adding REFP CAASPP data as a subgroup we are going to monitor, which will help us to 
determine how our English Learners do academically once they have Redesignated. We are adding this as a metric because we have 
noticed that our CAASPP RFEP data is not as good as other district's, and we are working with Live Oak School District and San Luis 
Coastal School District to learn about their systems, instructional focus, and curriculum that has supported them in seeing continued 
success with their Redesignated English Learners. 
 
Another change to note, is that we are moving the funding of our Elementary English Learner Instructional Coach, to Goal Area 4 in 
our 2018-19 LCAP. Goal Area 4 focuses on collaboration and professional development and our Instructional Coaches are an 
essential component of professional collaboration and Professional Development, which we feel is a better fit. 
 
In addition, due to the success of our math and reading interventions, we are adding additional sections of intervention to Goal 3 in the 
2018-19 LCAP. 
 
 
         
 


 


100 of 656







Page 45 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 4 
We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   Goal #4        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Teacher Working Conditions Survey 
 
Develop a Coaching Survey (baseline data January 2018) 
 
 
 
        


 48.6% of teachers reported that they had sufficient training to fully utilize 
instructional technology.  The goal was not met.  This represents a decline 
from 56% in 2017.  We have shifted to a new Student Information System 
and a new district-wide assessment system that have created new 
challenges on school sites.  We are shifting our strategy for professional 
development on technology next year. 
 
69% of teachers report that professional development deepens their content 
knowledge.  The goal was not met.  This represents a slight decline from 71% 
last year.  We are working with our union leadership and our SCIL teams to 
differentiate PD and better meet teachers' needs. 
 
76.3% of teachers report that professional development enhances teachers' 
ability to implement instructional strategies that meet diverse student learning 
needs.  The goal was not met.  This represents a decline from 86.2% last 
year.  With our strategic focus on Integrated ELD this next year and 
restructuring of our instructional coaching program, we are working to 
address these results. 


101 of 656







Page 46 of 174


Expected Actual 


17-18 
Measures from working conditions survey will increase by the following 
percentages: 
 
+ 5% technology 
 
+ 3% PD enhances teachers ability to implement instructional strategies that 
meet diverse student learning needs. 
 
+5% PD differentiated to meet individual teacher needs 
 
+3% Provided supports translate to improvements instructional practices by 
teachers 
 
Coaching Survey targets determined in spring 2018 
 
 
        
Baseline 
56% of teachers reported that they had sufficient training to fully utilize 
instructional technology. 
 
71% of teachers report that professional development deepens their content 
knowledge 
 
86.2% of teachers report that professional development enhances teachers' 
ability to implement instructional strategies that meet diverse student 
learning needs. 
 
63.5% of teachers report that professional development is differentiated to 
meet the individual needs of teachers. 
 
86.9% of teachers report that provided supports (i.e. instructional coaching, 
professional learning communities, etc.) translate to improvements in 
instructional practices by teachers. 
 
Coaching Survey data will be available in Jan. 2018. 
 
 
        
 


 
53.5% of teachers report that professional development is differentiated to 
meet the individual needs of teachers as compared to 63.5% the previous 
school year. Differentiating professional development and providing coaching 
that supports instruction is an important goal, and we are changing out 
coaching model based on this feedback. 
 
81.5% of teachers report that provided supports (i.e. instructional coaching, 
professional learning communities, etc.) translate to improvements in 
instructional practices by teachers as compared to 86.9% last school year.  
Again, the goal was not met, and we are adjusting our action plans for 2018-
19. 
 
2018 Coaching Survey data baseline: 
Teachers reporting that they worked with a district instructional coach: 68 
teachers reported working one on one with a coach, 49 teachers reported 
working with a coach during the PLCs, 78 teachers reported working with a 
coach on "consultation" regarding programs and/or policies (Coaching 
survey) 
 
90% of 159 teachers that worked with an instructional coach recommend that 
others should work with an Instructional Coach (Coaching survey) 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


102 of 656







Page 47 of 174


Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Provide coaching to teachers: 
*Educational Technology Coach 
*Math Coaches 
*Next Generation of Science 
Standards (NGSS) Coach 
*Common Core State Standards 
(CCSS) Coach 
* English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teachers to coach 
teachers on implementing CA ELD 
standards and scaffolding 
instruction in core content areas. 
(See Goal #3) 
 
Continue to support and refine 
roles of Santa Cruz Instructional 
leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders 
who support site Professional 
Development) (Title II & Title I) 
 
Continue to support our Teacher 
Leader PLC and work to support 
future school leaders through on-
going trainings 
 
Determine metrics for evaluating 
impact of instructional coaches and 
develop a coaching effectiveness 
survey to collect baseline data in 
coaching impact. 
 
 
 


 All planned actions and services 
were carried out as planned. We 
provided the following coaching to 
teachers: 
*Educational Technology Coach 
*Math Coaches 
*Next Generation of Science 
Standards (NGSS) Coach 
*Common Core State Standards 
(CCSS) Coach 
* English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teachers to coach 
teachers on implementing CA ELD 
standards and scaffolding 
instruction in core content areas. 
(See Goal #3) 
 
The Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leadership Team (SCIL) 
districtwide continued to support 
professional learning community 
work at all school sites. 
 
The Teacher Leader PLC 
continued to support future school 
leaders through on-going trainings. 
 
Metrics for evaluating impact of 
instructional coaches were 
established and a coaching 
effectiveness survey to collect 
baseline data in coaching impact 
was developed and administered. 


 1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E 
& .50 S) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 94,643  


 1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E 
& .50 S) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 97,057 


1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E 
& .50 S) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 23,576  


 1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E 
& .50 S) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 27,284 


2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E 
& 1.00 S) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 142,044  


 2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E 
& 1.00 S) 1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 
Supplemental 156,786 


2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E 
& 1.00 S) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 48,220  


 2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E 
& 1.00 S) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 41,067 


1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 86,805  


 1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 89,178 


1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 21,749  


 1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 21,991 


.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 1900 
OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 34,797  


 .40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 1900 
OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR Supplemental 35,065 


.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 9,605  


 .40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 8,052 


103 of 656







Page 48 of 174


  SCIL Stipends - Secondary 1160 
TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND 
Title I 21,000  


 SCIL Stipends - Secondary   
1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND Title I 22,500 


SCIL Stipends - Secondary 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
3,728  


 SCIL Stipends - Secondary  3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 
3,958 


Action 2 
         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


Provide Professional Development 
for Integrated ELD 
Provide support for new teachers 
to clear their credential and for 
interns to earn their preliminary 
credential (Title 2) 
Continue to support and refine 
roles of Santa Cruz Instructional 
leaders (SCIL) (Teacher leaders 
who support site Professional 
Development) (Title II & Title I) 
 
 


 All planned actions and services 
were carried out as planned. We 
provided Professional 
Development for Integrated ELD in 
both of the elementary and 
secondary district. 
 
All new teachers were provided 
coaching through the Santa Cruz 
New Teacher Project induction 
program, supporting their 
professional growth and meeting 
the requirements to clear their 
credentials. 
 
The Santa Cruz Instructional 
Leadership Team (SCIL) 
districtwide continued to support 
professional learning community 
work at all school sites. 
 
 


 Subs for Integrated ELD - 
Secondary 1140 TEACHER 
SALARIES-SUBSTITUTES Title I 
12,740  


 Subs for Integrated ELD - 
Secondary 1140 TEACHER 
SALARIES-SUBSTITUTES Title I 
12,740 


Subs for Integrated ELD - 
Secondary 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 2,262  


 Subs for Integrated ELD - 
Secondary 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Title I 2,262 


SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(28,502 E 105,240 S) 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title II 133,742  


 SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(29,040 E & 78,930 S) 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title II 107,970 


SCIL Stipends (42,307 E & 
26,715 S) 1160 TEACHER 
SALARIES-STIPEND Title II 
69,022  


 SCIL Stipends (42,000 E & 
39,000 S) 
 
 1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND Title II 81,000 


SCIL Stipends (6,728 E & 4,248 
S) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title II 10,976  


 SCIL Stipends (7,426 E & 6,895 
S) 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Title II 14,321 


SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(14,810 E  39,465 S) 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
54,275  


 SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(14,810 E  39,465 S) 5800 
OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Supplemental 
54,275 


 


104 of 656







Page 49 of 174


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
We provided the following coaching to teachers: 
*Educational Technology Coach 
*Math Coaches 
*Next Generation of Science Standards (NGSS) Coach 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) Coach 
* English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers to coach teachers on implementing CA ELD standards and scaffolding instruction 
in core content areas. (See Goal #3) 
 
The Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership Team (SCIL) participated in district-wide professeional development in August of 2017.  At 
each site, SCIL leaders supported monthly professional development and department and grade level professional learning 
community work. 
 
The Teacher Leader PLC continued to support future school leaders through on-going trainings.  Several members of this PLC are 
pursuing adminsitrative credentials either through a University program or the state administrative credential assessment. One of our 
PLC participants will move to an administrative position this next fall. 
 
Metrics for evaluating impact of instructional coaches were established and a coaching effectiveness survey to collect baseline data in 
coaching impact was developed and administered. 
 
We provided Professional Development for Integrated ELD for all elementary teachers. The elementary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher (ELIRT) supported integrated ELD in math professional development and the professional learning for our vertical 
team working to implement the Next Generation Science Standards.  In addition to this district-wide effort, the ELIRT provided one-on-
one coaching for elementary teachers. 
 
Both middle schools and small schools have worked extensively with the secondary English Leaner Instructional Resource Teacher 
(ELIRT) on Integrated ELD.  In addition, the ELIRT supported the SHS History team with Integrated ELD training and supported all 
secondary ELD teachers through the monthly English Learner Professional Learning Community collaboration and some individual 
coaching. 
 
All new teachers were provided coaching through the Santa Cruz New Teacher Project induction program, supporting their 
professional growth and meeting the requirements to clear their credentials. 
 
         


105 of 656







Page 50 of 174


 


 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
We did not achieve the student achievement results we were seeking, which is a possible indicator that our instructional coaching 
model is not as effective as it could be. We also have had a very limited number of teachers working with an instructional coach 
because it has been voluntary to work with a coach, and due to the fact that we have over 100 elementary teachers working with one 
math coach and one English Learner focused coach. Because we have not achieved our academic goals, we are shifting our coaching 
model in the 2018-19 school year. The new plan for instructional coaching has been informed by visits to two districts that are seeing 
much better results for their English Learners than we are in Santa Cruz and instead of content focused coaches we are moving 
towards general Common Core Instructional Coaches to support quality instruction in all content areas at the elementary level. We are 
also tying instructional coaches to sites to limit the number of teachers they are working with. 
 
In addition, we know that Professional Development is needed in order to support and refine teachers' instruction, and we do our best 
to design professional development opportunities for teachers to best support their growth. However, our general feedback regarding 
PD from the annual Working Conditions survey we administer, was that teachers' general perception of professional learning has 
declined. While this is in contrast to the feedback we received after each PD session, we are working with our union leadership and 
SCIL teams to address the concerns about professional development to better meet teacher needs. 
         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There were no material differences between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures.          
 


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
In the 2018-19 LCAP Goal 4, are adding Instructional Coaches, as noted in the Annual Updates Goal 3 section. We are moving 
Instructional Coaches from Goal 3 to Goal 4 as we see this is a better fit. Goal 4 specifically deals with collaboration and professional 
development, and Instructional Coaches are an essential component of this.          
 


 


106 of 656







Page 51 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 5 
SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #5        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
All district plans and budgets will be aligned with the six district goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be developed to monitor impact of key LCAP initiatives 
- RtI & Instructional Coaching 
 
FIT Report 
 
        
17-18 
100% of district and school sites plans will be aligned with district goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be in place 
 
Increase schools identified as "good" by the FIT report, 
        


 Goal met: 100% of district and school site plans are aligned with district 
goals. We are going to continue to align school plans throughout the 2018-19 
school year so they all have the same format and include a focus on our 
recently established 4 strategic areas of focus: Literacy, Mathematics, 
English Learner Progress, and School Connectedness. 
 
Goal met: Data dashboards are in place for RtI Coordinators and Instructional 
Coaches. RtI Coordinators at each grade span determined data sets that will 
be used each year to determine progress. Instructional Coaches 
implemented an Instructional Coaching feedback survey and CAASPP data is 
also being used to monitor their impact. 
 
Goal met: 10 of 11 schools were identified as "good" by the FIT report for the 
17-18 school year. 
 
 


107 of 656







Page 52 of 174


Expected Actual 


Baseline 
District plans are aligned with district goals.  The alignment could be more 
explicit. 
 
There are no currently no data dashboards for RtI or Instructional Coaching 
 
The FIT report 5 of 11 buildings scored "good" for the 16-17 school year. 
        
 


 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


         


Planned  
Actions/Services 


         


Actual  
Actions/Services 


         


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


         


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


*Site Program Coordinator Helps 
Monitor Supplemental Budgets and 
Expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary Helps 
Monitor Supplemental Budgets and 
Expenditures 
 
* Support sites and departments 
with plans and budget 
development to ensure alignment 
with district goals 
 
* Develop data dashboards to 
monitor impact of key LCAP 
initiatives -  RtI and Instructional 
Coaching 
 
* Provide sites and departments 
support with  budget monitoring 
 


 *Site Program Coordinator 
monitored supplemental budgets 
and expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary 
monitored supplemental budgets 
and expenditures 
 
* Supported sites and departments 
with plans and budget 
development to ensure alignment 
with district goals 
 
* Developed data dashboards to 
monitor impact of key LCAP 
initiatives -  RtI and Instructional 
Coaching 
 
* Provided sites and departments 
support with budget monitoring 
 


 .4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site 
Program Coord & .20 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Elementary) 2400 
CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG Supplemental 15,448  


 .4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site 
Program Coord & .20 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Elementary) 2400 
CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG Supplemental 11,664 


.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site 
Program Coord & .20 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Elementary) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 8,563  


 .4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site 
Program Coord & .20 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Elementary) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 6,030 


.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Secondary) 2400 
CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG Supplemental 39,391  


 .94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Secondary) 2400 
CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG Supplemental 37,696 


.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Secondary) 3000 


 .94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin 
Secretary - Secondary) 3000 


108 of 656







Page 53 of 174


* Implement the Facilities Master 
Plan to improve school facilities 
 
 
 
 


* Began to implement the Facilities 
Master Plan to improve school 
facilities 
 
 


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 21,698  


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 19,939 


 


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The following actions were taken to achieve the goal that SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective 
management: 
 
*Site Program Coordinator monitored supplemental budgets and expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary monitored supplemental budgets and expenditures 
 
* Supported sites and departments with plans and budget development to ensure alignment with district goals 
 
* Developed data dashboards to monitor impact of key LCAP initiatives -  RtI and Instructional Coaching 
 
* Provided sites and departments support with budget monitoring 
 
* Began to implement the Facilities Master Plan to improve school facilities 
         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
All site and district plans are aligned with the LCAP goals.  We have further refined our areas of focus to support us in meeting our 
targeted outcomes for students.  District metrics have been revised and new dashboards have been developed to monitor impact of 
our key LCAP initiatives.  Our Facilities Master Plan and Bond program are being implemented to improve our facilities for students.          
 
 


109 of 656







Page 54 of 174


Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Our budget estimates were relatively close. We are using this year's actuals to help us refine our estimates for next year.          
 


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
No changes are being made to this Goal.          
 


 


110 of 656







Page 55 of 174


Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 


 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 


Goal 6 
SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 


State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goals #6        
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Expected Actual 


Metric/Indicator 
Increase participation in annual parent survey. 
 
Parent participation in District committees (parent survey) 
 
Parent participation in site committees (parent survey) 
 
Parent participation in Parent Education offerings (parent survey) 
 
Parents reporting that when they contact the school they receive courteous 
attention  (parent survey) 
 
Parents reporting that they receive sufficient information regarding their 
child’s program, progress and needs (parent survey) 
 
Provide an annual State of our Schools mailer for the broader SCCS 
community. 
 
        


 Goal met: 1036 parents participated in the parent survey in Fall 2017.  This 
represents a 16.5% increase over Fall 2016. 
 
Goal not met: 13% of parents responding to district survey report that they 
have participated in district committees 
 
Goal not met: 42% of parents responding to district survey report that they 
participate in site  committees 
 
Goal not met: 41% of parents responding to district survey report that they 
have participated in parent education offerings 
 
Goal not met: 87% of parents responding to district survey report that when 
they contact the school they "always or regularly" receive courteous attention 
 
Goal not met: 74% of parents responding to the district survey report that 
they "always or regularly" receive sufficient information regarding their child's 
program, process and needs 
 
Goal met: For the past three years, each October the State of our Schools 
Mailer has been produced 


111 of 656







Page 56 of 174


Expected Actual 


17-18 
We will increase parent participation in the survey by 3%. 
 
We will increase parent positive responses to survey questions by 5% 
 
We will continue to produce and send the State of our Schools mailing. 
 
 
        
Baseline 
889 parents participated in the parent survey 
 
13% of parents responding to district survey report that they have 
participated in district committees 
 
42% of parents responding to district survey report that they participate in 
site  committees 
 
41% of parents responding to district survey report that they have 
participated in parent education offerings 
 
89% of parents responding to district survey report that when they contact 
the school they "always or regularly" receive courteous attention 
 
76% of parents responding to the district survey report that they "always or 
regularly" receive sufficient information regarding their child's program, 
process and needs 
 
For the past two years, each October the State of our Schools Mailer has 
been produced 
 
 
 
        
 


 
 


 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 


                                    


112 of 656







Page 57 of 174


Planned  
Actions/Services 


Actual  
Actions/Services 


Budgeted  
Expenditures 


Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 


*District Advisory Committee 
Meetings 
 
*School Community Coordinators 
support access to school for 
monolingual Spanish speaking 
families.  They also provide 
outreach and support to all 
families. 
 
* Parents and community members 
participate in school and district 
level committees (School Site 
Councils, ELAC, DELAC, District 
Advisory Council; Parent Teacher 
Organizations, Home and School 
Clubs, /Wellness Committee, 
Green Schools, Tech Task Force 
and more) throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys 
are conducted annually to solicit 
community input on LCAP, budget 
and program priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities 
are provided at both the site and 
district level -- One example is the 
annual Latino Role Models 
Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring 
event, conducted all in Spanish, 
provides parent education on 
college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and 
more. 
 
 
 


 The following actions and services 
were provided in 2017-18: 
 
*District Advisory Committee 
Meetings were held with 
stakeholders 
 
*School Community Coordinators 
supported access to school for 
monolingual Spanish speaking 
families.  They also provided 
outreach and support to all 
families. 
 
* Parents and community 
members participated in school 
and district level committees 
(School Site Councils, ELAC, 
DELAC, District Advisory Council; 
Parent Teacher Organizations, 
Home and School Clubs, 
/Wellness Committee, Green 
Schools, Tech Task Force and 
more) throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys 
were conducted to solicit 
community input on LCAP, budget 
and program priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities 
were provided at both the site and 
district level -- One example is the 
annual Latino Role Models 
Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring 
event, conducted all in Spanish, 
provides parent education on 
college admissions, A-G 


 2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 2200 
CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES Supplemental 
103,111  


 2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 2200 
CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES Supplemental 93,731 


2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 76,661  


 2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 3000 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Supplemental 92,786 


3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, 
MHMS - 1.00 @ HRHS & Small 
Schools) 2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 107,621  


 3.50 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ MHMS - 
1.00 @ BRMS, HRHS & Small 
Schools) 2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 
Supplemental 125,798 


3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, 
MHMS - 1.00 @ HRHS & Small 
Schools) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 84,256  


 3.50 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ MHMS - 
1.00 @ BRMS, HRHS & Small 
Schools) 3000 EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS Supplemental 98,417 


DAC Meetings (1,495 E & 2,275 
S) 4395 FOOD FOR 
WORKSHOPS Supplemental 
3,770  


 DAC Meetings (1,495 E & 2,275 
S) 4395 FOOD FOR 
WORKSHOPS Supplemental 
3,770 


1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (3,309 
E & 9,985 S) 4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES Title I 12,694  


 1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (3,309 
E & 9,985 S) 4300 MATERIALS 
& SUPPLIES Title I 5,000 


Latino Role Model Conference 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title I 5,000  


 Latino Role Model Conference 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES Title I 2,672 


113 of 656







Page 58 of 174


completion, financial aide, and 
more. 
 
*We added student focus groups 
at all of the high schools to gather 
student input on our plans and our 
district goals. 
 
 


 


Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The following actions and services were provided in 2017-18: 
 
*District Advisory Committee Meetings were held with stakeholders. 
 
*School Community Coordinators supported access to school for monolingual Spanish speaking families.  They also provided 
outreach and support to all families. 
 
* Parents and community members participated in school and district level committees (School Site Councils, ELAC, DELAC, District 
Advisory Council; Parent Teacher Organizations, Home and School Clubs, /Wellness Committee, Green Schools, Tech Task Force 
and more) throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys were conducted to solicit community input on LCAP, budget and program priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities were provided at both the site and district level -- One example is the annual Latino Role Models 
Conference sponsored in concert with Senderos and held at Cabrillo College.  This inspiring event, conducted all in Spanish, provides 
parent education on college admissions, A-G completion, financial aide, and more. Bus transportation was provided to participating 
students and parents. 
 
         
 
 


114 of 656







Page 59 of 174


Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
We were able to engage more families in our annual parent survey. Using a text link, seemed to help more of the parents of students 
targeted for LCAP supports access the survey.  In addition we were able to hold student focus groups this year to collect more input 
from our high school students on what is working to meet their needs and what needs are not being met.  Our school Community 
Coordinators continue to be instrumental in parent and community outreach.  They support the District in accessing parent input and in 
communicating the resources available to support students and families. Our community coordinators are also instrumental in 
garnering parent participation in both site and district level committees.   Our new Director of Curriculum Instruction and Assessment 
increased the number of district led parent education events and our school sites, PTAs and Home and School Clubs also sponsored 
important parent education opportunities this school year.          
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
The greatest percentage variance is for costs for translation.  With more hours for school Community Coordinators and more bilingual 
district staff, we needed fewer extra hourly agreements for translation.  The Latino Role Models conference also came in under budget 
as partner districts contributed to costs this year.          
 


 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
School Community Coordinators are being added to SCHS and SHS. Both of these schools have not had Community Coordinators up 
to this point. In addition, hours for school Community Coordinators at both middle schools will be increased to support access to 
school programs for all families.  With these additions, in the 2018-19 school year, 9 of 10 campuses will have school Community 
Coordinators.           
 


 


115 of 656







Page 60 of 174


Stakeholder Engagement 
 


 


LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 


 


Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 


Santa Cruz City Schools gathered input from a variety of stakeholders to make updates to our 2017-2020 Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP). A series of meetings were held over eight months from September 2017 – May 2018. A survey was 
administered to parents, students and all staff for input to inform our LCAP. SCCS community groups (Superintendent’s Parent 
Leader Advisory Group, District English Language Advisory Council (DELAC), Migrant Parent Advisory Council (PAC), District 
Advisory Committee (DAC), Student Focus Groups and Board Community Meetings) provided input on the LCAP through regularly 
scheduled meetings. DAC is a community group solely focused on giving input into the LCAP and is comprised of Union members, 
teachers, administrators, and parents. 
 
The LCAP stakeholder meeting dates included: 
 
I. DAC Meetings                   Nov 13, Nov 30, Dec 11, Dec 13, Jan 22, and Feb 12 
II. Parent Leadership Committee Oct 16, Nov 27, Feb 26 
III. DELAC/ PAC            Feb. 15 (Note: DELAC/PAC meetings were held each month, but only the Feb. 15 date focused on LCAP) 
IV. Parent and Student Surveys  Nov-Feb, 2017-18 
V.     Student Focus Group Meetings      Nov 27, Nov 30, Dec 4, Dec 12 
V.     Board Community Meetings           Sept 26, Nov 13, Jan 18, Feb, Mar 15 and April 17 
VI. Board Updates and Approval          Sept 27, Oct 18, Nov 8, Feb 28, Mar 7, April 18, June 13, and June 20 
 
The DAC, DELAC and PAC were all presented with information regarding the funding process, current action steps written into the 
2016-19 three-year LCAP, progress to date (including CAASPP data, local assessment data, graduation rates, English Learner 
redesignation rates, truancy, expulsions, and suspensions), and estimated funding for the 2018-19 school year. These parent groups 
discussed district data - local assessments, CDE Dashboard, input from parent, student and staff surveys.  They used this 
information to prioritize LCAP action steps and goals needing to be continued, removed, or revised.  Structured conversations 
allowed all stakeholders opportunity to review data and make recommendations.  To ensure access for our Spanish speaking 
community, we provided translated documents, bilingual surveys and interpretation in meetings. 
 
We are continuing to align our LCAP to our 6 District Goals: 
Goal 1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and  career opportunities. 


116 of 656







Page 61 of 174


Goal 2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social 
emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal 3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic  groups within the SCCS student 
community. 
Goal 4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching. 
Goal 5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal 6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 
 
Trends in the LCAP recommendations from DAC, DELAC, PAC, Community Meetings, Parent Leadership Committee, Student 
Focused Group meetings, and parent, staff, and student surveys included the following: 
 
Supports already in place that should continue: 
 
*After school homework supports 
*Advancement via Individual Determination (AVID) program to support first generation college bound students particularly Low 
Income, ELs and Foster Youth 
*Instructional aides in classes and tutors 
*School activities (e.g., athletics, band, clubs, etc.) 
*Counseling social/emotional supports 
*Bilingual Community Coordinators 
*Elementary SLT Program 
*Elementary Walk to Read Program 
*Social Workers (focused on building student connectedness) 
*Career Technical Education (CTE) classes 
 
Desired Supports: 
 
*A focus on teachers building relationships with students 
*Professional Development for teachers (with an emphasis on: supporting English Language Learners in the classroom, supporting 
struggling learners in the classroom, and supporting teachers with how to incorporate and support diversity) 
*Additional homework support (e.g., longer library hours with tutoring support, daily teacher office hours, time to begin homework in 
class and get help if needed, study hall, etc.) 
*Bilingual counselors 
*Additional social/emotional & academic/career counseling services 
*Additional social workers 
*Positive Behavioral Interventions and Support (PBIS) Coordinator 
*More communication with parents 
*Parent Education workshops focused on early childhood literacy 


117 of 656







Page 62 of 174


*Elementary Math Intervention(s) 
*Summer Enrichment Program 
*Build on work with foster youth collaborative to ensure wrap around services for foster youth 
 
 
Our stakeholder involvement process is part of our SCCS culture. This year, in our efforts to continue to improve our stakeholder 
engagement process regarding our areas of student need (specifically as they relate to English Learners, Foster Youth, and students 
from Low Income households) and how to meet these needs, we held a Leadership Retreat for teacher leaders, RtI Coordinators, 
District Instructional Coaches, Site and District administrators. At this retreat, we looked at subgroup data to help focus our efforts 
into 4 strategic focus areas. These strategic focus areas are: Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress, and School 
Connectedness. Stakeholders then discussed the data, looked at current practices and initiatives, and recommended one Tier 1 and 
one Tier 2 program/practice to focus on at each grade span in each of the strategic focus areas. Stakeholders were then asked to 
outline the cost to implement each of these programs/practices. A smaller committee then reviewed the recommendations and looked 
at the district LCAP and other budgets to determine needed budget revisions to support the implementation of these Tier 1 & Tier 2 
practices. 
 
        


         
 


Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 


The consultations with stakeholders resulted in SCCS continuing many of the actions in our current LCAP.  Key shifts to the 2018-19 
LCAP that came as a result of input included: 
 
Elementary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas: 
2.0 FTE Elementary Instructional Coaching - tied to sites, not content specific (Note: .3 will be funded by Title 1) 
 
Background and Rationale for Change 
As we are in our third year of having instructional coaches, and are not yet seeing the impact of this work on student CAASPP 
scores, we see the need to make some shifts in the implementation of our Elementary Instructional Coaching Program. During our 
February MTSS Retreat with teacher leaders and administrators from each site, we heard from all that instructional coaching was 
desired. The desire was to have a full time instructional coach to support quality instruction in our three academic strategic focus 
areas: Literacy, Mathematics, and English Language Development to support English Learner progress. Instructional coaching was 
desired because it is a high impact research based educational practice when implemented well. 
 


118 of 656







Page 63 of 174


At this point, we do not have enough funds to have one instructional coach at each elementary school, but we do have enough to 
have one instructional coach split between several elementary sites. This structure enables an instructional coach to concentrate 
their work with all teachers at no more than two or three school sites and focus on needs as indicated by their CAASPP and MAP 
assessment data. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
To provide instructional coaching to all elementary teachers focused on high impact, evidence based instructional strategies. An 
emphasis would be placed on evidence based Integrated ELD instructional strategies. 
 
Strengths of the Proposed Program 
Shifting our coaching positions to two Instructional Coaches instead of one math coach and one English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher would allow the Instructional Coaches to be a more a part of the school staff instead of being a district coach. This 
would allow the coach to work with teachers in a more systematic way, resulting in more teachers working with a coach. Instructional 
Coaches would also be able to support quality, evidence based instruction that crosses over all content areas. These coaches will be 
able to support grade level PLC teams in cycles of inquiry, help gather and review data as well as model lessons. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 
Ideally we would have a full time instructional coach at each of our three elementary schools that have a significant number of 
English Language Learners and Low Income students (Gault, Bayview, Delaveaga). With only 2 full time coaches, coaches time will 
still be split between many teachers, but the change will allow coaches to support only two or three sites at a time instead of all five. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
We are using a coaching survey with all teachers who work with an instructional coach. We are also using MAP and CAASPP scores 
as an indicator of the success of our current Instructional Coaching Program. While the survey data is very positive, the last three 
years of our elementary district CAASPP data indicates that we are not yet seeing the impact of instructional coaching that we desire. 
The coaching survey (see addendum) will be adjusted to promoting continuous instructional improvement. 
 
        
Elementary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas: 
1.0 FTE Positive Behavior Interventions and Support (PBIS) Coach/Behaviorist (focused on Tier 1 & Tier 2 support to increase 
School Connectedness and address barriers to academic success) 
 
Background 
PBIS supports schools and  districts to build systems capacity for implementing a multi-tiered approach to social, emotional and 
behavior support. PBIS works to clarify and align expectations for students school-wide.  It also includes explicit instruction of 
expectations and social emotional skills. PBIS improves social, emotional and academic outcomes for all students, including students 
with disabilities and students from underrepresented groups. 
 


119 of 656







Page 64 of 174


All of our elementary schools have implemented PBIS schoolwide. However, the success of the program is enhanced greatly by a 
PBIS coach who can work across the district to administer fidelity assessments, support site PBIS teams, and collaborate with 
regional PBIS supports. Two years ago, we had a part time PBIS coach who was a great asset to our sites. 
 
In addition to our PBIS needs, we are seeing a significant increase in behaviors that are impacting classroom safety.  Elementary 
sites are often requesting support from our Special Ed Behavior specialist on matters involving general education students.  Our 
elementary teachers at all of our school sites have requested more behavior supports to ensure behavior is not an obstacle to 
student achievement.  This has also been a request from elementary parents. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
With the creation of this position, the PBIS Coach/Behaviorist will be able to work with all five elementary sites to support PBIS teams 
and staffs - administrative, credentialed, and classified - to support their site PBIS teams in preventing behavior as well as to 
implement effective interventions for general education students with moderate to severe behavior. All sites are experiencing 
behaviors in general education students that fall into the severe category and are therefore not a candidate for PIP. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
PBIS Coach/Behaviorist will be under the supervision of the Director of Student Services. Effectiveness of the program will be 
measured by interviews with site teams, decreased behavior referrals and suspensions, and our PBIS fidelity tools. 
 
        
Elementary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas: 
SCIL Stipends moved from Title 1 and Title 2 to LCFF budget due to reductions in our Title 2 allocation 
 
Background 
SCIL (Santa Cruz Instructional Leaders) teams were introduced to SCCS in the 2010-2011 school year. Each year, grade level and 
department leads are tasked with leading the PLC work at their respective sites and leading the professional development days. 
Currently, at elementary, we have a SCIL member at each grade level. In addition to leading PLCs and PD, SCIL leaders are trained 
on two additional summer days and may have up to four after school meetings during the school year. They also meet monthly with 
site leadership outside of contracted hours. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
Each August our district invites instructional teacher leaders from each site as well as administrators to come together to engage in a 
day of professional learning to set the stage for the year’s instructional focus. This year, our 2017 SCIL PD day refocused our efforts 
with Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) by tying this already established practice with “Collective Teacher Efficacy”, one of 
the highest yield educational practices that impact student learning. According to John Hattie, a highly regarded education 
researcher, Collective Teacher Efficacy has an effect size of 1.57, effectively tripling the speed of a student’s learning. Collective 
Teacher Efficacy is the belief that together teachers can positively impact student learning through collective action. We will continue 


120 of 656







Page 65 of 174


to focus on how to further our Collective Teacher Efficacy and increase our impact throughout the year at our follow up SCIL 
meetings. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
The SCIL program has brought professional learning and professional learning communities through our excellent teacher leaders. 
Sites can guide their professional learning needs and differentiate their learning for their own staffs. Administrators and SCIL have 
latitude in what the instructional foci should be the year, and grade levels/departments can collaborate in their PLCs to share effective 
strategies based on the analysis of student work. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 
The effectiveness of the SCIL teams currently varies from site to site. We are in conversation about some changes and/or 
modifications to the SCIL structure to allow for more differentiation by both grade span and content area in professional development, 
depending on the individual needs of the teachers at each site. A slight reorganization of the structure of SCIL would allow for more 
teachers to be involved to be recognized leaders in a greater range of content areas. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Professional Learning Communities (PLCs) are constantly evaluating student learning and the effectiveness of the instruction. High 
functioning PLCs have the greatest impact. Student performance on collaboratively identified learning goals is the direct effect of 
PLCs. 
 
        
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
.2 FTE at each middle school for a math intervention class 
 
Background 
While both middle schools have been able to implement Tier 2 Math Interventions (Math Plus), they have not yet had the funds to 
implement Tier 3 Math Interventions for students in great need of math support. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
These Tier 3 Math Interventions will be intensive support classes focused on building students mathematics skills in their area of 
need. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
MAP Growth & CAASPP growth 
 
        
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 


121 of 656







Page 66 of 174


.2 School Connectedness FTE at each middle school 
 
Background 
As we have identified a need to better monitor student engagement and connectedness to school, each middle school is looking at 
certificated staff to support student engagement.  Each site will work with the leadership team to identify the counseling / activities 
focus that will best meet site needs.  Each position will collect data on the engagement of all student groups with a particular focus on 
English Learners, Low Income Students and Foster Youth. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
The purpose of the program is to better engage and connect students to school.  This personnel resource will help develop full 
programs at each respective site in collaboration with site staffs. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
As programs are developed this spring and summer, an update will be provided to the Board on each site’s specific program goals. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 
Program needs will be evaluated and reported in the first year of implementation. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Specific site evaluation criteria will be established and monitored by each middle school.  All sites will be assessing increased 
participation in co-curricular programming and increase metrics for District Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school 
environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
        
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
.1 FTE increase in FTE for MS School Community Coordinators (increase to .6 from .5) 
 
Background 
School Community Coordinators 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
The purpose of the school community coordinator is to support access to the school for families and to support linking families to 
community resources. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
School community coordinators are the only access to the school for many of our monolingual Spanish speaking parents.  This 
position provides translation, interpretation and access to all school to home communications, school events, parent conferences and 


122 of 656







Page 67 of 174


for information about classroom curriculum and student progress.  School community coordinators also assist school leaders with 
home visits and outreach. 
 
Our school community coordinators connect families with community resources, helping them fill out forms to access health care, free 
and reduced lunch, scholarships and find support services for individual family needs.  This year, they are instrumental in 
implementing the new online enrollment program.  Further, our school community coordinators serve as liaisons for homeless and 
foster youth services. 
 
As we have held parent leader meetings and other stakeholder forums, parents have consistently noted the importance of the school 
community coordinators.  At the most recent parent leader meeting with the Superintendent, parents noted the crucial role community 
coordinators play in parent engagement. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 
Our school community coordinators would benefit from continued on-going training and professional development.  Currently, they 
collaborate monthly at a job-alike meeting and work align practices and services to support all students. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
The school community coordinators have been in place for many years.  We piloted a log of contacts and services this year.  It will be 
fully implemented in the coming year. Further, our parent surveys provide feedback on the services and supports that they provide. 
        
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
.4 FTE at both Harbor & Soquel, .2 at Ark and .17 at SCHS for Math and/or Literacy based academic interventions 
 
Background 
All three comprehensive high schools are currently implementing math interventions.  Two of the three high schools are also 
implementing Tier 3 literacy interventions.  Data on the flexible Tier 2 math interventions has been positive.  We have more students 
successfully completing math courses. 
 
Student achievement data illustrates a need for more intervention courses to support student success.  Allocations of FTE were 
differentiated based on site achievement data.  Each site will build courses to address specific academic needs. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
These Tier 2 and 3 interventions will focus on building students’ mathematics and literacy skills in their areas of need. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
MAP Growth & CAASPP growth 
 
        


123 of 656







Page 68 of 174


Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
.4 FTE SCHS & Soquel School Community Coordinator to support ELs and parent access and engagement (Note: Harbor already 
has 1.0 FTE School Community Coordinator) 
 
See elementary section above on School Community Coordinators for background, purpose, goals, etc. 
 
Secondary Budget Additions Aligned to the SCCS 4 Strategic Focus Areas 
SCIL Stipends moved from Title 1 and Title 2 to LCFF budget because of reductions to the Title 2 budget. 
 
See elementary section above on SCIL Stipends being moved from Title 1 and Title 2 to LCFF budget. 
 
        
The following actions or expenditures are being removed from the 2017-18 LCAP: 
 
Elementary Positions to Stop Funding 
1.0 FTE Elementary Math Coach 
1.0 FTE Elementary ELIRT (This position is currently funded from a portion of Title I) 
 
Background 
We are in our third year of having content based instructional coaches. We added instructional coaches to our district team when we 
had some additional funds coming to our district due to the shift in funding when we moved to the Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF). Instructional coaching was desired because it is a high impact research based educational practice when implemented well. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
To provide instructional support in the areas of mathematics and English Language Development to all elementary teachers, as both 
math and supporting our English Learners to be more academically successful are areas of great need in both elementary and 
secondary, as indicated by our CAASPP scores. 
 
Strength of the Program 
Teachers who worked with our district math coach gave very positive feedback. Also, the math coach and ELIRT worked together to 
deliver district elementary math PD. Each session focused on mathematical concepts, formative assessment, re-engagement in 
learning, and language routines in mathematics to support our English Learners and other learners. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement and Rationale for Proposed Change 
Having one math coach for all teachers in the elementary district did not provide many teachers the opportunity to work one-on-one 
with the math coach. Also, our coaching program did not have a systematic way for coaching teachers. It was up to teachers to 
volunteer and request to work with the math coach, which resulted in random samplings of teachers working with each of the 
coaches. 


124 of 656







Page 69 of 174


 
In researching effective instructional coaching models and working with districts that have implemented effective elementary 
instructional coaching models (yielding strong student achievement scores, especially when looking at their subgroups), we noticed 
several trends. One trend in these effective elementary instructional coaching models is that the instructional coach was connected to 
a site and thus a part of a school’s staff. This seems to be essential in order to be more systematic about supporting teachers 
(working with all teachers at a school throughout the year). In addition, when the coach was part of the school staff, the coach was 
seen as part of the team, and as a result there was high relation trust between the coach and teachers. 
 
In addition, another trend in effective elementary instructional coaching programs is that the focus of the coaching was on high 
impact, evidence based instruction that impacted all content areas and was not focused on a specific content area. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
We are using a coaching survey with all teachers that work with an instructional coach. We are also using MAP and CAASPP scores 
as an indicator of the success of our current Instructional Coaching Program. While the survey data is very positive, the last three 
years of our elementary district CAASPP data indicates that we are not yet seeing the impact of instructional coaching that we desire. 
 
        
Elementary Position to Stop Funding 
1.0 FTE District Technology Coach (.5 FTE Elementary & .5 FTE Secondary) 
 
Background 
We are in year 3 of having a District Technology Coach. The Technology coach is split between elementary (.5 FTE) and secondary 
(.5 FTE). Thus, this coach serves all teachers in the district. This position was created as we had an increasing need for teachers to 
better utilize and implement the instructional technology tools available to them. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
To support the infusion of education related technology into the classroom to enhance student engagement and relevance to 
learning. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
As we moved to Illuminate, our new student information system and data management system, this year, the District Technology 
Coach has been instrumental in training teachers on how to take attendance, enter grades, etc. The Technology Coach has also 
been instrumental in creating reports in Illuminate for gathering data more efficiently, and has also been the one to enter the district 
elementary report card and entering the district middle school School Wide Writing Assessments. In addition, the Technology Coach 
has run Google University trainings for teachers, and as a result we have had a number of teachers receive their Google Certification. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement 


125 of 656







Page 70 of 174


The Technology Coach position has ended up doing a lot of behind the scenes tech work with Illuminate, which could easily live 
within the realm of the technology department. This position does not need to be a teacher, an instructional coach, and could be 
handled by our new Systems Support Specialist. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
As we used data to identify our four key focus areas, technology integration did not rise to the top of identified needs.  We still have 
stipended technology teacher leads at each school site -- 1 per elementary and middle school and two at each high school.  These 
technology leads will continue to support technology integration at school sites. 
 
        
Elementary Positions to Stop Funding 
1.5 FTE PIP (Primary Intervention Program) Child Aide 
Targeted students-students with mild to moderate school adjustment concerns grades TK-5 in the comprehensive elementary 
schools. 
At least 96 students will be served in the 2017-18 school year. In the past the student demographics have averaged 52% Hispanic, 
41% white, 7% other. Foster and homeless youth are also a priority for this program 
 
Program purpose and goals 
The PIP program is designed to provide support to students who are having some form of difficulty in adjusting to school. 
 
Strengths of the program 
The data has shown that the students served in the program improve on teacher rating scales of school adjustment. The data also 
shows few students who are served in the program go on to need other social and emotional supports including and SSTs. 
 
Program needs for improvement 
Further research could be conducted to compare outcomes for those selected for PIP who do not receive permission to participate 
with those who participate. This research could illuminate the value added of the PIP program. 
 
PIP was established before we began our elementary counseling program, second step curriculum, Positive Behavior Interventions 
and Support program and group counseling interventions.  We have many more systems and supports in elementary school for our 
elementary students with mild and moderate needs.  The needs of our students and staff have changed. 
 
As PIP was designed to target mild to moderate school adjustment ratings, many of the behavioral challenges our elementary sites 
are facing are beyond the scope of the PIP program. Elementary staffs are requesting support for more severe behavioral 
challenges. 
Process for developing program 
The program was originally developed in our district in the 1990s through a California Department of Mental Health grant. It has been 
continued each year through various funding sources. 


126 of 656







Page 71 of 174


 
Evaluation Criteria 
The program is evaluated using the Participant Data Instrument (PDI) as well as feedback from teachers, principals and counselors. 
Teachers rate student change in six areas on a scale of -3 to +3. The chart shows the results for 94 students served. The majority of 
change as rated by the teachers is between +1 and +2. 
 
 
        
Elementary Program to Stop Funding 
Elementary Summer School 
 
Background 
Elementary Summer School has been offered in Santa Cruz with a variety of time frames, formats, curricular foci, and grade spans 
targeted. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
For the last many years, the focus of summer school has been for remediation for students who are not successful in the regular 
school program. Each year,  the focus has varied: literacy, mathematics, science, physical education, etc. We have not had the 
resources to offer an enrichment summer school program for at least 10 years. 
 
Strengths of the Program 
Summer school is a way to keep children engaged and connected to school during the summer months. Summer school also 
provides a good introduction to the profession for both new teachers and new administrators, and also offers veteran teachers a paid 
opportunity to experiment with new programs and or innovations. Summer school is also able to be a site for seamless summer 
feeding with our food services department to provide a nutritious lunch daily during the program. 
 
Program needs for Improvement 
Despite the benefits that summer school is able to offer, it has been difficult to measure the effect size on actual student learning in 
our various summer school programs. John Hattie’s research on effect size gives summer school an effect size of .23, slightly greater 
than class size reduction (.21) and slightly behind that of exercise and relaxation (.26) However, in order to use our resources wisely 
to have the greatest impact on student learning, it falls far below such practices as teacher-student relationships (.52), feedback (.70), 
teacher clarity (.72), RtI (1.29),  and finally collective teacher efficacy (1.57). 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
Evaluation criteria vary according to the design of the program, depending on the purpose and intention of the program.  As we have 
tracked data on students participating in various summer school program over the years, the impact has been limited.  The last two 
years attendance  programs have been very small - in 2016 and 2017, 104 and 67 students were served, respectively. 
 


127 of 656







Page 72 of 174


        
Secondary Programs/Positions to Stop Funding 
1.0 FTE Secondary Math Coach 
 
Background 
We are in our first year of having a full time secondary district math coach. Instructional coaching was desired because it is a high 
impact research based educational practice when implemented well, and we have a great need to increase our student achievement 
in mathematics. 
 
Program Purpose and Goals 
To provide instructional support in the areas of mathematics all secondary math teachers with a specific focus on supporting the 
implementation of our newly adopted high school mathematics curriculum, College Preparatory Mathematics (CPM). 
 
Strength of the Program 
Teachers who worked with our district secondary math coach gave very positive feedback. Our secondary math coach was 
specifically able to provide intensive support to Harbor High’s new math teachers. 
 
Program Needs for Improvement and Rationale for Proposed Change 
Because Soquel High and Santa Cruz High both have math focused Response to Intervention Coordinators who provide great 
instructional support to their respective math departments, there was not as great a need for a district math coach at these sites. 
Harbor recognized the need to have a math focused Response to Intervention Coordinator, and has hired one for the 2018-19 school 
year. 
 
Evaluation Criteria 
We are using a coaching survey with all teachers that work with an instructional coach. 
 
        
Input from all stakeholder meetings and responses to surveys were presented to the Board of Trustees in the spring semester and 
were reviewed again at our LCAP public hearing on June 13, 2018. On June 20, 2018 the Board of Trustees voted to approve the 
LCAP.        


         
 


128 of 656







Page 73 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 1 
All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career opportunities.          


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #1        
 
Identified Need: 
College and Career Readiness EAP Scores 2015-16 English Language Arts 22% college ready; Mathematics 14% college ready 
 
Common Core aligned instruction in math, ELA/ELD, and NGSS professional development and coaching, including scaffolding for 
English Learners, low income, foster youth, and students with disabilities is not fully in place at 100% of district schools. 
 
College and Career Ready 
53% of all 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2014-15; 54% of all 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2015-16. 
 
35% of LI 12th-grade meet A-G requirements 2014-15; 39% of LI 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2015-16. 
 
8% of EL 12th-grade meet A-G requirements 2014-15; 7% of EL 12th-grade students meet A-G requirements 2015-16 
 


129 of 656







Page 74 of 174


Cohort graduation rate for 2013-14 = 89.8%; Cohort graduation rate for 2015-16 = 92.5% 
 
High School dropout rate for 2013-14 = 4.7%; High School dropout rate for 2014-15 = 4.2% 
 
AP & Honors Course Enrollment 2016-17 - duplicated count 
All Students                              2,294 
Hispanic / Latino                       597 
Low Income                              575 
Students with Disabilities         46 
 
34% of the class of 2015 were rated prepared on the new state dashboard College and Career Readiness Indicator. 
 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


EAP Scores         2015-16 
 
ELA  22% College 
Ready 
Math 14% College 
Ready 
 
 


 Increase college 
readiness by 5% in ELA 
and Math 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
ELA  27% College 
Ready - We met our 
goal on the EAP in ELA, 
by increasing 5%. 
 
Math 12% College 
Ready - We did not met 
our goal on the EAP in 
Math. We decreased 
2%. 
 


 Increase college 
readiness by 5% in ELA 
and Math 


 Increase college 
readiness b y 5% in ELA 
and Math 


A-G rates         2015-16 Graduates 
 


 Target 5% increase for 
each student sub group 
 


 Target 5% for each 
student sub group 


 Target 5% increase for 
each student sub group 


130 of 656







Page 75 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


All Students                              
54% 
Hispanic / Latino                     
38% 
African American                     
56% 
English Learners                       
7% 
RFEP                                         
56% 
Low Income                              
39% 
Students with 
Disabilities       12% 
 
 
 


A-G rates for 2016-17 
Graduates 
 
All Students                 
61% (increase of 7%) 
Hispanic / Latino         
44% (increase of 6%) 
African American        
43% (decrease of 7%) 
English Learners        
13% (increase of 6%) 
RFEP                          
45% (decrease of 11%) 
Low Income                
47% (increase of 8%) 
Students w/ Disabilities 
17 % (increase of 5%) 
 
We met our goal of 
increasing by 5% or 
more in each of our 
subgroups except for 
our African American 
subgroup and RFEP 
subgroup. 
 
 


Graduation Rate         2015-16 cohort 
 
All Students                              
92.5% 
Hispanic / Latino                     
83.4% 
English Learners                    
73.3% 
Low Income                             
89.1% 


 Target  3% increase for 
each student sub group 
 
NOT YET AVAILABLE 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
All Students 
Hispanic / Latino 
English Learners 


 Target 3% increase for 
each student sub group 


 Target 3% increase for 
each student sub group 


131 of 656







Page 76 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Students with 
Disabilities      83.7% 
 
 
 
 


Low Income 
Students with 
Disabilities 
 


Dropout Rate         2015-16 cohort 
 
All Students                              
4.2% 
Hispanic / Latino                     
6.4% 
English Learners                    
15.2% 
Low Income                             
6.3% 
Students with 
Disabilities      4.7% 
 
 


 Reduce by 1% for each 
student sub group, 
reduce by 3% for ELs 
 
NOT YET AVAILABLE 
 
2016-17 cohort 
 
All Students 
Hispanic / Latino 
English Learners 
Low Income 
Students with 
Disabilities 
 


 Reduce by 1% for each 
student sub group, 
reduce by 3% for ELs 


 Reduce by 1% for each 
student sub group, 
reduce by 3% for ELs 


AP and Honors 
Enrollment        


 2016-17 cohort - 
duplicated count 
All Students                              
2,294 
Hispanic / Latino                     
597 
Low Income                             
575 
Students with 
Disabilities       46 
 
 


 Increase subgroup 
participation by 5% 
 
2017-18 cohort - 
duplicated count 
 
Groups Total                    
Met Goal: 
 
All Students 2,322          
N    (increase of 1%) 
Hispanic / Latino 626      
Y    (increase of 5%) 
Low Income 577             
N    (no increase or 


 Increase subgroup 
participation by 5% 


 Increase subgroup 
participation by 5% 


132 of 656







Page 77 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


decrease) 
Students w/ Dis. 51        
Y    (increase of 11%) 
 
We met our goal of 
increasing by 5% or 
more in our Hispanic / 
Latino subgroup and 
Students with 
Disabilities subgroup 
 


College and Career 
Readiness Indicator - 
California Dashboard        


 34% of the class of 2015 
were rated prepared on 
the new state dashboard 
College and Career 
Readiness Indicator 
 


 Increase percent of 
students rated College 
and Career Ready by 
5% 
 
45.4% of the class of 
2016 were rated 
prepared on the new 
state dashboard College 
and Career Readiness 
Indicator. 
 
We met and surpassed 
our desired goal of a 5% 
increase. We increased 
11.4% on the College 
and Career Readiness 
Indicator. 
 


 Increase percent of 
students rated College 
and Career Ready by 
3% 


 Increase percent of 
students rated College 
and Career Ready by 
3% 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 


133 of 656







Page 78 of 174


For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Counselors assist in ensuring access post-
secondary college and career 
opportunities (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Title 1) 
 
Provide 4 year planning workshops for all 
9th grade students 
 
Continue to implement Common Core 
Standards, following the Curriculum 
Master Plan 
 
Facilitate strategies for improving A-G 
completion rates including transcript audits 


 Counselors assist in ensuring access post-
secondary college and career 
opportunities (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Title 1). 
 
Provide 4 year planning workshops for all 
9th grade students. Our counselors are 
specifically focused on ensuring that our 
English Learners, Title 1 students, and 
Foster Youth have access, opportunity, 
and support in these plans so that they are 
successful in being A-G ready and able to 
take AP/Honors courses. 
 


 Counselors assist in ensuring access post-
secondary college and career 
opportunities (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Title 1). 
 
Provide 4 year planning workshops for all 
9th grade students. Our counselors are 
specifically focused on ensuring that our 
English Learners, Title 1 students, and 
Foster Youth have access, opportunity, 
and support in these plans so that they are 
successful in being A-G ready and able to 
take AP/Honors courses. 
 


134 of 656







Page 79 of 174


supported by the Riverside Counseling 
Collaborative 
 
Refine our articulation efforts with our 
partner school districts – Live Oak, Soquel 
and the county’s four small districts 
 
Build common assessments and adopt 
MAPS to monitor student progress on the 
standards 
 
Collaboratively determine math placement 
tools with partner districts 
 
 
        


Continue to implement Common Core 
Standards, following the Curriculum 
Master Plan. 
 
Facilitate strategies for improving A-G 
completion rates including transcript audits 
supported by the Riverside Counseling 
Collaborative. 
 
Refine our articulation efforts with our 
partner school districts – Live Oak, Soquel 
and the county’s four small districts, 
specifically monitoring our Title 1, English 
Learner, and Foster Youth needs. 
 
Use common assessments and MAP to 
monitor student progress on the 
standards, with a specific focus on English 
Learner and RFEP progress. 
 
Collaboratively determine math placement 
tools with partner districts 
 
 
 
 


Continue to implement Common Core 
Standards, following the Curriculum 
Master Plan. 
 
Facilitate strategies for improving A-G 
completion rates including transcript audits 
supported by the Riverside Counseling 
Collaborative. 
 
Refine our articulation efforts with our 
partner school districts – Live Oak, Soquel 
and the county’s four small districts, 
specifically monitoring our Title 1, English 
Learner, and Foster Youth needs. 
 
Use common assessments and MAP to 
monitor student progress on the 
standards, with a specific focus on English 
Learner and RFEP progress. 
 
Collaboratively determine math placement 
tools with partner districts 
 
 
 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        141,997  165,946  169,265 
        141,997  165,946  169,265 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        141,997  165,946  169,265 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .20 Monarch 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .20 Monarch 


135 of 656







Page 80 of 174


Amount        52,338  55,928  57,047 
        52,338  55,928  57,047 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        52,338  55,928  57,047 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .20 Monarch 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.20 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .20 Monarch 


Amount        141,997  146,806  149,742 
        141,997  146,806  149,742 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        141,997  146,806  149,742 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL  . 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL  


Amount        52,338  44,730  45,625 
        52,338  44,730  45,625 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        52,338  44,730  45,625 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.25 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL & .25 Monarch 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL  . 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.00 FTE Total = .50 FTE Counselor 
@ BV, DL, GA, WL  . 


Amount        52,437  58,254  59,419 
        52,437  58,254  59,419 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        52,437  58,254  59,419 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 SCHS  & SQHS 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 SCHS  & SQHS 


Amount        52,437  24,141  24,624 
        52,437  24,141  24,624 Source        Base  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        52,437  24,141  24,624 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 SCHS  & SQHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.70 FTE Total = .30 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 SCHS  & SQHS 


Amount        20,091     
        20,091     Source        Supplemental     
        20,091     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 


  
 


  
 


136 of 656







Page 81 of 174


Amount        20,091     
        20,091     Source        Base     
        20,091     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.65 FTE Total = .25 Counselor @ 
MHMS & .20 @ SCHS & SQHS 


  
 


  
 


Amount        90,000  90,000  90,000 
        90,000  90,000  90,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        90,000  90,000  90,000 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
MAPS ASSESSMENT 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
MAPS ASSESSMENTS 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
MAPS ASSESSMENTS 


Amount          26,616  27,149 
          26,616  27,149 Source          Title I  Title I 
          26,616  27,149 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.40 FTE Total = .20 BRMS & .20 
HRHS 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
40 FTE Total = .20 BRMS & .20 
HRHS 


Amount          6,524  6,655 
          6,524  6,655 Source          Title I  Title I 
          6,524  6,655 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE Total = .20 BRMS & .20 
HRHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE Total = .20 BRMS & .20 
HRHS 


Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


137 of 656







Page 82 of 174


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: High Schools        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Continue to work with the County Office to 
ensure a smooth transition of ROP staff to 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
Implement  new Computer Science 
pathways, support increased enrollment in 
pathway options 
        


 LCAP Supplemental: 
Continue to work with the County Office to 
ensure a smooth transition of ROP staff to 
Santa Cruz City Schools. 
 
Continue to provide Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) courses at all 
comprehensive high schools and 
Costanoa (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Measure O, CTEIG, Perkins). 
 
Increase number of Career Pathways at 
each comprehensive high school. 
 
Support increased enrollment and 
completion of Career Pathway options with 
an emphasis on supporting English 
Learners, Foster Youth, and Title 1 
students to have access to these courses 
and pathways. 
 
Implement the CA CTE District Self 
Assessment and use this to develop a 
comprehensive district CTE Plan. 
 


 LCAP Supplemental 
Continue to work with the County Office to 
ensure a smooth transition of ROP staff to 
Santa Cruz City Schools. 
 
Continue to provide Career and Technical 
Education (CTE) courses at all 
comprehensive high schools and 
Costanoa (LCFF Supplemental, LCFF 
Base, Measure O, CTEIG, Perkins). 
 
Increase number of Career Pathways at 
each comprehensive high school with an 
emphasis on supporting English Learners, 
Foster Youth, and Title 1 students to have 
access to these courses and pathways. 
 
Support increased enrollment and 
completion of Career Pathway options. 
 
Implement the CA CTE District Self 
Assessment and use this to develop a 
comprehensive district CTE Plan. 
 


 
138 of 656







Page 83 of 174


Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        672,351  629,203  711,253 
        672,351  629,203  711,253 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        672,351  629,203  711,253 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE 
SCHS, 3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.40 FTE HRHS, 1.50 FTE 
SCHS, 2.60 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.40 FTE HRHS, 1.50 FTE 
SCHS, 2.60 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


Amount        180,918  193,376  235,899 
        180,918  193,376  235,899 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        180,918  193,376  235,899 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.585 FTE HRHS, 1.515 FTE 
SCHS, 3.00 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.40 FTE HRHS, 1.50 FTE 
SCHS, 2.60 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (3.40 FTE HRHS, 1.50 FTE 
SCHS, 2.60 FTE SQHS, .60 FTE 
Costanoa) 


Amount        94,386  99,301  101,287 
        94,386  99,301  101,287 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        94,386  99,301  101,287 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


Amount        40,654  31,576  32,208 
        40,654  31,576  32,208 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        40,654  31,576  32,208 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
CTEIG/ROP - Parcel Tax - Measure 
O  (.30 FTE HRHS, .30 FTE SCHS, 
.20 FTE SQHS, .20 FTE Costanoa) 


139 of 656







Page 84 of 174


Amount        369,105  35,410  35,410 
        369,105  35,410  35,410 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        369,105  35,410  35,410 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
For Computer Science Pathway 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Supplies 
for Pathway's 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Supplies 
for Pathway's 


Amount          106,002   
          106,002   Source          Other   
          106,002   Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - MOU with 
COE (.40 FTE Mejia & .57 FTE 
Hess) 


  
All employees move to SCCS 


Amount          30,000  30,000 
          30,000  30,000 Source          Other  Other 
          30,000  30,000 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Software 
Licenses @ 3 HS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Software 
Licenses @ 3 HS 


Amount          5,000   
          5,000   Source          Other  Other 
          5,000   Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 6400 EQUIPMENT 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Camera 
Equipment @ SQHS 


 6400 EQUIPMENT 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Camera 
Equipment @ SQHS 


Amount          128,000  128,000 
          128,000  128,000 Source          Other  Other 
          128,000  128,000 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 6500 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Lab 
replacements @ 2 HS 


 6500 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - Lab 
replacements @ 2 HS 


140 of 656







Page 85 of 174


Amount          3,762  3,837 
          3,762  3,837 Source          Other  Other 
          3,762  3,837 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - IT Support 
at all sites 


 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Parcel Tax - Measure O - IT Support 
at all sites 


Action 3 
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: High Schools        


 


Actions/Services 


  X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


         Continuation of above Actions/Services 
related to CTE. Not enough expenditure 
rows to accommodate.  


 Continuation of above Actions/Services 
related to CTE. Not enough expenditure 
rows to accommodate.  


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Amount          11,326  11,553 
          11,326  11,553 Source          Other  Other 
          11,326  11,553 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O @ All Sites 


 1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 
Parcel Tax - Measure O @ All Sites 


Amount          2,946  3,005 
          2,946  3,005 Source          Other  Other 
          2,946  3,005 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Parcel Tax - Measure O @ All Sites 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Parcel Tax - Measure O @ All Sites 


 


141 of 656







Page 86 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 2 
SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of cognitive skills and the social emotional 
well-being of all students.         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #2        
 
Identified Need: 
There were 178 suspensions in 2015-16 school year and 144 suspensions during the 2016-17 school year. 
 
There were 19 expulsions in 2015-16 and 32 expulsions in the 2016 - 17 school year. 
 
Elementary chronic absenteeism rate is 13% for 2015-16. 
 
Middle School chronic absenteeism rate is 11.5% in 2015-16. 
 
High School chronic absenteeism rate is 12.5% in 2015-16. 
 
5th graders reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 65% in 2016-17 
 
7th graders reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 65% in 2016-17 
7th grade Hispanic students reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 64% in 2016-17 
 
9th graders reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 61% in 2016-17 


142 of 656







Page 87 of 174


9th grade Hispanic students reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 52% in 2016-17 
 
11th graders reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 54% in 2016-17 
11th grade Hispanic students reporting high levels of school connectedness on the California Healthy Kids Survey 51% in 2016-17 
 
5th graders reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 59% in 2016-17 
 
7th graders reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 41% in 2016-17 
7th grade Hispanic students reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 42% in 2016-
17 
 
9th graders reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 30% in 2016-17 
9th grade Hispanic students reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 24% in 2016-
17 
 
11th graders reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 33% in 2016-17 
11th grade Hispanic students reporting High in Caring Adult Relationships at school on the California Healthy Kids Survey 29% in 
2016-17 
 
 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Suspensions rates 
 
Expulsion rates 
 
Chronic Absenteeism 
 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey (added 2018-19) 
        


 2016-17: 
224 suspensions (in 
school and out of 
school) 
30 expulsions 
 
2016-17: 
Elementary Chronic 
Absenteeism    15.8% 
Middle School Chronic 
Absenteeism 12.9% 
High School Chronic 
Absenteeism    17.7% 


 DATA AS OF MAY 17, 
2018 
 
103 suspensions (in 
school and out of 
school) 
13 expulsions 
Elementary Chronic 
Absenteeism    13.70% 
Middle School Chronic 
Absenteeism 10.02% 
High School Chronic 
Absenteeism    14.82% 


 Reduce Suspensions by 
3% 
Reduce Expulsions by 
3% 
Reduce chronic 
absentee rate by 2% at 
each grade span 
Increase measures of 
school connectedness 
on California Healthy 
Kids Survey by 3% 
 


 Reduce Suspensions by 
3% 
Reduce Expulsions by 
3% 
Reduce chronic 
absentee rate by 2% at 
each grade span 
Increase measures of 
school connectedness 
on California Healthy 
Kids Survey by 3% 
 


143 of 656







Page 88 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


 
2016-17 
5th graders reporting 
high levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 65% 
 
7th graders reporting 
high levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 65% 
7th grade Hispanic 
students reporting high 
levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 64% 
 
9th graders reporting 
high levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 61% 
9th grade Hispanic 
students reporting high 
levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 52% 
 
11th graders reporting 
high levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 54% 


 


144 of 656







Page 89 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


11th grade Hispanic 
students reporting high 
levels of school 
connectedness on the 
California Healthy Kids 
Survey 51% 
 
5th graders reporting 
High in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 59% 
 
7th graders reporting 
High in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 41% 
7th grade Hispanic 
students reporting High 
in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 42% 
 
9th graders reporting 
High in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 30% 
9th grade Hispanic 
students reporting High 
in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 24% 
 


145 of 656







Page 90 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


11th graders reporting 
High in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 33% 
11th grade Hispanic 
students reporting High 
in Caring Adult 
Relationships at school 
on the California Healthy 
Kids Survey 29% 
 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 


146 of 656







Page 91 of 174


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Counselors (See Goal #1) 
Youth Services Interns to provide social 
emotional counseling and supports 
Collaboration with County Office of 
Education on Foster Youth Services 
 
        


 Counselors (See Goal #1) 
Social Work / MFT Interns to provide 
social emotional counseling and supports 
with a particular focus on unduplicated 
students' needs 
Collaboration with County Office of 
Education on Foster Youth Services 
 
 


 Counselors (See Goal #1) 
Social Work / MFT Interns to provide 
social emotional counseling and supports 
with a particular focus on unduplicated 
students' needs 
Collaboration with County Office of 
Education on Foster Youth Services 
 
 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        24,000  17,500  17,500 
        24,000  17,500  17,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        24,000  17,500  17,500 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SCCCS Youth Services (8K Elem & 
16K Secondary) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SCCCS Youth Services (6,500K 
Elem & 11K Secondary) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SCCCS Youth Services (6,500K 
Elem & 11K Secondary) 


Amount        10,000  10,000  10,000 
        10,000  10,000  10,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        10,000  10,000  10,000 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Foster Youth Services (3,300 E & 
6,700 S) 


147 of 656







Page 92 of 174


Amount        1,000  1,000  1,000 
        1,000  1,000  1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        1,000  1,000  1,000 Budget 
Reference        


5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES 
Secondary 


 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES 
Secondary 


 5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES 
Secondary 


Amount        2,500  1,000  1,000 
        2,500  1,000  1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        2,500  1,000  1,000 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
500 E & 2,000 S 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
500 E & 500 S 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
500 E & 500 S 


Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           Specific Grade Spans: TK - 5        
 [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide          Specific Schools: Elementary Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: TK-5        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X New Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 


148 of 656







Page 93 of 174


Primary Intervention Program for each 
intervention and social emotional support        


 Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Supports Aides will be available campus 
wide, but will particularly target needs for 
unduplicated pupils 


 Positive Behavior Intervention and 
Supports Aides will be available campus 
wide, but will particularly target needs for 
unduplicated pupils 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        53,986  59,388  60,576 
        53,986  59,388  60,576 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        53,986  59,388  60,576 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


Amount        5,142  5,612  5,724 
        5,142  5,612  5,724 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        5,142  5,612  5,724 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.5 FTE PIP Aides = 4 @ .3750 
Elementary 


Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 Specific Student Groups: Students needing Tier 3 Interventions 
and Supports        


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]         


  Specific Grade Spans: Secondary Schools        
 [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


149 of 656







Page 94 of 174


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)          Specific Grade Spans: 6th - 12th grade        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Social Workers to remove obstacles to 
school success focused primarily on 
unduplicated pupils and their families        


 Social Workers to remove obstacles to 
school success focused primarily on 
unduplicated pupils and their families 


 Social Workers to remove obstacles to 
school success focused primarily on 
unduplicated pupils and their families 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        149,145  157,266  160,411 
        149,145  157,266  160,411 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        149,145  157,266  160,411 Budget 
Reference        


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


Amount        53,227  59,374  60,561 
        53,227  59,374  60,561 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        53,227  59,374  60,561 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.0 Social Workers - Secondary 


Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           Specific Grade Spans: TK-5        
 [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
150 of 656







Page 95 of 174


 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Schoolwide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: TK - 5        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Part-Time Positive Behavior Intervention 
and Support Coach         


 Full-Time Positive Behavior Intervention 
and Support Coach / Behaviorist will 
particularly target needs for unduplicated 
pupils 


 Full-Time Positive Behavior Intervention 
and Support Coach / Behaviorist will 
particularly target needs for unduplicated 
pupils 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        24,595  84,348  86,035 
        24,595  84,348  86,035 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        24,595  84,348  86,035 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE PBIS/Behavior Specialist 
Coach Elementary 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE PBIS/Behavior Specialist 
Coach Elementary 


Amount        4,367  23,290  23,756 
        4,367  23,290  23,756 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        4,367  23,290  23,756 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4 FTE PBIS Coach Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE PBIS/Behavior Specialist 
Coach Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE PBIS/Behavior Specialist 
Coach Elementary 


151 of 656







Page 96 of 174


Action 5 
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Schoolwide          Specific Grade Spans: High School 9-12        


 


Actions/Services 


  X New Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


         .4 Activities Director at each 
comprehensive high school and .1 at 
Costanoa Continuation High School to 
promote school connectedness for all 
students and to promote and monitor 
school connectedness for English 
Learners, Foster Youth and Low Income 
students 


 .4 Activities Director at each 
comprehensive high school and .1 at 
Costanoa Continuation High School to 
promote school connectedness for all 
students and to promote and monitor 
school connectedness for English 
Learners, Foster Youth and Low Income 
students 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Amount          99,971  101,970 
          99,971  101,970 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          99,971  101,970 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
1.30 FTE Total = .40 @ HRHS, 
SCHS & SQHS, .10 @ Costanoa 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
1.30 FTE Total = .40 @ HRHS, 
SCHS & SQHS, .10 @ Costanoa 


Amount          28,925  29,504 
          28,925  29,504 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          28,925  29,504 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.30 FTE Total = .40 @ HRHS, 
SCHS & SQHS, .10 @ Costanoa 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.30 FTE Total = .40 @ HRHS, 
SCHS & SQHS, .10 @ Costanoa 


152 of 656







Page 97 of 174


Action 6 
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Schoolwide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: Middle School 


Grades 6 - 8        
 


Actions/Services 


  X New Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


         LCFF Supplemental 
Add an additional .2 counseling support at 
both middle schools to ensure students 
social emotional needs are addressed and 
to work to better connect 6th - 8th grade 
students to school with a strategic focus 
on connecting our English Learners, 
Foster Youth and Low Income students. 
 
Title I 
.2 Activities Director for Branciforte Middle 
School to promote school connectedness 
for all students and to promote and 
monitor school connectedness for English 
Learners, Foster Youth and Low Income 
students 
 


 LCFF Supplemental 
Add an additional .2 counseling support at 
both middle schools to ensure students 
social emotional needs are addressed and 
to work to better connect 6th - 8th grade 
students to school with a strategic focus 
on connecting our English Learners, 
Foster Youth and Low Income students. 
 
Title I 
.2 Activities Director for Branciforte Middle 
School to promote school connectedness 
for all students and to promote and 
monitor school connectedness for English 
Learners, Foster Youth and Low Income 
students 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 


153 of 656







Page 98 of 174


Amount          35,861  36,579 
          35,861  36,579 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          35,861  36,579 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.40 FTE Total = .20 @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


 1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 
.40 FTE Total = .20 @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


Amount          15,036  15,336 
          15,036  15,336 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          15,036  15,336 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE Total = .20 @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE Total = .20 @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


Amount          13,587  13,859 
          13,587  13,859 Source          Title I  Title I 
          13,587  13,859 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.20 FTE @ BRMS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.20 FTE @ BRMS 


Amount          4,138  4,221 
          4,138  4,221 Source          Title I  Title I 
          4,138  4,221 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE @ BRMS 


Action 7 
 Specific Student Groups: Homeless Students TK-12        
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]         


  [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 


  X New Action         X Unchanged Action        
154 of 656







Page 99 of 174


 


         Title I: 
Set aside for materials and resources to 
support homeless students 
 
Boys and Girls Club enrollment for 
summer for elementary homeless students 
 
Change bus route to include direct pick up 
at shelter for homeless students 
 


 Title I: 
Set aside for materials and resources to 
support homeless students 
 
Boys and Girls Club enrollment for 
summer for elementary homeless students 
 
Change bus route to include direct pick up 
at shelter for homeless students 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Amount          11,219  11,219 
          11,219  11,219 Source          Title I  Title I 
          11,219  11,219 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
2,807 Elementary / 8,412 Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
2,807 Elementary / 8,412 Secondary 


 


155 of 656







Page 100 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 3 
We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within the SCCS student community         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #3        
 
Identified Need: 
The data is clear. Our Low Income (LI), English Language Learners (ELs), Foster Youth, Students With Disabilities (SWD), and 
Reclassified English Language Learners (RFEP) are the students in our system who continue to need the most support. English 
Language Learners, Low Income Students and Students with disabilities are the student groups for which performance levels were 
below the “all student” performance in both English Language Arts and Mathematics as measured by the CAASPP. 
 
2016 CAASPP Results Met or Exceeded Standards 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           64% 
ELs           40% 
LI               38% 
SWD         30% 
RFEP        50% 
 
5th Grade Math 


156 of 656







Page 101 of 174


ALL           48% 
ELs            28% 
LI               18% 
SWD         26% 
RFEP       14% 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            65% 
ELs            41% 
LI               46% 
SWD         24% 
RFEP        47% 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           51% 
ELs           35% 
LI               32% 
SWD         20% 
RFEP        30% 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          46% 
ELs          41% 
LI              39% 
SWD        22% 
RFEP       46% 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         44% 
ELs          6% 
LI            24% 
SWD        8% 
RFEP       26% 
 
The percent of elementary ELs making one year’s growth in English = 58%  in 2016-17 (AMAO #1). 
The percent of secondary ELs making one year’s growth in English = 60% in 2016-17 (AMAO #1). 
We will no longer be able to provide updated AMAOs because of the elimination of the CELDT Assessment. 
 


157 of 656







Page 102 of 174


In 2017, 17% of our Ever ELs were identified as ALTEL (At risk of becoming a long term English Learner or a Long Term English 
Learner (LTEL).  In 2018, this number was reduced to 13% of our Ever ELs. 
 
9th Grade Integrated Course 1 (Algebra 1) pass rate for 2015-16 is 76% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


SBAC/CAASPP met or 
exceeds standards in 
ELA and Math 
 
9th Grade Integrated 
Course 1 Pass Rate 
 
Percent of Ever ELs 
who have been in our 
schools for more than 6 
years who are still ELs 
        


 SBAC/CAASPP Met 
standards: 
 
The percentage of EL, 
LI, and SWD students 
who scored Met or 
Exceeds Standard in 
ELA and Math in 5th, 
8th and 11th grade are 
listed below: 
 
2016 CAASPP Results 
Met or Exceeded 
Standards 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           64% 
ELs           40% 
LI               38% 
SWD         30% 
RFEP        50% 
 
5th Grade Math 
ALL           48% 
ELs            28% 
LI               18% 


 The percentage of 
students in targeted sub 
groups scoring met or 
exceeds standards on 
the SBAC/CAASPP will 
increase by 5% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try will increase by 3% 
from 79% to 81%. 
 
We will reduce the 
percent of Ever ELs who 
have been in our 
schools for more than 6 
years who are still ELs 
by 5%. 
 
SBAC/CAASPP Met 
standards: 
 
The percentage of EL, 
LI, SWD, & RFEP 
students who scored 


 The percentage of 
students in targeted sub 
groups scoring met or 
exceeds standards on 
the SBAC/CAASPP will 
increase by 3% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try will increase by 3% 
from 81% to 84%. 
 
We will reduce the 
percent of Ever ELs who 
have been in our 
schools for more than 6 
years who are still ELs 
by 3%. 
 
 


 The percentage of 
students in targeted sub 
groups scoring met or 
exceeds standards on 
the SBAC/CAASPP will 
increase by 3% 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try will increase by 3% 
from 84% to 87%. 
 
We will reduce the 
percent of Ever ELs who 
have been in our 
schools for more than 6 
years who are still ELs 
by 3%. 
 
 


158 of 656







Page 103 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


SWD         26% 
RFEP       14% 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            65% 
ELs            41% 
LI               46% 
SWD         24% 
RFEP        47% 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           51% 
ELs           35% 
LI               32% 
SWD         20% 
RFEP        30% 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          46% 
ELs          41% 
LI              39% 
SWD        22% 
RFEP       46% 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         44% 
ELs          6% 
LI            24% 
SWD        8% 
RFEP       26% 
 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try will increase by 3% 
from 76% to 79%. 


Met or Exceeds 
Standard in ELA and 
Math in 5th, 8th and 
11th grade are listed 
below: 
 
2017 CAASPP Results 
Met or Exceeded 
Standards 
 
 
5th Grade ELA 
ALL           60% 
ELs           11%  - Goal 
Not Met 
LI               38% - Goal 
Not Met 
SWD         29%  - Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP        57%- Goal 
Met 
 
5th Grade Math 
ALL           48% 
ELs           3%   - Goal 
Not Met 
LI               23% - Goal 
Met 
SWD         31% - Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP        46% - Goal 
Met 
 
8th Grade ELA 
ALL            55% 
ELs            8% - Goal 
Not Met 


159 of 656







Page 104 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


 
In 2017, 17% of our 
Ever ELs were identified 
as ALTEL or LTEL (At 
risk of becoming a long 
term English Learner or 
a Long Term English 
Learner (LTEL). 
 
 
 
 
 


LI               30%- Goal 
Not Met 
SWD         24%- Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP        32%- Goal 
Not Met 
 
8th Grade Math 
ALL           42% 
ELs           5% - Goal 
Not Met 
LI               20%- Goal 
Not Met 
SWD         16%- Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP        21%- Goal 
Not Met 
 
11th Grade ELA 
ALL          59% 
ELs          3% - Goal Not 
Met 
LI              41%- Goal 
Not Met 
SWD        17%- Goal 
Not Met 
RFEP       42% - Goal 
Not Met 
 
11th Grade Math 
ALL         34% 
ELs          2%- Goal Not 
Met 
LI            18%- Goal Not 
Met 
SWD        3%- Goal Not 
Met 


160 of 656







Page 105 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


RFEP       24% - Goal 
Not Met 
 
The rate of 9th-graders 
passing Algebra 1 with a 
C- or better on the first 
try increased by 11% 
from 76% to 87%. Goal 
Met & Exceeded 
 
In 2018, this percentage 
of Ever ELs identified as 
ALTEL or LTEL (At risk 
of becoming a long term 
English Learner or Long 
Term English Learner) 
was reduced to 13% of 
our Ever ELs. 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


161 of 656







Page 106 of 174


X English Learners         X LEA-wide          Specific Grade Spans: TK-5        
 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
The overall implementation of the actions 
and services to achieve the articulated 
goals include: 
 
*Elementary English Learner Instructional 
Coach 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - Walk to 
Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning Assistants 
for Walk to Read and EL Support 
* EL Task Force Implementation and 
Progress Monitoring of EL Master Plan 
 
Elementary Site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
        


 The overall implementation of the actions 
and services to achieve the articulated 
goals include: 
 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - Walk to 
Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning Assistants 
for Walk to Read and EL Support 
*EL Task Force Implementation and 
Progress Monitoring of EL Master Plan 
 
Elementary Site targeted support funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 The overall implementation of the actions 
and services to achieve the articulated 
goals include: 
 
*RTI Coordinators Elementary - Walk to 
Read 
*Instruction Techs and Learning Assistants 
for Walk to Read and EL Support 
*EL Task Force Implementation and 
Progress Monitoring of EL Master Plan 
 
Elementary Site targeted support funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 


162 of 656







Page 107 of 174


Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        339,012  343,427  350,296 
        339,012  343,427  350,296 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        339,012  343,427  350,296 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL   


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


Amount        108,183  110,515  112,721 
        108,183  110,515  112,721 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        108,183  110,515  112,721 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.00 FTE Walk to Read @ 
BV,DL,GA, WL 


Amount        55,777     
        55,777     Source        Supplemental     
        55,777     Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 


  
 


  
 


Amount        14,035     
        14,035     Source        Supplemental     
        14,035     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.6101 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 


  
 


  
 


Amount        35,726     
        35,726     Source        Title I     
        35,726     Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 


  
 


  
. 


163 of 656







Page 108 of 174


Amount        10,475     
        10,475     Source        Title I     
        10,475     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.3899 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource Coach - Elementary 


  
 


  
 


Amount        182,310  169,505  172,895 
        182,310  169,505  172,895 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        182,310  169,505  172,895 Budget 
Reference        


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
5.1250 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
5.1250 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


Amount        30,566  30,362  30,965 
        30,566  30,362  30,965 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        30,566  30,362  30,965 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
6.3375 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.1250 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.1250 FTE - Learning Assistants & 
Instr Techs Intervention @ all 
Elementary Sites 


Amount        95,884  121,237  121,237 
        95,884  121,237  121,237 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        95,884  121,237  121,237 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
All Elementary Sties - Site 
Discretionary  


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocations - 
Elementary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
All Elementary Sties - Site 
Discretionary  


Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


X Students with Disabilities         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: TK - 5        


 


OR 
 


164 of 656







Page 109 of 174


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Elementary Summer School Interventions         Discontinued Elementary Summer School 


Interventions for the 2018-19 school year. 
 Discontinued Elementary Summer School 


Interventions for the 2018-19 school year. 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        5,000     
        5,000     Source        Supplemental     
        5,000     Budget 
Reference        


1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - 
EWA 
Elementary Summer School 
Principal 


  
 


  
 


Amount        11,000     
        11,000     Source        Supplemental     
        11,000     Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Elementary Summer School 
Teachers 


  
 


  
 


165 of 656







Page 110 of 174


Amount        6,400     
        6,400     Source        Supplemental     
        6,400     Budget 
Reference        


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
Elementary Summer School - Instr 
Aides & Clerical Support 


  
 


  
 


Amount        6,600     
        6,600     Source        Supplemental     
        6,600     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
All Elementary Benefits for 
Certificated & Classified 


  
 


  
 


Amount        1,000     
        1,000     Source        Supplemental     
        1,000     Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Elementary Summer School 
Supplies 


  
 


  
 


Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: 6-12        


 


166 of 656







Page 111 of 174


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for Attendance 
Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual Determination for 
first generation college bound and 
traditionally underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and Field 
Trips) 
        


 Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for Attendance 
Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual Determination for 
first generation college bound and 
traditionally underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and Field 
Trips) 
 


 Secondary RtI Coordinators 
Soquel High Counseling for Attendance 
Intervention 
Bilingual Math Tutors 
Math Coaches 
Advance via Individual Determination for 
first generation college bound and 
traditionally underrepresented students 
(Stipends;,Sections, Tutors; and Field 
Trips) 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        421,720  432,873  441,531 
        421,720  432,873  441,531 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        421,720  432,873  441,531 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


Amount        121,500  138,307  141,073 
        121,500  138,307  141,073 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        121,500  138,307  141,073 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
5.00 FTE - RTI Coordinators BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS - 
Secondary 


167 of 656







Page 112 of 174


Amount        14,695   26,400   26,400 
        14,695   26,400   26,400 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        14,695   26,400   26,400 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.20 FTE - Math Coach - Secondary 


 1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA 
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


 1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA 
 Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


Amount        12,891  5,156  5,166 
        12,891  5,156  5,166 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        12,891  5,156  5,166 Budget 
Reference        


1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA 
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Counseling & Attendance - SQHS - 
Secondary 


Amount        60,354  72,141  72,141 
        60,354  72,141  72,141 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        60,354  72,141  72,141 Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Bilingual Math Tutors & Homework 
Club @ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, 
Costanoa - Secondary 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Bilingual Math Tutors & Homework 
Club @ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, 
Costanoa - Secondary 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Bilingual Math Tutors & Homework 
Club @ HRHS, SCHS, SQHS, 
Costanoa - Secondary 


Amount        16,974     
        16,974     Source        Supplemental     
        16,974     Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE - Math Coach - Ark, 
Counseling & Attndance - 
SQHS, & Bilingual Math Tutors & 
Homework Club @ HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS, Costanoa - Secondary 
 


  
 


  
 


168 of 656







Page 113 of 174


Amount        2,156  7,219  7,363 
        2,156  7,219  7,363 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        2,156  7,219  7,363 Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Avid - Stipends & EWA's 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.10 @ Costanoa for CTE Early 
Childhood 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.10 @ Costanoa for CTE Early 
Childhood 


Amount        383  2,675  2,809 
        383  2,675  2,809 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        383  2,675  2,809 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Avid - Stipends & EWA's 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.10 @ Costanoa for CTE Early 
Childhood 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
.10 @ Costanoa for CTE Early 
Childhood 


Amount        40,000  40,000  40,000 
        40,000  40,000  40,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        40,000  40,000  40,000 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
UCSC - AVID Tutors for BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


Amount        10,000  10,000  10,000 
        10,000  10,000  10,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        10,000  10,000  10,000 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
AVID Field Trips for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
AVID Field Trips for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
AVID Field Trips for BRMS, MHMS, 
HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
169 of 656







Page 114 of 174


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: Middle and High 


School        
 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Read 180 & Reading Intervention Sections 
Middle and High School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing and 
Materials 
Middle School After School Intervention 
Staffing 
Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
        


 Read 180 & Reading Intervention Sections 
Middle and High School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing and 
Materials 
Middle School After School Intervention 
Staffing 
Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 Read 180 & Reading Intervention Sections 
Middle and High School 
Math Plus Intervention Sections 
Credit Recovery Program Staffing and 
Materials 
Middle School After School Intervention 
Staffing 
Secondary site discretionary funds 
address various goals supporting targeted 
services and materials for unduplicated 
students as identified by individual sites 
and approved by both site councils and 
the Governing Board. 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 


170 of 656







Page 115 of 174


Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        122,058  261,257  266,482 
        122,058  261,257  266,482 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        122,058  261,257  266,482 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
3.50 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Academic Intervention 
@ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
3.50 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Academic Intervention 
@ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 


Amount        149,445  165,429  168,738 
        149,445  165,429  168,738 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        149,445  165,429  168,738 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID 
& Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
2.04 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's & 
AVID @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
2.04 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's & 
AVID @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 


Amount        54,660  55,203  56,307 
        54,660  55,203  56,307 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        54,660  55,203  56,307 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 


171 of 656







Page 116 of 174


Amount        93,820  138,188  140,954 
        93,820  138,188  140,954 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        93,820  138,188  140,954 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.533 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Math Plus @ BRMS, 
MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, SQHS 
2.11 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's, AVID 
& Music @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
3.50 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Academic Intervention 
@ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 
2.04 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's & 
AVID @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
3.50 FTE - Read 180 , Reading 
Intervention & Academic Intervention 
@ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, SCHS, 
SQHS 
2.04 FTE - Newcomers, ELD's & 
AVID @ BRMS, MHMS, HRHS, 
SCHS 
.60 FTE Cyber High & Credit 
Recovery 
 


Amount        15,170  15,170  15,170 
        15,170  15,170  15,170 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        15,170  15,170  15,170 Budget 
Reference        


4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS 
Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High 


 4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS 
Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High 


 4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS 
Credit Recovery Contract Cyber 
High 


Amount        288,622  261,563  261,563 
        288,622  261,563  261,563 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        288,622  261,563  261,563 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Discretionary @ Middle, High, 
Costanoa, Ark & AFE - Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocation @ 
Middle, High, Costanoa, Ark & AFE - 
Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocation  @ 
Middle, High, Costanoa, Ark & AFE - 
Secondary 


Amount        37,850  35,302  36,008 
        37,850  35,302  36,008 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        37,850  35,302  36,008 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 


172 of 656







Page 117 of 174


Amount        29,876  31,391  32,019 
        29,876  31,391  32,019 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        29,876  31,391  32,019 Budget 
Reference        


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
.9375 Total - Instructional Techs @ 
BRMS & MHMS 


 2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 
1.00 FTE Total = Instructional Techs 
@ .50 BRMS & 
.50 MHMS 
 


 2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 
1.00 FTE Total = Instructional Techs 
@ .50 BRMS & 
.50 MHMS 
 


Amount        20,445  30,517  31,127 
        20,445  30,517  31,127 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        20,445  30,517  31,127 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS.9375 
Total - Instructional Techs @ BRMS 
& MHMS 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 
1.00 FTE Total = Instructional Techs 
@ .50 BRMS & 
.50 MHMS 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE Total = .45 FTE each - After 
School Coordinator @ BRMS & 
MHMS 
1.00 FTE Total = Instructional Techs 
@ .50 BRMS & 
.50 MHMS 
 


Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 Specific Student Groups: Struggling Learners        
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]         


  [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)          Specific Grade Spans: 6-12        


 


173 of 656







Page 118 of 174


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Middle and High School Summer School 
Interventions 
Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
        


 Middle and High School Summer School 
Interventions 
Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
 


 Middle and High School Summer School 
Interventions 
Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher 
Newcomer Sections and Supports 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        30,000  14,850  14,850 
        30,000  14,850  14,850 Source        Supplemental  Title I  Title I 
        30,000  14,850  14,850 Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Summer School Teachers for Middle 
& High Schools 


 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


Amount        13,000  5,600  5,600 
        13,000  5,600  5,600 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        13,000  5,600  5,600 Budget 
Reference        


1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - 
EWA 
Summer School Principals for Middle 
& High Schools 


 1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - 
EWA 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - 
EWA 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


174 of 656







Page 119 of 174


Amount        16,500  10,337  10,337 
        16,500  10,337  10,337 Source        Supplemental  Title I  Title I 
        16,500  10,337  10,337 Budget 
Reference        


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
Summer School for Middle & High 
Schools - LA,  Instr Techs, Clerical 
Support & Custodial Services EWA's 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


Amount        11,775  6,535  6,535 
        11,775  6,535  6,535 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        11,775  6,535  6,535 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Summer School Benefits for all 
Certificated & Classified for Middle & 
High Schools 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


Amount        4,500  2,678  2,678 
        4,500  2,678  2,678 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        4,500  2,678  2,678 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Summer School Supplies for Middle 
& High Schools 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Summer School - Credit Recovery  


Amount        4,225  96,963  96,963 
        4,225  96,963  96,963 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        4,225  96,963  96,963 Budget 
Reference        


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 
Summer School Teachers for Middle 
& High Schools 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocation @ 
BVEL, DLEL, GAEL & Monarch 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocation @ 
BVEL, DLEL, GAEL & Monarch 


Amount        87,339   79,576   81,168 
        87,339   79,576   81,168 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        87,339   79,576   81,168 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 


 2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 
 2.556 Total FTE - Learning 
Assistants & IT Intervention .8687 
BVEL, .5625 DLEL, .75 GAEL, .3750 
Monarch 


 2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 
 2.556 Total FTE - Learning 
Assistants & IT Intervention .8687 
BVEL, .5625 DLEL, .75 GAEL, .3750 
Monarch 


175 of 656







Page 120 of 174


Amount        22,304   7,519   7,669 
        22,304   7,519   7,669 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        22,304   7,519   7,669 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - English Learner Instr 
Resource - Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 2.556 Total FTE - Learning 
Assistants & IT Intervention .8687 
BVEL, .5625 DLEL, .75 GAEL, .3750 
Monarch 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 2.556 Total FTE - Learning 
Assistants & IT Intervention .8687 
BVEL, .5625 DLEL, .75 GAEL, .3750 
Monarch 


Amount        26,235  42,658  43,511 
        26,235  42,658  43,511 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        26,235  42,658  43,511 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


Amount        5,456  11,493  11,723 
        5,456  11,493  11,723 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        5,456  11,493  11,723 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - Newcomer @ BRMS 


Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners         X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)          Specific Schools: Gault, Branciforte Middle 
School, Harbor High School        


 


Actions/Services 


176 of 656







Page 121 of 174


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Newcomer Program Classes and Supports         Newcomer Program Classes and Supports  Newcomer Program Classes and Supports 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        9,300  9,628  9,821 
        9,300  9,628  9,821 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        9,300  9,628  9,821 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


Amount        886  910  928 
        886  910  928 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        886  910  928 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4375 FTE - Learning Assistant for 
Newcomer @ BRMS 


Amount        62,211  71,789  73,225 
        62,211  71,789  73,225 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        62,211  71,789  73,225 Budget 
Reference        


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, 
Sea Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, ELD, 
Marine Science, Math ELD) @ 
HRHS 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, ELD, 
Marine Science, Math ELD) @ 
HRHS 


177 of 656







Page 122 of 174


Amount        19,852  23,557  24,028 
        19,852  23,557  24,028 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        19,852  23,557  24,028 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, Tutorial, 
Sea Science, Math ELD) @ HRHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, ELD, 
Marine Science, Math ELD) @ 
HRHS 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE - (Newcomer ELD, ELD, 
Marine Science, Math ELD) @ 
HRHS 


Amount        35,681  46,893  47,831 
        35,681  46,893  47,831 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        35,681  46,893  47,831 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 
FTE) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


Amount        9,305  21,357  21,784 
        9,305  21,357  21,784 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        9,305  21,357  21,784 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.44 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from 4201 & 4203 to = 1.00 
FTE) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


Amount        40,894  46,893  47,831 
        40,894  46,893  47,831 Source        Title III  Title III  Title III 
        40,894  46,893  47,831 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer 
@ Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 
3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


178 of 656







Page 123 of 174


Amount        10,703  21,357  21,784 
        10,703  21,357  21,784 Source        Title III  Title III  Title III 
        10,703  21,357  21,784 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Rs 4203 LEP - .51 FTE - Newcomer 
@ Gault (Also funded from 4201 & 
3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.50 FTE - Newcomer @ Gault (Also 
funded from .50 4203 to = 1.00 FTE) 


Amount        4,009  39,500  39,500 
        4,009  39,500  39,500 Source        Title III  Title I  Title I 
        4,009  39,500  39,500 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4203 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Rosetta Stone (11,500 & Avid 
Contract 28,000) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Rosetta Stone (11,500 & Avid 
Contract 28,000) 


Amount        1,050  219,002  219,002 
        1,050  219,002  219,002 Source        Title III  Title I  Title I 
        1,050  219,002  219,002 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Rs 4201 IMM - .0500 FTE - 
Newcomer @ Gault (Also funded 
from 4203 & 3010 to = 1.00 FTE) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocations (2 
MS, 3HS & Costanoa & Ark) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Site Targeted Support Allocations (2 
MS, 3HS & Costanoa & Ark) 


Action 7 
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         


 


OR 
 


X English Learners         X Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)          Specific Schools: Harbor High School        
 


Actions/Services 
X New Action         X New Action         X Unchanged Action        


 


         New Newcomer Classes and Supports  Newcomer Classes and Supports 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 


179 of 656







Page 124 of 174


Amount          68,942  70,321 
          68,942  70,321 Source          Title I  Title I 
          68,942  70,321 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.90 FTE @ HRHS (English 1 
Shadow, ELD 1, World History SD & 
AVID 1 & 2 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.90 FTE @ HRHS (English 1 
Shadow, ELD 1, World History SD & 
AVID 1 & 2 


Amount          22,086  22,528 
          22,086  22,528 Source          Title I  Title I 
          22,086  22,528 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE @ HRHS (English 1 
Shadow, ELD 1, World History SD & 
AVID 1 & 2 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.90 FTE @ HRHS (English 1 
Shadow, ELD 1, World History SD & 
AVID 1 & 2 


 


180 of 656







Page 125 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 4 
We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective teaching.         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        


X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   Goal #4        
 
Identified Need: 
At a Multi-Tiered Systems of Support retreat with 76 teachers, counselors, coaches, and administrators in February 2018, district staff 
used data to identify four areas for strategic focus to support closing the achievement gap that exists in our school district.  The four 
areas identified for focus are:  Literacy, Mathematics, English Learner Progress and School Connectedness.  This same group of 
educators worked to identify actions and training needed to support the success of all students.  It was determined that TK-12 we need 
focused professional learning on Integrated English Language Development.  Coaching is also needed to support the continued 
implementation and scaffolding of the Common Core State Standards and Next Generation Science Standards to ensure the success 
of all students. 
 
Our professional development feedback from staff on the working conditions survey did not improve with our coaching structure from 
2016-17 to 2017-18. We also did not see academic growth on the CAASPP as a result of coaching.  Given the results and feedback, 
we visited two districts that have seen better CAASPP results for English Learners, Low Income and Foster Youth.  We have 
restructured our instructional coaching model based on our learning from these visits. 
 
 
 


181 of 656







Page 126 of 174


Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Teacher Working 
Conditions Survey 
 
MAP Assessments 
(These new 
assessments will be 
baseline in 2017-18) 
 
Develop a Coaching 
Survey (baseline data 
January 2018) 
 
 
 
        


 56% of teachers 
reported that they had 
sufficient training to fully 
utilize instructional 
technology. 
 
71% of teachers report 
that professional 
development deepens 
their content knowledge 
 
86.2% of teachers report 
that professional 
development enhances 
teachers' ability to 
implement instructional 
strategies that meet 
diverse student learning 
needs. 
 
63.5% of teachers report 
that professional 
development is 
differentiated to meet 
the individual needs of 
teachers. 
 
86.9% of teachers report 
that provided supports 
(i.e. instructional 
coaching, professional 
learning communities, 
etc.) translate to 
improvements in 
instructional practices by 
teachers. 


 Measures from working 
conditions survey will 
increase by the following 
percentages: 
 
+ 5% technology - Goal 
Not Met 
49% of teachers 
reported that they had 
sufficient training to fully 
utilize instructional 
technology. 
 
+ 3% - Goal Not Met 
76% of teachers report 
that PD enhances 
teachers ability to 
implement instructional 
strategies that meet 
diverse student learning 
needs. 
 
+5% - Goal Not Met 
54% of teachers report 
that PD differentiated to 
meet individual teacher 
needs 
 
+3% - Goal Not Met 
82% of teachers report 
that provided supports 
translate to 
improvements 
instructional practices by 
teachers 
 


 Measures from working 
conditions survey will 
increase by the following 
percentages: 
 
+ 5% technology 
 
+ 3% PD enhances 
teachers ability to 
implement instructional 
strategies that meet 
diverse student learning 
needs. 
 
+5% PD differentiated to 
meet individual teacher 
needs 
 
+3% Provided supports 
translate to 
improvements 
instructional practices by 
teachers 
 
MAP Targets TBD in fall 
2017 
 
Coaching Survey targets 
determined in spring 
2018 
 


 Measures from working 
conditions survey will 
increase by the following 
percentages: 
 
+ 5% technology 
 
+ 3% PD enhances 
teachers ability to 
implement instructional 
strategies that meet 
diverse student learning 
needs. 
 
+3% PD differentiated to 
meet individual teacher 
needs 
 
+3% Provided supports 
translate to 
improvements 
instructional practices by 
teachers 
 
MAP Targets TBD in fall 
2017 
 
Coaching Survey targets 
determined in spring 
2018 
 


182 of 656







Page 127 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


 
MAP Assessment data 
will be available in the 
fall of 2017. 
 
Coaching Survey data 
will be available in Jan. 
2018. 
 
 
 
 


MAP Targets TBD in fall 
2017 
 
Coaching Survey targets 
determined in spring 
2018 
 
 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


183 of 656







Page 128 of 174


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide coaching to teachers: 
*Educational Techology Coach 
*Math Coaches 
*Next Generation of Science Standards 
(NGSS) Coach 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Coach 
* English Learner Instructional Resource 
Teachers to coach teachers on 
implementing CA ELD standards and 
scaffolding instruction in core content 
areas. (See Goal #3) 
 
Continue to support and refine roles of 
Santa Cruz Instructional leaders (SCIL) 
(Teacher leaders who support site 
Professional Development) (Title II & Title 
I) 
 
Continue to support our Teacher Leader 
PLC and work to support future school 
leaders through on-going trainings 
 
Determine metrics for evaluating impact of 
instructional coaches and develop a 
coaching effectiveness survey to collect 
baseline data in coaching impact. 
 
 
        


 Elementary - LCFF Supplemental and Title 
I: 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Instructional Coaches 
 
Elementary Title I: 
*Site Allocations to Title I eligible schools 
to support professional learning goals in 
single plans for student achievement 
*Silicon Valley Math Initiative Membership 
to support continued professional 
development on the Common Core 
Mathematics standards and assessments 
 
Secondary LCFF Supplemental: 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Instructional Coaches Middle School 
*Next Generation Science Standards 
Instructional Coach 
*.2 of Co-Director of Curriculum, 
Intervention and Assessment to support 
secondary professional learning 
 
Secondary Title I: 
* Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher to support Middle 
School and Costanoa HS teachers with 
Integrated ELD 
*Silicon Valley Math Initiative Membership 
to support continued professional 
development on the Common Core 
Mathematics standards and assessments 


 Elementary - LCFF Supplemental and Title 
I: 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Instructional Coaches 
 
Elementary Title I: 
*Site Allocations to Title I eligible schools 
to support professional learning goals in 
single plans for student achievement 
*Silicon Valley Math Initiative Membership 
to support continued professional 
development on the Common Core 
Mathematics standards and assessments 
 
Secondary LCFF Supplemental: 
*Common Core State Standards (CCSS) 
Instructional Coaches Middle School 
*Next Generation Science Standards 
Instructional Coach 
*.2 of Co-Director of Curriculum, 
Intervention and Assessment to support 
secondary professional learning 
 
Secondary Title I: 
* Secondary English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teacher to support Middle 
School and Costanoa HS teachers with 
Integrated ELD 
*Silicon Valley Math Initiative Membership 
to support continued professional 
development on the Common Core 
Mathematics standards and assessments 


184 of 656







Page 129 of 174


*Site Allocations to Title I eligible schools 
to support professional learning goals in 
single plans for student achievement 
 
Continue to support our Teacher Leader 
PLC and work to support future school 
leaders through on-going trainings 
 
Utilize metrics for evaluating impact of 
instructional coaches and refine our 
coaching effectiveness survey to collect 
data on coaching impact. 
 
 


*Site Allocations to support professional 
learning goals in single plans for student 
achievement 
 
Continue to support our Teacher Leader 
PLC and work to support future school 
leaders through on-going trainings 
 
Utilize metrics for evaluating impact of 
instructional coaches and refine our 
coaching effectiveness survey to collect 
data on coaching impact. 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        94,643  137,828  140,585 
        94,643  137,828  140,585 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        94,643  137,828  140,585 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & 
.50 S) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.70 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also .30 FTE paid from 
Title I) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.70 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also .30 FTE paid from 
Title I) 


Amount        23,576  39,537  40,327 
        23,576  39,537  40,327 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        23,576  39,537  40,327 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - Ed Tech Coach (.50 E & 
.50 S) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.70 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also .30 FTE paid from 
Title I) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.70 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also .30 FTE paid from 
Title I) 


185 of 656







Page 130 of 174


Amount        142,044  24,322  24,808 
        142,044  24,322  24,808 Source        Supplemental  Title I  Title I 
        142,044  24,322  24,808 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 
1.00 S) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.30 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also 1.70 FTE paid from 
LCFF Supplemental) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.30 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also 1.70 FTE paid from 
LCFF Supplemental) 


Amount        48,220  8,626  8,799 
        48,220  8,626  8,799 Source        Supplemental  Title I  Title I 
        48,220  8,626  8,799 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.00 FTE - Math Coaches (1.00 E & 
1.00 S) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.30 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also 1.70 FTE paid from 
LCFF Supplemental) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.30 FTE - CCSS Instr Coaches - 
Elementary (Also 1.70 FTE paid from 
LCFF Supplemental) 


Amount        86,805  90,960  92,779 
        86,805  90,960  92,779 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        86,805  90,960  92,779 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


Amount        21,749  24,258  24,743 
        21,749  24,258  24,743 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        21,749  24,258  24,743 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 FTE - NGSS Science Coach 


Amount        34,797  35,725  36,440 
        34,797  35,725  36,440 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        34,797  35,725  36,440 Budget 
Reference        


1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


186 of 656







Page 131 of 174


Amount        9,605  8,766  8,941 
        9,605  8,766  8,941 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        9,605  8,766  8,941 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.40 FTE - CCSS Coaches (.20 
BRMS & .20 MHMS) 


Amount        21,000  100,980  100,980 
        21,000  100,980  100,980 Source        Title I  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        21,000  100,980  100,980 Budget 
Reference        


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 
SCIL Stipends - Secondary 


 1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 
SCIL Stipends  (42,840 E  - 58,140 
S) 


 1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 
SCIL Stipends  (42,840 E - 58,140 
S) 


Amount        3,728  19,720  19,720 
        3,728  19,720  19,720 Source        Title I  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        3,728  19,720  19,720 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
SCIL Stipends - Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
SCIL Stipends  (8,366 E - 11,354 S) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
SCIL Stipends  (8,366 E - 11,354 S) 


Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


187 of 656







Page 132 of 174


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide Professional Development for 
Integrated ELD 
Provide support for new teachers to clear 
their credential and for interns to earn their 
preliminary credential (Title 2) 
Continue to support and refine roles of 
Santa Cruz Instructional leaders (SCIL) 
(Teacher leaders who support site 
Professional Development) (Title II & Title 
I) 
        


 Provide Release time and hourly pay for 
professional development for Integrated 
ELD (Title III) 
 
Provide support for new teachers to clear 
their credential and for interns to earn their 
preliminary credential (Title 2) 
 
Continue to support and refine roles of 
Santa Cruz Instructional leaders (SCIL) 
The Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership 
Team (SCIL) districtwide will continue to 
support professional learning community 
work at all school sites. PD for SCIL will 
focus on Integrated ELD instructional 
strategies. We are working on building our 
SCIL teams capacity to lead and guide 
their colleagues in regards to supporting 
ELs. We are going to use MAP and 
CAASPP data (Goal 3 data) to determine 
the effectiveness of this PD focus. 
(Teacher leaders who support site 
Professional Development) (Title II) 
 
The Teacher Leader PLC will continue to 
support future school leaders through on-
going trainings. The focus of these groups 
is on equity and ensuring as instructional 
leaders, we are focused on closing the 
achievement gap. 
 
 
 


 Provide Release time and hourly pay for 
professional development for Integrated 
ELD (Title III) 
 
Provide support for new teachers to clear 
their credential and for interns to earn their 
preliminary credential (Title 2) 
 
Continue to support and refine roles of 
Santa Cruz Instructional leaders (SCIL) 
The Santa Cruz Instructional Leadership 
Team (SCIL) districtwide will continue to 
support professional learning community 
work at all school sites. PD for SCIL will 
focus on Integrated ELD instructional 
strategies. We are working on building our 
SCIL teams capacity to lead and guide 
their colleagues in regards to supporting 
ELs. We are going to use MAP and 
CAASPP data (Goal 3 data) to determine 
the effectiveness of this PD focus. 
(Teacher leaders who support site 
Professional Development) (Title II) 
 
The Teacher Leader PLC will continue to 
support future school leaders through on-
going trainings. The focus of these groups 
is on equity and ensuring as instructional 
leaders, we are focused on closing the 
achievement gap. 
 


 
188 of 656







Page 133 of 174


Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        12,740  27,960  27,960 
        12,740  27,960  27,960 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        12,740  27,960  27,960 Budget 
Reference        


1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
PD - Site Allocations (Bayview, 
Delaveaga, Gault & Monarch) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
PD - Site Allocations (Bayview, 
Delaveaga, Gault & Monarch) 


Amount        2,262  84,583  84,583 
        2,262  84,583  84,583 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        2,262  84,583  84,583 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Subs for Integrated ELD - Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
PD - Site Allocations (Branciforte 
MS, Harbor HS & Coastanoa) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
PD - Site Allocations (Branciforte 
MS, Harbor HS & Coastanoa) 


Amount        133,742  146,898  146,898 
        133,742  146,898  146,898 Source        Title II  Title II  Title II 
        133,742  146,898  146,898 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(28,502 E 105,240 S) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(39,465 E 107,433 S) 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
SC/SVNTP Induction Program 
(39,465 E 107,433 S) 


Amount        69,022  43,589  44,461 
        69,022  43,589  44,461 Source        Title II  Title I  Title I 
        69,022  43,589  44,461 Budget 
Reference        


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 
SCIL Stipends (42,307 E & 26,715 
S) 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE @ BRMS (.40 Math .20 Ed 
Tech) 


 1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 
.60 FTE @ BRMS (.40 Math .20 Ed 
Tech) 


Amount        10,976  10,967  11,186 
        10,976  10,967  11,186 Source        Title II  Title I  Title I 
        10,976  10,967  11,186 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
SCIL Stipends (6,728 E & 4,248 S) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.60 FTE @ BRMS (.40 Math .20 Ed 
Tech) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.60 FTE @ BRMS (.40 Math .20 Ed 
Tech) 


189 of 656







Page 134 of 174


Amount          89,111  90,893 
          89,111  90,893 Source          Title I  Title I 
          89,111  90,893 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 English Learner Instructional 
Resource 


 1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-
REGULAR 
1.00 English Learner Instructional 
Resource 


Amount          24,488  24,978 
          24,488  24,978 Source          Title I  Title I 
          24,488  24,978 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 English Learner Instructional 
Resource 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1.00 English Learner Instructional 
Resource 


Amount          25,160  25,663 
          25,160  25,663 Source          Title I  Title I 
          25,160  25,663 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-
ADMIN 
Co-Director of Secondary 
Curriculum, Intervention and 
Assessment 


 1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-
ADMIN 
Co-Director of Secondary 
Curriculum, Intervention and 
Assessment 


Amount          7,465  7,614 
          7,465  7,614 Source          Title I  Title I 
          7,465  7,614 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Co-Director of Secondary 
Curriculum, Intervention and 
Assessment 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Co-Director of Secondary 
Curriculum, Intervention and 
Assessment 


Amount          6,000  6,000 
          6,000  6,000 Source          Title I  Title I 
          6,000  6,000 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
SVMI Math (3,000 E & 3,000 S) 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
SVMI Math (3,000 E & 3,000 S) 


 


190 of 656







Page 135 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 5 
SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        


X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        


Local Priorities:   District Goal #5        
 
Identified Need: 
As a District , we need support personnel in the central office to ensure our budgets are effectively managed. Further,  we need to 
focus on building and implementing efficient plans utilizing our supplemental and categorical resources.  (The LCAP, Single Site Plans 
for Student Achievement; Curriculum and Instruction Plan; and The English Language Learners  Master Plan).  And, we need to 
develop clear measures to monitor the impact of our key LCAP initiatives. 
Further, we need to have well maintained, well managed buildings.  Currently 5 of 11  buildings scored "good" on the FIT report for the 
16-17 school year. 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


All district plans and 
budgets will be aligned 


 District plans are aligned 
with district goals.  The 


 100% of district and 
school sites plans will be 


 100% of district and 
school sites plans will be 


 100% of district and 
school sites plans will be 


191 of 656







Page 136 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


with the six district 
goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be 
developed to monitor 
impact of key LCAP 
initiatives - RtI & 
Instructional Coaching 
 
FIT Report 
 
        


alignment could be more 
explicit. 
 
There are no currently 
no data dashboards for 
RtI or Instructional 
Coaching 
 
The FIT report 5 of 11 
buildings scored "good" 
for the 16-17 school 
year. 
 
 


aligned with district 
goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be 
in place 
 
11 of 11 "Good" Schools 
as determined by the 
FIT report, 
 


aligned with district 
goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be 
in place 
 
11 of 11 "Good" Schools 
as determined by the 
FIT report, 
 


aligned with district 
goals. 
 
Data dashboards will be 
in place 
 
11 of 11 "Good" Schools 
as determined by the 
FIT report, 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


X All         X All Schools        
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


192 of 656







Page 137 of 174


X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
*Site Program Coordinator Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
* Support sites and departments with 
plans and budget development to ensure 
alignment with district goals 
 
* Develop data dashboards to monitor 
impact of key LCAP initiatives -  RtI and 
Instructional Coaching 
 
* Provide sites and departments support 
with  budget monitoring 
 
* Implement the Facilities Master Plan to 
improve school facilities 
 
 
        


 *Site Program Coordinator Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
* Support sites and departments with 
plans and budget development to ensure 
alignment with district goals 
 
* Continue to refine metrics to monitor 
impact of key LCAP initiatives -  RtI and 
Instructional Coaching 
 
* Provide sites and departments support 
with  budget monitoring 
 
* Implement the Facilities Master Plan to 
improve school facilities 
 
*Work with site administrators to align their 
SPSA to the four strategic focus areas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 *Site Program Coordinator Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
*Administrative Secretary Helps Monitor 
Supplemental Budgets and Expenditures 
 
* Support sites and departments with 
plans and budget development to ensure 
alignment with district goals 
 
* Continue to refine metrics to monitor 
impact of key LCAP initiatives -  RtI and 
Instructional Coaching 
 
* Provide sites and departments support 
with  budget monitoring 
 
* Implement the Facilities Master Plan to 
improve school facilities 
 
*Work with site administrators to align their 
SPSA to the four strategic focus areas. 
 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 


193 of 656







Page 138 of 174


Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        15,448  9,156  9,339 
        15,448  9,156  9,339 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        15,448  9,156  9,339 Budget 
Reference        


2400 CLASS CLERICAL 
SALARIES-REG 
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary) 


 2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG 
.20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary 


 2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG 
.20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary 


Amount        8,563  5,204  5,308 
        8,563  5,204  5,308 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        8,563  5,204  5,308 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.4100 FTE - (.21 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.20 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Elementary 


Amount        39,391  36,622  37,354 
        39,391  36,622  37,354 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        39,391  36,622  37,354 Budget 
Reference        


2400 CLASS CLERICAL 
SALARIES-REG 
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary) 


 2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary 


 2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-
REG 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary 


Amount        21,698  20,412  21,433 
        21,698  20,412  21,433 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        21,698  20,412  21,433 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.94 FTE - (.14 FTE Site Program 
Coord & .80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
.80 FTE Admin Secretary - 
Secondary 


194 of 656







Page 139 of 174


Amount          83,621  83,621 
          83,621  83,621 Source          Title I  Title I 
          83,621  83,621 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 7350 TFR INDIRECT 
COSTS/INTERFUND  I 
6.59% Indirects (20,787 E & 62,834 
S) 


 7350 TFR INDIRECT 
COSTS/INTERFUND  I 
6.59% Indirects (20,787 E & 62,834 
S) 


Amount          25,408  25,408 
          25,408  25,408 Source          Title I  Title I 
          25,408  25,408 Budget 
Reference        


 
 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
2.5% Holding for entitlement 
changes - Secondary 


 4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
2.5% Holding for entitlement 
changes - Secondary 


Action 2 
 


OR 
 
 


Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Budget 
Reference        


 
 


  
. 


  
 


Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


 


Actions/Services 


195 of 656







Page 140 of 174


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount               
Budget 
Reference        


 
 


  
  


  
 


Action 4 
 


OR 
 
 


Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Amount               


 


196 of 656







Page 141 of 174


Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 


 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 


Goal 6 
SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community.         


 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        


X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        
Local Priorities:   District Goals #6        


 
Identified Need: 
In SCCS, parents and our broader community are essential partners in ensuring that we are able to provide an excellent education for 
all students.   
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Increase participation in 
annual parent survey. 
 
Parent participation in 
District committees 
(parent survey) 
 
Parent participation in 
site committees (parent 
survey) 
 


 889 parents participated 
in the parent survey 
 
13% of parents 
responding to district 
survey report that they 
have participated in 
district committees 
 
42% of parents 
responding to district 


 We will increase parent 
participation in the 
survey by 3%. 
 
Goal met: 1036 parents 
participated in the 
parent survey in Fall 
2017.  This represents a 
16.5% increase over 
Fall 2016. 
 


 We will increase parent 
participation in the 
survey by 3%. 
 
We will increase parent 
positive responses to 
survey questions by 5% 
 
We will continue to 
produce and send the 


 We will increase parent 
participation in the 
survey by 3%. 
 
We will increase parent 
positive responses to 
survey questions by 5% 
 
We will continue to 
produce and send the 


197 of 656







Page 142 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Parent participation in 
Parent Education 
offerings (parent survey) 
 
Parents reporting that 
when they contact the 
school they receive 
courteous attention  
(parent survey) 
 
Parents reporting that 
they receive sufficient 
information regarding 
their child’s program, 
progress and needs 
(parent survey) 
 
?? Two questions for 
this year's survey -- 
(baseline data will be 
available in fall 2017) 
 
Provide an annual State 
of our Schools mailer for 
the broader SCCS 
community. 
 
        


survey report that they 
participate in site  
committees 
 
41% of parents 
responding to district 
survey report that they 
have participated in 
parent education 
offerings 
 
89% of parents 
responding to district 
survey report that when 
they contact the school 
they "always or 
regularly" receive 
courteous attention 
 
76% of parents 
responding to the district 
survey report that they 
"always or regularly" 
receive sufficient 
information regarding 
their child's program, 
process and needs 
 
For the past two years, 
each October the State 
of our Schools Mailer 
has been produced 
 
 
 
 
 


 
We will increase parent 
positive responses to 
survey questions by 5%: 
 
Goal not met: 13% of 
parents responding to 
district survey report that 
they have participated in 
district committees 
(same as last year) 
 
Goal not met: 42% of 
parents responding to 
district survey report that 
they participate in site  
committees (same as 
last year) 
 
Goal not met: 41% of 
parents responding to 
district survey report that 
they have participated in 
parent education 
offerings (same as last 
year) 
 
Goal not met: 87% of 
parents responding to 
district survey report that 
when they contact the 
school they "always or 
regularly" receive 
courteous attention 
(decrease of 2% from 
last year) 
 


State of our Schools 
mailing. 
 
 
 


State of our Schools 
mailing. 
 
 
 


198 of 656







Page 143 of 174


Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


Goal not met: 74% of 
parents responding to 
the district survey report 
that they "always or 
regularly" receive 
sufficient information 
regarding their child's 
program, process and 
needs (decrease of 2% 
from last year) 
 
 
 
We will continue to 
produce and send the 
State of our Schools 
mailing. 
 
Goal met: For the past 
three years, each 
October the State of our 
Schools Mailer has been 
produced 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 


startcollapse 
199 of 656







Page 144 of 174


Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 


 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 


OR 
 


For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         


Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 


 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 


 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 


X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        


 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        


 


Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 


Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 


X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 


2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
*District Advisory Committee Meetings 
 
*School Community Coordinators support 
access to school for monolingual Spanish 
speaking families.  They also provide 
outreach and support to all families. 
 
* Parents and community members 
participate in school and district level 
committees (School Site Councils, ELAC, 
DELAC, District Advisory Council; Parent 
Teacher Organizations, Home and School 
Clubs, /Wellness Committee, Green 


 *District Advisory Committee Meetings 
 
*School Community Coordinators support 
access to school for monolingual Spanish 
speaking families.  They also provide 
outreach and support to all families. 
 
* Parents and community members 
participate in school and district level 
committees (School Site Councils, ELAC, 
DELAC, District Advisory Council; Parent 
Teacher Organizations, Home and School 
Clubs, /Wellness Committee, Green 


 *District Advisory Committee Meetings 
 
*School Community Coordinators support 
access to school for monolingual Spanish 
speaking families.  They also provide 
outreach and support to all families. 
 
* Parents and community members 
participate in school and district level 
committees (School Site Councils, ELAC, 
DELAC, District Advisory Council; Parent 
Teacher Organizations, Home and School 
Clubs, /Wellness Committee, Green 


200 of 656







Page 145 of 174


Schools, Tech Task Force and more) 
throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys are 
conducted annually to solicit community 
input on LCAP, budget and program 
priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities are 
provided at both the site and district level -
- One example is the annual Latino Role 
Models Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring event, 
conducted all in Spanish, provides parent 
education on college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and more. 
 
        


Schools, Tech Task Force and more) 
throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys are 
conducted annually to solicit community 
input on LCAP, budget and program 
priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities are 
provided at both the site and district level -
- One example is the annual Latino Role 
Models Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring event, 
conducted all in Spanish, provides parent 
education on college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and more. 
 
*Homeless students receive supplies and 
supports (e.g., bus pass, backpack, etc.) 
(Title 1). 
 


Schools, Tech Task Force and more) 
throughout the year. 
 
* Parent, staff and student surveys are 
conducted annually to solicit community 
input on LCAP, budget and program 
priorities. 
 
* Parent education opportunities are 
provided at both the site and district level -
- One example is the annual Latino Role 
Models Conference sponsored in concert 
with Senderos.  This inspiring event, 
conducted all in Spanish, provides parent 
education on college admissions, A-G 
completion, financial aide, and more. 
 
*Homeless students receive supplies and 
supports (e.g., bus pass, backpack, etc.) 
 


 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        103,111  99,055  101,036 
        103,111  99,055  101,036 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        103,111  99,055  101,036 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


201 of 656







Page 146 of 174


Amount        76,661  93,703  95,577 
        76,661  93,703  95,577 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        76,661  93,703  95,577 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
2.7125 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.75 FTE @ BV, DL, 
GA & .4625 Monarch) 


Amount        107,621  172,746  176,201 
        107,621  172,746  176,201 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        107,621  172,746  176,201 Budget 
Reference        


2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 
1.00 @ HRHS & Small Schools) 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
4.40 FTE Total - School Community 
Coordinators (.60 @ MHMS, .40 @ 
SCHS & SQHS - 1.00 @ BRMS, 
HRHS & Small Schools) 


 2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT 
SALARIES 
4.40 FTE Total - School Community 
Coordinators (.60 @ MHMS, .40 @ 
SCHS & SQHS - 1.00 @ BRMS, 
HRHS & Small Schools) 


Amount        84,256  151,370  154,397 
        84,256  151,370  154,397 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        84,256  151,370  154,397 Budget 
Reference        


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
3.00 FTE - School Community 
Coordinators (.50 @ BRMS, MHMS - 
1.00 @ HRHS & Small Schools) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.40 FTE Total - School Community 
Coordinators (.60 @ MHMS, .40 @ 
SCHS & SQHS - 1.00 @ BRMS, 
HRHS & Small Schools) 


 3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
4.40 FTE Total - School Community 
Coordinators (.60 @ MHMS, .40 @ 
SCHS & SQHS - 1.00 @ BRMS, 
HRHS & Small Schools) 


Amount        3,770  3,767  3,767 
        3,770  3,767  3,767 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        3,770  3,767  3,767 Budget 
Reference        


4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS 
DAC Meetings (1,495 E & 2,275 S) 


 4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS 
DAC Meetings (1,492 E & 2,275 S) 


 4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS 
DAC Meetings (1,492 E & 2,275 S) 


202 of 656







Page 147 of 174


Amount        12,694  11,219  11,219 
        12,694  11,219  11,219 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        12,694  11,219  11,219 Budget 
Reference        


4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (3,309 E 
& 9,985 S) 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (2,807 E 
& 8,412 S) 


 2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 
1% Parent Involvement - 
Translations & Babysitting (2,807 E 
& 8,412 S) 


Amount        5,000  2,000  2,000 
        5,000  2,000  2,000 Source        Title I  Title I  Title I 
        5,000  2,000  2,000 Budget 
Reference        


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Latino Role Model Conference 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Latino Role Model Conference 


 5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 
Latino Role Model Conference 


 


203 of 656







Page 148 of 174


Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 


Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 


$4,487,366  8.43% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 


$1,636,103 Elementary 
$2,851,263 Secondary 
$4,487,366 Total SCCS 
 
Based upon FCMAT’s Local Control Funding Formula Calculator, SCCS estimates that in the 2018-19 LCAP year it will receive 
$1,636,103 in Supplemental funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the elementary district, and $2,851,263 in Supplemental 
funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the secondary district, for a grand total of $4,487,366 in Supplemental and Concentration 
Grant funding.  The percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) 
must be increased or improved over services for all students is 8.86% for the elementary district and 7.99% for the secondary district, 
or 8.43% for the entire K-12th district. 
 
The term “unduplicated pupils” means that we only count students once, even though they may belong to two or all three of the 
unduplicated pupil categories.  English Learners, Low Income students and Foster Youth are served through the base program with 
targeted support both during the day and outside of the day.  Teachers on special assignment for content area instruction are trained 
in best strategies for students who are learning English as a second language or who are school dependent. For these reasons, many 
programs are designed to improve services for students that struggle, regardless of the reasons for their difficulties or the 
demographic categories they may or may not belong to but are principally directed to our unduplicated student groups.  An example of 
this is the site discretionary funding that will enable schools to control the ways in which they can best meet the needs of their 
students.  All of these programs are above and beyond the core educational program provided to all students in the district. 


204 of 656







Page 149 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
 
 
Unduplicated Pupils 
The percentage by which services for all unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) must be 
increased or improved over services for all students is 8.86% for the elementary district and 7.99% for the secondary district, or 8.43% 
for the entire K-12 district.  The increase and/or improved services to each of the three targeted populations is enumerated below. 
 
Supporting the Foster Ed Initiative, even assuming there were additional dollars granted for them specifically (as opposed to FY 
automatically being included in the LI count), represents the single greatest proportional investment for a sub-population. This is 
justified because of the significant achievement gap demonstrated between students in foster care and all of other students, including 
subpopulations such as those in special education, low-income or English language learners. Therefore the proportionality, both in 
terms of quantitative expenditures and qualitative time and effort, will be greater than their small enrollment number (N=55 or .88%).  
Collaborating with other LEAs in SC County in the Foster Ed initiative led by the COE, and implementing the MOU is a service 
dedicated entirely to foster youth.  Further, our school Counselors, Social Workers and our School Community Coordinators all provide 
specific services for our Foster Youth as members of the Foster Youth Support Team. 
 
English Learners - 
At 11.73% (N=787) of enrollment, English Learners represent a significant minority of SCCS students.  In terms of the achievement 
gap, their demonstrated need is much greater than their numbers.  In addition to the challenge of learning a second language while 
learning the rigorous content curriculum, ELs may also confront cultural differences that can impede success.  English Learners in 
SCCS are usually also low-income students, and as such often struggle with economic barriers.  Targeted services for our English 
Learners include two English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers; School Community Coordinators to provide access to the 
school through translation and other family supports; Site Program Coordinators who facilitate language testing and support 
compliance with state and federal mandates, Additional Instructional Technicians, a Bilingual Social Worker, 1.4 total newcomer 
sections at both middle schools and Harbor High to support language acquisition and access to core content; Bilingual Math Tutors, 
and site based programs directed at EL supports.  There are also additional services provided via a new Newcomer teacher at the 
elementary level, expanding our Newcomer programs to TK-12.  We are also adding additional counseling services specifically for ELs 
through a grant from the City of Santa Cruz. 
 


205 of 656







Page 150 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
Low-Income Students - 
A large minority (N=2,459 or 36.65%) of SCCS students qualifies for free/reduced meals.  These students, on average, achieve well 
below their peers who are not challenged by poverty, necessitating an investment in programs that address their needs.  The following 
are programs and services that principally address the needs of our unduplicated pupils, particularly LI students:  RtI Coordinators, RtI 
Instructional Technicians, RtI Learning Assistants, AVID, Reading and Math Intervention sections, Summer School, Homework Clubs, 
Middle School After School Intervention Programs, PIP, Social Workers, PBIS Coach/ Behaviorist, PBIS Aides,  Counseling Interns, 
Elementary Counselors, the credit recovery program,  and site-based programs are designed to address the types of challenges that 
LI's frequently encounter in an academic setting.  As mentioned above, LI students frequently also belong to other subgroups.  All FY 
and migrant students are automatically part of the LI subgroup.  There is also a large overlap with the EL and immigrant subgroups.  
Additional resources have been added at the school sites for Site Councils to allocate towards targeting the success of struggling 
students. 
 
The 2017-18 LCAP allocation was $4,078,118 ($1,5888,815 for elementary and $2,489,303 for secondary), while the 2018-19 LCAP 
allocation is $4,487,366 ($1,636,103 for elementary and $2,851,263 for secondary), for an overall increase of $409,248). The ongoing 
costs of all personnel in the LCAP has increased due to step and column movement, a 2.0% increase in health and welfare costs and 
increased STRS 1.85% and PERS 2.531% costs for the District.  In addition, we have added the following programs and services: 
1) MOU with the County Office for the Foster Youth Collaborative 
2) Additional math coaches (increased from .6 secondary and .4 elementary to 1.0 elementary and 1.0 secondary)  -- This is the 
academic area that both parents and students have indicated there is need for significant support. 
3) Additional Services for Newcomer Students TK-12, including additional newcomer sections in secondary and a 1.0 elementary 
newcomer teacher (Title I), additional counseling services to address the specific needs of newcomer and refugee students 
4) Expanded Response to Intervention program services, using new screening tools to identify student needs and monitor students' 
academic progress 
5)  Initial steps to implement our Curriculum Master Plan and English Learner Master Plan, our road maps to ensure student 
achievement. 
 
All of these services in the coming LCAP year constitute a proportional increase in services for the targeted populations and were 
intentionally chosen as the best use of funds to meet our students' academic, social-emotional, and behavioral needs. 
------- 


206 of 656







Page 151 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 


------- 


 


Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 


Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 


$4,078,118  8.00% 
 


207 of 656







Page 152 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 


$1,588,815 Elementary 
$2,489,303 Secondary 
$4,078,118 Total SCCS 
 
Based upon FCMAT’s Local Control Funding Formula Calculator, SCCS estimates that in the 2017-18 LCAP year it will receive 
$1,588,815 in Supplemental funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the elementary district, and $2,489,303 in Supplemental 
funding and $0 in Concentration funding for the secondary district, for a grand total of $4,078,118 in Supplemental and Concentration 
Grant funding.  The percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) 
must be increased or improved over services for all students is 8.62% for the elementary district and 7.37% for the secondary district, 
or 8.00% for the entire K-12th district. 
 
The term “unduplicated pupils” masks the reality that many students belong to more than one category.  English Learners, Low 
Income students and Foster Youth are served through the base program with targeted support both during the day and outside of the 
day.  Teachers on special assignment for content area instruction are trained in best strategies for students who are learning English 
as a second language or who are school dependent. For these reasons, many programs are designed to improve services for 
students that struggle, regardless of the reasons for their difficulties or the demographic categories they may or may not belong to.  An 
example of this is the site discretionary funding that will enable schools to control the ways in which they can best meet the needs of 
their students.  All of these programs are above and beyond the core educational program provided to all students in the district. 
 
 
Unduplicated Pupils 
The percentage by which services for all unduplicated pupils (English Learners, Foster Youth, & Low-income Students) must be 
increased or improved over services for all students is 8.62% for the elementary district and 7.37% for the secondary district, or 8.00% 
for the entire K-12 district.  The increase and/or improved services to each of the three targeted populations is enumerated below. 
 
Supporting the Foster Ed Initiative, even assuming there were additional dollars granted for them specifically (as opposed to FY 
automatically being included in the LI count), represents the single greatest proportional investment for a sub-population. This is 
justified because of the significant achievement gap demonstrated between students in foster care and all of other students, including 


208 of 656







Page 153 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
subpopulations such as those in special education, low-income or English language learners. Therefore the proportionality, both in 
terms of quantitative expenditures and qualitative time and effort, will be greater than their small enrollment number (N=39 or .6%).  
Collaborating with other LEAs in SC County in the Foster Ed initiative led by the COE, and implementing the MOU is a service 
dedicated entirely to foster youth.  Further, our school Counselors, Social Workers and our School Community Coordinators all provide 
specific services for our Foster Youth as members of the Foster Youth Support Team. 
 
English Learners - 
At 14% (N=974) of enrollment, English Learners represent a significant minority of SCCS students.  In terms of the achievement gap, 
their demonstrated need is much greater than their numbers.  In addition to the challenge of learning a second language while learning 
the rigorous content curriculum, ELs may also confront cultural differences that can impede success.  English Learners in SCCS are 
usually also low-income students, and as such often struggle with economic barriers.  Targeted services for our English Learners 
include two English Learner Instructional Resource Teachers; School Community Coordinators to provide access to the school 
through translation and other family supports; Site Program Coordinators who facilitate language testing and support compliance with 
state and federal mandates, Additional Instructional Technicians, a Bilingual Social Worker, 1.4 total newcomer sections at both 
middle schools and Harbor High to support language acquisition and access to core content; Bilingual Math Tutors, and site based 
programs directed at EL supports.  There are also additional services provided via a new Newcomer teacher at the elementary level, 
expanding our Newcomer programs to TK-12. 
 
Low-Income Students - 
A large minority (N=2,620 or 38.5%) of SCCS students qualifies for free/reduced meals.  These students, on average, achieve well 
below their peers who are not challenged by poverty, necessitating an investment in programs that address their needs.  The following 
are programs and services that principally address the needs of our unduplicated pupils, particularly LI students:  RtI Coordinators, RtI 
Instructional Technicians, RtI Learning Assistants, AVID, additional Reading and Math Intervention sections, Summer School, 
Homework Clubs, Middle School After School Intervention Programs, Social Workers, PBIS Coach/ Behaviorist, PBIS Aides,  
Counseling Interns, Elementary Counselors, additional middle school counselors, the credit recovery program,  and site-based 
programs are designed to address the types of challenges that LI's frequently encounter in an academic setting.  As mentioned above, 
LI students frequently also belong to other subgroups.  All FY and migrant students are automatically part of the LI subgroup.  There is 
also a large overlap with the EL and immigrant subgroups.  Additional resources have been added at the school sites for Site Councils 
to allocate towards targeting the success of struggling students. 


209 of 656







Page 154 of 174


Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
 
The 2017-18 LCAP allocation was $4,078,118 ($1,588,815 for elementary and $2,489,303 for secondary), while the 2018-19 LCAP 
allocation is $4,487,366 ($1,636,103 for elementary and $2,851,263 for secondary), for an overall increase of $409,248). The ongoing 
costs of all personnel in the LCAP has increased due to step and column movement, a 2.0% increase in health and welfare costs and 
increased STRS 1.85% and PERS 2.53% costs for the District.  In addition, we have added the following programs and services: 
1) MOU with the County Office for the Foster Youth Collaborative 
2) Additional math coaches (increased from .6 secondary and .4 elementary to 1.0 elementary and 1.0 secondary)  -- This is the 
academic area that both parents and students have indicated there is need for significant support. 
3) Additional Services for Newcomer Students TK-12, including additional newcomer sections in secondary and a 1.0 elementary 
newcomer teacher (Title I), additional counseling services to address the specific needs of newcomer and refugee students 
4) Expanded Response to Intervention program services, using new screening tools to identify student needs and monitor students' 
academic progress 
5)  Initial steps to implement our Curriculum Master Plan and English Learner Master Plan, our road maps to ensure student 
achievement. 
 
All of these services in the coming LCAP year constitute a proportional increase in services for the targeted populations. 
 
 
------- 
------- 
 


210 of 656







Page 155 of 174


Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 


For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 


For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  


If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  


Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 


211 of 656







Page 156 of 174


For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 


Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 
Annual Update 
Stakeholder Engagement 
Goals, Actions, and Services 
Planned Actions/Services 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 


For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  


Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or 
include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual 
expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board 
of Education under EC Section 52064.5.   
 
Budget Summary 


The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows: 


 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the 
LEA’s total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year 
means the fiscal year for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General 
Fund is the main operating fund of the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for 
in another fund. All activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a compelling 
reason to account for an activity in another fund. For further information please refer to the 
California School Accounting Manual (http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some 
charter schools that follow governmental fund accounting, this amount is the total budgeted 
expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund. For charter schools that follow 
the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total budgeted expenses, such as those 
budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.) 


 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP 
for the LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with 


212 of 656



mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/





Page 157 of 174


the actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in 
the LCAP. To the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under 
more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 


 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above 
for the LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in 
total General Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for 
planned actions/services for the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned 
actions/services may include funds other than general fund expenditures.) 


 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of 
LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for 
school districts and charter schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as 
implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  


Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   


* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  


Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  


Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   


Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 


 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  


 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 


 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 


 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 


213 of 656







Page 158 of 174


in the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 


Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 
charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   


Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 


School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.  


Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 


Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 


School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   


214 of 656







Page 159 of 174


New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 


Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   


Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 


Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 


Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 


Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 


For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 


Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 


215 of 656







Page 160 of 174


Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 


Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 


Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 


For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 


Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   


Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 


 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter “LEA-wide.” 


 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  


 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  


For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 


Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 


216 of 656







Page 161 of 174


Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 


Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 


 


New/Modified/Unchanged:  
 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 


the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  


 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 


 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   


o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 


Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 


Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 


Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  


217 of 656







Page 162 of 174


 


Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 


Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  


Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 


Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 


If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 


 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 


 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 


For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 


 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 


218 of 656







Page 163 of 174


 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 


219 of 656







Page 164 of 174


State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 


A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 


B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 


Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 


students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 


B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 


Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 


each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 


needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 


A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 


(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 


D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 


E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 


higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 


Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 


A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 


220 of 656







Page 165 of 174


Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 


school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 


A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 


B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 


Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  


A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 


services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 


C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 


D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 


Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 


221 of 656







Page 166 of 174


APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 


(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 


academic year (July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” 
means a pupil who is absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when 
the total number of days a pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is 
enrolled and school was actually taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and 
school was actually taught in the regular day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays 
and Sundays. 


(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 
the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 


(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in 5 CCR Section 1039.1. 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  


(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 
“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 


(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 


(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an 


adult education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency 
Exam] by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-
time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who 
transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4. 


(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 


(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 


suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 


the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 


(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 


expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 


the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 


 
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  


222 of 656







Page 167 of 174


 


APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 


1)  How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 


2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  


3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 


4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 


5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  


6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 


 


Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 


pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  


2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 


3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 


4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 


5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 


6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 


223 of 656







Page 168 of 174


7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 


 


Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 


Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 


2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  


3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 


4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 


development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  


6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 


7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 


8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 


9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 


to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 


12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  


Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016 


224 of 656







Page 169 of 174


 


LCAP Expenditure Summary 
 


Total Expenditures by Funding Source 


Funding Source 
2017-18 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual Update 


Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
All Funding Sources 6,319,782.00 6,269,565.00 6,332,036.00 7,567,548.00 7,678,829.00 21,578,413.00 
 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Base 1,272,644.00 1,166,206.00 356,863.00 281,536.00 285,367.00 923,766.00 
Other 369,105.00 358,681.00 1,357,414.00 1,275,902.00 1,292,452.00 3,925,768.00 
Supplemental 3,996,443.00 4,049,571.00 3,931,669.00 4,456,486.00 4,532,199.00 12,920,354.00 
Title I 411,194.00 441,769.00 415,694.00 1,338,476.00 1,352,298.00 3,106,468.00 
Title II 213,740.00 203,291.00 213,740.00 146,898.00 146,898.00 507,536.00 
Title III 56,656.00 50,047.00 56,656.00 68,250.00 69,615.00 194,521.00 


 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  


225 of 656







Page 170 of 174


Total Expenditures by Object Type 


Object Type 
2017-18 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual Update 


Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
All Expenditure Types 6,319,782.00 6,269,565.00 6,332,036.00 7,567,548.00 7,678,829.00 21,578,413.00 
 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' SALARIES-REG. 1,847,692.00 1,778,171.00 1,847,692.00 2,235,147.00 2,349,317.00 6,432,156.00 
1130 TEACHER SALARIES - EWA 107,735.00 102,357.00 107,735.00 18,612.00 18,687.00 145,034.00 
1140 TEACHER SALARIES-SUBSTITUTES 12,740.00 12,740.00 12,740.00 11,326.00 11,553.00 35,619.00 
1160 TEACHER SALARIES-STIPEND 90,022.00 105,983.00 90,022.00 100,980.00 100,980.00 291,982.00 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP 584,632.00 608,305.00 632,399.00 690,050.00 703,852.00 2,026,301.00 
1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-EWA 12,891.00 26,400.00 12,891.00 26,400.00 26,400.00 65,691.00 
1300 CERT SUPRVSR & ADMN-ADMIN 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,160.00 25,663.00 50,823.00 
1330 CERT SUPRVSR ADMIN - EWA 18,000.00 21,200.00 18,000.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 29,200.00 
1900 OTHER CERT SALARIES-REGULAR 657,005.00 661,156.00 657,005.00 556,080.00 567,202.00 1,780,287.00 
2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL SALARIES 235,086.00 303,182.00 235,086.00 191,061.00 184,114.00 610,261.00 
2100 INST'L SUPV AND ADMIN 0.00 0.00 0.00 110,967.00 113,187.00 224,154.00 
2200 CLASS PUPIL SUPPORT SALARIES 311,868.00 267,483.00 311,868.00 376,119.00 393,979.00 1,081,966.00 
2400 CLASS CLERICAL SALARIES-REG 54,839.00 49,360.00 54,839.00 45,778.00 46,693.00 147,310.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 1,225,510.00 1,209,375.00 1,244,772.00 1,480,646.00 1,546,173.00 4,271,591.00 
4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN TEXTBOOKS 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 45,510.00 
4300 MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 859,805.00 824,728.00 864,305.00 983,023.00 985,832.00 2,833,160.00 
4395 FOOD FOR WORKSHOPS 3,770.00 3,770.00 3,770.00 3,767.00 3,767.00 11,304.00 
5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & CONFERENCES 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 
5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER EXPENDITURES 282,017.00 279,185.00 222,742.00 474,041.00 368,039.00 1,064,822.00 
6400 EQUIPMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 
6500 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 128,000.00 128,000.00 256,000.00 
7350 TFR INDIRECT COSTS/INTERFUND  I 0.00 0.00 0.00 83,621.00 83,621.00 167,242.00 


 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  


226 of 656







Page 171 of 174


Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 


Object Type Funding Source 
2017-18 
Annual 
Update 


Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 


2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 6,319,782.00 6,269,565.00 6,332,036.00 7,567,548.00 7,678,829.00 21,578,413.00 
  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 


Base 672,351.00 598,925.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 


Other 0.00 0.00 672,351.00 629,203.00 711,253.00 2,012,807.00 


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 


Supplemental 1,086,895.00 1,076,450.00 1,086,895.00 1,365,379.00 1,392,687.00 3,844,961.00 


1100 CERT TEACHERS' 
SALARIES-REG. 


Title I 88,446.00 102,796.00 88,446.00 240,565.00 245,377.00 574,388.00 


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA 


Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,762.00 3,837.00 7,599.00 


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA 


Supplemental 103,510.00 87,606.00 103,510.00 0.00 0.00 103,510.00 


1130 TEACHER SALARIES - 
EWA 


Title I 4,225.00 14,751.00 4,225.00 14,850.00 14,850.00 33,925.00 


1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 


Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,326.00 11,553.00 22,879.00 


1140 TEACHER SALARIES-
SUBSTITUTES 


Title I 12,740.00 12,740.00 12,740.00 0.00 0.00 12,740.00 


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 


Supplemental 0.00 2,483.00 0.00 100,980.00 100,980.00 201,960.00 


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 


Title I 21,000.00 22,500.00 21,000.00 0.00 0.00 21,000.00 


1160 TEACHER SALARIES-
STIPEND 


Title II 69,022.00 81,000.00 69,022.00 0.00 0.00 69,022.00 


1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Base 236,383.00 239,725.00 194,434.00 146,806.00 149,742.00 490,982.00 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Other 0.00 0.00 94,386.00 99,301.00 101,287.00 294,974.00 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Supplemental 348,249.00 368,580.00 343,579.00 417,327.00 425,674.00 1,186,580.00 
1200 CERT PUPIL SUPP Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,616.00 27,149.00 53,765.00 
1230 CERT PUPIL SUPP-
EWA 


Supplemental 12,891.00 26,400.00 12,891.00 26,400.00 26,400.00 65,691.00 


1300 CERT SUPRVSR & 
ADMN-ADMIN 


Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,160.00 25,663.00 50,823.00 


227 of 656







Page 172 of 174


Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 


Object Type Funding Source 
2017-18 
Annual 
Update 


Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 


2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA 


Supplemental 5,000.00 6,880.00 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 


1330 CERT SUPRVSR 
ADMIN - EWA 


Title I 13,000.00 14,320.00 13,000.00 5,600.00 5,600.00 24,200.00 


1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 


Supplemental 453,356.00 451,753.00 453,356.00 348,861.00 355,839.00 1,158,056.00 


1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 


Title I 158,746.00 169,449.00 158,746.00 160,326.00 163,532.00 482,604.00 


1900 OTHER CERT 
SALARIES-REGULAR 


Title III 44,903.00 39,954.00 44,903.00 46,893.00 47,831.00 139,627.00 


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 


Supplemental 235,086.00 303,182.00 235,086.00 169,505.00 172,895.00 577,486.00 


2000 >CLASS PERSONNEL 
SALARIES 


Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,556.00 11,219.00 32,775.00 


2100 INST'L SUPV AND 
ADMIN 


Supplemental 0.00 0.00 0.00 31,391.00 32,019.00 63,410.00 


2100 INST'L SUPV AND 
ADMIN 


Title I 0.00 0.00 0.00 79,576.00 81,168.00 160,744.00 


2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 


Supplemental 302,568.00 267,483.00 302,568.00 366,491.00 373,821.00 1,042,880.00 


2200 CLASS PUPIL 
SUPPORT SALARIES 


Title I 9,300.00 0.00 9,300.00 9,628.00 20,158.00 39,086.00 


2400 CLASS CLERICAL 
SALARIES-REG 


Supplemental 54,839.00 49,360.00 54,839.00 45,778.00 46,693.00 147,310.00 


3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Base 273,910.00 243,111.00 72,429.00 44,730.00 45,625.00 162,784.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Other 0.00 0.00 221,572.00 227,898.00 271,112.00 720,582.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Supplemental 842,828.00 844,309.00 841,999.00 1,030,996.00 1,049,004.00 2,921,999.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title I 86,043.00 97,541.00 86,043.00 155,665.00 158,648.00 400,356.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title II 10,976.00 14,321.00 10,976.00 0.00 0.00 10,976.00 
3000 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS Title III 11,753.00 10,093.00 11,753.00 21,357.00 21,784.00 54,894.00 
4200 BOOKS OTHER THAN 
TEXTBOOKS 


Supplemental 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 15,170.00 45,510.00 


4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES 


Base 90,000.00 84,445.00 90,000.00 90,000.00 90,000.00 270,000.00 


228 of 656







Page 173 of 174


Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 


Object Type Funding Source 
2017-18 
Annual 
Update 


Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 


2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES 


Other 369,105.00 358,681.00 369,105.00 35,410.00 35,410.00 439,925.00 


4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES 


Supplemental 388,006.00 376,602.00 388,006.00 383,800.00 386,609.00 1,158,415.00 


4300 MATERIALS & 
SUPPLIES 


Title I 12,694.00 5,000.00 17,194.00 473,813.00 473,813.00 964,820.00 


4395 FOOD FOR 
WORKSHOPS 


Supplemental 3,770.00 3,770.00 3,770.00 3,767.00 3,767.00 11,304.00 


5200 MILEAGE, TRAVEL & 
CONFERENCES 


Supplemental 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 


Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 136,002.00 30,000.00 166,002.00 


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 


Supplemental 143,275.00 168,543.00 84,000.00 149,641.00 149,641.00 383,282.00 


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 


Title I 5,000.00 2,672.00 5,000.00 41,500.00 41,500.00 88,000.00 


5800 OTHER SVCS & OPER 
EXPENDITURES 


Title II 133,742.00 107,970.00 133,742.00 146,898.00 146,898.00 427,538.00 


6400 EQUIPMENT Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 
6500 EQUIPMENT 
REPLACEMENT 


Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 128,000.00 128,000.00 256,000.00 


 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  


229 of 656







Page 174 of 174


Total Expenditures by Goal 


Goal 
2017-18 


Annual Update 
Budgeted 


2017-18 
Annual Update 


Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 


2017-18 
through 
2019-20 


Total 
Goal 1 1,914,111.00 1,814,432.00 1,981,140.00 1,894,847.00 1,921,978.00 5,797,965.00 


Goal 2 327,962.00 322,648.00 327,962.00 627,515.00 639,251.00 1,594,728.00 


Goal 3 2,830,312.00 2,859,476.00 2,829,812.00 3,373,960.00 3,422,582.00 9,626,354.00 


Goal 4 769,184.00 775,506.00 714,909.00 956,943.00 968,358.00 2,640,210.00 


Goal 5 85,100.00 75,329.00 85,100.00 180,423.00 182,463.00 447,986.00 


Goal 6 393,113.00 422,174.00 393,113.00 533,860.00 544,197.00 1,471,170.00 


Goal 7   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 8   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 9   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 10   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 11   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 12   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 13   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 14   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Goal 15   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.


230 of 656







AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.2.1 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Roofing & Solar Construction Inc. Bid and Agreement for the 


Santa Cruz High School Re-Roofing Project 
 


MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 


FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 


THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Roofing & Solar Construction Inc. bid and agreement for the Santa Cruz High Schools re-
roofing project. 


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The project consists of re-roofing at Santa Cruz High School and will entail removal and replacement 
of approximately 52,000 sq ft of roofing and associated components. 
 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors on our Uniform Construction Cost Accounting 
Construction Application list, noticed to the builder’s plan rooms and advertised in the local 
newspapers.  Five bids were received. Roofing & Solar Construction Inc. was the successful low 
bidder. 


BID SUMMARY 
 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 
Best Contracting Services Gardena $1,976,940.00 
Stronger Building Services San Leandro $1,766,000.00 
WaterProofing Associates, Inc. Mountain View $1,354,368.00 
Roofing & Solar Construction Inc. Hayward $1,295,000.00 
Pioneer Contractors Inc. San Francisco $1,338,000.00 
LOW BID Roofing & Solar Construction 


Inc. 
$1,295,000.00 


     
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to Roofing & Solar Construction Inc., the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,295,000.00, Measure ‘A’ Bond Funds (Restricted), representing 4.0% of the site budget 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics:  
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management  
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


231 of 656







This page has been left blank







233 of 656







234 of 656







235 of 656







236 of 656







237 of 656







238 of 656







239 of 656







This page has been left blank







The Garland Company, Inc.


PROJ. #:


DRAWN BY:


1


REV.   :


REV.   :


REV.   :


2


3


SCALE: 


DATE:


AS NOTED


04/22/2018


2015


COVERSHEET


A-0


AERIAL VIEW


SCALE: N.T.S.


PROJECT AERIAL VIEW DRAWING INDEX


A-0 COVERSHEET


A-1 ROOF PLAN @ GYM ROOF (BASE BID)


415 Walnut Avenue


SANTA CRUZ


Santa Cruz, CA


High School


GYM ROOF


SANTA CRUZ


HIGH SCHOOL


415 Walnut Avenue


Santa Cruz, CA


MATH ROOFMUSIC ROOF


A-2 ROOF PLANS @ MUSIC & MATH


BUILDINGS (ALTERNATE BID #1)


A-3 ROOF PLANS @ TRIDENT, HOME EC AND CAFE


BUILDINGS (ALTERNATE BID #1)


D-1 ROOF DETAILS


D-2 ROOF DETAILS


TRIDENT ROOF


HOME EC CAFE ROOF


D-3 ROOF DETAILS


D-4 ROOF DETAILS


24
1 


of
 6


56







This page has been left blank







 


                            


  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Bond Projects Expenditures Update 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Mark Bartos of Bartos Architecture, Inc. will present an update on expenditures to date and on 
proposed bond expenditures for 2018-19 on Measures A and B bond projects. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 
cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 


243 of 656







This page has been left blank







SANTA CRUZ CITY  SCHOOLS |  BOARD MEETING – 13   JUNE 2018


Program Budgets and Expenditure Summary


J u n e  1 3  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


245 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      Expenditures


$140,000,000


Program Snapshot


Measure A: High Schools


$68,000,000Measure B: Elementary Schools


Resource


Expenditures


thru April 2018


$2,397,868


$1,738,750


$208,000,000Measure A|B Summary $4,136,618


The above summary does not include other related resources at this time


Remaining


Resource


$137,602,132


$66,261,202


$203,863,334


Measure A


2 %


Measure B


2.5%


Measure A|B


2%


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


246 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      Terminology


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Resource:   Funds available to site (including bond and state funds)


Allocation: Budgetary allocation based on latest cost estimate, and prioritizations with site teams


Expenditure to Date: Expenditures for a given project from November 2016 thru April 2018.


Projected FY 18|19: Expenditures anticipated (predicted) from 01 July through 30 June.


Percent Complete: Proportion of amount actually expended divided by the total site resource.


Multi Project Overhead: 5% of site resource for efforts not related to a specific project.


Utility Infrastructure: Site (outside of buildings) utilities. Drainage, Gas, Water, Electrical.


Multi Project Overhead


Project xyz


Project xyz


Utility Infrastructure


$


$


$


$


$


$


$


$


Allocation


$ TotalAllocated so far


Projected


FY 18|19


$


$


$


$


Expenditures


To Date


Current Resource     $xx,xxx,xxx


$ Total $ Total


A


B C DE % Complete


F


G


A


B


C


D


E


F


G


247 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


< 1% Complete


Multi Project Overhead


Parking Lot Improvements


Re-Roofing


Utility Infrastructure


$517,267


$267,832


$1,332,728


TBD


$64,593


$18,262


$4,695


$7,445


$94,995


Allocation


$2,117,827Allocated so far


Projected


FY 18|19
$72,177


$243,683


$808,376


TBD


$1,124,236


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Branciforte MS  Current Resource     $17,318,892


Expenditures


To Date


248 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


1.6% Complete


Mission Hill Middle School       Current Site Resource          $18,353,153


Multi-Project Overhead


Hardscape|Landscape (Front Lawn)


Roof Replacement Ph 1


Roof Replacement Ph 2


Mod Ph 1 (perm walls, hvac)


New Classroom Building


Gym Mod Ph 1 (locker room imprv)


Utility Infrastructure


$917,658


$1,089,956


$1,528,613


$871,965


$243,604


$11,599,577


$60,502


TBD


$83,007


$120,828


$58,410


N/A


$22,093


N/A


$13,349


$7,112


$304,799$16,311,875Allocated so far


$128,045


$847,543


$1,112,351


$161,913


$114,122


$565,332


$40,831


TBD


$2,970,137


Allocation


Projected


FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


249 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


3.5% Complete


Harbor High School       Current Resource  $29,789,743


Multi Project Overhead


Track | Field Improvements


Pool Replacement


Mod Phase 1 (MPR, Kitchen)


Mod Phase 3 (Science, Career Tech, Quad, Gym)


Re-roof


Student Lockers


New Electrical Service


Tennis Court Remodel


Utility Infrastructure


$1,489,487


$9,665,928


$8,500,000


TBD


TBD


$1,579,900


$266,967


$732,767


$217,732


TBD


$22,452,781


$63,249


$685,602


$237,810


$26,783


$7,548


N/A


N/A


$13,853


N/A


$7,696
$1,042,541Allocated so far


$207,835


$2,858,843


$7,700,285


TBD


TBD


$1,066,217


$204,237


$619,849


$146,939


TBD
$12,804,205


Allocation
Projected


FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


250 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


< 1% Complete


Santa Cruz HS      Current Resource          $32,217,006


Multi Project Overhead


Mod Ph 1: (water lines|leaks)


Mod Ph 2: (Caf, restroom,  classroom)


Mod Ph 3: (Math, Sci, Library)


Gym Mod Phase 1: (paint, pads, acoust)


Gym Mod Phase 2: (entry, locker rms)


New Pool House (restrooms)


Fields


$1,610,850


$787,083


$4,599,088


$3,086,821


$287,748


$4,422,342


$1,725,204


$1,437,464


$108,520


$70,979


$12,538


N/A


$20,050


N/A


N/A


N/A
$212,087Allocated so far $17,956,600


$224,770


$508,910


$546,613


$86,975


$224,538


$922,210


$359,764


N/A
$2,873,780


Allocation


Projected


FY 18|19 


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


251 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      High School Projects Expenditures


Soquel High School       Current Resource   $34,908,502


Multi Project Overhead


Site Infrastructure (safety, elec, drainage)


New Snack Shack


Tennis Courts


Interim Housing


Mod Phase 1 (Standard Classrooms)


Mod Phase 2 (Special classrooms)


Mod Phase 3 (Other special areas)


Portable Demolition and Site Work


Pool Modernization


Fields


$1,703,567


$6,009,445


$935,566


$232,621


$3,037,883


$7,000,000


$5,000,000


$1,000,000


$348,754


$7,501,780


$1,527,272


$116,719


$11,912


$42,098


N/A


N/A


$18,933


N/A


N/A


N/A


$338,044


N/A


$527,7061.5% Complete $34,296,888Allocated so far


$335,128


$4,553,227


$851,212


$137,602


$2,265,962


$4,303,279


N/A


$77,283


N/A


$6,546,876


N/A


$19,070,569


Allocation


Projected


FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


252 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


Bayview ES              Current Resource       $13,961,998


Multi-Project Overhead


Re-Roofing


New Kinder & Sitework


New Classroom Building & Sitework


Mod Phase 1 (standard & special)


Portable Demolition & Site Work


Utility Infrastructure


$698,100


$982,572


$1,762,820


$2,884,615


$2,500,000


$547,281


TBD


$11,264


$882,267


$16,194


$11,375


$11,100


N/A


$7,484


$939,6846.7 % Complete
$9,375,388Allocated so far


$137,331


$559,072


$181,649


$2,246,647


0


$42,296


TBD


$3,166,995


Allocation


Projected


FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


253 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


DeLaveaga ES              Current Resource   $14,861,844


Multi-Project Overhead


New Parking Lot


New Classrooms


Re-Roofing


Mod Phase 1 (Classrooms)


Mod Phase 2 (Special spaces)


Portable Demolition & Site Work


Shade Structure


Utility Infrastructure


$743,092


$1,841,472


$2,884,615


$352,500


$5,000,000


$3,000,000


$503,372


$32,773


TBD


$26,301


$24,911


$32,390


N/A


$38,450


N/A


N/A


$32,773


$6,098


$160,9231% Complete


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$14,357,824Allocated so far


$146,482


$1,047,777


$2,231,785


$317,828


$450,820


0


0


N/A


TBD


$4,194,692


Allocation


Projected


FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


254 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Gault ES                         Current Resource   $11,015,429


Multi Project Overhead


Roofing


Garden Relocation


Mod Phase 1 (water intrusion)


Utility Infrastructure


$550,771


$900,354


$162,440


$56,022


TBD


$60,645


$42,982


N/A


$3,219


$3,620


$110,466


<1% Complete


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$1,669,587Allocated so far


$108,348


$626,476


$53,964


$16,315


TBD


$805,103


Allocation


Projected


FY 18|19 


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


255 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Natural Bridges      Current Resource         $5,421,709


Multi-Project Overhead


Re-Roofing


Int Gym and Parking Lot


Ext Gym and Restroom


Modernization and Repairs


Utility Infrastructure


$272,682


$1,646,564


$512,259


$1,925,396


$1,163,972


TBD


$4,085


$183,450


$67,607


$30,888


N/A


$2,626


$288,656


5.3% Complete


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


Allocated so far $5,520,873


$53,642


0


$300,451


$1,436,156


$78,711


TBD


$1,868,960


Allocation


Projected


FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


256 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Westlake ES                 Current Resource     $13,921,491


Multi-Project Overhead


New Upper Classroom


Site Improvements


Utility Infrastructure


$701,308


$5,487,973


$466,045


TBD


$69,925


$2,113


N/A


$5,760


$77,798


<1% Complete


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$6,655,326Allocated so far


$136,933


$652,259


$51,113


TBD


$840,305


Allocation


Projected


FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


257 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Branciforte Small Schools   Current Resource     $10,345,332


Multi-Project Overhead


Relocate Playground and Lunch


New CTE Building


Alternative Family Ed Campus


Mod Phase 1 (Classrooms)


Mod Phase 2 (Special spaces)


Portable Demolition and Site Work


Utility Infrastructure


$521,068


$330,486


$2,730,000


$1,558,987


$2,300,000


$1,000,000


$386,859


TBD


$21,086


$20,933


N/A


N/A


N/A


N/A


N/A


$6,098


$48,117<1% Complete


Measure A | B Update      Elementary School Expenditures


$8,827,400


$102,505


$188,043


$2,112,161


$134,942


$1,823,302


TBD


TBD


TBD


$4,360,953


Allocation


Projected


FY 18|19


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


Expenditures


To Date


258 of 656







2 8   M a r c h  2 0 1 8 c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y


Measure A | B Update


END


c o l l a b o r a t i o n  |  a d v o c a c y  |  r e s e a r c h  |  e d u c a t i o n  |  s u s t a i n a b i l i t y13 June 2018


259 of 656







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM:  8.5.2.3 
1819 Preliminary Budget cover 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Presentation of the 2018-19 Budget and Certifications 
 
MEETING DATE: June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
INFORMATION: 
This is an information item.  The budget will be presented for action at the June 20, 2018 Board 
meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Schools is on a single budget adoption cycle.  This means the Board adopts a 
budget by June 30th.  The preliminary budget being presented to the Governing Board is based on 
current law.  Once the details of the June adopted State budget are released, the District will revise 
its budget and provide the Board with a fiscal impact on its regularly scheduled meeting of August 
29, 2018.   The Board has been provided with a set of powerpoint slides that summarizes highlights 
of the 2018-2019 Budget, a draft of the 2018-2019 Budget Book, and the SACS reports that have 
been generated reflective of this information.   
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 


1. All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities.  
 


2. SCCS students will be motivated learners who leave our system as well rounded citizens 
with a broad spectrum of interests and abilities 
 


3. We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community.  
 


4. We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching.  


 
5. SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


 
6. SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse community. 


 


261 of 656







This page has been left blank







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


2018-19 Preliminary Budget
June 13, 2018


263 of 656







 Since public education is under the control of the State of California which determines the


amount of available revenue, financial constraints may preclude the Board from meeting all


of its goals; and as one of its goals, the Board will define basic assumptions and guidelines


to formulate a balanced budget for the General Fund (Fund 01) and the Other Funds of the


District.


 The annual budget for the Santa Cruz City School District (SCCS) shall meet the


requirements and guidelines of AB1200 as implemented by the State and the County of


Santa Cruz. An adequate reserve of 3% as determined by the State formula shall be


maintained for economic uncertainties during the budget year to mitigate emergency


expense and potential revenue shortfalls.


 The budget should have expenditures in line with revenues such that ongoing expenditures


are balanced to recurring revenues. The Board may designate one-time expenditures of


non-recurring revenues when necessary and appropriate.


 The Board reaffirms its belief that competitive total compensation should be provided to


attract, hire and retain an excellent team of employees to serve our students and families.


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


BUDGET PRINCIPLES


264 of 656







 School site staffing will be in accordance with District bargaining unit agreements.


 The budget will include cost for all statutory employee benefits and fringe benefits


package costs as negotiated.


 School sites shall be provided with a total dollar allocation for the basic instructional


and operational programs, excluding regular and categorical employees’ salaries and


benefits. Each year the basic instructional program allocation will be based on P-2


average daily attendance (A.D.A.) of the prior year with additional amounts based on


flat amount or per enrollment for operational programs. With the expected fluctuation


in actual enrollments, minor adjustments will need to be made.


 LCFF base funds will be allocated to the school sites for the purpose of the acquisition


of textbooks, instructional materials, and the replacement of classroom and school


equipment to ensure we are compliant with Williams legislation and teachers have


sufficient resources to meet students’ learning needs.


 To provide for secure operation of the sites, the budget will include uncontrolled and/or


state-mandated program costs including but not limited to (a) utilities and (b) property


and liability and worker’s compensation insurance.


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


BUDGET PRINCIPLES


265 of 656







 Allocations are based on the needs of the students in attendance during the year, and


expenditures should reflect meeting those needs. Therefore, carryover of lump sum


school site budget balances in unrestricted program accounts from year to year will not


be allowed, unless there is a specific plan for a purchase that requires multiple years of


funding that has been approved by the Superintendent.


 School site and district program budget managers are allowed to reallocate within non-


salary categories unless restricted by State or Federal program mandates.


 The District shall provide the resources to promote and improve communication for its


target audiences of students, schools, community and business members, and other


educational organizations. A routine focus shall be adopted to communicate regarding


the use and management of bond and parcel tax funds.


 The District shall continue to maintain a budget which has expenditures in line with


revenues and avoid deficit spending and dependency on transfers of revenue from


interest and lease income.


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


BUDGET PRINCIPLES


266 of 656







 Appropriate funding shall be allocated and reserved to support and implement, in no


particular order, (a) the LCAP, as well as (b) continued support of District Communication,


(c) continued support of the District Technology Plan, (d) those projects related to the


District Master Facilities and Capital Outlay Plan supported by the Building Fund,


Developer Fees, Deferred Maintenance, Special Reserve Capital Projects, (e) the Long


Term Facilities Improvement Plan supported by funds from Measures A and B and the


Parcel Taxes, and (f) the Curriculum Master Plan.


 The annual budget for the SCCS district shall meet the requirements and guidelines of Ed.


Code 17070.75 requiring that the school district establish a restricted account within the


general fund for the exclusive purpose of providing moneys for ongoing and major


maintenance of school buildings with an amount equal or greater than 3 percent of


unrestricted and restricted portion of the General Fund.


 Funds from the Parcel Taxes and Bonds are utilized in conjunction with language


incorporated in the ballot as overseen by the Parcel Tax Oversight Committee and Bond


Oversight Committee.


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


BUDGET PRINCIPLES


267 of 656







• Property Taxes are projected to increase 3% from the 2017-2018 
levels.


• State COLA is projected to increase to 2.71%


• The Governor is proposing an additional .29% augmentation of the 
statutory COLA, bringing the LCFF projected COLA to 3%.


• The LCFF is projected to be fully funded in 2018-2019.


• Education Protection Account entitlement is projected to be 24% 
percentage of LCFF funding.


2018-2019 General Budget Assumptions & Highlights
(Inclusive of May Revise Additions)


268 of 656







• One -Time State discretionary funds equating to $344 per ADA 
have been incorporated into the Budget.  


• Restricted State Revenue projections/SELPA pass through have 
been decreased in the amount of $620K to account for increase in 
services provided by the SELPA. 


• Parcel Tax Revenue is projected to decrease .5% to plan for 
potential increases in exemption filings.


• Certificated step and column is projected to increase 1.5%.


• Classified step and column is projected to increase 2%.


2018-2019 General Budget Assumptions & Highlights
(Inclusive of May Revise Additions)


269 of 656







• Budgetary placeholders have been incorporated into expense 
projections in anticipation of a successful negotiation with SCCCE.     


• An ongoing .5% salary increase is projected for all other units. 


• Certificated Salary and Benefit expense projections reflect a 
decrease in 5 teacher FTE associated with declining enrollment.


• CalSTRS is projected to increase from 14.43% to 16.28%.
• CalPERS is projected to increase from 15.531% to 18.062%.


• Health and Welfare expenses are projected to increase 2.4%


• Workers Compensation expenses are projected to increase 5%


2018-2019 General Budget Assumptions & Highlights
(Inclusive of May Revise Additions)


270 of 656







• All other statutory benefits are held flat.


• $1,054,000 in one-time expenditures have been built into the budget to 
fund the Curriculum Master Plan approved by the Board. (A plan still 
needs to be developed to address instructional materials needs for 
NGSS, Social Studies, and ELA 6-12)


• A contribution of 3% will be made to the Routine Repair and 
Maintenance account in accordance with Board’s Budget Principles. 


• The transfer of RDA funds from the Building Fund to the General Fund 
will be reduced $165K.


2018-2019 General Budget Assumptions & Highlights
(Inclusive of May Revise Additions)


271 of 656







• The transfer from the General Fund to the Cafeteria Fund is projected 
to be $517K. This decrease in anticipated contribution was derived 
after revisiting forecasted revenues and anticipated expenditures.


• LCFF calculator corrections amount to approximately $3 million in 
revenue increase combined for 19-20 and 20-21. 


• STRS on behalf revenues and expenditures have been included 
amounting to $1.9 Million annually.  This change represents a $0 change 
to our reserve.  


2018-2019 General Budget Assumptions & Highlights
(Revisions from May Workshop to Budget Proposal)


272 of 656







2018-2019 General Budget Assumptions & Highlights
(Revisions from May Workshop to Budget Proposal)


• The May budget workshop values for Services and Other Operating 
Expenditures were revisited after reviewing the year to date 17-18 
expenses which resulted in a multi year increase of $1.8 Million based 
on 17-18 trend.  These items include increases in utilities, 
professional/consulting services and operating expenditures


• The May budget values for loss of Special Ed revenue were understated 
by approximately $600K annually, or $1.8 million over three years. 
• Includes multiple new non-public school (NPS) and residential 


placements
• Additional regional program placements for autism and severly 


handicapped students


273 of 656







Revenue and Expenditure Summary


• Revenue


• LCFF Sources $64,125,684


• Federal Revenue $3,509,565


• State Revenue $6,371,558


• Local Revenue $6,673,094


Total $80,679,901


• Expenditures


• Certificated Salaries $36,168,164


• Classified Salaries $11,258,391


• Benefits $21,457,159


• Books & Supplies $3,299,522


• Services & Operating Exp. $9,435,849


• Capital Outlay $210,000


• Other Outgo $11,420


Total $81,840,505


Excess/Deficiency ($1,160,604)


Net Transfers in/out $817,672


Net Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance ($342,932)


274 of 656







Beginning Fund Balance $8,526,312


Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance ($342,932)


Ending Fund Balance $8,183,380


Designations:


Restricted Fund Balance $1,041,440


Reserve for Economic Uncertainty 3% $2,470,735


Assigned Fund Balance $4,077,497


Undesignated $593,708


Impact of 18-19 Budget Proposal to Fund Balance


275 of 656







Revenue Sources


• LCFF Sources


• Federal Revenue


• State Revenue


• Local Revenue


276 of 656







64,125,683 


3,509,565 


6,371,558 


6,673,094 


2018/2019 Projected Revenue


LCFF Sources


Federal Revenue


State Revenue


Local Revenue


277 of 656







79%


5%


5% 11%


2018/2019 Projected Revenue as a %


LCFF Sources


Federal Revenue


State Revenue


Local Revenue


278 of 656







Federal Revenue Sources


• Title I, Part A, Every Student Succeeds Act


• Title II, Part A. Supporting Effective Instruction


• Title III, Limited English Proficiency


• Title III. Immigrant Education Program


• Title IV: Student Support and Academic Enrichment


• Special Ed IDEA: Individuals with Disabilities Education Act


• Transitional Partnership Program


• Medical Billing Option


• Perkins


279 of 656







1,595,012 


1,352,256 


198,837 


148,967 


94,005 


73,210 47,278 


2018/2019 Federal Revenue Sources


Title I, Part A


SP ED, IDEA


Title II, Imp. Teacher Quality


Transitional Partnership Program


Title III


Perkins


Medi-CAL Billing Option


280 of 656







44%


38%


8%


4%


2%
2%


1%


1%


2018/2019 Federal Revenue Sources


Title I, Part A


SP ED, IDEA


Title II, Imp. Teacher Quality


Transitional Partnership Program


Title III, LEP


Perkins


Medi-CAL Billing Option


All Other


281 of 656







State Revenue Sources


• One-Time Discretionary Funds $344 per ADA


• Mandated Block Grant On Going


• Lottery - Unrestricted


• Lottery – Restricted


• ASES - After School Education and Safety


• CTEIG – Career Technical Education Incentive Grant


• Special Ed Mental Health Services


• Special Ed Workability


282 of 656







2,157,711 


304,098 


911,186 


325,038 


245,372 


283,869 221,635 


2018/2019 State Revenue Sources


One-Time $344 Per ADA


Mandated Cost Block Grant


Lottery - Unrestricted


Lottery - Restricted


ASES


SP ED Mental Health Services


SP ED Workability


283 of 656







45%


5%


21%


7%


5%
6%


5%
5%


1%


2018/2019 State Revenue Sources


One-Time $344 Per ADA


Mandated Cost Block Grant


Lottery - Unrestricted


Lottery - Restricted


ASES


CTEIG


SP ED Mental Health
Services


284 of 656







Local Revenue Sources


• Parcel Tax Revenue


• Special Education


• Donations


• Other Restricted Local
• Facilities Use Fees


• Lease Revenue


• Medical Admin Activities (MAA)


• National Science Foundation Grant


• Workers Comp Safety Grant


• MTSS Grant


285 of 656







6,482,343 


50,751 
140,000 


2018/2019 Local Revenue Sources


Parcel Taxes


Special Education


Other Resticted Local


286 of 656







97%


1% 2%


2018/2019 Local Revenue Sources


Parcel Taxes


Special Education


Other Resticted Local


287 of 656







Expenditure Projections


• Certificated Salaries


• Classified Salaries


• Employee Benefits


• Books and Supplies


• Services and Other Operating Expenditures


288 of 656







36,168,164 


11,258,391 


21,457,159 


3,299,522 


9,435,849 
210,000 


2018/2019 Projected Expenditures


Certificated Salaries


Classified Salaries


Benefits


Books & Supplies


Services & Operating Expenses


Capital Outlay


289 of 656







44%


14%


26%


4%


12%


2018/2019 Projected Expenditures


Certificated Salaries


Classified Salaries


Benefits


Books & Supplies


Services & Operating Expenses


Capital Outlay


290 of 656







Expenditure Categories


• BOOKS AND SUPPLIES


• Approved Textbooks and Core Materials


• Books and Other Reference Material


• Materials and Supplies


• Non-capitalized Equipment


• SERVICES AND OPERATING EXPENDITURES


• Sub-agreements for Services


• Travel and Conferences


• Dues and Memberships


• Insurance


• Rentals, Leases, Repairs


• Transfers of Direct Costs


• Professional/Consulting Services, Utilities, and Operating Expenditures


• CAPITAL OUTLAY


• Buildings and Improvement of Buildings


• Equipment and Equipment Replacement


291 of 656







Unrestricted Restricted Total


Revenue 


LCFF Sources 64,125,684 0 64,125,684


Federal Revenue 0 3,509,565 3,509,565


State Revenue 3,372,995 2,998,563 6,371,558


Local Revenue 6,482,343 190,751 6,673,094


73,981,022 6,698,879 80,679,901


Expenditures


Certificated 29,343,399 6,824,765 36,168,164


Classified 8,093,637 3,164,754 11,258,391


Benefits 14,936,553 6,520,636 21,457,189


Books & Supplies 2,002,221 1,297,301 3,299,522


Services, Other Ops, Outgo 5,006,479 4,429,370 9,435,849


Capital Outlay 205,000 5,000 210,000


Direct/Indirect Support (1,051,165) 1,062,585 11,420


58,536,124 23,304,411 81,840,535


Excess/Deficiency 15,444,898 (16,605,532) (1,160,635)


Other Financing


Transfers In:


Def Maint Match from Bldg Fund 1,335,000 0 1,335,000


Transfers Out:


Cafeteria Contribution 517,328 517,328


Contributions To Restr.:


Restricted Misc. (17,199,203) 17,199,203 0


Net Inc/Dcr to Fund Balance (936,634) 593,671 (342,963)


Estimated 18/19 Beginning Fund Balance 8,180,733 345,578 8,526,311


Projected 18/19 Ending Fund Balance 7,244,100 939,249 8,183,349


Designations 4,178,829 4,178,829


3% Required Reserve 2,470,735 2,470,735


Undesignated 594,536 594,536


District's Projected Reserve 4.16%


2018-2019 Restricted & Unrestricted Budget 


General Fund Only


292 of 656







Multi-Year Revenue Assumptions
Revenues 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21


Federal COLA % 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%


State COLA % 1.56% 2.71% 2.57% 2.67%


LCFF COLA Augmented in 18-19 1.56% 3.00% 2.57% 2.67%


GAP Funding rate-Using SSC 44.97% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%


EPA Entitlement as % of total LCFF 23.50% 22.50% 22.50% 22.50%


Elementary


Basic Aid LCFF(Taxes)/ADA $8,176 $8,663 $8,713 $8,730


CBEDS Enrollment + COE 2,531 2,349 2,266 2,214


P2 ADA (K-6, A1-A9) 2,392 2,232 2,153 2,103


ADA/CBEDS Ratio 95% 95% 95% 95%


% Change in Property Taxes 3.39% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%


Basic Aid Revenue:


Excess Property Taxes above LCFF $3,302,127 $3,256,324 $5,610,709 $6,653,991


Basic Aid "Fair Share"  Reduction (8.92%) ($1,533,397) ($1,533,397) ($1,533,397) ($1,533,397)


Secondary


LCFF/ADA $9,408 $9,945 $9,968 $10,008


CBEDS Enrollment + COE 4,141 4,180 4,122 4,088


P2 ADA (7-12, A1-A9,) 3,897 3,955 3,900 3,889


ADA/CBEDS Ratio 94% 95% 95% 95%


Parcel Tax Revenue (P, I , J, and O )  .005 annual decrease $6,721,671 $6,688,062 $6,654,622 $6,654,622


Special Ed - State COLA (18-19 One Time Only) 0.00% 2.51% 0.00% 0.00%


Lottery - Unrestricted Funding per ADA $146 $146 $146 $146


Lottery - Rrestricted Funding per ADA $48 $48 $48 $48


Interest Projection $200,000 $210,000 $190,000 $180,000


Mandated Block Grant $262,847 $304,098 $304,098 $304,098


One-time Mandated Costs (2018-19 $344 per ADA) $924,058 $2,157,712 $0 $0
293 of 656







Multi-Year Expenditure Assumptions


Expenses 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21


Certificated step/column 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%


Classified step increases 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%


% Increase in Health & Welfare Benefits 5.29% 2.4% 6.0% 6.0%


Statutory Benefit Rates:


STRS 14.43% 16.28% 18.13% 19.10%


PERS 15.531% 18.062% 20.8% 23.5%


Medicare 1.45% 1.45% 1.45% 1.45%


FICA 6.20% 6.20% 6.20% 6.20%


State Unemployment 0.05% 0.05% 0.05% 0.05%


Workers Compensation 1.7491% 1.8366% 1.8366% 1.8366%


Increase in Utilities 16.6% 3.8% 3.8% 3.8%


Change in Property & Liability Insurance 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%


RRM 3% in 2019-20 2,134,531 2,297,385 2,460,240 2,460,240


Other Sources/Uses


Transfer from Fund 21 Building Fund RDA $1,500,000 $1,335,000 $1,170,000 $1,005,000


Transfer to Cafeteria Fund $546,941 $546,941 $546,941 $546,941


294 of 656







 Draft  Draft  Draft


As of 06/07/2018


Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total


Revenue 


LCFF Sources 60,796,992 60,796,992 64,125,684 0 64,125,684 65,878,483 0 65,878,483 67,021,503 0 67,021,503


Federal Revenue 3,784,500 3,784,500 0 3,509,565 3,509,565 0 3,520,791 3,520,791 0 3,520,791 3,520,791


State Revenue 2,193,397 3,620,686 5,814,083 3,372,995 2,998,563 6,371,558 1,543,705 2,867,677 4,411,382 1,543,705 2,867,677 4,411,382


Local Revenue 6,902,284 2,816,390 9,718,674 6,482,343 190,751 6,673,094 6,482,343 190,751 6,673,094 6,482,343 190,751 6,673,094


Total Revenue 69,892,673 10,221,576 80,114,249 73,981,022 6,698,879 80,679,901 73,904,531 6,579,219 80,483,750 75,047,551 6,579,219 81,626,770


0 0 0


Expenditures 0 0 0


Certificated 29,230,409 6,862,940 36,093,349 29,343,399 6,824,765 36,168,164 29,236,160 6,927,136 36,163,297 29,674,703 7,031,044 36,705,746


Classified 8,318,152 3,436,112 11,754,264 8,093,637 3,164,754 11,258,391 8,255,510 3,228,049 11,483,559 8,420,620 3,292,610 11,713,230


Benefits 14,167,209 6,266,025 20,433,234 14,936,533 6,520,626 21,457,159 15,766,237 6,858,070 22,624,307 16,585,713 7,102,848 23,688,561


Books & Supplies 1,553,155 4,685,522 6,238,677 2,002,221 1,297,301 3,299,522 1,571,414 1,301,879 2,873,293 1,613,371 1,336,639 2,950,010


Services, Other Ops 5,179,464 5,919,033 11,098,497 5,006,479 4,429,370 9,435,849 5,135,146 4,543,205 9,678,350 5,272,254 4,664,508 9,936,762


Capital Outlay 118,470 448,707 567,177 205,000 5,000 210,000 0 0 0 0 0 0


Other Outgo 25,420 0 25,420 11,420 0 11,420 11,420 0 11,420 11,420 0 11,420


Direct/Indirect Support (901,589) 901,589 0 (1,062,585) 1,062,585 0 (1,062,585) 1,062,585 0 (1,062,585) 1,062,585 0


   


Total Expenditures 57,690,690 28,519,928 86,210,618 58,536,104 23,304,401 81,840,505 58,913,302 23,920,924 82,834,226 60,515,495 24,490,234 85,005,730


   


Excess/Deficiency 12,201,983 (18,298,352) (6,096,369) 15,444,918 (16,605,522) (1,160,604) 14,991,229 (17,341,705) (2,350,476) 14,532,056 (17,911,015) (3,378,960)


Other Financing 0


Transfers In 1,500,000 0 1,500,000 1,335,000 0 1,335,000 1,170,000 0 1,170,000 1,050,049 0 1,050,049


Transfers Out 546,941 0 546,941 517,328 0 517,328 517,328 0 517,328 517,328 0 517,328


Other Uses 0 0 0 0 0 0


Contributions To Restr. (15,030,173) 15,030,173 0 (17,199,203) 17,199,203 0 (17,199,203) 17,199,203 0 (17,199,203) 17,199,203 0


Transfers/Contributions (14,077,114) 15,030,173 953,059 (16,381,531) 17,199,203 817,672 (16,546,531) 17,199,203 652,672 (16,666,482) 17,199,203 532,721


0 0 0


Net Inc/Dcr to Fund Balance (1,875,131) (3,268,179) (5,143,310) (936,613) 593,681 (342,932) (1,555,302) (142,502) (1,697,804) (2,134,426) (711,812) (2,846,239)


Beg Fund Balance 10,055,865 3,613,757 13,669,622 8,180,733 345,579 8,526,312 7,244,120 939,260 8,183,380 5,688,818 796,757 6,485,576


Audit Adjustments 0 0 0 0


Ending Fund Balance 8,180,733 345,579 8,526,312 7,244,120 939,260 8,183,380 5,688,818 796,757 6,485,576 3,554,392 84,945 3,639,337


0 0 0
0 0 0


Legally Restricted/Designated 101,352 345,579 446,931 101,352 939,260 1,040,612 101,352 796,757 898,109 101,352 84,945 186,297


Unrestricted Reserve:


Reserve 3% Econ. Uncert. 2,602,727 2,602,727 2,470,735 2,470,735 2,500,547 2,500,547 2,565,692 2,565,692


Reserve for 18-19 Deficit 936,613 936,613 0 0 0 0 0 0


Reserve for 19-20 Deficit 1,555,302 1,555,302 1,555,302 1,555,302 0 0 0 0


Reserve for 20-21 Deficit 703,707 703,707 1,964,359 1,964,359 1,876,854 0 0


Res. 17-18 1 Time Funding CMP 1,053,000 1,053,000 0 0 0 0 0 0


Res. 18-19 1 Time Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Parcel Tax Reserve 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000 340,000


Reserve for Medi-Cal Post Audit 217,836 217,836 217,836 217,836 217,836 217,836 217,836 217,836


Reserve for Curriculum Master Plan 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0


Undesignated 670,197 670,197 594,536 594,536 652,230 652,230 329,512 329,512


% Unrestricted Reserve 9.43% 8.80% 6.83% 4.16%


Santa Cruz City Schools


Multi Year Projection


2018-2019 Budget Proposal 


2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21


EOY  Projected Projected Projected Projected


295 of 656







Federal Funding Descriptions


• Title I, Part A, Every Student Succeeds Act
• Purpose: to meet the educational needs of low-achieving students in high poverty schools. 


• Title II, Part A. Supporting Effective Instruction
• Purpose: 1) to improve teacher and principal quality though professional development. 2) to 


provide low-income and minority students greater access to effective teachers, principals, 


and other school leaders


• Title III, Limited English Proficiency
• Purpose: to assist EL students to acquire English and achieve grade-level and graduation 


standards.


• Title III. Immigrant Education Program
• Purpose: to assist immigrant students to acquire English and achieve grade-level and 


graduation standards


296 of 656







Federal Funding Descriptions


• Title IV: Student Support and Academic Enrichment
• Purpose: to increase the capacity of LEAs to meet Title I goals.


• Special Ed IDEA: Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
• Purpose: to serve children with disabilities ages six through twenty-one.


• Transitional Partnership Program
• Purpose: to provide students with disabilities the tools and support to transition from school 


to competitive employment.


• Medical Billing Option
• Purpose: to allow LEAs to become Medi-Cal providers and bill the Medical program for 


certain health related services and assessments.


• Perkins
• Purpose: Career Technical Education.


297 of 656







State Funding Descriptions


• ASES - After School Education and Safety
• Purpose: to maintain before and after school programs.


• CTEIG – Career Technical Education Incentive Grant
• Purpose: to provide students with the knowledge and skills necessary to transition to 


employment and postsecondary education


• Special Ed Mental Health Services
• Purpose: to provide educationally related Mental Health services to students receiving 


special education services.


• Special Ed Workability
• Purpose: to provide comprehensive pre-employment skills training, employment placement 


and follow-up for high school students in special education who are making the transition 


from school to work, independent living and postsecondary education or training.


298 of 656







State Funding Descriptions


• Mandated Block Grant On-Going
• Purpose: Unrestricted one-time funding to offset reimbursement for the costs of various 


mandated programs and activities identified in Government Code (GC) Section 17581.6(f)


• One-Time Discretionary Funds $344 per ADA
• Purpose: One time funds to off set outstanding local mandate claims


• Lottery - Unrestricted


• Lottery – Restricted for Instructional Materials


299 of 656







Other Fund Highlights


• Adult Ed – We will continue to pay for the salaries and benefits of the 


remaining SCCS employees through an MOU with PVUSD.


• Cafeteria Fund – Our assumptions include that we will continue to make an 


equivalent contribution from the General Fund to the Cafeteria Fund.  


• Deferred Maintenance – We have not budgeted any deferred maintenance 


expenditures anticipated for fiscal year 18-19. 


• Special Reserve for Post Employment Benefits – The District is continuing to 


fund this expense on a “Pay as You Go” model.  


• Building Fund – Includes expenditures associated with Measures A and B, as 


well as transfers associated with RDA funds.  


• Capital Facilities Fund – We have budgeted for the ongoing lease of 


portables from these funds.


• Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects – We do not have anything 


budgeted as of yet. 
300 of 656







Highlights of Budget Workshop to Budget Proposal


• Revenues


• LCFF Adjustment – Validated with COE after corrupted LCFF calculator 


file….. 19-20 and 20-21 increased revenue of approximately $1Million in 


Each Year


• State Revenues – Increased by STRS on Behalf


• Local Revenues – Reduced MAA/Donations/Grants as these are 


variable annually – will be adjusted at first interim as appropriate


• Expenditures


• Classified Salaries reduced by amounts spent in 17-18 on EWAs


• Benefits were increased by STRS on behalf


• Services and Other Operating Expenditures were increased 


• Items to Still Be Quantified


• Bond Expenditures still need to quantify the cost of installation of safety 


and technology upgrades.


• Final Costs for Buses and support of the Technology Plan need to be 


quantified


• These costs will be included in our First Interim report.  


301 of 656







This page has been left blank







30
3 


of
 6


56







30
4 


of
 6


56







30
5 


of
 6


56







30
6 


of
 6


56







30
7 


of
 6


56







30
8 


of
 6


56







30
9 


of
 6


56







31
0 


of
 6


56







31
1 


of
 6


56







31
2 


of
 6


56







31
3 


of
 6


56







31
4 


of
 6


56







31
5 


of
 6


56







31
6 


of
 6


56







31
7 


of
 6


56







31
8 


of
 6


56







31
9 


of
 6


56







32
0 


of
 6


56







32
1 


of
 6


56







32
2 


of
 6


56







32
3 


of
 6


56







32
4 


of
 6


56







32
5 


of
 6


56







32
6 


of
 6


56







32
7 


of
 6


56







32
8 


of
 6


56







32
9 


of
 6


56







33
0 


of
 6


56







33
1 


of
 6


56







33
2 


of
 6


56







33
3 


of
 6


56







33
4 


of
 6


56







33
5 


of
 6


56







33
6 


of
 6


56







33
7 


of
 6


56







33
8 


of
 6


56







33
9 


of
 6


56







34
0 


of
 6


56







34
1 


of
 6


56







34
2 


of
 6


56







34
3 


of
 6


56







34
4 


of
 6


56







34
5 


of
 6


56







34
6 


of
 6


56







34
7 


of
 6


56







34
8 


of
 6


56







34
9 


of
 6


56







35
0 


of
 6


56







35
1 


of
 6


56







35
2 


of
 6


56







35
3 


of
 6


56







35
4 


of
 6


56







35
5 


of
 6


56







35
6 


of
 6


56







35
7 


of
 6


56







35
8 


of
 6


56







35
9 


of
 6


56







36
0 


of
 6


56







36
1 


of
 6


56







36
2 


of
 6


56







36
3 


of
 6


56







36
4 


of
 6


56







36
5 


of
 6


56







36
6 


of
 6


56







36
7 


of
 6


56







36
8 


of
 6


56







36
9 


of
 6


56







37
0 


of
 6


56







37
1 


of
 6


56







37
2 


of
 6


56







37
3 


of
 6


56







37
4 


of
 6


56







37
5 


of
 6


56







37
6 


of
 6


56







37
7 


of
 6


56







37
8 


of
 6


56







37
9 


of
 6


56







38
0 


of
 6


56







38
1 


of
 6


56







38
2 


of
 6


56







38
3 


of
 6


56







38
4 


of
 6


56







38
5 


of
 6


56







38
6 


of
 6


56







38
7 


of
 6


56







This page has been left blank







38
9 


of
 6


56







39
0 


of
 6


56







39
1 


of
 6


56







39
2 


of
 6


56







39
3 


of
 6


56







39
4 


of
 6


56







39
5 


of
 6


56







39
6 


of
 6


56







39
7 


of
 6


56







39
8 


of
 6


56







39
9 


of
 6


56







40
0 


of
 6


56







40
1 


of
 6


56







40
2 


of
 6


56







40
3 


of
 6


56







40
4 


of
 6


56







40
5 


of
 6


56







40
6 


of
 6


56







40
7 


of
 6


56







40
8 


of
 6


56







40
9 


of
 6


56







41
0 


of
 6


56







41
1 


of
 6


56







41
2 


of
 6


56







41
3 


of
 6


56







41
4 


of
 6


56







41
5 


of
 6


56







41
6 


of
 6


56







41
7 


of
 6


56







41
8 


of
 6


56







41
9 


of
 6


56







42
0 


of
 6


56







42
1 


of
 6


56







42
2 


of
 6


56







42
3 


of
 6


56







42
4 


of
 6


56







42
5 


of
 6


56







42
6 


of
 6


56







42
7 


of
 6


56







42
8 


of
 6


56







42
9 


of
 6


56







43
0 


of
 6


56







43
1 


of
 6


56







43
2 


of
 6


56







43
3 


of
 6


56







43
4 


of
 6


56







43
5 


of
 6


56







43
6 


of
 6


56







43
7 


of
 6


56







43
8 


of
 6


56







43
9 


of
 6


56







44
0 


of
 6


56







44
1 


of
 6


56







44
2 


of
 6


56







44
3 


of
 6


56







44
4 


of
 6


56







44
5 


of
 6


56







44
6 


of
 6


56







44
7 


of
 6


56







44
8 


of
 6


56







44
9 


of
 6


56







45
0 


of
 6


56







45
1 


of
 6


56







45
2 


of
 6


56







45
3 


of
 6


56







45
4 


of
 6


56







45
5 


of
 6


56







45
6 


of
 6


56







45
7 


of
 6


56







45
8 


of
 6


56







45
9 


of
 6


56







46
0 


of
 6


56







46
1 


of
 6


56







46
2 


of
 6


56







46
3 


of
 6


56







46
4 


of
 6


56







46
5 


of
 6


56







46
6 


of
 6


56







46
7 


of
 6


56







46
8 


of
 6


56







46
9 


of
 6


56







47
0 


of
 6


56







47
1 


of
 6


56







47
2 


of
 6


56







47
3 


of
 6


56







47
4 


of
 6


56







47
5 


of
 6


56







47
6 


of
 6


56







47
7 


of
 6


56







47
8 


of
 6


56







47
9 


of
 6


56







48
0 


of
 6


56







48
1 


of
 6


56







48
2 


of
 6


56







48
3 


of
 6


56







48
4 


of
 6


56







48
5 


of
 6


56







48
6 


of
 6


56







48
7 


of
 6


56







48
8 


of
 6


56







48
9 


of
 6


56







49
0 


of
 6


56







49
1 


of
 6


56







49
2 


of
 6


56







49
3 


of
 6


56







49
4 


of
 6


56







49
5 


of
 6


56







49
6 


of
 6


56







49
7 


of
 6


56







49
8 


of
 6


56







49
9 


of
 6


56







50
0 


of
 6


56







50
1 


of
 6


56







50
2 


of
 6


56







50
3 


of
 6


56







50
4 


of
 6


56







50
5 


of
 6


56







50
6 


of
 6


56







50
7 


of
 6


56







50
8 


of
 6


56







50
9 


of
 6


56







51
0 


of
 6


56







51
1 


of
 6


56







51
2 


of
 6


56







51
3 


of
 6


56







51
4 


of
 6


56







51
5 


of
 6


56







51
6 


of
 6


56







51
7 


of
 6


56







51
8 


of
 6


56







51
9 


of
 6


56







52
0 


of
 6


56







52
1 


of
 6


56







52
2 


of
 6


56







52
3 


of
 6


56







52
4 


of
 6


56







52
5 


of
 6


56







52
6 


of
 6


56







52
7 


of
 6


56







52
8 


of
 6


56







52
9 


of
 6


56







53
0 


of
 6


56







53
1 


of
 6


56







53
2 


of
 6


56







53
3 


of
 6


56







53
4 


of
 6


56







53
5 


of
 6


56







53
6 


of
 6


56







53
7 


of
 6


56







This page has been left blank







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.4 
    C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 061318\PUBLIC HEARING BUDGET 1819 COVER.DOC 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Public Hearing on 2018-19 Preliminary Budget 
 
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board is required by AB 1200 to conduct a public hearing on the 2018-19 Adopted Budget 
to allow for public comment prior to the Board approving the budget.  Approval of the 
Adopted Budget will take place in Open Session at the Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018. 
Notice of this hearing was published in the Santa Cruz Sentinel.  The public notice was also sent 
to all school sites, and indicated the availability of the 2018-19 budget in the Business Office. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management 
 


539 of 656







This page has been left blank







541 of 656







This page has been left blank







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy Updates 
      
MEETING DATE:  June 13, 2018 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised/deleted/new policies as submitted for first and/or final reading and 
adoption.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which 
uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code 
and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.   
 
The Policy Guidesheet provides a basic overview of the policy changes.  Proposed revised 
policies precede current documents for your review.  If a policy is submitted for deletion, there 
is no new policy for review.  If the policy is new to our district, there is no current policy for 
review.  
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


543 of 656







This page has been left blank







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


March 2018 


Page 1 of 2 
 


 
BP 0420.4 - Charter School Authorization (from Dec. 2017) 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to delete material regarding the conversion of a low-performing school into a charter school when petitioned by 


parents/guardians under the Parent Empowerment Act, and to add requirement that accountability measures in an approved charter 


include student outcomes aligned with state priorities in the local control and accountability plan.  


 


BP 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to list all state and federal programs subject to the uniform complaint procedures (UCP) as specified in the 


Federal Program Monitoring instrument, reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which includes immigration status as a prohibited basis 


for discrimination, and reflect NEW LAW (AB 365) which authorizes the use of UCP for alleged noncompliance with certain 


educational rights of children of military families. Policy also revised to clarify that, although complaints of employment 


discrimination are not subject to UCP, the district has an obligation to investigate such complaints using other district 


procedures.  


 


BP 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 250) which requires districts to make their meal charge policy public and ensure that 


students with unpaid meal fees are not shamed or treated differently than other students. Section on "Procurement of Foods, 


Equipment, and Supplies" reflects NEW LAW (SB 730) which requires the California Department of Education (CDE) to 


provide information about the Buy American provision, NEW LAW (AB 822) which requires a preference for California-


grown agricultural products with specified exceptions, and NEW LAW (SB 544) which clarifies that procurements in federally 


funded nutrition programs are subject to the procurement standards of the federal Uniform Guidance 


 
BP 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 138) which requires districts to apply by September 1, 2018, for a federal universal 


meal service for "very high poverty schools," as defined, for the purpose of providing breakfast and/or lunch free of charge to 


all students enrolled at the school. An exception exists for districts whose board adopts a resolution stating the district is unable 


to comply due to fiscal hardship.  


 


BP 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to expand discussion of possible recruitment incentives, including subsidized housing programs for teachers 


and other employees and NEW LAW (AB 99) which establishes the California Educator Development grant program to assist 


districts with attracting and supporting the preparation and continued learning of teachers, principals, and other school leaders. 


Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 168) which prohibits districts from seeking salary history information about an applicant 


and from relying on salary history information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment or the salary to offer  


an applicant, unless the salary information is disclosable under state or federal law or the applicant voluntarily discloses the 


information without prompting.  


 


BP 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to provide a strong statement of the board's commitment to provide a safe work environment that is free of 


sexual harassment and intimidation and to align the process for filing complaints of sexual harassment with AR 4030 - 


Nondiscrimination in Employment.  


 


BP 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to add options formerly in AR regarding the disclosure of students' personal information for marketing purposes. 


Policy also reflects state law which prohibits the collection of social security numbers or the last four digits of social security 


numbers for such purposes and NEW LAW (AB 699) which prohibits the collection of information regarding the citizenship 


or immigration status of students or their families.  


 


 


 


545 of 656







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


March 2018 


Page 2 of 2 
 


 


 


BP 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process  (from Dec. 2017) 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to add homeless students as one of the numerically significant student subgroups for whom the district must 


monitor suspension/expulsion data, and to add board review of disaggregated suspension/expulsion data for the purpose of 


identifying any disparities in the imposition of discipline.  


 


BP 5145.13 - Response to Immigration Enforcement  (from May 2018) 


(BP added) 


New policy reflects NEW LAW (AB 699) which mandates districts to adopt, by July 1, 2018, policy consistent with the model 


policy developed by the California Attorney General, including policy related to the district's response to requests by law 


enforcement for access to information, students, or school grounds for immigration enforcement purposes and actions to be 


taken in the event that a student's family member is detained or deported. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (SB 31) which 


prohibits districts from compiling or assisting federal government authorities with compiling a list, registry, or database based 


on students' national origin, ethnicity, or religion.   


 


BP 5145.6 - Parental Notifications 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect federal law applicable to districts participating in certain federal programs which requires that parental 


notifications be presented in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent practicable, in a language that 


parents/guardians can understand. Policy also revised to reflect state law requiring that parental notifications be written in the 


primary language, in addition to English, whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a school speak a single 


primary language other than English.  


 


BP 6162.5 - Student Assessment 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1035) which addresses the use and purpose of interim and formative assessments 


that are part of the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, prohibits their use for high-stakes purposes as 


defined, and requires that teachers who administer the assessments have access to all pertinent functions and information. 


 


BP/AR 6171 - Title I Programs 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to address (1) the requirement to use federal Title I funds to supplement, not supplant, funds available from 


state and local sources; (2) use of the district's local control and accountability plan to fulfill requirements for the Title I local 


educational agency plan; and (3) methods for demonstrating the comparability of services between Title I and non-Title I 


schools. Regulation updated to reflect amendments by the Every Student Succeeds Act related to schoolwide programs, targeted 


assistance programs, and participation by private school students. 


546 of 656







Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0420.4(a) 


 


CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that charter schools may assist the district in offering diverse 


learning opportunities for students. In considering any petition to establish a charter school 


within the district, the Board shall give thoughtful consideration to the potential of the charter 


school to provide students with a high-quality education that enables them to achieve to their 


fullest potential. 


 


One or more persons may submit a petition for a start-up charter school to be established within 


the district. In addition, an existing district school may be converted to a charter school when 


deemed beneficial by the district and community.  (Education Code 47605, 47606, 53300) 


 


The district shall not require any district student to attend the charter school nor shall it require 


any district employee to work at the charter school.  (Education Code 47605) 


 


Any petition for a start-up charter school or conversion charter school shall include all 


components and signatures required by law and shall be submitted to the Board. The 


Superintendent or designee shall consult with legal counsel, as appropriate, regarding 


compliance of the charter proposals with legal requirements. 


 


The Superintendent or designee may work with charter school petitioners prior to the formal 


submission of the petition in order to ensure compliance of the petition with legal requirements. 


As needed, he/she also may meet with the petitioners to establish workable plans for technical 


assistance or contracted services which the district may provide to the proposed charter school. 


 


Within 30 days of receiving a petition to establish a charter school, the Board shall hold a 


public hearing to determine the level of support for the petition by teachers, other employees 


of the district, and parents/guardians.  (Education Code 47605) 


 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


 


Within 60 days of receiving a petition, or within 90 days with mutual consent of the petitioners 


and the Board, the Board shall either approve or deny the request to establish the charter school.  


(Education Code 47605) 


 


The approval or denial of a charter petition shall not be controlled by collective bargaining 


agreements nor subject to review or regulation by the Public Employment Relations Board.  


(Education Code 47611.5) 


 


Approval of Petition 


 


The Board shall approve the charter petition if doing so is consistent with sound educational 


practice.  In granting charters, the Board shall give preference to schools best able to provide  


 


  


 


547 of 656







 BP 0420.4(b) 


 


 


CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION  (continued) 


 


 


comprehensive learning experiences for academically low-achieving students according to 


standards established by the California Department of Education (CDE) under Education Code 


54032.  (Education Code 47605) 


 


The Board may initially grant a charter for a specified term not to exceed five years.  (Education 


Code 47607) 


 
(cf. 0420.42 - Charter School Renewal) 


(cf. 0420.43 - Charter School Revocation) 


 


The Board shall ensure that any approved charter contains adequate processes and measures 


for holding the school accountable for fulfilling the terms of its charter. These shall include, 


but are not limited to, fiscal accountability systems, multiple measures for evaluating the 


educational program, including student outcomes aligned with state priorities as described in 


Education Code 52060, and regular reports to the Board. 


 
(cf. 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight) 


 


The Board may approve one or more memoranda of understanding to clarify the financial and 


operational agreements between the district and the charter school. Any such memorandum of 


understanding shall be annually reviewed by the Board and charter school governing body and 


amended as necessary. 


 


It shall be the responsibility of the petitioners to provide written notice of the Board's approval 


and a copy of the charter to the County Superintendent of Schools, the CDE, and the State 


Board of Education (SBE).  (Education Code 47605) 


 


Denial of Petition 


 


The Board shall deny any petition to authorize the conversion of a private school to a charter 


school.  The Board shall also deny any petition for a charter that proposes to serve students in 


a grade level that is not served by the district, unless the petition proposes to serve students in 


all the grade levels served by the district.  (Education Code 47602, 47605) 


 


Any other charter petition shall be denied only if the Board makes written factual findings 


specific to the petition that one or more of the following conditions exist:  (Education Code 


47605) 


 


1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program for the students to be 


enrolled in the charter school. 


 


2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set 


forth in the petition. 


 
548 of 656







 BP 0420.4(c) 


 


 


CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION  (continued) 


 


 


3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required. 


 


4. The petition does not contain an affirmation of each of the conditions described in 


Education Code 47605(d). 


 


5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of the charter 


provisions in Education Code 47605(b). 


 


6. The petition does not contain a declaration as to whether or not the charter school shall 


be deemed the exclusive public school employer of the school's employees for purposes 


of collective bargaining pursuant to Government Code 3540-3549.3. 


 


The Board shall not deny a petition based on the actual or potential costs of serving students 


with disabilities, nor shall it deny a petition solely because the charter school might enroll 


students with disabilities who reside outside the special education local plan area in which the 


district participates.  (Education Code 47605.7, 47647) 


 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 


 


If the Board denies a petition, the petitioners may choose to submit the petition to the County 


Board of Education and, if then denied by the County Board, to the SBE.  (Education Code 


47605) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


549 of 656







 BP 0420.4(d) 


 


 


CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200 Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions 


220  Nondiscrimination 


17078.52-17078.66  Charter schools facility funding; state bond proceeds 


17280-17317  Field Act 


17365-17374  Field Act, fitness for occupancy 


33126 School Accountability Report Card 


41365  Charter school revolving loan fund 


42238.51-42238.2  Funding for charter districts 


44237  Criminal record summary 


44830.1 Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 


45122.1 Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 


46201  Instructional minutes 


47600-47616.7  Charter Schools Act of 1992 


47640-47647  Special education funding for charter schools 


47650-47652 Funding of charter schools 


49011 Student fees 


51745-51749.6   Independent study 


52052  Numerically significant student subgroup, definition 


52060-52077 Local control and accountability plan 


56026  Special education 


56145-56146  Special education services in charter schools 


CORPORATIONS CODE 


5110-6910  Nonprofit public benefit corporations 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


11700.1-11705  Independent study 


11960-11968.5.5  Charter schools 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 


Part 2 California Building Standards Code 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


7223-7225  Charter schools 


COURT DECISIONS 


Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006) 


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 


78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995) 


 


 


 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


550 of 656







 BP 0420.4(e) 


 


 


CHARTER SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION  (continued) 


 


 


 
Management Resources:   


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 2: Ensuring Effective Oversight, Governance Brief, October 2017 


Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 1: Managing the Petition Review Process, Governance Brief, 


November 2016 


Charter Schools and Board Member Responsibilities, Education Insights Legal Update Webcast, 


March 2016 


Charter Schools: A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. February 2016 


Charter School Facilities and Proposition 39:  Legal Implications for School Districts, 2005 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Sample Copy of a Memorandum of Understanding 


Charter School Authorization: Guidance and Technical Assistance for Prospective Charter School 


Authorizers, Webinar 2014 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE 


Dear Colleague Letter: Guidance Regarding the Oversight of Charter Schools Program and 


Regulatory Requirements, including the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 


Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, August 2016 


Charter Schools Program, January 2014 


Guidance on the Voluntary Use of Race to Achieve Diversity and Avoid Racial Isolation in Elementary 


and Secondary Schools, December 2011 


Applying Federal Civil Rights Laws to Public Charter Schools: Questions and Answers, May 2000 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.calcharters.org 


California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs 


National Association of Charter School Authorizers: http://www.qualitycharters.org 


U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 


adopted: December 2017 


 


551 of 656







This page has been left blank







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Charter Schools 
 


BP 0420.4  


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 


 


Charter schools shall operate under the provisions of their charters, federal laws, specified state 


laws, and general oversight of the Governing Board. 


 


The Superintendent or designee may work with charter school petitioners prior to the formal 


submission of the petition in order to gather information about the proposal and suggest 


components that would align the petition with the district's vision and goals for student learning. 


As needed, he/she may work with the petitioners to establish workable plans for technical 


assistance or contracted services that the district may provide to the proposed charter school. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall also consult with legal counsel as appropriate regarding 


compliance of the proposal with legal requirements. 


 


In determining whether to grant or deny a charter, the Board shall carefully review the proposed 


charter and any supplementary information, consider public and staff input, and determine 


whether the charter petition adequately addresses all the provisions required by law. The Board 


shall not deny a charter school petition unless specific written factual findings are made pursuant 


to law and administrative regulation. 


 


The Board may approve one or more memoranda of understanding to clarify the financial and 


operational agreements between the district and the charter school.  Any such memorandum of 


understanding shall be annually reviewed by the Board and charter school and adjusted as 


necessary 


 


The district shall not require any student to attend a charter school and shall not require any 


district employee to work at a charter school.  (Education Code 47605) 


 


The Board shall ensure that any charter granted by the Board contains adequate processes and 


measures for holding the school accountable for fulfilling the terms of its charter. These shall 


include, but not be limited to, fiscal accountability systems, multiple measures for evaluating the 


educational program, and regular reports to the Board. 


 


The Board shall monitor each charter school to determine whether it makes "adequate yearly 


progress" as defined by the State Board of Education and federal Title I accountability 


requirements.  If a charter school fails to make adequate yearly progress for two or more 


consecutive years, the Board shall take action for program improvement in accordance with law, 


Board policy, and administrative regulations. 


 


553 of 656







(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


17280-17317 Field Act 


17365-17374 Field Act, fitness for occupancy 


41365  Charter school revolving loan fund 


42100 Annual statement of receipts and expenditures 


42238.51-42238.53  Funding for charter districts 


44237  Criminal record summary 


44830.1 Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 


45122.1 Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 


46201  Instructional minutes 


47600-47616.7  Charter Schools Act of 1992, as amended 


47640-47647 Special education funding for charter schools 


47652 Funding of first-year charter schools 


48000  Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 


48010  Minimum age of admission (first grade) 


48011  Minimum age of admission from kindergarten or other school 


51745-51749.3  Independent study 


52052 Alternative accountability system 


54032  Limited English or low-achieving pupils 


56026  Special education 


56145-56146 Special education services in charter schools 


60600-60649  Assessment of academic achievement, including: 


60605 Academic content and performance standards; assessments 


60640-60649 Standardized Testing and Reporting Program 


60850-60859 High school exit examination 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act 


54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act 


PENAL CODE 


667.5 Definition of violent felony 


1192.7 Definition of serious felony 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


11700.1-11705  Independent study 


11960-11969  Charter schools 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 24 


101 et seq. California Building Standards Code 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


6311 Adequate yearly progress 


6319  Qualifications of teachers and paraprofessionals 


7223-7225  Charter schools 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


554 of 656







200.1-200.78  Accountability 


300.18  Highly qualified special education teachers 


COURT DECISIONS 


Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 986 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006) 


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997) 


78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Charter Schools: A Manual for Governance Teams, rev. 2005 


CSBA ADVISORIES 


Charter School Facilities and Proposition 39:  Legal Implications for School Districts, 


September 2005 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Special Education and Charter Schools: Questions and Answers, September 10, 2002 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION GUIDANCE 


Charter Schools Program, July 2004 


The Impact of the New Title I Requirements on Charter Schools, July 2004 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Building Standards Commission:  http://www.bsc.ca.gov 


California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.charterassociation.org 


California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs 


Education Commission of the States: http://www.ecs.org 


National Association of Charter School Authorizers: http://www.charterauthorizers.org 


National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org 


U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  March 10, 2010 Soquel, California 


555 of 656







This page has been left blank







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Uniform Complaint Procedures 
 


BP 1312.3  


Community Relations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure 


compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 


programs. The Board encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve 


complaints which may require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform system of 


complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative 


regulation. 


 


Complaints Subject to the UCP 


 


The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the 


following complaints: 


 


1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations 


governing adult education programs, After School Education and Safety programs, agricultural 


vocational education, American Indian education centers and early childhood education program 


assessments, bilingual education, peer assistance and review programs for teachers, career 


technical and technical education and training programs, child care and development programs, 


child nutrition programs, compensatory education, consolidated categorical aid programs, 


Economic Impact Aid, English learner programs, federal education programs in Title I-VII, 


migrant education, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, school safety plans, special 


education programs, State Preschool Programs, Tobacco-Use Prevention Education programs, 


and any other district-implemented program which is listed in Education Code 64000(a) 


 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 


(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 


(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 


(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 


(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 


(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 


(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 


557 of 656







 


2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as 


discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) against any student, employee, or other 


person participating in district programs and activities, including, but not limited to, those 


programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any state financial 


assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, 


ancestry, nationality, national origin, immigration status, ethnic group identification, age, 


religion, marital status, pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental  disability, sex, sexual 


orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other 


characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 


422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these actual 


or perceived characteristics  (5 CCR 4610) 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


 


3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide 


reasonable accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast milk, 


breastfeed an infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the student  


(Education Code 222) 


 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


 


4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring 


students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational activities  (5 CCR 


4610) 


 


(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 


(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 


 


5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the 


implementation of the local control and accountability plan  (Education Code 52075) 


 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


 


6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district 


noncompliance with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding placement 


decisions, the responsibilities of the district's educational liaison to the student, the award of 


credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district, school transfer, or the 


grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements (Education Code 48853, 


48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2) 


 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


 


 


558 of 656







7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, a 


former juvenile court school student, or a child of a military family as defined in Education Code 


49701 who transfers into the district after his/her second year of high school, alleging district 


noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the student regarding the award of credit for 


coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district or the grant of an exemption 


from Board-imposed graduation requirements  (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2) 


 


(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 


(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 


 


8. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code 


51228.1 and 51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student in grades 9-12 to a course without 


educational content for more than one week in any semester or to a course the student has 


previously satisfactorily completed, without meeting specified conditions (Education Code 


51228.3) 


 


(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 


 


9. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education instructional 


minutes requirement for students in elementary school  (Education Code 51210, 51223) 


 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


 


10. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the 


complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy 


 


11. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy 


 


The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of 


the allegations, offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to all 


parties. ADR such as mediation may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one 


student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint 


involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would 


feel compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the use of ADR is 


consistent with state and federal laws and regulations. 


 


The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the 


confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. For any complaint 


alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 


or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep the identity of the complainant, and/or the 


subject of the complaint if he/she is different from the complainant, confidential when 


appropriate and as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained. 


 


(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


559 of 656







(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


 


When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district 


shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if 


appropriate, resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and 


knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines specified in 


this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the 


investigations of those complaints in accordance with applicable law and district policy. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


Non-UCP Complaints 


 


The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the 


specified agency:  (5 CCR 4611) 


 


1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department 


of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement 


agency. 


 


(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 


 


2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program 


shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-


exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator. 


 


3. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the Legal, Audits and Compliance 


Branch of the California Department of Education. 


 


Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated and 


resolved by the district in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 4030 - 


Nondiscrimination in Employment. 


 


Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent 


facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or teacher 


vacancies and misassignments shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with the 


procedures in AR 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 35186) 


 


560 of 656







(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


222  Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 


8200-8498  Child care and development programs 


8500-8538  Adult basic education 


18100-18203  School libraries 


32280-32289  School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures 


33380-33384 California Indian Education Centers 


35186  Williams uniform complaint procedures 


44500-44508  California Peer Assistance and Review Program for Teachers 


48853-48853.5  Foster youth 


48985  Notices in language other than English 


49010-49013  Student fees 


49060-49079  Student records 


49069.5  Rights of parents 


49490-49590  Child nutrition programs 


49701 Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children 


51210  Courses of study grades 1-6 


51223  Physical education, elementary schools 


51225.1-51225.2  Foster youth, homeless children, former juvenile court school students, and 


military-connected students; course credits; graduation requirements 


51226-51226.1  Career technical education 


51228.1-51228.3  Course periods without educational content 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan, especially: 


52075  Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan 


requirements 


52160-52178  Bilingual education programs 


52300-52462 Career technical education 


52500-52616.24  Adult schools 


54000-54029  Economic Impact Aid 


54400-54425  Compensatory education programs 


54440-54445  Migrant education 


54460-54529  Compensatory education programs 


56000- 56865  Special education programs 


59000-59300  Special schools and centers 


64000-64001  Consolidated application process 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


104420  Tobacco-Use Prevention Education 


561 of 656







PENAL CODE 


422.55  Hate crime; definition 


422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 


11023  Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


3080  Application of section 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1221  Application of laws 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 


6301-6576  Title I basic programs 


6801-7014  Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students 


7101-7184  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act 


7201-7283g  Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs 


7301-7372  Title V rural and low-income school programs 


12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 


2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 


6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Sample UCP Board Policies and Procedures 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 


Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other 


Students, or Third Parties, January 2001 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 


562 of 656







Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against 


National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


563 of 656







This page has been left blank







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Uniform Complaint Procedures 
 


BP 1312.3  


Community Relations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure 


compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 


programs. The Board encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To resolve 


complaints which may require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform system of 


complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative 


regulation. 


 


The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the 


following complaints: 


 


1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations 


governing adult education programs, after school education and safety programs, migrant 


education, career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and 


development programs, child nutrition programs, special education programs, consolidated 


categorical aid programs, and any other district-implemented program which is listed in 


Education Code 64000(a) (5 CCR 4610) 


 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 


(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 


(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 


(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 


(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 


(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 


(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 


(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 


 


2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as 


discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) against any student, employee, or other 


person participating in district programs and activities, including, but not limited to, those 


programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit from any state financial 


assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, 


ancestry, nationality, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital, 


565 of 656







pregnancy, or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender, 


gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other characteristic identified 


in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code 422.55, or based on 


his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived 


characteristics  (5 CCR 4610) 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 


 


3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide 


reasonable accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast milk, 


breastfeed an infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the student  


(Education Code 222) 


 


(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 


 


4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring 


students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational activities  (5 CCR 


4610) 


 


(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 


(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 


 


5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the 


implementation of the local control and accountability plan  (Education Code 52075) 


 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


 


6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district 


noncompliance with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding placement 


decisions, the responsibilities of the district's educational liaison to the student, the award of 


credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district, school transfer, or the 


grant of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements (Education Code 48853, 


48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2) 


 


(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 


 


7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, 


alleging district noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the student regarding the 


award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district or the grant 


of an exemption from Board-imposed graduation requirements  (Education Code 51225.1, 


51225.2) 


 


(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 


 


566 of 656







8. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code 


51228.1 and 51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student to a course without educational 


content for more than one week in any semester or to a course the student has previously 


satisfactorily completed, without meeting specified conditions  (Education Code 51228.3) 


 


(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 


 


9. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education instructional 


minutes requirement for students in elementary school  (Education Code 51210, 51223) 


 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


 


10. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the 


complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy 


 


11. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy 


 


The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of 


the allegations, offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to all 


parties. ADR such as mediation may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one 


student and no adult.  However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint 


involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would 


feel compelled to participate.  The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the use of ADR 


is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations. 


 


The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the 


confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. As appropriate for 


any complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 


intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep confidential the identity of 


the complainant and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she is different from the complainant, 


as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained. 


 


(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


 


When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district 


shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if 


appropriate, resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and 


knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines specified in 


this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


567 of 656







(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the 


investigations of those complaints in accordance with applicable law and district policy. 


 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


 


Non-UCP Complaints 


 


The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the 


specified agency:  (5 CCR 4611) 


 


1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department 


of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement 


agency. 


 


2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program 


shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-


exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator. 


 


3. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination shall be sent to the California 


Department of Fair Employment and Housing and the compliance officer shall notify the 


complainant by first class mail of the transfer. 


 


4. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the California Department of Education. 


 


In addition, the district's Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures, AR 1312.4, shall be used to 


investigate and resolve any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional 


materials, emergency or urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of 


students or staff, or teacher vacancies and misassignments.  (Education Code 35186) 


 


(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


222  Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 


8200-8498  Child care and development programs 


8500-8538  Adult basic education 


18100-18203  School libraries 


32289  School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures 


35186  Williams uniform complaint procedures 


48853-48853.5  Foster youth 


48985  Notices in language other than English 


568 of 656







49010-49013  Student fees 


49060-49079  Student records 


49069.5  Rights of parents 


49490-49590  Child nutrition programs 


51210  Courses of study grades 1-6 


51223  Physical education, elementary schools 


51225.1-51225.2  Foster youth and homeless children; course credits; graduation requirements 


51228.1-51228.3  Course periods without educational content 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan, especially: 


52075  Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan 


requirements 


52160-52178  Bilingual education programs 


52300-52490  Career technical education 


52500-52616.24  Adult schools 


52800-52870  School-based program coordination 


54400-54425  Compensatory education programs 


54440-54445  Migrant education 


54460-54529  Compensatory education programs 


56000-56867  Special education programs 


59000-59300  Special schools and centers 


64000-64001  Consolidated application process 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Hate crime; definition 


422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


3080  Application of section 


4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1221  Application of laws 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 


6301-6577  Title I basic programs 


6801-6871  Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students 


7101-7184  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act 


7201-7283g  Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs 


7301-7372  Title V rural and low-income school programs 


12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 


794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 


2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 


569 of 656







6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 


104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 


106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 


106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 


 


Management Resources: 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 


Questions and Answers on Title IX and Sexual Violence, April 2014 


Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 


Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, April 2011 


Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 


Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other 


Students, or Third Parties, January 2001 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 


Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against 


National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/ocr 


U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  April 17, 2013 Soquel, California 


revised:  November 12, 2014 


revised:  January 21, 2015 


revised:  June 15, 2016 


revised:  March 8, 2017 


570 of 656







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
 


BP 3551  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


The Governing Board intends that school food services shall be a self-supporting, nonprofit 


program. To ensure program quality and increase cost effectiveness, the Superintendent or 


designee shall centralize and direct the purchasing of foods and supplies, the planning of menus, 


and the auditing of all food service accounts for the district. 


 


(cf. 3100 - Budget) 


(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 


(cf. 3311 - Bids) 


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all food service personnel possess the required 


qualifications and receive ongoing professional development related to the effective management 


and implementation of the district's food service program in accordance with law. 


 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


At least once each year, food service administrators, other appropriate personnel who conduct or 


oversee administrative procedures, and other food service personnel shall receive training 


provided by the California Department of Education (CDE).  (42 USC 1776) 


 


Meal Sales 


 


Meals may be sold to students, district employees, Board members, and employees or members 


of the fund or association maintaining the cafeteria.  (Education Code 38082) 


 


In addition, meals may be sold to nonstudents, including parents/guardians, volunteers, students' 


siblings, or other individuals, who are on campus for a legitimate purpose. Any meals served to 


nonstudents shall not be subsidized by federal or state reimbursements, food service revenues, or 


U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) foods. 


 


***Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 38084, the district may determine meal prices consistent 


with the goal of paying the costs of maintaining the cafeterias (exclusive of the costs of housing 


and equipping cafeterias, or other costs determined by Board resolution, pursuant to Education 


Code 38100).*** 


 


571 of 656







Meal prices, as recommended by the Superintendent or designee and approved by the Board, 


shall be based on the costs of providing food services and consistent with Education Code 38084 


and 42 USC 1760. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall establish strategies and procedures for the collection of 


meal payments, including delinquent meal payments. Such procedures shall conform with 2 CFR 


200.426 and any applicable CDE guidance. The Superintendent or designee shall clearly 


communicate these procedures to students and parents/guardians, and shall make this policy and 


the accompanying administrative regulation available to the public. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a student whose parent/guardian has unpaid 


school meal fees is not overtly identified, shamed, treated differently, or served a meal that 


differs from the meal served to other students.  (Education Code 49557.5) 


 


Students who are enrolled in the free or reduced-price meal program shall receive meals free of 


charge or at a reduced price in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 


Such students shall not be overtly identified or treated differently from other students. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


 


Cafeteria Fund 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall establish a cafeteria fund independent of the district's 


general fund. 


 


The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the cafeteria fund.  


(Education Code 38103) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that state and federal funds provided through school 


meal programs are allocated only for purposes related to the operation or improvement of food 


services and reasonable and necessary indirect program costs as allowed by law. 


 


(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 


(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts) 


(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 


 


Contracts with Outside Services 


 


With Board approval, the district may enter into a contract for food service consulting services or 


management services in one or more district schools.  (Education Code 45103.5; 42 USC 1758; 


7 CFR 210.16) 


 


(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 


(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 


 


572 of 656







Procurement of Foods, Equipment and Supplies 


 


To the maximum extent practicable, foods purchased for use in school meals by the district or by 


any entity purchasing food on its behalf shall be domestic commodities or products. Domestic 


commodity or product means an agricultural commodity that is produced in the United States 


and a food product that is processed in the United States substantially using agricultural 


commodities that are produced in the United States.  (42 USC 1760; 7 CFR 210.21) 


 


A nondomestic food product may be purchased for use in the district's food service program only 


as a last resort when the product is not produced or manufactured in the United States in 


sufficient and reasonable quantities of a satisfactory quality, or when competitive bids reveal the 


costs of a United States product are significantly higher than the nondomestic product. In such 


cases, the Superintendent or designee shall retain documentation justifying the use of the 


exception. 


 


Furthermore, the district shall accept a bid or price for an agricultural product grown in 


California before accepting a bid or price for an agricultural product grown outside the state, if 


the quality of the California-grown product is comparable and the bid or price does not exceed 


the lowest bid or price of a product produced outside the state.  (Food and Agriculture Code 


58595) 


 


Bid solicitations and awards for purchases of equipment, materials, or supplies in support of the 


district's child nutrition program, or for contracts awarded pursuant to Public Contract Code 


2000, shall be consistent with the federal procurement standards in 2 CFR 200.318-200.326. 


Awards shall be let to the most responsive and responsible party. Price shall be the primary 


consideration, but not the only determining factor, in making such an award.  (Public Contract 


Code 20111) 


 


Program Monitoring and Evaluation 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board, at least annually, financial reports 


regarding revenues and expenditures related to the food service program. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide all necessary documentation required for the 


Administrative Review conducted by the CDE to ensure compliance of the district's food service 


program with federal requirements related to maintenance of the nonprofit school food service 


account, meal charges, paid lunch equity, revenue from nonprogram goods, indirect costs, and 


USDA foods. 


 


(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


573 of 656







Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


38080-38086  Cafeteria, establishment and use 


38090-38095  Cafeterias, funds and accounts 


38100-38103  Cafeterias, allocation of charges 


42646  Alternate payroll procedure 


45103.5  Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions 


49490-49493  School breakfast and lunch programs 


49500-49505  School meals 


49554  Contract for services 


49550-49564.5  Meals for needy students 


49580-49581  Food recovery program 


FOOD AND AGRICULTURE CODE 


58595  Preference for California-grown agricultural products 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


113700-114437  California Retail Food Code 


PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 


2000-2002 Responsive bidders 


20111  Contracts 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1751-1769j  School lunch programs 


1771-1791  Child nutrition, including: 


1773  School breakfast program 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 


200.56  Indirect costs, definition 


200.318-200.326  Procurement standards 


200.400-200.475  Cost principles 


200 Appendix VII  Indirect cost proposals 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 


220.1-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 


250.1-250.70  USDA foods 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


California School Accounting Manual 


Food Distribution Program Administrative Manual 


Storage and Inventory Management of U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods, NSD 


Management Bulletin, FDP-01-2018, January 2018 


Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, Clarification on Collection of Delinquent 


Meal Payments, and Excess Student Account Balances, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-03-


2017, April 2017 


Clarification for the Use of Alternate Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast 


Programs, Bad Debt Policies, and the Handling of Unpaid Meal Charges, NSD Management 


574 of 656







Bulletin, USDA-SNP-06-2015, May 2015 


Cafeteria Funds--Allowable Uses, NSD Management Bulletin, NSD-SNP-07-2013, May 2013 


Paid Lunch Equity Requirement, NSD Management Bulletin, USDA-SNP-16-2012, October 


2012 


Adult and Sibling Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, NSD 


Management Bulletin 00-111, July 2000 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 


FAQs About School Meals 


Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017 


Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities SP 60-2016, 


September 2016 


Overcoming the Unpaid Meal Challenge: Proven Strategies from Our Nation's Schools, 


September 2016 


Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016 


Compliance with and Enforcement of the Buy American Provision in the National School Lunch 


Program, SP 24-2016, February 2016 


Discretionary Elimination of Reduced Price Charges in the School Meal Programs, SP 17-2014, 


January 2014 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 


California School Nutrition Association: http://www.calsna.org 


U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 


 


 


 


 


575 of 656







This page has been left blank







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Parental Notifications 
 


BP 5145.6  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that notifications are essential to effective communication 


between the school and the home.  The Superintendent or designee shall send students and 


parents/guardians all notifications required by law, including notifications about their legal 


rights, and any other notifications he/she believes will promote parental understanding and 


involvement. 


 


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


The notice required pursuant to Education Code 48980 shall be sent at the beginning of each 


academic year and may be provided either by regular mail, in electronic form when so requested 


by the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally used to communicate with 


parents/guardians in writing.  (Education Code 48981, 48982) 


 


If any activity specified in Education Code 48980 will be undertaken by any school during the 


forthcoming school term, the notice shall state that fact and the approximate date on which any 


such activity will occur.  No such activity shall be undertaken with respect to any particular 


student unless his/her parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the annual 


notification or other separate special notification.  (Education Code 48983-48984) 


 


The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return 


it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a 


signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is 


an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not indicate that consent to participate 


in any particular program has been given or withheld. (Education Code 48982) 


 


Notifications to parents/guardians shall be written both in English and in the family's primary 


language when so required by law.  (Education Code 48981, 48985; 20 USC 6311, 6312) 


 


Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is, for any reason, unable to 


understand the district's printed notifications, the principal or designee shall work with the 


parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


577 of 656







EDUCATION CODE 


221.5  Prohibited sex discrimination 


231.5  Sexual harassment policy 


262.3  Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding  availability of civil 


remedies 


310  Structured English immersion program 


440  English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language development 


17288  Building standards for university campuses 


17612  Notification of pesticide use 


32221.5  Insurance for athletic team members 


32255-32255.6  Right to refuse harmful or destructive use of animals 


32390  Fingerprint program; contracts; funding; consent of parent/guardian 


35160.5  Extracurricular and cocurricular activities 


35178.4  Notice of accreditation status 


35183  School dress codes; uniforms 


35186  Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities 


35256  School Accountability Report Card 


35291  Rules for student discipline 


37254  Intensive instruction for students who have not passed High School Exit Examination 


37616  Consultation regarding year-round schedule 


39831.5  School bus rider rules and information 


44808.5  Permission to leave school grounds 


46010.1  Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services 


46014  Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes 


46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance agreements 


48000  Minimum age of admission 


48070.5  Promotion or retention of students 


48204  Residency requirements 


48205  Absence for personal reasons 


48206.3  Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions 


48207-48208  Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals 


48213  Prior notice of exclusion from attendance 


48216  Immunization 


48260.5  Notice regarding truancy 


48262  Need for parent conference regarding truancy 


48263  Referral to school attendance review board or probation department 


48354  Option to transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 


48357  Status of application for transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 


48432.5  Involuntary transfers of students 


48900.1  Parental attendance required after suspension 


48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 


48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 


48906  Notification of release of student to peace officer 


48911  Notification in case of suspension 


48911.1  Assignment to supervised suspension classroom 


48912  Closed sessions; consideration of suspension 


578 of 656







48915.1  Expelled students; enrollment in another district 


48916  Readmission procedures 


48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 


48980  Required notification at beginning of term 


48980.3  Notification of pesticide use 


48981  Time and means of notification 


48982  Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice 


48983  Contents of notice 


48984  Activities prohibited unless notice given 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


48987  Child abuse information 


49013  Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees 


49063  Notification of parental rights 


49067  Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course 


49068  Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record 


49069  Absolute right to access 


49073  Release of directory information 


49076  Access to student records 


49077  Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order 


49403  Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunization 


49423  Administration of prescribed medication for student 


49451  Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent 


49452.5  Screening for scoliosis 


49452.7  Information on type 2 diabetes 


49452.8  Oral health assessment 


49456  Results of vision or hearing test 


49472  Insurance 


49475  Student athletes; concussions and head injuries 


49480  Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions 


49510-49520  Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970 


51225.3  Graduation requirements; courses that satisfy college entrance criteria 


51229  Course of study for grades 7-12 


51513  Personal beliefs; privacy 


51938  HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction 


52164.1  Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of language 


skills 


52164.3  Reassessment of English learners; notification of results 


52173  Bilingual education 


52244  Advanced Placement program 


54444.2  Migrant education programs; parent involvement 


56301  Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights 


56321  Special education: proposed assessment plan 


56321.5-56321.6  Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education 


56329  Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment 


56341.1  Development of individualized education program; right to audio record meeting 


56341.5  Individualized education program team meetings 


579 of 656







56343.5  Individualized education program meetings 


58501  Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment 


60641  Standardized Testing and Reporting Program 


60850  High School Exit Examination 


60852.4  High School Exit Examination; waiver for student with disabilities 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


1596.857  Right to enter child care facility 


104855  Availability of topical fluoride treatment 


120365-120375  Immunizations 


120440  Sharing immunization information 


124100  Health screening and immunizations 


PENAL CODE 


627.5  Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


850  Definitions; notification regarding use of California Modified Assessment 


863  Standardized Testing and Reporting Program 


3052  Behavioral intervention 


3831  General standards, Gifted and Talented Education program 


4622  Notification of uniform complaint procedures 


4631  Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal 


4702  Student transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 


4917  Notification of sexual harassment policy 


11303  Reclassification of English learners 


11309  Parental exception waivers 


11511.5  English language proficiency assessment; test results 


11523  Notice of proficiency examinations 


18066  Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


6040  Time period to obtain needed immunizations 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 


1232h  Privacy rights 


1415  Procedural safeguards 


6311  State plans 


6312  Local education agency plans 


6316  Academic assessment and local education agency school improvement 


6318  Parental involvement 


7012  Instruction in English language development 


7908  Armed forces recruiter access to students 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1758  Child nutrition programs 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


245.5  Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals 


245.6a  Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.7  Student records, annual notification 


580 of 656







99.34  Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies 


99.37  Disclosure of directory information 


104.32  District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education 


104.36  Procedural safeguards 


104.8  Nondiscrimination 


106.9  Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


200.61  Teacher qualifications 


300.300  Parent consent for special education evaluation 


300.322  Parent participation in IEP team meetings 


300.502  Independent educational evaluation of student with disability 


300.503  Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with 


disability 


300.504  Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities 


300.508  Due process complaint 


300.530  Discipline procedures 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 


763.84  Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions 


763.93  Asbestos management plans 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:   February 13, 2013 Soquel, California 


581 of 656







This page has been left blank







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Free And Reduced Price Meals 
 


BP 3553  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that adequate nutrition is essential to the development, health, 


and learning of all students. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate and encourage the 


participation of students from low-income families in the district's food service program. 


 


(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 


(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 


 


The district shall provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal each school day, free of charge 


or at a reduced price, for students whose families meet federal eligibility criteria.  (Education 


Code 49550, 49552) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that meals provided through the free and reduced-


price meals program meet applicable state and/or federal nutritional standards in accordance with 


law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 


 


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


 


The Board shall approve, and shall submit to the CDE for approval, a plan that ensures that 


students eligible to receive free or reduced-price meals and milk are not treated differently from 


other students.  (Education Code 49557) 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


 


Confidentiality/Release of Records 


 


All applications and records related to eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal program 


shall be confidential and may not be released except as provided by law and authorized by the 


Board or pursuant to a court order.  (Education Code 49558) 


 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


583 of 656







The Board authorizes designated employees to use individual records pertaining to student 


eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal program for the following purposes:  (Education 


Code 49558) 


 


1. Disaggregation of academic achievement data 


 


(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 


 


2. Identification of students eligible for services under the federal Elementary and 


Secondary Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 6301-6576 


 


(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 


 


If a student transfers from the district to another district, charter school, county office of 


education program, or private school, the Superintendent or designee may share the student's 


meal eligibility information to the other educational agency to assist in the continuation of the 


student's meal benefits. 


 


The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 


participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to another school district, charter school, 


or county office of education that is serving a student living in the same household for purposes 


related to program eligibility and data used in local control funding formula calculations.  


(Education Code 49558) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 


participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to the Superintendent of Public 


Instruction for purposes of determining allocations under the local control funding formula and 


for assessing accountability of that funding.  (Education Code 49558) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may release information on the school lunch program 


application to the local agency that determines eligibility for participation in the Medi-Cal 


program if the student has been approved for free meals or, if included in the agreement with the 


local agency, for reduced-price meals. He/she also may release information on the school lunch 


application to the local agency that determines eligibility for CalFresh or another nutrition 


assistance program authorized under 7 CFR 210.1 if the student has been approved for free or 


reduced-price meals. Information may be released for these purposes only if the student's 


parent/guardian consents to the sharing of information and the district has entered into a 


memorandum of understanding with the local agency which, at a minimum, includes the roles 


and responsibilities of the district and local agency and the process for sharing the information. 


After sharing information with the local agency for purposes of determining eligibility for that 


program, no further information shall be shared unless otherwise authorized by law.  (Education 


Code 49557.2, 49557.3, 49558) 


 


(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 


 


 


584 of 656







 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


48980  Notice at beginning of term 


49430-49434  Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 


49490-49494  School breakfast and lunch programs 


49500-49505  School meals 


49510-49520  Nutrition 


49530-49536  Child Nutrition Act of 1974 


49547-49548.3  Comprehensive nutrition service 


49550-49564.5  Meals for needy students 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


15510  Mandatory meals for needy students 


15530-15535  Nutrition education 


15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


6301-6576 Elementary and Secondary Education Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1751-1769j  School lunch program 


1771-1791  Child nutrition, especially: 


1773  School breakfast program 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 


220.10-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 


245.1-245.13  Determination of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies, 


2012 


Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, 2012 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Direct Certification Implementation ChecklistFree and Reduced-Price Meals: Universal Meal 


Service, Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-01-2018, January 2018U.S. 


DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 


Eligibility Manual for School Meals:  Determining and Verifying Eligibility, July 2015 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS (continued) 


Provision 2 Guidance: National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, Summer 2002 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 


California Food Policy Advocates: http://cfpa.net 


California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition): 


http://www.californiaprojectlean.org 


U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 


585 of 656







This page has been left blank







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Free And Reduced Price Meals 
 


BP 3553  


Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that adequate nutrition is essential to the development, health, 


and learning of all students. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate and encourage the 


participation of students from low-income families in the district's food service program. 


 


(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 


(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 


(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 


(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 


(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 


(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 


 


The district shall provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal each school day, free of charge 


or at a reduced price, for students whose families meet federal eligibility criteria. (Education 


Code 49550, 49552) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that meals provided through the free and reduced-


price meals program meet applicable state and/or federal nutritional standards in accordance with 


law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 


 


(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 


 


Schools participating in the Special Milk Program pursuant to 42 USC 1772 shall provide milk at 


no charge to students who meet federal eligibility criteria for free or reduced-price meals. 


 


The Board shall approve, and shall submit to the California Department of Education for 


approval, a plan that ensures that students eligible to receive free or reduced-price meals and 


milk are not treated differently from other students.  (Education Code 49557) 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


 


Confidentiality/Release of Records 


 


All applications and records related to eligibility for the free and reduced-price meals program 


shall be confidential and may not be released except as provided by law and authorized by the 


Board or pursuant to a court order. (Education Code 49558) 


587 of 656







 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


The Board authorizes designated employees to use individual records pertaining to student 


eligibility for the free and reduced-price meals program for the purposes of:  (Education Code 


49558) 


 


1. Disaggregation of academic achievement data 


 


(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 


 


2. In any school identified as a Title I program improvement school pursuant to 20 USC 


6316, identification of students eligible for school choice and supplemental educational services 


 


(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools) 


(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 


 


If a student transfers from the district to another district, charter school, county office of 


education program, or private school, the Superintendent or designee may share the student's 


meal eligibility information to the other educational agency to assist in the continuation of the 


student's meal benefits. 


 


The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 


participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to another school district, charter school, 


or county office of education that is serving a student living in the same household for purposes 


related to program eligibility and data used in local control funding formula calculations.  


(Education Code 49558) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 


participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to the Superintendent of Public 


Instruction for purposes of determining allocations under the local control funding formula and 


for assessing accountability of that funding.  (Education Code 49558) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may release information on the school lunch program 


application to the local agency that determines eligibility for participation in the Medi-Cal 


program if the student has been approved for free meals or, if included in the agreement with the 


local agency, for reduced-price meals. He/she also may release information on the school lunch 


application to the local agency that determines eligibility for CalFresh or another nutrition 


assistance program authorized under 7 CFR 210.1 if the student has been approved for free or 


reduced-price meals. Information may be released for these purposes only if the student's 


parent/guardian consents to the sharing of information and the district has entered into a 


memorandum of understanding with the local agency which, at a minimum, includes the roles 


and responsibilities of the district and local agency and the process for sharing the information. 


After sharing information with the local agency for purposes of determining eligibility for that 


program, no further information shall be shared unless otherwise authorized by law.  (Education 


Code 49557.2, 49557.3, 49558) 


588 of 656







 


(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


48980  Notice at beginning of term 


49430-49434  Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 


49490-49494  School breakfast and lunch programs 


49500-49505  School meals 


49510-49520  Nutrition 


49530-49536  Child Nutrition Act of 1974 


49547-49548.3  Comprehensive nutrition service 


49550-49562  Meals for needy students 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


15510  Mandatory meals for needy students 


15530-15535  Nutrition education 


15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


6301-6514  Title I programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1751-1769j  School lunch program 


1771-1791  Child nutrition, especially: 


1773  School breakfast program 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 


220.10-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 


245.1-245.13  Determination of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk 


       WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


       14005.41  Basic health care 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies, 


2012 


Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, 2012 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION MANAGEMENT BULLETINS 


NSD SNP-12-2015 Updated Guidance on Sharing of School Meal Applications and the Passing 


of Assembly Bill 1599, July 2015 


USDA-SNP-07-2010  Change in Free and Reduced-Price Meal Application Approval Process, 


September 2010 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Feed More Kids, Improve Program Participation 


Direct Certification Implementation Checklist, May 2008 


589 of 656







U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 


Eligibility Manual for School Meals:  Determining and Verifying Eligibility, July 2015 


Provision 2 Guidance: National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, Summer 2002 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 


California Healthy Kids Resource Center: http://www.californiahealthykids.org 


California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition): 


http://www.californiaprojectlean.org 


U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  March 14, 2012 Soquel, California 


revised:  June 15, 2016 


590 of 656







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Recruitment And Selection 
 


BP 4111 4211, 4311 


Personnel 
 


The Governing Board is committed to employing suitable, qualified individuals to effectively 


carry out the district's vision, mission, and goals. 


 


(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 4000 - Concepts and Roles) 


(cf. 4100 - Certificated Personnel) 


(cf. 4200 - Classified Personnel) 


(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop equitable, fair, and transparent recruitment and 


selection processes and procedures that ensure individuals are selected based on demonstrated 


knowledge, skills, and competence and not on any bias, personal preference, or unlawful 


discrimination. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 


(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 


(cf. 4111.2/4211.2/4311.2 - Legal Status Requirement) 


 


When a vacancy occurs, the Superintendent or designee shall review the job description for the 


position to ensure that it accurately describes the major functions and duties of the position.  


He/she shall also disseminate job announcements to ensure a wide range of candidates. 


 


The district's selection procedures shall include screening processes, interviews, 


recommendations from previous employers, and observations when appropriate, as necessary to 


identify the best possible candidate for a position. 


 


(cf. 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61 - Employment References) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may establish an interview committee to rank candidates and 


recommend finalists. During job interviews, applicants may be asked to describe or demonstrate 


how they will be able to perform the duties of the job. All discussions and recommendations 


shall be confidential in accordance with law. 


 


(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 


 


No inquiry shall be made with regard to any information prohibited by state or federal 


591 of 656







nondiscrimination laws. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire, orally or in writing, in regard to an applicant's 


salary history information, including compensation and benefits. He/she shall also not rely on 


salary history information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment to an applicant 


or the salary to offer. However, the Superintendent or designee may consider salary information 


that is disclosable under state or federal law or that the applicant discloses voluntarily and 


without prompting. Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the applicant the 


pay scale for the position to which he/she is applying.  (Labor Code 432.3) 


 


For each position, the Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board one candidate who 


meets all qualifications established by law and the Board for the position. No person shall be 


employed by the Board without the recommendation or endorsement of the Superintendent or 


designee. 


 


(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 


(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 


(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners) 


(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 


(cf. 4112.8/4212.8/4312.8 - Employment of Relatives) 


(cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 


(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 


 


Incentives 


 


With Board approval and in accordance with district needs, the district may provide incentives to 


recruit teachers, administrators, or other employees, such as signing bonuses, assistance with 


beginning teacher induction and/or credential costs, mentoring, additional compensation, and/or 


subsidized housing. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


35035 Responsibilities of superintendent 


44066  Limitations on certification requirement 


44259  Teaching credential; exception; designated subjects; minimum requirements 


44750  Teacher recruitment resource center 


44830-44831  Employment of certificated persons 


44858  Age or marital status in certificated positions 


44859  Prohibition against certain rules and regulations re: residency 


45103-45139  Employment (classified employees) 


49406  Examination for tuberculosis 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


815.2  Liability of public entities and public employees 


592 of 656







6250-6276.48 Public Records Act 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, including: 


12940-12957  Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


53570-53574 Teacher Housing Act of 2016 


LABOR CODE 


432.3 Salary information 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 


552 Freedom of Information Act 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8 


1324a  Unlawful employment of aliens 


1324b  Unfair immigration related employment practices 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1681-1688 Title IX prohibition against discrimination 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 


12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


106.51-106.61  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program or 


activities 


COURT DECISIONS 


C.A. v William S. Hart Union High School District et al., (2012) 138 Cal.Rptr.3d 1 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENTS EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 


ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 


Teacher Recruitment in California: An Analysis of Effective Strategies, Research Brief, Veritas 


Research and Evaluation Group, October 2017 


WEB SITES 


California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://ccsesa.org/recruit 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 


Education Job Opportunities Information Network: http://www.edjoin.org 


Teach USA:  http://culturalvistas.org/programs/us/teach-usa 


U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 


 


 


 


593 of 656







This page has been left blank







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Recruitment And Selection 
 


BP 4111  


Personnel 
 


 


The Governing Board is committed to employing suitable, qualified individuals to carry out the 


district's mission to provide high-quality education to its students and to ensure the efficiency of 


district operations. 


 


(cf. 0100 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 4000 - Concepts and Roles) 


(cf. 4100 - Certificated Personnel) 


(cf. 4200 - Classified Personnel) 


(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall develop fair, open, and transparent recruitment and 


selection processes and procedures which ensure that individuals are selected based on 


demonstrated knowledge, skills, and competence and not on any bias, personal preference, or 


unlawful discrimination. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 


(cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment) 


(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 


(cf. 4111.2/4211.2/4311.2 - Legal Status Requirement) 


 


When a vacancy occurs, the Superintendent or designee shall review the job description for the 


position to ensure that it accurately describes the major functions and duties of the position.  


He/she also shall disseminate job announcements to ensure a wide range of candidates. 


 


With Board approval, the Superintendent or designee may provide incentives to recruit teachers, 


administrators, or other employees to work in low-performing schools or in hard-to-fill positions. 


 


(cf. 4113 - Assignment) 


 


The district's selection procedures shall include screening processes, interviews, observations, 


and recommendations from previous employers as necessary to identify the best possible 


candidate for a position. The Superintendent or designee may establish an interview committee, 


as appropriate, to rank candidates and recommend finalists. All discussions and 


recommendations shall be confidential in accordance with law. 


 


(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 


595 of 656







 


During job interviews, applicants may be asked to describe or demonstrate how they will be able 


to perform the duties of the job.  No inquiry shall be made with regard to any category of 


discrimination prohibited by state or federal law. 


 


For each position, the Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board one candidate who 


meets all qualifications established by law and the Board for the position.  No person shall be 


employed by the Board without the recommendation or endorsement of the Superintendent or 


designee. 


 


(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 


(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 


(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Language Learners) 


(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 


(cf. 4112.24 - Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left Behind Act) 


(cf. 4112.8/4212.8/4312.8 - Employment of Relatives) 


(cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 


(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 


41530-41533  Professional Development Block Grant 


44066  Limitations on certification requirement 


44259  Teaching credential; exception; designated subjects; minimum requirements 


44735  Teaching as a Priority block grant 


44740-44741  Personnel management assistance teams 


44750  Teacher recruitment resource center 


44830-44831  Employment of certificated persons 


44858  Age or marital status in certificated positions 


44859  Prohibition against certain rules and regulations re: residency 


45103-45139  Employment (classified employees) 


49406  Examination for tuberculosis 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


815.2  Liability of public entities and public employees 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, including: 


12940-12956  Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8 


1324a  Unlawful employment of aliens 


1324b  Unfair immigration related practices 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 


2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 


596 of 656







12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 


35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


C.A. v William S. Hart Union High School District et al., (2012) 138 Cal.Rptr.3d 1 


 


Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Education Job Opportunities Information Network: http://www.edjoin.org 


Teach USA:  http://www.calteach.org 


U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  October 10, 2012  Soquel, California 


revised:  March 12, 2014 


597 of 656







This page has been left blank







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Sexual Harassment 
 


BP 4119.11 4219.11, 4319.11 


Personnel 
 


The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe work environment that is free of 


harassment and intimidation. The Board prohibits sexual harassment against district employees 


and retaliatory behavior or action against any person who complains, testifies, or otherwise 


participates in the complaint process established for the purpose of this policy. 


 


Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, harassment that is based on the gender, gender 


identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation of the victim. 


 


This policy shall apply to all district employees and to other persons on district property or with 


some employment relationship with the district, such as interns, volunteers, contractors, and job 


applicants. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 


 


Any district employee who engages or participates in sexual harassment or who aids, abets, 


incites, compels, or coerces another to commit sexual harassment in violation of this policy is 


subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports) 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, 


investigation, and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 


 


1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 


 


2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to employees and 


others to whom the policy may apply 


 


(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


 


3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, and fair investigation of complaints 


 


4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require interim 


separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent monitoring of 


developments 


599 of 656







 


The Superintendent or designee shall periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the district's 


strategies to prevent and address harassment. Such evaluation may involve conducting regular 


anonymous employee surveys to assess whether harassment is occurring or is perceived to be 


tolerated, partnering with researchers or other agencies with the needed expertise to evaluate the 


district's prevention strategies, and using any other effective tool for receiving feedback on 


systems and/or processes. As necessary, changes shall be made to the harassment policy, 


complaint procedures, or training. 


 


Sexual Harassment Reports and Complaints 


 


Any district employee who feels that he/she has been sexually harassed in the performance of 


his/her district responsibilities or who has knowledge of any incident of sexual harassment by or 


against another employee shall immediately report the incident to his/her direct supervisor, 


another supervisor, the district's coordinator for nondiscrimination, the Superintendent, or, if 


available, a complaint hotline or an ombudsman. A supervisor or administrator who receives a 


harassment complaint shall promptly notify the coordinator. 


 


Complaints of sexual harassment shall be filed and investigated in accordance with the complaint 


procedure specified in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. An employee may bypass 


his/her supervisor in filing a complaint where the supervisor is the subject of the complaint. 


 


All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment shall be kept confidential to the extent 


necessary to carry out the investigation or to take other subsequent necessary actions.  (2 CCR 


11023) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 


12940  Prohibited discrimination 


12950  Sexual harassment; distribution of information 


12950.1 Sexual harassment training 


LABOR CODE 


1101  Political activities of employees 


1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 


11009  Employment discrimination 


11021 Retaliation 


11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 


11024  Sexual harassment training and education 


11034  Terms, conditions, and privileges of employment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


600 of 656







4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state 


financial assistance 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1681-1688 Title IX prohibition against discrimination 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


106.1-106.9 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 


106.51-106.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program or 


activities 


COURT DECISIONS 


Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 


Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 


Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 


Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 


Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 


Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 


 


Management Resources: 


U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 


Promising Practices for Preventing Harassment, November 2017 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  


http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html 


 


 


601 of 656







This page has been left blank







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Sexual Harassment 
 


BP 4119.11  


Personnel 
 


 


The Governing Board prohibits sexual harassment of district employees. The Board also 


prohibits retaliatory behavior or action against district employees or other persons who complain, 


testify, or otherwise participate in the complaint process established pursuant to this policy and 


accompanying administrative regulation. This policy shall apply to all district employees and, 


when applicable, to interns, volunteers, and job applicants. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, 


investigation, and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 


 


1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 


 


2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to staff 


 


(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


 


3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, and fair investigation of complaints 


 


4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require interim 


separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent monitoring of 


developments 


 


All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment shall be kept confidential to the extent 


necessary to carry out the investigation or to take other subsequent necessary actions.  (2 CCR 


11023) 


 


Any district employee who feels that he/she has been sexually harassed or who has knowledge of 


any incident of sexual harassment by or against another employee shall immediately report the 


incident to his/her supervisor, the principal, district administrator, or Superintendent. 


 


A supervisor, principal, or other district administrator who receives a harassment complaint shall 


promptly notify the Superintendent or designee. 


 


Complaints of sexual harassment shall be filed in accordance with AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination 


in Employment. An employee may bypass his/her supervisor in filing a complaint where the 


603 of 656







supervisor is the subject of the complaint. 


 


Any district employee who engages or participates in sexual harassment or who aids, abets, 


incites, compels, or coerces another to commit sexual harassment in violation of this policy is 


subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 


 


(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 


12940  Prohibited discrimination 


12950.1 Sexual harassment training 


LABOR CODE 


1101  Political activities of employees 


1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 


11009  Employment discrimination 


11021 Retaliation 


11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 


11024  Sexual harassment training and education 


11034  Terms, conditions, and privileges of employment 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state 


financial assistance 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 


2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 


2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


106.9  Dissemination of policy 


COURT DECISIONS 


Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 


Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 


Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 


Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 


Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 


Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 


 


Management Resources: 


OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS AND NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS 


604 of 656







GENERAL 


Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January 1999 


WEB SITES 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  


http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  May 25, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:  March 23, 2016 


revised:  June 14, 2017 


605 of 656







This page has been left blank







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Student and Family Privacy Rights 
 


BP 5022  


Students 
 


The Governing Board respects the rights of district students and their parents/guardians with 


regard to the privacy of their personal beliefs and the confidentiality of their personal 


information. 


 


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


(cf. 5021 - Noncustodial Parents) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


(cf. 6162.8 - Research) 


 


The Superintendent or designee may collect, disclose, or use students' personal information for 


the exclusive purpose of developing, evaluating, or providing educational products or services 


for or to students or educational institutions, such as the following:  (20 USC 1232h) 


 


1. College or other postsecondary education recruitment or military recruitment 


 


2. Book clubs, magazines, and programs providing access to low-cost literary products 


 


3. Curriculum and instructional materials used by elementary and secondary schools 


 


4. Tests and assessments to provide cognitive, evaluative, diagnostic, clinical, aptitude, or 


achievement information about students (or to generate other statistically useful data for the 


purpose of securing such tests and assessments) and the subsequent analysis and public release of 


the aggregate data from such tests and assessments 


 


(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 


(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 


 


5. The sale by students of products or services to raise funds for school-related or education-


related activities 


 


(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 


 


6. Student recognition programs 


 


(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 


 


 


607 of 656







The Superintendent or designee is prohibited from collecting, disclosing, or using a student's 


individually identifiable information, including his/her name, parent/guardian's name, home or 


other physical address, telephone number, or social security number, for the purpose of 


marketing or selling that information or providing the information to others for that purpose. 


 


In addition, the Superintendent or designee may collect, disclose, or use a student's individually 


identifiable information, including his/her name, parent/guardian's name, home or other physical 


address, or telephone number for the purpose of marketing or selling that information or 


providing the information to others for that purpose. 


 


However, the district shall not use surveys to collect social security numbers or the last four 


digits of social security numbers, or information or documents regarding citizenship or 


immigration status, of students or their families.  (Education Code 234.7, 49076.7) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall consult with parents/guardians regarding the development 


of regulations pertaining to other uses of personal information, which shall, at a minimum, 


address the following:  (20 USC 1232h) 


 


1. Arrangements for protecting student privacy when collecting, disclosing, or using 


students' individually identifiable information for any purpose 


 


2. Arrangements to protect student privacy in the administration of surveys that may request 


information about the personal beliefs and practices of students and their families 


 


3. The rights of parents/guardians to inspect the following, and any applicable procedures 


for granting reasonable access to the following in a reasonable period of time: 


 


a. Survey instruments requesting information about their personal beliefs and practices or 


those of their children 


 


b. Instructional materials used as part of their children's educational curriculum 


 


c. Instruments used in the collection of personal information for the purpose of marketing or 


sale 


 


4. Any nonemergency physical examinations or screenings that the school may administer 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committee) 


(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of the adoption or continued use 


of the district's policy pertaining to the rights specified in items #1-4 above.  (20 USC 1232h) 


 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


608 of 656







 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


49076.7  Privacy of student records; social security numbers 


49450-49458  Physical examinations 


49602  Confidentiality of personal information received during counseling 


51101  Parents Rights Act of 2002 


51513  Test, questionnaire, survey, or examination concerning personal beliefs 


51514  Nonremoval of survey questions pertaining to sexual orientation or gender identity 


51938    Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Education Act; notice and parental excuse 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


1232h  Protection of pupil rights 


 


Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance Office: 


http://www.ed.gov/offices/OM/fpco 


 


 


609 of 656







This page has been left blank







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Student And Family Privacy Rights 
 


BP 5022  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board believes that personal information concerning district students and their 


families should be kept private in accordance with law. 


 


(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0100 - Philosophy) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities 


(cf. 5021 - Noncustodial Parents) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 


(cf. 6162.8 - Research) 


 


Collection of Personal Information for Marketing Purposes 


 


The Board prohibits district staff from administering or distributing to students survey 


instruments that are designed for the purpose of collecting personal information for marketing or 


for selling that information. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


49450-49457 Physical examinations 


49602  Confidentiality of pupil information 


51101 Parents Rights Act of 2002 


51513 Personal beliefs 


51938 Sexual Health And HIV/AIDS Prevention Education Act; notice and parental excuse 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


1232h Protection of pupil rights 


 


Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


CDE:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


USDOE, Family Policy Compliance Office: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OM/fpco/ 


611 of 656







 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


612 of 656







Students BP 5144.1(a) 


 


SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS 


 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities 


in an orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare 


and well-being, and promotes their learning and development. The Board shall develop rules 


and regulations setting the standards of behavior expected of district students and the 


disciplinary processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including 


suspension and/or expulsion. 


 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


 


The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, 


and/or implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law, in this 


policy, and in the accompanying administrative regulation. 


 


Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when 


his/her behavior is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any district 


school or another school district, regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited to, the 


following:  (Education Code 48900(s)) 


 


1. While on school grounds 


 


2. While going to or coming from school 


 


3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus 


 
(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus) 


 


4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity 


 


District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, 


consistently, equally, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies. 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


 


Appropriate Use of Suspension Authority 


 


Except when a student's act violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e), as listed in items #1-5 under 


"Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" of the accompanying administrative 


regulation, or when his/her presence causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only 


when other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct. (Education Code 


48900.5, 48900.6) 


 


 


 


613 of 656







 BP 5144.1(b) 


 


 


SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 


 
 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 


 


A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating 


pattern of misbehavior that could lead to on-campus or off-campus suspension. 
 


No student in grades K-3 may be suspended for disruption or willful defiance, except by a 


teacher pursuant to Education Code 48910.  (Education Code 48900) 
 


Students shall not be suspended or expelled for truancy, tardiness, or absenteeism from 


assigned school activities. 
 


(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 


(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 


 


On-Campus Suspension 


 


To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any 


of the reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent 


danger or threat to anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been 


initiated, the Superintendent or designee may establish a supervised suspension classroom 


program which meets the requirements of law. 


 


Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, 


supervised suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to 


bring about proper conduct.  (Education Code 48900.5) 


 


Authority to Expel 


 


A student may be expelled only by the Board.  (Education Code 48918(j)) 


 


As required by law, the Superintendent or principal shall recommend expulsion and the Board 


shall expel any student found to have committed any of the following "mandatory 


recommendation and mandatory expulsion" acts at school or at a school activity off school 


grounds:  (Education Code 48915) 


 


1. Possessing a firearm which is not an imitation firearm, as verified by a certificated 


employee, unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item 


from a certificated school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence 


  


 


614 of 656







 BP 5144.1(c) 


 


 


SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 


 


 
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 


 


2. Selling or otherwise furnishing a firearm 


 


3. Brandishing a knife at another person 


 


4. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-


11058 


 


5. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 


266c, 286, 288, 288a, or 289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 


243.4 


 


6. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921 


 


For all other violations listed in the accompanying administrative regulation under "Grounds 


for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" and "Additional Grounds for Suspension and 


Expulsion: Grades 4-12," the Superintendent or principal shall have the discretion to 


recommend expulsion of a student. If expulsion is recommended, the Board shall order the 


student expelled only if it makes a finding of either or both of the following:  (Education Code 


48915(b) and (e)) 


 


1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about 


proper conduct 


 


2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing 


danger to the physical safety of the student or others 


 


A vote to expel a student shall be taken in an open session of a Board meeting. 


 


The Board may vote to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order pursuant to the 


requirements of law and the accompanying administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48917) 


 


No student shall be expelled for disruption or willful defiance.  (Education Code 48900) 


 


Due Process 


 


The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension 


and/or expulsion by affording them their due process rights under the law. The Superintendent 


or designee shall comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law 


and administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918) 


  


 


615 of 656







 BP 5144.1(d) 


 


 


SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 


 


 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 


Maintenance and Monitoring of Outcome Data 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually present to the Board a report of the outcome 


data which the district is required to collect pursuant to Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, 


including the number of students recommended for expulsion, the grounds for each 


recommended expulsion, the actions taken by the Board, the types of referral made after each 


expulsion, and the disposition of the students after the expulsion period. 


 


In presenting the report to the Board, the Superintendent or designee shall disaggregate data 


on suspensions and expulsions by school and by numerically significant student subgroups, 


including, but not limited to, ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, 


English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. Based on the 


data, the Board shall address any identified disparities in the imposition of student discipline 


and shall determine whether and how the district is meeting its goals for improving school 


climate as specified in its local control and accountability plan. 


 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
616 of 656







 BP 5144.1(e) 
 


 


SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 
 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


212.5  Sexual harassment 


233  Hate violence 


1981-1981.5  Enrollment of students in community school 


17292.5  Program for expelled students 


32261  Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985 


35145  Open board meetings 


35146  Closed sessions (regarding suspensions) 


35291  Rules (for government and discipline of schools) 


35291.5  Rules and procedures on school discipline 


48645.5  Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system 


48660-48666  Community day schools 


48853.5  Foster youth 


48900-48927  Suspension and expulsion 


48950  Speech and other communication 


48980  Parental notifications 


49073-49079  Privacy of student records 


52052  Numerically significant student subgroups 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


CIVIL CODE 


47  Privileged communication 


48.8  Defamation liability 


CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


1985-1997  Subpoenas; means of production 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


11455.20  Contempt 


54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


11014.5  Drug paraphernalia 


11053-11058  Standards and schedules 


LABOR CODE 


230.7  Discharge or discrimination against employee for taking time off to appear in school on behalf 


of a child 


PENAL CODE 


31  Principal of a crime, defined 


240  Assault defined 


241.2  Assault fines 


242  Battery defined 


243.2  Battery on school property 


243.4  Sexual battery 


245  Assault with deadly weapon 


245.6  Hazing 


261  Rape defined 


266c  Unlawful sexual intercourse 


286  Sodomy defined 


288  Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14 


288a  Oral copulation 


289  Penetration of genital or anal openings 


417.27  Laser pointers 


 


Legal Reference continued: (see next page) 
617 of 656







 BP 5144.1(f) 
 


 


SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS  (continued) 
 


 


 


Legal Reference: (continued) 


PENAL CODE (continued) 


422.55  Hate crime defined 


422.6  Interference with exercise of civil rights 


422.7  Aggravating factors for punishment 


422.75  Enhanced penalties for hate crimes 


626.2  Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission 


626.9  Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995 


626.10  Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns 


868.5  Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


729.6  Counseling 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 


921  Definitions, firearm 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1415(K)  Placement in alternative educational setting 


7961  Gun-free schools 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11432-11435  Education of homeless children and youths 


COURT DECISIONS 


T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267 


Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421 


Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of 


Education and Kenneth H. (2001) 85 Cal.App.4th 1321 


Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 118 


Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807 


John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001) 


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997) 


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997) 


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997) 


 


Management Resources: 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Attorney General's Office:  http://www.oag.ca.gov 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  


http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-summary.pdf 


U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Healthy Students: 


https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs 


 


 


618 of 656







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Suspension And Expulsion/Due Process 
 


BP 5144.1  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities in 


an orderly school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and 


well-being, and promotes their learning and development. The Board shall develop rules and 


regulations setting the standards of behavior expected of district students and the disciplinary 


processes and procedures for addressing violations of those standards, including suspension 


and/or expulsion. 


 


(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


 


The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, 


and/or implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law, in this 


policy, and in the accompanying administrative regulation. 


 


Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when 


his/her behavior is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any district 


school or another school district, regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited to, the 


following:  (Education Code 48900(s)) 


 


1. While on school grounds 


 


2. While going to or coming from school 


 


3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus 


 


(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus) 


 


4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity 


 


District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, 


consistently, equally, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


 


Appropriate Use of Suspension Authority 


 


619 of 656







Except when a student's act violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e), as listed in items #1-5 under 


"Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" of the accompanying administrative 


regulation, or when his/her presence causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only 


when other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct. (Education Code 


48900.5, 48900.6) 


 


(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 


(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 


(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 


(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 


(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 


(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 


 


A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating 


pattern of misbehavior that could lead to on-campus or off-campus suspension. 


 


No student in grades K-3 may be suspended for disruption or willful defiance, except by a 


teacher pursuant to Education Code 48910.  (Education Code 48900) 


 


Students shall not be suspended or expelled for truancy, tardiness, or absenteeism from assigned 


school activities. 


 


(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 


(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 


 


On-Campus Suspension 


 


To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of 


the reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent 


danger or threat to anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been initiated, 


the Superintendent or designee shall establish a supervised suspension classroom program which 


meets the requirements of law. 


 


Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised 


suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about 


proper conduct.  (Education Code 48900.5) 


 


Authority to Expel 


 


A student may be expelled only by the Board.  (Education Code 48918(j)) 


 


As required by law, the Superintendent or principal shall recommend expulsion and the Board 


shall expel any student found to have committed any of the following "mandatory 


recommendation and mandatory expulsion" acts at school or at a school activity off school 


grounds:  (Education Code 48915) 


 


620 of 656







1. Possessing a firearm which is not an imitation firearm, as verified by a certificated 


employee, unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item from a 


certificated school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence 


 


(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments) 


 


2. Selling or otherwise furnishing a firearm 


 


3. Brandishing a knife at another person 


 


4. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058 


 


5. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 


286, 288, 288a, or 289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4 


 


6. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921 


 


For all other violations listed in the accompanying administrative regulation under "Grounds for 


Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" and "Additional Grounds for Suspension and 


Expulsion: Grades 4-12," the Superintendent or principal shall have the discretion to recommend 


expulsion of a student. If expulsion is recommended, the Board shall order the student expelled 


only if it makes a finding of either or both of the following:  (Education Code 48915(b) and (e)) 


 


1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about 


proper conduct 


 


2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing 


danger to the physical safety of the student or others 


 


A vote to expel a student shall be taken in a public session. 


 


The Board may vote to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order pursuant to the 


requirements of law and the accompanying administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48917) 


 


No student shall be expelled for disruption or willful defiance.  (Education Code 48900) 


 


Due Process 


 


The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and/or 


expulsion by affording them their due process rights under the law. The Superintendent or 


designee shall comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and 


administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918) 


 


(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 


(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 


 


621 of 656







Maintenance and Monitoring of Outcome Data 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually present to the Board a report of the outcome data 


which the district is required to collect pursuant to Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, 


including the number of students recommended for expulsion, the grounds for each 


recommended expulsion, the actions taken by the Board, the types of referral made after each 


expulsion, and the disposition of the students after the expulsion period. 


 


The report shall be disaggregated by school and by numerically significant student subgroups, 


including, but not limited to, ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, 


English learners, foster youth, and students with disabilities. The report also shall include 


information about whether and how the district is meeting its goals for improving school climate 


as specified in its local control and accountability plan. 


 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


212.5  Sexual harassment 


233  Hate violence 


1981-1981.5  Enrollment of students in community school 


17292.5  Program for expelled students 


32261  Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985 


35145  Open board meetings 


35146  Closed sessions (regarding suspensions) 


35291  Rules (for government and discipline of schools) 


35291.5  Rules and procedures on school discipline 


48645.5  Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system 


48660-48666  Community day schools 


48853.5  Foster youth 


48900-48927  Suspension and expulsion 


48950  Speech and other communication 


48980  Parental notifications 


49073-49079  Privacy of student records 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


CIVIL CODE 


47  Privileged communication 


48.8  Defamation liability 


CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


1985-1997  Subpoenas; means of production 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


11455.20  Contempt 


54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


622 of 656







11014.5  Drug paraphernalia 


11053-11058  Standards and schedules 


LABOR CODE 


230.7  Discharge or discrimination against employee for taking time off to appear in school on 


behalf of a child 


PENAL CODE 


31  Principal of a crime, defined 


240  Assault defined 


241.2  Assault fines 


242  Battery defined 


243.2  Battery on school property 


243.4  Sexual battery 


245  Assault with deadly weapon 


245.6  Hazing 


261  Rape defined 


266c  Unlawful sexual intercourse 


286  Sodomy defined 


288  Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14 


288a  Oral copulation 


289  Penetration of genital or anal openings 


417.27  Laser pointers 


422.55  Hate crime defined 


422.6  Interference with exercise of civil rights 


422.7  Aggravating factors for punishment 


422.75  Enhanced penalties for hate crimes 


626.2  Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission 


626.9  Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995 


626.10  Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns 


868.5  Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness 


WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 


729.6  Counseling 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18 


921  Definitions, firearm 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1415(K)  Placement in alternative educational setting 


7151  Gun-free schools 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


11432-11435  Education of homeless children and youths 


COURT DECISIONS 


T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267 


Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421 


Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of 


Education and Kenneth H. (2001) 85 Cal.App.4th 1321 


Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807 


Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 1182 


John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301 


623 of 656







ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001) 


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997) 


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997) 


80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 


Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 


2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Attorney General's Office:  http://www.oag.ca.gov 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  


http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-summary.pdf 


U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools: 


http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 13, 2013 Soquel, California 


revised:  April 2014 


revised:  May 21, 2014 


revised:  May 20, 2015 


624 of 656







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Parental Notifications 
 


BP 5145.6  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to promote effective communication between the school and the 


home and to keep parents/guardians informed regarding educational programs, school 


operations, and the legal rights of students and their parents/guardians. The Superintendent or 


designee shall send parents/guardians and students all notifications required by law and any other 


notifications he/she believes will promote parental understanding and involvement. 


 


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


Notice of the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians as specified in Education Code 


48980 shall be sent at the beginning of each academic year and may be provided by regular mail, 


in electronic form when so requested by the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally 


used by the district for written communication with parents/guardians.  (Education Code 48981) 


 


No activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken with respect to any particular 


student unless his/her parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the annual 


notification or other separate special notification. Such notice shall state the activity that will be 


undertaken and the approximate date on which the activity will occur.  (Education Code 48983-


48984) 


 


The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return 


it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a 


signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is 


an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not indicate that consent to participate 


in any particular program has been given or withheld.  (Education Code 48982) 


 


Whenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, his/her parents/guardians 


shall be given all required parental notifications at that time. 


 


Notifications shall be presented in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent 


practicable, in a language that parents/guardians can understand. 


 


Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single primary 


language other than English, as determined from the California Department of Education census 


data collected pursuant to Education Code 52164, all notices sent to the parent/guardian of any 


such student shall, in addition to being written in English, be written in the primary language, 


625 of 656







and may be responded to either in English or the primary language.  (Education Code 48981, 


48985) 


 


Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the 


district's printed notifications for any reason, he/she shall inform the principal or designee, who 


shall work with the parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


221.5  Prohibited sex discrimination 


231.5  Sexual harassment policy 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


262.3  Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding  availability of civil 


remedies 


310  Language acquisition programs 


313  Reclassification of English learners, parental consultation 


313.2  Long-term English learner, notification 


440  English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language development 


8483  Before/after school program; enrollment priorities 


17288  Building standards for university campuses 


17611.5-17612  Notification of pesticide use 


32221.5  Insurance for athletic team members 


32255-32255.6  Right to refuse harmful or destructive use of animals 


32390  Fingerprint program; contracts; funding; consent of parent/guardian 


33479.3 The Eric Paredes Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 


35160.5  Extracurricular and cocurricular activities 


35178.4  Notice of accreditation status 


35182.5  Advertising in the classroom 


35183  School dress codes; uniforms 


35186  Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities 


35211  Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability 


35256  School Accountability Report Card 


35258  School Accountability Report Card 


35291  Rules for student discipline 


37616  Consultation regarding year-round schedule 


39831.5  School bus rider rules and information 


44050  Employee codes of conduct, employee interactions with students 


44808.5  Permission to leave school grounds 


46010.1  Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services 


46014  Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes 


46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance agreements 


48000  Minimum age of admission 


48070.5  Promotion or retention of students 


48204  Residency requirements 


626 of 656







48205  Absence for personal reasons 


48206.3  Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions 


48207-48208  Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals 


48213  Prior notice of exclusion from attendance 


48216  Immunization 


48260.5  Notice regarding truancy 


48262  Need for parent conference regarding truancy 


48263  Referral to school attendance review board or probation department 


48301  Interdistrict transfers 


48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act 


48354  Option to transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 


48357  Status of application for transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 


48412  Certificate of  proficiency 


48432.3  Voluntary enrollment in continuation education 


48432.5  Involuntary transfers of students 


48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students 


48900.1  Parental attendance required after suspension 


48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 


48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 


48906  Notification of release of student to peace officer 


48911  Notification in case of suspension 


48911.1  Assignment to supervised suspension classroom 


48912  Closed sessions; consideration of suspension 


48915.1  Expelled students; enrollment in another district 


48916  Readmission procedures 


48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 


48929  Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor 


48980  Required notification at beginning of term 


48980.3  Notification of pesticide use 


48981  Time and means of notification 


48982  Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice 


48983  Contents of notice 


48984  Activities prohibited unless notice given 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


48987  Child abuse information 


49013  Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees 


49063  Notification of parental rights 


49067  Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course 


49068  Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record 


49069  Absolute right to access 


49070  Challenging content of student record 


49073  Release of directory information 


49073.6  Student records, social media 


49076  Access to student records 


49077  Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order 


49403  Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunization 


627 of 656







49423  Administration of prescribed medication for student 


49451  Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent 


49452.5  Screening for scoliosis 


49452.7  Information on type 2 diabetes 


49452.8  Oral health assessment 


49456  Results of vision or hearing test 


49471-49472  Insurance 


49475  Student athletes; concussions and head injuries 


49480  Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions 


49510-49520  Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970 


49557.5  Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017; notice of negative balance 


in meal account 


51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements 


51225.2 Course credits; foster youth, homeless youth, former juvenile court school students and 


military-connected students 


51225.3  Graduation requirements; courses that satisfy college entrance criteria 


51229  Course of study for grades 7-12 


51513  Personal beliefs; privacy 


51938  HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction 


52164  Language census 


52164.1  Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of language 


skills 


52164.3  Reassessment of English learners; notification of results 


54444.2  Migrant education programs; parent involvement 


56301  Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights 


56321  Special education: proposed assessment plan 


56321.5-56321.6  Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education 


56329  Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment 


56341.1  Development of individualized education program; right to audio record meeting 


56341.5  Individualized education program team meetings 


56343.5  Individualized education program meetings 


56521.1  Behavioral intervention 


58501  Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment 


60615  Exemption from state assessment 


60641  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


69432.9  Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program 


CIVIL CODE 


1798.29  District records, breach of security 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


1596.857  Right to enter child care facility 


104420  Tobacco use prevention 


104855  Availability of topical fluoride treatment 


116277  Lead testing of school drinking water 


120365-120375  Immunizations 


120440  Sharing immunization information 


124100-124105  Health screening and immunizations 


628 of 656







PENAL CODE 


626.81  Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus 


627.5  Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


852  Exemptions from state assessments 


863  Reports of state assessment results 


3052  Behavioral intervention 


4622  Notification of uniform complaint procedures 


4631  Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal 


4702  Student transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 


4917  Notification of sexual harassment policy 


11303  Reclassification of English learners 


11511.5  English language proficiency assessment; test results 


11523  Notice of proficiency examinations 


18066  Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences 


18094-18095  Notice of Action; child care services 


18114  Notice of delinquent fees; child care services 


18118-18119  Notice of Action; child care services 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


2951  Hearing tests 


6040  Time period to obtain needed immunizations 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 


1232h  Privacy rights 


1415  Procedural safeguards 


6311  State plan 


6312  Local educational agency plans 


6318  Parent and family engagement 


7908  Armed forces recruiter access to students 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1758  Child nutrition programs 


11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


245.5  Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals 


245.6a  Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.7  Student records, annual notification 


99.30 Disclosure of personally identifiable information 


99.34  Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies 


99.37  Disclosure of directory information 


104.32  District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education 


104.36  Procedural safeguards 


104.8  Nondiscrimination 


106.9  Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


200.48 Teacher qualifications 


300.300  Parent consent for special education evaluation 


629 of 656







300.322  Parent participation in IEP team meetings 


300.502  Independent educational evaluation of student with disability 


300.503  Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with 


disability 


300.504  Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities 


300.508  Due process complaint 


300.530  Discipline procedures 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 


763.84  Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions 


763.93  Asbestos management plans 


 


Management Resources: 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 


Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017 


Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and Services, FNS Instruction 


113-1, 2005 


WEB SITES 


U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov 


 


 


 


  


630 of 656







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Parental Notifications 
 


BP 5145.6  


Students 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that notifications are essential to effective communication 


between the school and the home.  The Superintendent or designee shall send students and 


parents/guardians all notifications required by law, including notifications about their legal 


rights, and any other notifications he/she believes will promote parental understanding and 


involvement. 


 


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


The notice required pursuant to Education Code 48980 shall be sent at the beginning of each 


academic year and may be provided either by regular mail, in electronic form when so requested 


by the parent/guardian, or by any other method normally used to communicate with 


parents/guardians in writing.  (Education Code 48981, 48982) 


 


If any activity specified in Education Code 48980 will be undertaken by any school during the 


forthcoming school term, the notice shall state that fact and the approximate date on which any 


such activity will occur.  No such activity shall be undertaken with respect to any particular 


student unless his/her parent/guardian has been informed of such action through the annual 


notification or other separate special notification.  (Education Code 48983-48984) 


 


The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and return 


it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the parent/guardian submit a 


signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The parent/guardian's signature is 


an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not indicate that consent to participate 


in any particular program has been given or withheld. (Education Code 48982) 


 


Notifications to parents/guardians shall be written both in English and in the family's primary 


language when so required by law.  (Education Code 48981, 48985; 20 USC 6311, 6312) 


 


Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is, for any reason, unable to 


understand the district's printed notifications, the principal or designee shall work with the 


parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of communication. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


631 of 656







EDUCATION CODE 


221.5  Prohibited sex discrimination 


231.5  Sexual harassment policy 


262.3  Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding  availability of civil 


remedies 


310  Structured English immersion program 


440  English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language development 


17288  Building standards for university campuses 


17612  Notification of pesticide use 


32221.5  Insurance for athletic team members 


32255-32255.6  Right to refuse harmful or destructive use of animals 


32390  Fingerprint program; contracts; funding; consent of parent/guardian 


35160.5  Extracurricular and cocurricular activities 


35178.4  Notice of accreditation status 


35183  School dress codes; uniforms 


35186  Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities 


35256  School Accountability Report Card 


35291  Rules for student discipline 


37254  Intensive instruction for students who have not passed High School Exit Examination 


37616  Consultation regarding year-round schedule 


39831.5  School bus rider rules and information 


44808.5  Permission to leave school grounds 


46010.1  Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services 


46014  Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes 


46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance agreements 


48000  Minimum age of admission 


48070.5  Promotion or retention of students 


48204  Residency requirements 


48205  Absence for personal reasons 


48206.3  Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions 


48207-48208  Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals 


48213  Prior notice of exclusion from attendance 


48216  Immunization 


48260.5  Notice regarding truancy 


48262  Need for parent conference regarding truancy 


48263  Referral to school attendance review board or probation department 


48354  Option to transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 


48357  Status of application for transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 


48432.5  Involuntary transfers of students 


48900.1  Parental attendance required after suspension 


48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 


48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 


48906  Notification of release of student to peace officer 


48911  Notification in case of suspension 


48911.1  Assignment to supervised suspension classroom 


48912  Closed sessions; consideration of suspension 


632 of 656







48915.1  Expelled students; enrollment in another district 


48916  Readmission procedures 


48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 


48980  Required notification at beginning of term 


48980.3  Notification of pesticide use 


48981  Time and means of notification 


48982  Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice 


48983  Contents of notice 


48984  Activities prohibited unless notice given 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


48987  Child abuse information 


49013  Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees 


49063  Notification of parental rights 


49067  Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course 


49068  Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record 


49069  Absolute right to access 


49073  Release of directory information 


49076  Access to student records 


49077  Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order 


49403  Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunization 


49423  Administration of prescribed medication for student 


49451  Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent 


49452.5  Screening for scoliosis 


49452.7  Information on type 2 diabetes 


49452.8  Oral health assessment 


49456  Results of vision or hearing test 


49472  Insurance 


49475  Student athletes; concussions and head injuries 


49480  Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions 


49510-49520  Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970 


51225.3  Graduation requirements; courses that satisfy college entrance criteria 


51229  Course of study for grades 7-12 


51513  Personal beliefs; privacy 


51938  HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction 


52164.1  Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of language 


skills 


52164.3  Reassessment of English learners; notification of results 


52173  Bilingual education 


52244  Advanced Placement program 


54444.2  Migrant education programs; parent involvement 


56301  Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights 


56321  Special education: proposed assessment plan 


56321.5-56321.6  Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education 


56329  Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment 


56341.1  Development of individualized education program; right to audio record meeting 


56341.5  Individualized education program team meetings 


633 of 656







56343.5  Individualized education program meetings 


58501  Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment 


60641  Standardized Testing and Reporting Program 


60850  High School Exit Examination 


60852.4  High School Exit Examination; waiver for student with disabilities 


HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 


1596.857  Right to enter child care facility 


104855  Availability of topical fluoride treatment 


120365-120375  Immunizations 


120440  Sharing immunization information 


124100  Health screening and immunizations 


PENAL CODE 


627.5  Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


850  Definitions; notification regarding use of California Modified Assessment 


863  Standardized Testing and Reporting Program 


3052  Behavioral intervention 


3831  General standards, Gifted and Talented Education program 


4622  Notification of uniform complaint procedures 


4631  Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal 


4702  Student transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 


4917  Notification of sexual harassment policy 


11303  Reclassification of English learners 


11309  Parental exception waivers 


11511.5  English language proficiency assessment; test results 


11523  Notice of proficiency examinations 


18066  Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 


6040  Time period to obtain needed immunizations 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 


1232h  Privacy rights 


1415  Procedural safeguards 


6311  State plans 


6312  Local education agency plans 


6316  Academic assessment and local education agency school improvement 


6318  Parental involvement 


7012  Instruction in English language development 


7908  Armed forces recruiter access to students 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1758  Child nutrition programs 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 


245.5  Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals 


245.6a  Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


99.7  Student records, annual notification 


634 of 656







99.34  Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies 


99.37  Disclosure of directory information 


104.32  District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education 


104.36  Procedural safeguards 


104.8  Nondiscrimination 


106.9  Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex 


200.61  Teacher qualifications 


300.300  Parent consent for special education evaluation 


300.322  Parent participation in IEP team meetings 


300.502  Independent educational evaluation of student with disability 


300.503  Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with 


disability 


300.504  Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities 


300.508  Due process complaint 


300.530  Discipline procedures 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 


763.84  Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions 


763.93  Asbestos management plans 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:   February 13, 2013 Soquel, California 


635 of 656







This page has been left blank







 


 


CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Response To Immigration Enforcement 
 


BP 5145.13  


Students 
 


 


***Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 234.7, as added by AB 699 (Ch. 493, Statutes of 2017), 


districts are mandated to adopt policy consistent with a model policy developed by the California 


Attorney General which limits assistance with immigration enforcement at public schools. See 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, available on the web site 


of the Office of the Attorney General. Except as otherwise noted below, the following policy 


reflects the mandated policy statements. See the accompanying administrative regulation, BP 


0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities, BP/AR 5111 - Admission, AR 


5111.1 - District Residency, BP/AR 5125 - Student Records, AR/E 5125.1 - Release of Directory 


Information, and BP 5131.2 - Bullying for additional language fulfilling this mandate.*** 


 


The Governing Board is committed to the success of all students and believes that every school 


site should be a safe and welcoming place for all students and their families irrespective of their 


citizenship or immigration status. 


 


District staff shall not solicit or collect information or documents regarding the citizenship or 


immigration status of students or their family members or provide assistance with immigration 


enforcement at district schools, except as may be required by state and federal law.  (Education 


Code 234.7) 


 


(cf. 5111 - Admission) 


(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 


 


***Note:  Education Code 234.1 mandates that districts adopt policy prohibiting discrimination, 


harassment, intimidation, and bullying based on the actual or perceived characteristics set forth 


in Penal Code 422.55 and Education Code 220. As amended by AB 699 (Ch. 493, Statutes of 


2017), Education Code 234.1 expressly includes immigration status among the protected 


categories. See BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities and BP 5145.3 - 


Nondiscrimination/Harassment for language fulfilling this mandate.*** 


 


No student shall be denied equal rights and opportunities nor be subjected to unlawful 


discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying in the district's programs and activities on 


the basis of his/her immigration status.  (Education Code 200, 220, 234.1) 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 


637 of 656







 


 


(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 


 


***Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 234.7, as added by AB 699 (Ch. 493, Statutes of 2017), 


the district must notify parents/guardians of their children's right to a free public education 


regardless of immigration status, including "Know Your Educational Rights" information as 


contained in the Office of the Attorney General publication Promoting a Safe and Secure 


Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to Assist California's K-12 


Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues. Such notice may be included in the annual 


parental notification provided pursuant to Education Code 48980 or through any other cost-


effective means. Also see BP 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities.*** 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians regarding their children's right to a 


free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs and their rights related 


to immigration enforcement.  (Education Code 234.7) 


 


(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 


 


Consistent with requirements of the California Office of the Attorney General, the 


Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures for addressing any requests by a law 


enforcement officer for access to district records, school sites, or students for the purpose of 


immigration enforcement. 


 


(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 


(cf. 3580 - District Records) 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 


 


***Note:  The following optional paragraph reflects a recommendation of the Attorney 


General's model policy and may be revised to reflect district practice.*** 


 


Teachers, school administrators, and other school staff shall receive training regarding 


immigration issues, including information on responding to a request from an immigration 


officer to visit a school site or to have access to a student. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board in a timely manner any requests for 


information or access to a school site by an officer or employee of a law enforcement agency for 


the purpose of enforcing the immigration laws. Such notification shall be provided in a manner 


that ensures the confidentiality and privacy of any potentially identifying information.  


(Education Code 234.7) 


 


 


 


638 of 656







 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


200  Educational equity 


220  Prohibition of discrimination 


234.1  Safe Place to Learn Act 


234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 


48204.4  Evidence of residency for school enrollment 


48980  Parental notifications 


48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


8310.3  California Religious Freedom Act 


PENAL CODE 


422.55  Definition of hate crime 


627.1-627.6   Access to school premises, outsiders 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of 


Immigration Status, February 2017 


CALIFORNIA OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL PUBLICATIONS 


Promoting a Safe and Secure Learning Environment for All:  Guidance and Model Policies to 


Assist California's K-12 Schools in Responding to Immigration Issues, April 2018 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Office of the Attorney General:  http://oag.ca.gov 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 


California Department of Justice:  http://www.justice.gov 


U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 


U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement:  http://www.ice.gov 


U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Online Detainee Locator System:  


http://locator.ice.gov/odls 


 


 


 


 5/18 


639 of 656







This page has been left blank







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Student Assessment 
 


BP 6162.5  


Instruction 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that student assessments are an important instructional and 


accountability tool.  To obtain the most accurate evaluation of student performance, the district 


shall use a variety of measures, including district, state, and/or national assessments. 


 


(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 


 


Assessment data shall be used to help determine individual students' progress, mastery of 


academic standards, appropriate placement in district programs, and/or eligibility for graduation. 


In addition, summary data on student assessment results shall be used by the district to identify 


and review student achievement goals in the district's local control and accountability plan, 


evaluate district educational programs in order to identify needed improvements, and, as 


appropriate, evaluate staff performance. 


 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 


(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision) 


(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 


 


In selecting or developing any district assessment, the Superintendent or designee shall examine 


evidence of its reliability, its validity for the intended purpose and for various student 


populations, and the extent to which it aligns with the material that is being taught. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that assessments are administered in accordance 


with law and test publisher's directions, and that test administration procedures are fair and 


equitable for all students. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 6162.54 - Test Integrity/Test Preparation) 


 


As appropriate, assessment results shall be disaggregated by student subgroup, classroom, grade 


level, and/or school site to allow for critical analysis of student needs. 


641 of 656







 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as needed to assist 


administrators and teachers in interpreting and using assessment data to improve student 


performance and the instructional program. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


When districtwide and school-level results of student assessments are published by the state, the 


Superintendent or designee may provide supplementary information to assist parents/guardians 


and the community in understanding test results. 


 


(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 


 


Interim and Formative Assessments 


 


State interim and formative assessments may be used in combination with other sources of 


information to gain timely feedback about student progress in an effort to continually adjust 


instruction to improve learning. Results from interim and formative assessments shall not be 


used for any high-stakes purpose, including, but not limited to, teacher or other school staff 


evaluation, accountability, student grade promotion or retention, graduation, course or class 


placement, identification for gifted or talented education, reclassification of English learners, or 


identification as an individual with exceptional needs.  (Education Code 60642.6, 60642.7) 


 


(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 


(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 


(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 


(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 


(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers who administer interim and formative 


assessments have access to all functions and information designed for teacher use related to such 


assessments and student performance on the assessments.  (Education Code 60642.6) 


 


Individual Record of Accomplishment 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each student, by the end of grade 12, has an 


individual record of accomplishment that includes the following:  (Education Code 60607) 


 


1. The results of the state achievement tests required and administered as part of the 


California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, or any predecessor assessments, 


pursuant to Education Code 60640-60649 


 


2. The results of any end-of-course examinations taken 


 


642 of 656







3. The results of any vocational education certification examinations taken 


 


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


 


No individual record of accomplishment shall be released to any person, other than the student's 


parent/guardian or a teacher, counselor, or administrator directly involved with the student, 


without the written consent of the student's parent/guardian, or the student if he/she is an adult or 


emancipated minor.  The student or his/her parent/guardian may authorize the release of the 


record of accomplishment to a postsecondary educational institution for the purposes of credit, 


placement, or admission.  (Education Code 60607) 


 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


313  Assessment of English language development 


10600-10610  California Education Information System 


44660-44665  Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees (Stull Act) 


49558  Free and reduced-price meals; use of individual applications and records 


51041  Evaluation of educational program 


51450-51455  Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 


52052  Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


60600-60649  Assessment of academic achievement, especially: 


60640-60649  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


60800  Physical fitness testing 


60810-60812  Assessment of English language development 


60900  California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


850-864  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


9622  National Assessment of Educational Progress 


 


Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Testing and Accountability: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta 


Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium:  http://www.smarterbalanced.org 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


  


643 of 656







This page has been left blank







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Student Assessment 
 


BP 6162.5  


Instruction 
 


 


The Governing Board recognizes that student assessments are an important instructional and 


accountability tool. Assessment data shall be used to help determine individual students' 


progress, mastery of academic standards, appropriate placement in district programs, and/or 


eligibility for graduation. In addition, summary data on student assessment results shall be used 


by the district to identify and review student achievement goals in the district's local control and 


accountability plan, evaluate district educational programs in order to identify needed 


improvements, and, as appropriate, evaluate staff performance. 


 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 


(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision) 


(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 


(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 


(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 


(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 


(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 


(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 


 


To obtain the most accurate evaluation of student performance, the district shall use a variety of 


measures, including district, state, and/or national assessments. As appropriate, assessment 


results shall be disaggregated by student subgroup, classroom, grade level, and/or school site to 


allow for critical analysis of student needs. 


 


(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 


 


In selecting or developing any district assessment, the Superintendent or designee shall examine 


evidence of its reliability, its validity for the intended purpose and for various student 


populations, and the extent to which it aligns with the material that is being taught. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that assessments are administered in accordance 


with law and the test publisher's directions and that test administration procedures are fair and 


equitable for all students. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


645 of 656







(cf. 6162.54 - Test Integrity/Test Preparation) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as needed to assist 


administrators and teachers in interpreting and using assessment data to improve student 


performance and the instructional program. 


 


(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


 


When districtwide and school-level results of student assessments are published by the state, the 


Superintendent or designee may provide supplementary information to assist parents/guardians 


and the community in understanding test results. 


 


(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 


 


Individual Record of Accomplishment 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each student, by the end of grade 12, has an 


individual record of accomplishment that includes the following:  (Education Code 60607) 


 


1. The results of the state achievement tests administered pursuant to Education Code 


60640-60649 or any predecessor assessments 


 


2. The results of any end-of-course examinations taken 


 


3. The results of any vocational education certification examinations taken 


 


(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 


 


No individual record of accomplishment shall be released to any person, other than the student's 


parent/guardian or a teacher, counselor, or administrator directly involved with the student, 


without the written consent of the student's parent/guardian, or the student if he/she is an adult or 


emancipated minor.  The student or his/her parent/guardian may authorize the release of the 


record of accomplishment to a postsecondary educational institution for the purposes of credit, 


placement, or admission. (Education Code 60607) 


 


(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


313  Assessment of English language development 


10600-10610  California Education Information System 


44660-44665  Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees (Stull Act) 


49558  Free and reduced-price meals; use of individual applications and records 


646 of 656







51041  Evaluation of educational program 


51450-51455  Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 


52052  Academic Performance Index; numerically significant student subgroups 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


60600-60649  Assessment of academic achievement, especially: 


60640-60649  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


60800  Physical fitness testing 


60810-60812  Assessment of English language development 


60850-60859  High school exit examination 


60900  California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


850-864  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 


1200-1225  High School Exit Examination 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


9622  National Assessment of Educational Progress 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Key Elements of Testing, May 2004 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Teachers' Use of Student Data Systems to Improve Instruction, 2007 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education, Testing and Accountability: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta 


Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium:  http://www.smarterbalanced.org 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  May 21, 2014 Soquel, California 


647 of 656







This page has been left blank







CSBA Sample 


Board Policy 


Title I Programs 
 


BP 6171  


Instruction 
 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide a high-quality education that enables all students to 


meet challenging state academic standards. In schools with a large number or percentage of 


economically disadvantaged families, the district shall use Title I funds to provide services that 


strengthen the academic program and provide support to students at risk of failing to achieve 


academic standards. 


 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 


(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 


 


Title I funds shall be used to supplement, not supplant, funds available from state and local 


sources for the education of students participating in Title I programs.  (20 USC 6314, 6321) 


 


Descriptions of how the district will address the required components of the Title I local 


educational agency plan, as specified in 20 USC 6312, shall be included within the district's 


control and accountability plan (LCAP), the LCAP Federal Addendum, or another document. 


School-level strategies shall be aligned with the district's plan and be tailored to the specific 


needs of the students at the school. 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


 


In addition, the district and each school receiving Title I funds shall develop a written 


parent/guardian and family engagement policy in accordance with 20 USC 6318. 


 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


Comparability of Services 


 


In schools receiving Title I funds, state and local funds shall be used to provide services that, 


taken as a whole, are at least comparable to services in schools that are not receiving Title I 


funds or, if all district schools are receiving Title I funds, that are substantially comparable in 


each school. Comparability may be determined on a school-by-school basis or by grade span.  


(20 USC 6321) 


 


To demonstrate comparability of services among district schools, the district shall: 


649 of 656







 


1. Adopt and implement a districtwide salary schedule 


 


2. Ensure equivalence in teachers, administrators, and other staff, as measured by either or 


both of the following: 


 


a. The ratio of students to instructional staff at each Title I school within a grade span, 


which shall not exceed 110 percent of the average ratio for all non-Title I district schools within 


that grade span 


 


b. Salary expenditures for instructional staff at each Title I school, which shall be no less 


than 90 percent of the average salary expenditure across non-Title I district schools. 


 


3. Ensure equivalence in the provision of curriculum materials and instructional supplies, by 


determining whether the per-student expenditure of state and local funds for curriculum materials 


and instructional supplies in Title I schools is between 90 and 110 percent of the districtwide 


average 


 


4. Determine whether the amount of state and local funds allocated per student for each 


grade span is between 90 and 110 percent of the per student average for each grade span in non-


Title I schools 


 


(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 


 


In determining comparability, the district shall not include staff salary differentials for years of 


employment. The district also may exclude unpredictable changes in student enrollment or 


personnel assignments that occur after the beginning of the school year, state and local funds 


expended for language instruction educational programs, state and local funds expended for the 


excess costs of providing services to students with disabilities, and supplemental state or local 


funds expended in any school attendance area or school for programs that specifically meet the 


intent and purposes of Title I.  (20 USC 6321) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall annually assess comparability in accordance with the above 


criteria and maintain records documenting the district's compliance.  If any instances of 


noncomparability are identified, the Superintendent or designee shall promptly implement 


adjustments as needed to ensure comparability. 


 


Participation of Private School Students 


 


The district shall provide or contract to provide special educational services, instructional 


services (including evaluations to determine the progress being made in meeting students' 


academic needs), counseling, mentoring, one-on-one tutoring, or other Title I benefits to eligible 


private school students residing in a participating school attendance area. Such services and 


benefits shall be provided on an equitable basis in comparison to services and other benefits for 


public school students.  (20 USC 6320, 7881) 


 


650 of 656







Program Evaluation 


 


The Board shall regularly monitor the progress of economically disadvantaged and low-


achieving students in Title I schools. During the annual evaluation of the district's progress 


toward achieving each goal identified in the LCAP or other planning document addressing 20 


USC 6312, the Board shall review disaggregated data on academic achievement, school 


attendance, and other outcomes for such students and shall ensure that strategies are revised as 


necessary to support continuous improvement. 


 


(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


11503  Parent involvement programs in Title I schools 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


54420-54425  State Compensatory Education 


64001  Single plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


6301  Program purpose 


6311-6322 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students, including: 


6312  Local educational agency plan 


6313  Eligibility of schools and school attendance areas; funding allocation 


6314  Title I schoolwide programs 


6315  Targeted assistance schools 


6318  Parent and family engagement 


6320  Participation of private school students 


6321  Comparability of services 


6333-6335 Grants to local educational agencies 


6391-6399  Education for migrant students 


7881  Participation of private school students 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


200.1-200.73 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students 


 


Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Frequently Asked Questions About Title I Schoolwide Programs 


Local Control and Accountability Plan Federal Addendum Template 


Meeting Title I, Part A Comparability Requirements, October 2017 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Fiscal Changes and Equitable Services Requirements Under the Elementary and Secondary 


Education Act of 1965 (ESEA), as Amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act, Non-


Regulatory Guidance, November 21, 2016 


Title I Fiscal Issues, Non-Regulatory Guidance, February 2008 


651 of 656







Designing Schoolwide Programs, Non-Regulatory Guidance, March 22, 2006 


Title I Services to Eligible Private School Students, October 17, 2003 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


652 of 656







Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Title I Programs 
 


BP 6171  


Instruction 
 


 


In order to improve the academic achievement of students from economically disadvantaged 


families, the district shall use federal Title I funds to provide supplementary services that 


reinforce the core curriculum and assist students in attaining proficiency on state academic 


standards and assessments. 


 


(cf. 5149 - At-Risk Students) 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 


(cf. 6162.51 - Standardized Testing and Reporting Program) 


(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall provide technical assistance and support to any school 


participating in the Title I program, including consultation in the development and 


implementation of school plans and activities.  (20 USC 6312) 


 


(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 


 


The district and each school receiving Title I funds shall develop a written parent involvement 


policy in accordance with 20 USC 6318. 


 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


Local Educational Agency Plan 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other 


appropriate school personnel, and parents/guardians of participating students in the development, 


periodic review, and, as necessary, the revision of a local educational agency (LEA) plan. The 


plan and any revisions shall be submitted to the Governing Board for approval.  (20 USC 6312) 


 


The plan shall address the components specified in 20 USC 6312, which describe the 


assessments, strategies, and services the district will use to help low-achieving students meet 


challenging academic standards. 


 


The initial plan shall be submitted to the California Department of Education (CDE) and 


approved by the State Board of Education.  Subsequent revisions of the plan shall be kept on file 


in the district. 


 


653 of 656







Comparability of Services 


 


State and local funds used in schools receiving Title I funds shall provide services that, taken as a 


whole, are at least comparable to services in schools that are not receiving Title I funds or, if all 


district schools are receiving Title I funds, that are substantially comparable in each school. 


Comparability may be determined on a school-by-school basis or by grade span. (20 USC 6321) 


 


To demonstrate comparability of services among district schools: 


 


1. The Board shall adopt and implement a districtwide salary schedule. 


 


2. The ratio of students to teachers, administrators, and other staff at each Title I school 


shall not exceed 110 percent of the average ratio across non-Title I schools. 


 


3. Salary expenditures at each Title I school shall be no less than 90 percent of the average 


salary expenditure across non-Title I schools. 


 


4. All district schools shall be provided with the same level of base funding per student for 


curriculum and instructional materials. 


 


5. The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the quantity and quality of 


instructional materials and equipment at each school. 


 


(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 


 


In determining comparability, the district shall not include staff salary differentials for years of 


employment. The district also may exclude unpredictable changes in student enrollment or 


personnel assignments that occur after the beginning of the school year, state and local funds 


expended for language instruction educational programs, state and local funds expended for the 


excess costs of providing services to disabled students, and supplemental state or local funds 


expended in any school attendance area or school for programs that specifically meet the intent 


and purposes of Title I.  (20 USC 6321) 


 


At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall measure 


comparability in accordance with the above criteria and maintain records documenting the 


district's compliance.  If any instances of noncomparability are identified, the Superintendent or 


designee shall promptly implement adjustments as needed to ensure comparability. 


 


Program Evaluation 


 


The Board shall use state assessment results and other available measures or indicators to 


annually determine whether each participating school is making adequate yearly progress toward 


ensuring that all students meet the state's proficient level of achievement on state assessments.  


(20 USC 6316) 


 


(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools) 


654 of 656







(cf. 0520.3 - Title I Program Improvement Districts) 


(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


11503  Parent involvement programs in Title I schools 


52055.57  Districts identified or at risk of identification for program improvement 


54020-54028  Economic Impact Aid 


54420-54425  State Compensatory Education 


64001  Single plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 


6301  Program purpose 


6311-6322 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students, including: 


6312  Local educational agency plan 


6313  Eligibility of schools and school attendance areas; funding allocation 


6314  Title I schoolwide programs 


6315  Targeted assistance schools 


6316  School improvement 


6318  Parent involvement 


6320  Participation of private school students 


6321  Comparability of services 


7881  Participation of private school students 


CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 


200.1-200.79 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Parent Involvement: Development of Effective and Legally Compliant Policies, Governance and 


Policy Services Policy Briefs, August 2006 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


LEA Plan, rev. May 17, 2006 


Provisions for Private School Students, Teachers, and Other Education Personnel in the No Child 


Left Behind Act of 2001, rev. November 1, 2005 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION  GUIDANCE 


Title I Fiscal Issues, May 26, 2006 


Designing Schoolwide Programs, March 22, 2006 


Supplemental Educational Services, June 13, 2005 


The Impact of the New Title I Requirements on Charter Schools, July 2004 


Parental Involvement:  Title I, Part A, April 23, 2004 


Serving Preschool Children Under Title I,  March 4, 2004 


Title I Services to Eligible Private School Students, October 17, 2003 


Local Educational Agency Identification and Selection of School Attendance Areas and Schools 


and Allocation of Title I Funds to Those Areas and Schools, August 2003 


WEB SITES 


655 of 656







CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov/iasa/titleone 


No Child Left Behind: http://www.ed.gov/nclb 


U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


656 of 656





		CVR IB Programme 6.13.18 final

		Harbor High IB Board presentation

		CVR LCAP Process and Recommendations 6.13.18 final

		LCAP 6.13.18 Final KM

		CVR LCAP Public Hearing 6.13.18 final

		18-19 SCCS LCAP Exec Summary.Final.2

		2018 SCCS LCAP.Final

		Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template

		2017-20 Plan Summary

		The Story

		LCAP Highlights

		Review of Performance

		Greatest Progress

		Greatest Needs

		Performance Gaps

		Increased or Improved services



		Budget Summary



		Annual Update

		Goal 1

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 2

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 3

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 4

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 5

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Annual Update

		Goal 6

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions / Services



		Analysis



		Stakeholder Engagement

		Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update

		Impact on LCAP and Annual Update



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 1

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 2

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 3

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 4

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 5

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Goals, Actions, & Services

		Goal 6

		State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:

		Identified Need:

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions / Services



		Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils

		Addendum

		Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

		Plan Summary

		Budget Summary



		Annual Update

		Annual Measurable Outcomes

		Actions/Services

		Analysis



		Stakeholder Engagement

		Goals, Actions, and Services

		New, Modified, Unchanged

		Goal

		Related State and/or Local Priorities

		Identified Need

		Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes



		Planned Actions/Services

		For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement

		Students to be Served

		Location(s)



		For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:

		Students to be Served

		Scope of Service

		Location(s)



		Actions/Services

		New/Modified/Unchanged:



		Budgeted Expenditures





		Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

		Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds

		Percentage to Increase or Improve Services





		State Priorities

		APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

		APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS

		Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

		Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

		Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services



		LCAP Expenditure Summary



		Roofing & Solar Construction Inc. Agreement SCH Roofing Cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

		Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		Roofing & Solar Construction Inc. Agreement SCH Roofing

		Roofing & Solar Construction Inc. Layout SCH Roofing

		Santa Cruz A-0

		Sheets and Views

		A-0A





		Santa Cruz A-1

		Sheets and Views

		A-1





		Santa Cruz A-2

		Sheets and Views

		A-2





		Santa Cruz A-3

		Sheets and Views

		A-3





		Santa Cruz D-1

		Sheets and Views

		D-1





		Santa Cruz D-2

		Sheets and Views

		D-2





		Santa Cruz D-3

		Sheets and Views

		D-3





		Santa Cruz D-4

		Sheets and Views

		D-4





		Bond Project Expenditures Update cover

		Bond Projects Expenditures YTD & Projected Presentation

		1819 Preliminary Budget cover

		2018-2019 Budget Presentation 6.13.18  final 6.8

		2018-19 Preliminary Budget

		2018-19 Preliminary Budget SACS Report

		Public hearing Budget 1819 cover

		Public Hearing Prelim 2018-19 budget

		Cvr Board Policy Updates Item 8.5.4.1. First.Final

		BP Guidesheet for Board

		BP 0420.4 Charter School Authorization

		BP 0420.4 current

		BP 1312.3 Uniform Complaint Procedures

		BP 1312.3 current

		BP 3551 Food Service Operations.Cafeteria Fund

		BP 3551 current.docx

		BP 3553 Free and Reduced Price Meals

		BP 3553 current

		BP 4111 Recruitment and Selection

		BP 4111 current

		BP 4119.11 Sexual Harassment

		BP 4119.11 current

		BP 5022 Student and Family Privacy Rights

		BP 5022 current

		BP 5144.1 Suspension and Expulsion Due Process.FINAL

		BP 5144.1 current

		BP 5145.6 Parental Notifications

		BP 5145.6 current

		BP 5145.13 Response to Immigration Enforcement NEW

		BP 6162.5 Student Assessment

		BP 6162.5 current

		BP 6171 Title I Programs

		BP 6171 current








